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WESTERN CONNECTICUT g\
HEALTH NETWORK RECEIY

DANBURY HOSPITAL <« NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810
203.739.7000

WeastermnConnecticutHeathNetwork.org

May 25, 2011

Jeannette B. DeJe&us, MPA, MSW

Deputy Commissioner

CT Office of Health Care Access
Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue

MS #13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C. by Danbury Health Care
Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Commissioner Dedeius:

Based on a February 11, 2011 determination, 11-31683-DTR, please find enclosed an Acquisition of
Equipment Certificate of Need for Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (DHCA) to acquire and operate
imaging equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC (NDI), a free-standing imaging center located in
Newtown, CT that provides MRI, CT-scan, ultrasound and general radiology services. DHGCA intends to
continue operations of the NDI facility in its current location at 153 S Main Street, Newtown, CT. DHCA
would assume the lease for the space at this location and operate the facility in the same manner that it
currently operates its Danbury Diagnostic Imaging and Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging locations.

If you have any questions that the following submission does not answer, please contact me so that we may
provide whatever additional information you need in your deliberations. | can be reached directly at 203-
733-4903, or sally.herlihy@ weihealthnetwork.org.

Sincerely,

Mﬁ%

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Waestern Connecticut Health Network

cc: Enclosure
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Acquisition of Equipment
Application Checklist

Attached is the CON application filing fee in the form of a
certified, cashier or business check made out to the “"Treasurer
State of Connecticut” in the amount of $500.

OHCA Verified by: Jé%f\ , Date: 595 b-| 5

Attached is evidence demonstrating that proper public notice
has been published in a suitable newspaper that relates to the
location of the proposal.

~ Attached is a completed affidavit, signed and notarized by the

s

£ H N

Form 2020
Revised 11

appropriate individuals.

Submiitted is a scanned copy of each submission in
its entirety, including all attachments on CD,
preferably in Adobe (.pdf) format.

Submitted is an electronic copy of the documents on
CD in MS Word format with financial attachments
and other data as appropriate in MS Excel format.

Attached are completed Financial Attachments I and 11.

Submitted CON application materials, including
cover letter and all attachments, have been
paginated in their entirety.

Submission includes one (1) original and four (4)
hard copies with each set placed in 3-ring binders.

/08
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operation of aguipment from
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AFFIDAVIT

Applicant:  Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.

Project Title: Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging by Danbury Health
Care Affiliates, Inc.

|, John M. Murphy, MD, President & CEQ of Western Connecticut Health Network, being duly
sworn, depose and state that Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.’s information submitted in

this Certificate of Need Application is accurate and correct to the best of my knowledge.

W Tl /2 y{/k/

Sig{j.l re U U | Date?!

Subscribed and sworn to before me on Mm,/ (Q{(Qﬁ/f

d'/
| HEE] 87 ) oyt 7
T Ll [ L¥

Ew g

Notary Public/Commissioner of SL_.lperior Court

My commission expires: %@’/@%’/ ('/“
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State of Connecticut
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Instructions: Please complete all sections of the Certificate of Need (“CON”) application. If any
section or question is not relevant to your project, a response of “Not Applicable” may be deemed an
acceptable answer. If there is more than one applicant, identify the name and all contact information for
each applicant. OHCA will assign a Docket Number to the CON application once the application is
received by OHCA.

Docket Number:

Applicant: Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.
Contact Person: Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Contact Person’s Title: Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network

Contact Person’s 24 Hospital Avenue

Address: Danbury, CT 06810

Contact Person’s

Phone Number: 203-739-4903

Contact Person’s

Fax Number; 203-739-1974

Contact Person’s

Email Address: sally.herlihy @ wethealthnetwork.org

Project Town: Newtown, CT

Project Name: Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging by Danbury
Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (affiliate of Western Connecticut
Health Network)

Statute Reference: Section 19a-638, C.G.S.

Estimated Total

Capital Expenditure: $1,200,000

Form 2020

Revised 11/08
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1. Project Description: Acquisition of Equipment
a. Please provide a narrative detailing the proposal.

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C. (NDI) is a free-standing imaging center located in
Newtown, CT that provides MRI, CT-scan, ultrasound and general radiology services. The
Center is wholly-owned by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C.

Danbury Healthcare Affiliates, Inc. (DHCA), a wholly-owned tax-exempt subsidiary of
Western Connecticut Health Network (WCH), is proposing to purchase NDI at a cost of
$1,200,000, which includes acquisition of a CT scanner and MRI scanner. DHCA intends
to maintain imaging operations at the NDI facility at 153 S Main Street, Newtown, CT.
DHCA would assume the lease for the space at this location and operate the facility in the
same manner that it currently operates its Danbury Diagnostic Imaging and Ridgefield
Diagnostic Imaging locations.

b. Provide letters that have been received in support of the proposal.
See Attachment A

c. Provide the Manufacturer, Model, Number of slices/tesla strength of the proposed scanner (as
appropriate to each piece of equipment).

This proposal involves the acquisition of two pieces of equipment from NDI:
¢ MRI Scanner — General Electric Signa V 1.5 Tesla
e (T Scanner - General Electric CT single slice

d. List each of the Applicant’s sites and the imaging modalities and other services currently offered
by location.

DHCA is an affiliate of WCH, which currently operates two imaging sites located in
Danbury, CT (Danbury Diagnestic Imaging or DDI) and Ridgefield, CT (Ridgefield
Diagnostic Imaging or RDI).

DDI: 21 Germantown Road, Danbury, CT 06810
Services provided include CT, MRI, ultrasound and diagnostic x-ray.

RDI: 901 Ethan Allen Highway, Ridgefield, CT 06877
Services provided include CT, MRI, ultrasound, diagnostic x-ray, mammography,
and bone density.

See Attachment B for a copy of the WCH organizational chart which demonstrates the
relationship between DHCA and the proposed new affiliate NDI.

Form 2020
Revised 11/08
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2. Clear Public Need

a. Explain why there is a clear public need for the proposed equipment. Provide evidence that
demonstrates this need.

As the present DHCA facilities that provide imaging services continue to grow and move
toward reaching capacity, an opportunity exists for Newtown area residents serviced at
these locations to gain timely appointments in the new location closer to their residences in
Newtown. This ability to decompress patient volume across the sites of care will enhance
patient access for services.

b. Provide the utilization of existing health care facilities and health care services in the Applicant’s
service area.

Please refer to Attachment C for CT and MRI exams activity at the DDI and RDI facilities.
DHCA does not have access to other provider utilization figures.

c. Complete Table 1 for each piece of equipment of the type proposed currently operated by the
Applicant at each of the Applicant’s sites.

Table 1: Existing Equipment Operated by the Applicant

Provider Name Description of Hours/Days of Operation ** | Utilization *%*
Street Address Service * 12-month period =
Town, Zip Code 1/1/10-12/31/10
Danbury Diagnostic 1.5 Tesla MRI Mand F: 7:30 am - 5 pm 3,847 exams
Imaging (closed) TU, W, TH: 7:30 am- § pm

20 Germantown Road SAT: 8 am—2 pm

Danbury, CT 06810

32-slice CT Scanner M - F: 7:30 am - 4:30 pm 6,091 exams

Ridgefield Diagnostic 1.5 Tesla MRI M and F: 7:30 am — 5 pm 3,302 exams
Imaging (closed) TU, W, TH: 7:30 am- 8 pm
801 Ethan Allen Highway SAT: 8 am—2 pm

Ridgefield, CT 06877

32-slice CT Scanner | M - F: 7:30 am - 4:30 pm 3,403 exams

* Include equipment strength (e.g. slices, tesla strength), whether the unit is open or closed {for MR
** Days of the week unit is operational, and start and end time for each day; and
*#% Number of scans/exams performed on each unit for the most recent 12-month period (identify period).

d. Provide the following regarding the proposal’s location:
i. The rationale for locating the proposed equipment at the proposed site;

NDI is already an established provider at this Newtown location. Following acquisition,
DHCA will continue to offer the existing MRI, CT-Scan, ultrasound and general radiology
services. Additionally, this location will enhance convenience and access to DHCA’s
current Newtown patient base and through centralized scheduling functions help
decompress other facilities, allowing for better access and faster service for all customers.
No new services are being requested under this CON request. Any future expansion of

Form 2020
Revised 11/08
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services will be considered under current CON regulations specific to imaging services and
will be requested accordingly. '

ii. The population to be served, including specific evidence such as incidence, prevalence, or
other demographic data that demonstrates need;

NDI currently provides imaging services for Newtown and surrounding towns, including
Sandy Hook, Bethel, Southbury, and Danbury. These five towns represent three-fourths of
total patient volume at this facility. It is anticipated the same population will be served
under DHCA ownership, as DHCA and NDI currently serve patients in the same
geographic area.

iii. How and where the proposed patient population 1s currently being served;

Attachment D provides a breakdown of the total facility patient utilization from the
proposed area that is presently being served at the Newtown, CT location currently
operated by NDI.

iv. All existing providers (name, address) of the proposed service in the towns listed above and
in nearby towns;

Existing imaging providers located in the proposed service area are identified on
Attachment E.

v. The effect of the proposal on existing providers; and

There will be no change in the provision of diagnostic imaging services, and therefore no
effect on existing providers for imaging services at this location. However, under DHCA
ownership, the location will no longer provide cosmetic vein procedures that have been
performed at this location by NDI.

vi. If the proposal involves a new site of service, identify the service area towns and the basis for
their selection.

Not Applicable.

e. Explain why the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of existing or approved
health care services.

This proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of services as it will continue
service to an existing patient base, with the existing imaging capacity in the service area.

3. Actual and Projected Volume

a. Complete the following tables for the past three fiscal years (“FY™), current fiscal year (“CFY™),
and first three projected FYs of the proposal, for each of the Applicant’s existing and proposed

Form 2020
Revised 11/08
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pieces of equipment (of the type proposed, at the proposed location only). In Table 2a, report the
units of service by piece of equipment, and in Table 2b, report the units of service by type of
exam (e.g. iIf specializing in orthopedic, neurosurgery, or if there are scans that can be performed
on the proposed scanner that the Applicant is unable to perform on its existing scanners).

Table 2a: Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Equipment Unit

Actual Volume CFY Volume* Projected Volume

{Last 3 Completed FYs) (First 3 Full Operational FYs)**

FY 2008 | FY 2009 | FY 2010 | FY 2011 (5 mths) | FY 2012 | FY 2013 | FY 2014
Scanner***
DDI-CT 5,153 5,694 5,732 2,299 5,683 5,854 6,029
DDI -~ MRI 3,532 3,663 3,629 1,413 3,493 3,598 3,706
RDI-CT 2,365 2,741 3,082 1,313 3,246 3,343 3,442
DDI - MRI 2,360 2,471 2,925 1,307 3,231 3,328 3,428
NDI-CT 668 803 954
NDI - MRI 934 1,058 1,205
CT Subtotal 8.814 3,012 8,929 9,197 9,472
MRI Subtotal 6,554 2,720 6,724 6,926 7,133
Total 13.410 14,569 15,368 6,332 17,255 17,994 18,763

* For periods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered and the
method of annualizing. For perieds less than six months, report actual volume and identily the period covered.
#* If the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the first three full FYs. Add
columns as necessary.

#i# Identify each scanner separately and add lines as necessary. Also break out inpatient/outpatient/ED volumes if

applicable.

##%% Fill in years. In a footnote, identify the period covered by the Applicant’s FY (e.g. Tuly 1-June 30, calendar year, etc.).

Table 2b: Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Type of Scan/Exam

Actnal Volume CrY Projected Volume

(Last 3 Completed FYs) VYolume* (First 3 Full Operational FYs)**
Service
type***
Total

* For pertods greater than 6 months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months covered and the
method of annualizing. For periods less than six months, report actual volume and identify the period covered.
** If the first year of the proposal is only a partial year, provide the first partial year and then the first three full FYs. Add
columns as necessary.
4% Identify each type of scan/exam {e.g. orthopedic, neurosurgery or if there are scans/exams that can be performed on the
proposed piece of equipment that the Applicant is unable to perform on its existing equipment) and add lines as necessary.

#44% Fill in years. In a footnote, identify the period covered by the Applicant’s FY (e.g. July 1-June 30, calendar year, etc.).

Please refer to Attachments F for historical CT and MRI volumes, by type of scan/exam, at
DDI, RDI and NDI.

Form 2020
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b. Provide a breakdown, by town, of the volumes provided in Table 2a for the most recently
completed full FY.

Please refer to Attachment B for CT and MRI volume by town for DDI and RDI.
c. Describe existing referral patterns in the area to be served by the proposal.

Existing referrals are generated by local Primary Care, Pediatric, Medical Subspecialists and
Surgical Subspecialists.

d. Explain how the existing referral patterns will be affected by the proposal.

Although we don’t anticipate this to happen, we have prepared a going-forward pro-forma for
the location that considers the potential of losing some loyal referring physicians through the
transition.

e. Explain any increases and/or decreases in volume seen in the tables above.

As indicated in question 3.d. above, the volume projections and the resulting pro-forma in the
first year of operation have been mitigated to reflect the potential loss of previously loyal
referring physicians. As stated, we do not anticipate this to happen, but it was an assumption
that was included in the business model. Other volume reduction in the first year include any
imaging procedures that were directly associated with cosmetic vein procedures that have been
performed at this location by NDI (stated in 2.d.v. above).

f.  Provide a detailed explanation of all assumptions used in the derivation/calculation of the
projected volume by scanner and scan type.

DDI and NDI annual growth projection of 3% for CT and MRI scans are based on historical
market and clinical services growth at the DHCA’s Danbury and Ridgefield sites.

NDI volume projections begin with FY 2012 and reflect status quo volumes during the
transition year, with a ramp-up that coincides with expanded weekday hours in year two (3 14
hours per day M-F = 17.5 hours/week) and further expansion to Saturday hours (8 hours) in
year 3. Increased accessibility for patients will result from changes in the NDI schedule to
match the hours of operation at both the DDI and RDI facilities by the end of the third year,
The testing volume for CT scans represents 20% and 18% volume growth respectively in years
2 and 3, and the MRI volume growth is 14% and 12% respectively for years 2 and 3.

g. Provide a copy of any articles, studies, or reports that support the need to acquire the proposed
scanner, along with a brief explanation regarding the relevance of the selected articles.

Not Applicable.

Form 2020
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4. Quality Measures

a. Submit a list of all key professional, administrative, clinical, and direct service personnel related
to the proposal. Attach a copy of their Curriculum Vitae.

DHCA will be providing the technical services at this location and will contract professional
services through Danbury Radiology Associates, PC. DHCA, d/b/a as Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, will bill for the services provided at this location.

Please see Attachment G for Curriculum Vitaes of Jeet Sandhu M.D., Medical Director;
ToniAnn Marchione, Director; and Joleen Dennison, Manager.

b. Explain how the proposal contributes to the quality of health care delivery in the region,

DHCA is an affiliate of Western Connecticut Health Network (WCH), which currently
operates five imaging locations through its various affiliates including DHCA, Danbury
Hospital, and New Milford Hospital. Through its centralized scheduling capabilities and with
the addition of this location, WCH will be able to offer its patients greater access, choice, and
convenience as to where and when they can receive their imaging study throughout its imaging
enterprise, without adding any additional imaging capacity to the service area.

5. Organizational and Financial Information
a. Identify the Applicant’s ownership type(s) (e¢.g. Corporation, PC, LLC, etc.).

DHCA is a Non-stock corporation, whose sole member is Western Connecticut Healthcare,
Inc.

b. Does the Applicant have non-profit status?
[7] Yes (Provide documentation) [_] No

Yes, DHCA has non-profit status. Documentation is included in Attachment H.

c. Provide a copy of the State of Connecticut, Department of Public Health license(s) currently held
by the Applicant and indicate any additional licensure categories being sought in relation to the
proposal.

Please see Attachment I for a copy of the current certificate of use for NDI.
d. Financial Statements

i.  If the Applicant is a Connecticut hospital; Pursuant to Section 19a-644, C.G.S., each hospital
licensed by the Department of Public Health is required to file with OHCA copies of the
hospital’s audited financial statements. If the hospital has filed its most recently completed
fiscal year audited financial statements, the hospital may reference that filing for this
proposal.

Form 2020
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Financial Statements have been included in Attachment J. These statements have also been
filed in the 2/28/2011 OHCA Annual Reporting.

u. If the Applicant is not a Connecticut hospital (other health care facilities): Audited financial
statements for the most recently completed fiscal year. If audited financial statements do not
exist, in lieu of audited financial statements, provide other financial documentation (e.g.
unaundited balance sheet, statement of operations, tax return, or other set of books.)

Not Applicable.
e. Submit a final version of all capital expenditures/costs as follows:

Table 3: Proposed Capital Expenditures/Costs

Medical Equipment Purchase $
Imaging Equipment Purchase $1,200,000
Non-Medical Equipment Purchase
Land/Building Purchase *

Construction/Renovation *#
Other Non-Construction (Specify)
Total Capital Expenditure (TCE) $1,200,000
Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) *## $

Imaging Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***
Non-Medical Equipment Lease (Fair Market Value) ***
Fair Market Value of Space ***

Total Capital Cost (TCC) $

Total Project Cost (TCE + TCC) $1,200,000
Capitalized Financing Costs (Informational Purpose Only)

Total Capital Expenditure with Cap. Fin. Costs $

* If the proposal involves a land/building purchase, attach a real estate property appraisal including the amount; the useful
life of the building; and a schedule of depreciation.

% If the proposal involves construction/renovations, attach a description of the proposed building work, including the gross
square feet; existing and proposed floor plans; commencement date for the construction/ renovation; completion date of the
construction/renovation; and commencement of operations date.

*#% If the proposal involves a capital or operating equipment lease and/or purchase, attach a vendor quote or invoice;
schedule of depreciation; useful life of the equipment; and anticipated residual value at the end of the lease or loan term.

f. List all funding or financing sources for the proposal and the dollar amount of each. Provide
applicable details such as interest rate; term; monthly payment; pledges and funds received to
date; letter of interest or approval from a lending institution.

The funding will be comprised of a loan issued by Danbury Hospital to its affiliate Danbury
Health Care Associates, in the amount of $1,200,000. Term of the loan will be at 7.5% interest
per annum paid over a term of 60 months.

g. Demonstrate how this proposal will affect the financial strength of the state’s health care system.

Not Applicable: This proposal involves maintaining a provider of CT and MRI services in its
current location.

Form 2020
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6. Patient Population Mix: Current and Projected

a. Provide the current and projected patient population mix (based on the number of patients, not
based on revenue) with the CON proposal for the proposed program.

Table 4: Patient Population Mix

Current®* Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

FY #%% FY 5 FY ##% FY #%#

Medicare*® 25.6% 26.0% 26.0% 26.0%
Medicaid* 0.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
CHAMPUS & TriCare 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Total Government 26.1% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4 %
Commercial Insurers™® 72.6% 72.1% 72.1% 72.1%
Uninsured 0.4% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Workers Compensation 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Total Non-Government 73.9% 73.6% 73.6% 73.6%
Total Payer Mix 100% 100% 100% 100%

* Includes managed care activity,
** New programs may leave the “current” column blank,
*** il in years. Ensure the period covered by this table corresponds to the period covered in the projections provided.

b. Provide the basis for/assumptions used to project the patient population mix.

Payer mix was calculated using current DHCA experience plus projected NDI volume. NDI
projected payer mix was determined using the current NDI experience.

7. Financial Attachments I & IT

a. Provide a summary of revenue, expense, and volume statistics, without the CON project,
incremental to the CON project, and with the CON project. Complete Financial Attachment L
(Note that the actval results for the fiscal year reported in the first column must agree with the
Applicant’s audited financial statements.) The projections must include the first three full fiscal
years of the project.

Please refer to Financial Attachment I in the Attachment section.

b. Provide a three year projection of incremental revenue, expense, and volume statistics
attributable to the proposal by payer. Complete Financial Attachment II. The projections must
include the first three full fiscal years of the project.

Please refer to Financial Attachment II in the Attachment section.

c. Provide the assumptions utilized in developing both Financial Attachments I and 1I (e.g., full-
time equivalents, volume statistics, other expenses, revenue and expense % increases, project
commencement of operation date, etc.).

Please refer to Financial Attachment II in the Atiachment section.

Form 2020
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d. Provide documentation or the basis to support the proposed rates for each of the FYs as reported
in Financial Attachment II. Provide a copy of the rate schedule for the proposed service(s).

The proposed rates for services provided at NDI will be identical to the rates offered at
DHCA'’s existing 2 sites in Danbury and Ridgefield. Please refer to Attachment K.

¢. Provide the minimum number of units required to show an incremental gain from operations for
each fiscal year.

Financial projections provide for incremental gain from operations in each fiscal year.
However, calculating the minimam number of units required to breakeven would assume the

same volume projections provided less 40 MRIs in Year 1, 200 MRIs in Year 2, and 325 MRIs
in Year 3.

f. Explain any projected incremental losses from operations contained in the financial projections
that result from the implementation and operation of the CON proposal.

There are no incremental losses from operations as a result of this CON proposal.

g. Describe how this proposal is cost effective.

The current payers for services provided at NDI include Medicare, Medicaid, Commercial,
and managed care organizations. It is not anticipated there will be any decrease in coverage

provided by these payers, and potentially an expansion of payers will occur to enhance patient
access.

Form 2020
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List of Attachments

Attachment A WCH organizational chart

Attachment B Letter of Support

Attachment C CT and MRI patient volume by town for DDI and RDI
Attachment D Total facility patient volume by town for NDI
Attachment E Area Imaging Providers

Attachment F CT and MRI volume by scan type for DDI, RDI, and DDI
Attachment G Curriculam Vitaes

Attachment H DHCA non-profit status

Attachment T NDI certificate of use

Attachment J DHCA Financial Statements

Attachment K Proposed NDI Rate Schedule

Financial Attachment I Summary of Revenue, Expense and Volume Statistics
Financial Attachment 11 Three Year Projection
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Attachment B Letter of Support

8B DANBURY HOSPITAL

A MHigher Levef of Care

Patrick Broderick, M.D., FA.CEP.
Chalrman, Department of Emergency Medicina

Biplomate ABERIARIM
Adiunet Assodiate Professor Meditine/Emergency Medicine
Hew York Medical College

May 23, 1011

Jearmette B, Delesus, MPA, MSW
Dreputy Compissioner

T Office of Health Care Access
Drepartment of Public Health

416 Capitol Avernus

MS #13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Support for Acquisition ol Newtown Disgnestic Imaging, L.L.C. by Danbury
Health Care Affiliates, Ine,

Drear Comemissioney De Fesus:

am writing 10 you in support of the acquisition of Newrown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C.
by Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. As a physician for Western Connecticut Health
Merwork, our mission is o serve our commiunity by providing the highest quality care.
Presently, our access for imaging services is hindered by a high capacity at our outpatient
facilities. 1 believe by providing imaging in nearby Newtown, we will decompress the
velome and this will allow for aster and more convenien sepvice,

If vou have any questions or concerns pleass contact me at 203-739-7405.

M.D., FACEP

Department of Emergency Medicine

24 Hospital Avenua ¢ Danbury, Conrecticut BEB10 » Phose: (203) 7367405 + Fax: (203) 735.3049
Eomiail: patrick bradorick@danbosp.org » dasburyhassital.ong
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Danbury and Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging CT Scan Volumes by Town

DDI - CT RDI -CT

Location FY2009 | FY2010 | FY2011 l.ocation FY2009 | FY2010 | FY2011
DANBURY CT RIDGEFIELD CT
06810 1,219 1,246 498 06877 1,391 1,399 527
DANBURY CT REDDING CT
06811 1,014 1,031 381 06896 345 341 119
BROOKFIELD CT DANBURY CT
06804 640 632 289 06810 148 212 82
BETHEL CT DANBURY CT
06801 636 542 243 06811 144 185 52
NEW FAIRFIELD BETHELCT
CT 06812 422 438 138 06801 87 153 46
NEW MILFORD BROOKFIELD CT
CT 06776 322 319 146 06804 74 130 39
NEWTOWN CT NEW FAIRFIELD CT
06470 241 285 120 06812 72 94 26
SANDY HOOK CT NEWTOWN CT
06482 183 205 85 06470 44 47 22
SOUTHBURY CT NEW MILFORD CT
06488 153 193 96 06776 26 71 20
SHERMAN CT WILTON CT
06784 78 66 19 06897 44 52 19
RIDGEFIELD CT SQUTH SALEM NY
06877 68 54 22 10590 42 40 15
BREWSTER NY SANDY HOOK CT
10509 56 50 30 06482 28 33 7
REDDING CT SOUTHBURY CT
06896 54 43 21 06488 9 24 - 12
WOODBURY CT WESTON CT
06798 27 51 35 06883 19 18 5
Subtotal 5,113 5,155 2,173 Subtotal 2,473 347 263
All Other Towns 529 586 266 All Other Towns 241 319 129
TOTAL 5,642 5,741 2,439 TOTAL 2,714 1,166 392

Source: McKesson; sorted by zip code {patients not procedure volume}; FY 11 is 6 months
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Danbury and Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging MRI Volumes by Town

DDI - MR} RDI - MRI

l.ocation FY2009 | FY2010 | FY2011 Location FY2009 | FY2010 | FY2011
DANBURY CT RIDGEFIELD CT
06810 728 720 355 06877 1,352 1,350 507
DANBURY CT '
06811 674 701 352 REDDING CT 06396 317 328 129
BROOKFIELD CT DANBURY CT
06804 509 517 235 06810 108 211 a8
BETHELCT DANBURY CT
06801 458 426 200 06811 107 178 b2
NEW FAIRFIELD BEFTHEL CT
CT 06812 273 280 134 06801 81 132 68
NEW MILFORD WILTON CT
CY 06776 264 248 110 06897 94 96 34
NEWTOWN CT BROOKEIELD CT
06470 145 151 77 06804 72 95 57
SANDY HOCK CT NEW FAIRFIELD CT
06482 91 91 45 06812 48 78 29
SOUTHBURY CT SCUTH SALEM NY
06488 49 55 24 10590 37 52 21
REDDING CT NEWTOWN CT
06896 50 43 18 06470 31 45 29
SHERMAN CT NEW MILFORD CT
06784 38 a7 14 06776 21 54 26
RIDGEFIELD CT SANDY HOOK CT
06877 50 19 10 06482 22 34 15
Subtotal 3,329 3,293 1,574 Subtotal 2,290 2,653 1,075
All Other Towns 3560 339 161 All Other Towns 212 337 142
TOTAL 3,689 3,632 1,735 TOTAL 2,502 2,990 1,217

Source: McKesson; sorted by zip code {patients not procedure volume); FY 11 is 6 months
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Newtown Diagnostic Imaging Patient Distribution
Distribution of Patients by Town
Two-year period: 11/08-11/10
(last patient analysis completed by NDI)

Top 25 by Town = 95% of Total Patient Volume
1 NEWTOWN, CT 4,309
2 SANDY HOOK,CT 2,598
3 BETHEL, CT 866
4 SOUTHBURY,CT 845
5 DANBURY, CT 767
6 BROOKFIELD, CT 408
7 NEW FAIRFIELD, CT 352
8 PAWLING, NY 272
9 NEW MILFORD, CT 245
10 WOODBURY, CT 210
11 MONROE, CT 170
12 REDDING, CT 147
13 OXFORD, CT 115
14 WATERBURY, CT 78
15 RIDGEFIELD, CT 71
16 ROXBURY, CT 52
17 MIDDLEBURY, CT 49
18 NAUGATUCK, CT 42
19 BRIDGEWATER, CT 38
20 SHERMAN, CT 38
21 EASTON,CT 37
22 BOTSFORD, CT 30
23 TRUMBULL, CT 26
24 SEYMOUR, CT 25
25 WATERTOWN, CT 22
Subtotal 11,812
ALL Other Towns 584
Total 12,396
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Attachment F

Existing Providers in Surrounding Towns

Housatonic Valley Radiology Associates

67 Sandpit Road
Danbury, CT

800 Main Street
Southbury, CT

131 Kent Road
New Milford, CT

Northeast Radiology Associates

'/3 Sandpit Road
Danbury, CT

385 Main Street
Southbury, CT

31 Old Route 7
Brookfield, CT (women’s imaging only)

Danbury Healthcare Affiliates

21 Germantown Road
Danbury, CT

Danbury Hospital

101 Osborne Avenue
Danbury, CT
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Attachment F

CT volume by scan type for DDI

71258 Ci harax wio dye 348 ara 7o 282 453
FA160 Ot abgomen widya &t 715 95 354 487
72193 1 petvis widye 451 E8E BAS 254 435
TE3FT 34 rendering wWINEIHToSES 584 530 &15 240 A1t
72170 1 abdomen wig & widye 81 445 204 18 peci =
71280 St Ay widya 235 343 Aga 335 574
Faig4g £t pehis Wi & widye 411 333 3i5 4 127
4150 ot ahdomen wio die 343 376 Fid 54 144
72392 Ct pekis w'o gy 337 378 3840 gz 144
7450 £t heaartradn wio dye 240 257 2ES a1 15
FA4EE Ct maxifcfacisl wio dys 237 158 174 a4 Y
72131 T wiminar apine w's dye 125 120 B3 28 =
vO4at Ot 502 UEsue neck widys 82 124 g2 72 123
FEYET o1 sbdomenioeiils WioonlTas! 27F 485
TIFOR OF e esramiky wip dye 49 & & 32 &g
F3205 1 upper exiremily whio dye 43 43 23 24 4%
F2125 Tt nEck Bpine Wi dye 3z i El iz 21
TE1TE Ot sbdSoely 1+ sechionTegns e 138
TEiTE 21 argle abdom v & widye & 5 23 34 ]
TAITE £t abd £ paivis wie ooriras! 74 12T,
0450 Ct 508 Uesus meck win dye 4 T #5 g 15
T2i28 ol ches! sping wio My 20 21 5 £ 1T
V1275 ot anglography shest 16 HH t3 18 L
0453 T orbeRnoEsd Wi gy 18 s & 18 i7
v2i91 L1 Engiograph pai Wnkaidye 2 2 17 28 8
TaITE I FENERT WD DOSIDrOneEs 15 ¥ b5 -
TRASD = headibraln widye 7 5 = 18 17
TRETE L headiorain weg & wityie g E i1 1T 17
TodH Ci orbstiear s s wie 4 = 7 s &
498 o arglograpiy nedk i & & 7 12
TEFE O thorax win A widys & = g -
3708 ol ieer ERITRMEY widye i T 3 L g
F48T £ maxtiotaclE wilye 3 i 4 g 14
Fa20Y £t upper sxiremily widve z 3 3 =
o498 <t anglography bead 1 3 5 4 T
YITRE CF angio e ety wialaiiye i 4 £ 12
vE33D AT Soan Doboaeun shudy 4 2 2 g 3
TA4Z 1 6 bEus mi o & iy 2 1 3 3 g
TIT0E G BT eiRmiEy aniaiiye i 2 E 3
TE13E 1 BimDaEr Spine widye £ -
TI12E <t ohest spine witys 2 -
o483 f gritfearossa winlwitee i i pd
TI20E St angie upr ety wioEuidye 1 -
T &F ohast spe a0 & widye 1 -
[assT 1 sofnograping sorzen 1 -

T2 133 £1 ki splne win & widve i _ -
Grand Tofal STet| Sead| GTAT[  gias| 4G
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MRI volume by scan type for DDI

TIT2 Mt jnit of wer exdre win dye 414 1,106 1,014 433 B45
72148 M lurrbar spine wio dye 573 825 el A4 FaB
TE2H B joint upr extrem winc dye 433 507 30 283 502
72141 M neck spine win dye 283 285 294 148 250
70553 Wi brain w'o & widys 342 261 275 134 230
74183 Mri abdomen wio & widys 134 125 191 114 105
FO551 Ml brain wio dys 102 147 108 gz 158
72158 M lumbar spine wo & widye 130 14 105 &2 go
Fa7i8 M lower extremity wio dye 87 B7 114 k) 108
FI148 Mr chest spine wio dys 57 i &3 28 45
T2187 Mr pelvis w/o & widye 40 41 83 28 45
72108 Brt neck spne win & widye 43 4% 43 2 45
Fazaz B joint upr extrem wicye 45 47 27 18 33
70544 W angiography head wio dye 25 25 38 e 33
FZIG8 Mirl pelvis win dye 1@ 3z 7 17 28
F3730 B o extremity woSw/dys 25 Y 18 i3 i
T257 Kirt chest spine wio & widye 18 2 24 i7 st
73723 Wi joint her extr wio@wsidye 32 18 13 1 i
FA722 Wi joint of hwr exir weidye ) 17 18 13 18
70543 W orbyfac'nok wio & widye 17 13 22 21 56
73218 W upper exvemity wis dys 22 15 23 ] 2z
7428L Win abdomen wis dye 10 10 15 4 24
TO5S br angicgrach neck srnbawidye g 2 15 3 L]
TIZI3 s joint upr extr wiokeddye 11 & 12 Z 3
73220 Me uppr edremity wio@aridye g 7 2 4 7
71650 M chest wio dye 3 il 1t 3 5
FIEEZ b chest wic & widye & 2 2 4 ¥
TEEE Blagnetic image jaw joint & 2 s -
TOEAT M angicgraciy neck wio dye 1 i 2 4 F
TOEAE B orbitTace/neck wis dys & -
TOEEZ B brain widys 1 iy t z
st b angicgraph head windwisye 2 i -
74185 dr angic abdom w onwio dye 2 1

72142 Vir neck sone widye 1 2

72148 b lurrlar spine widye i ]

T80 b pelviz widye 1 ¥ -
Filgt ¥4 both breasis 1 -
72147 L chest spins widye i _ -
Grand Total B 3,554 3,691 3632 56D 3,360
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CT volume by scan type for RDI

Page 27 of 55

74180 £t abdomen widve 341 433 857 [ 264
72193 Ct pelvis widys 324 425 543 fd 247
71256 ot e wio dye 287 247 321 163 274
T1260 ﬂtmw@g& i3 180 a0 1% 26=
TE37T i rergdenn SITERES 1ad 128 23 129 221
FOLED £t nesdbrain W‘ﬁf :ﬁjre 14 151 173 ] 5
TO486 £t madiofads Wi dye g2 181 134 B 10
TEED 1 abdomen wio dye 3¢ 188 153 4 &7
F2182 o pelvis wio dye 31 161 155 41 i
74170 Lt abdomen wio & widve i 136 ird 55 24
TRIE <1 pelvis Wio & witye 75 56 115 3 &8
TOLEY <t sott Hesue neck witye 43 45 =1} 25 BE
P ¥ 2t abdomenipeivis winoniast 135 23
73200 Ot upper extremity wio dye krd e 2 27 45
73700 C iowwer exiremity wio gy 15 33 B 15 b
72131 Cf tumbar spine wio Gye L % 3 = 14
74175 £t angiy ADTOM WD & wWidye i iz k1 12 21
TI275 &t angiooranhy ches? -1 13 =22 1 14
74175 CF abd & pedvis Wio corirast &1 &
72125 L1 neck spine win dye g 5 13 =} £
TATTE Gt abokpely 1+ secinniragns 35 B2
TOAED ot oibiiearfosss e gys ] i 13 1 2
FOss0 1 507 Hesus neck Wi dye 8 1 7 5 10
T8 Ot angioorach pelv winkwidye 2 3 15 7 12
TOSED Cf nead i widye 2 S 12 4 7
TRETD Ct heglbral w/o & wides 3 3 1 g £l
TOART f 2% tsue nok wio & widye =3 i 1 2 3
TOARY ot mt&i%eaﬁ'!‘m ﬁ%ﬁy@ 4 Z & 2 3
TOAsE ; : iy 2 2 £ 3 !
72128 4 5 i 2
TIFnE QE aﬁga e E}:u‘ %ﬂ&ﬂéﬁ%ﬁgf& z & 4 ¥
TOLBY L4 ?’nm%&'&aﬁﬁ i&ﬁ:’f{f& 2 3 & 1 2
TGS e : “head 2 i 2 3 g
TITD &t %::#&*eg EFTSTEY Wiy i 4 3 -
TI2EY L1 upper e&:‘mity witye z 3 i 2
T1270 f S Wi & widya 3 2 - -
TOLEZ Ctomiteanifossa windwime 2 2 -
TEITS 3 refvder Wi pOSTIONEES i 2 -
7Ie CF AT extremdly wiskwidve 1 1 2
TOARS C aliodacial weo B oaidve 1 1 2
T21:8 & chesl epire wilye 1 2
Tz Ot HmBar S widye 1 2
?2133 Cf embar BpinE WD & Wite 1 -

T2126 £t nenk spine widye 1 -
7237 Lt neck spine Wi & widye 1 -
Grand Totak FE] IS R 1448 2 482
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MRI volume by scan type for RDI

73721 &Ar ot of heT eaire win gy 545 705 7i2 437 T3
FIX2E B Jodnd upr ExiTeEm W oye 310 337 274 A 435
72148 An fumbar spine wie dye 240 313 265 212 53
0553 it brain wio & widye 205 257 it T2 B
2141 Bin neck spine wio dve 125 181 207 118 187
74153 M abdomsn wit & wilye ] 141 151 07 183
TO85E M Drainwic gye 52 165 fds 8E 347
TATIE A oy enemity wio dye £3 53 =] 48 59
Trhse 341 bath Breasts P ‘ T4 B gl
72158 KAt wembar spine wn & widye 41 71 5 3 &7
T2197 Ain pelvis Wi & widye 24 32 55 a S0
T214E M chest sgdne Wi dye 22 Ak 45 30 51
222 Air foint upr exdrem widye i 27 47 23 3
fla=tt N sngiography hissd aio dye 18 30 47 i7 28
72158 Mrl neck epine Wio & wilye b KL k) 18 31
Vo543 NA orbtTanmck wn & Wit 23 23 & bE 24
72185 M pelvls w0 dys 7 i3 | i 33
F2187 LI chest soine W & widye i 14 15 15 b
TITIE I;s.e!r% Joint TaT BanT A oEMmidye 13 17 B 13 17
TIE Ar upper Sairemily Win dye i3 15 14 it 18
TIFID &t AT ecremBy winlwidye i 13 18 & T
TO5AE L angingraph reck wiodnigys 5 14 2 g 8
TEHEE &4t abdomsn W dve & 14 i g 14
TIVEE B foint of W ey witye id 18 il e 3
TEHEE Brf 2rgle sbdom w opaD oy 3 = 17 4 T
T1552 MR ohest W0 & widye 2 ] 11 3 5
TIZ23 A fnint upr el winBatdye 3 7 & 2 3
TRERD R upoy erromitly winlentye - 7 & 3 5
V7G58 Mt oz hreast 2 3 1 -

71550 Mri chest win dyg 2 3 7 3 &
Y1358 Sl arglo chest w o win dve 4 & 5 &
FRET BT I raghy reck Wi dye 2 3 2 ¥
TOEED A oL TEoR man Wil dye 4 i i 1 2
72198 AT e pEIVIE D B TR 1 3 i Z
TREEE Adrd orain widye 2 1 1 z
72143 Nt wminar spine widys 2 : -

Ta5as Mir angiography meck widye 1 2 -

TEIAE 5 Eodomen Bye 3 -

Taris i e enraminy Wi Tye 2

T2 LT WM meck spime vt 2 -

TOI3E Magratic image [aw joint 1 z
TOREE S angograph kead wiolwidye 1 z
2147 5 chesl spine witye i -

sz Ml orbitfacsmeck widye T -

7.2 135 Airt pedis mdvE _ _ - -

Grand Total 1347 2502 2850 E FIIE]
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CT and MRI volume by scan type for NDI — FY 2010

DESCRIPTIO
74170 |CT ABDOMEN WiTH AND WITHO 33
74160 |CT ABDOMEN WITH CONTRAST 129
74150 |CT ABDOMEN WITHOUT CONTRA 46
72125 |CT CERVICAL SPINE WITHOUT 4
70450 |CT HEAD OR BRAIN W/O CONT B7
70470 |CT HEAD OR BRAIN WITH & W 3
70460 |CT HEAD OR BRAIN WITH CON 3
73700 |CT LOWER EXTREMITY WITHOU 5
72131 |£T LUMBAR SPINE WITHOUT C 8
70485 |CT MAXILLOFACIAL WITHOUT 31
70480 |CT ORBIT/SELLA/FOSSA EAR 1
72124 |CT PELVIS WITH AND WITHOU 8
72193 |CT PELVIS WITH CONTRAST 141
72182 |<T PELVIS WITHOUT CONTRAS 44
70491 |CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH 17
70492 |CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH 1
70490 [CT SOFT TiSSUE NECK WITHO 3
72128 |CT THORACIC SPINE WITHOUT 2
71270 __|£T THORAX WITH AND WITHOU 2
71260 [CT THORAX WITH CONTRAST 54
71250 |CT THORAX WITHOUT CONTRAS 141
73200 |CT UPPER EXTREMITY WITHOU 4
74183 |MRi ABDOMEN WITH AND WITH 9
74181 | MRI ABDOMEN WITHOUT CONTR 1
70553 | MBI BRAIN WITH AND WITHOU 78
70552 |MRi BRAIN WITH CONTRAST 1
70551 | MRI BRAIN WITHOUT CONTRAS 45
72156 | MRI CERVICAL SPINE WITH A 4
72142 |MRI CERVICAL SFINE WITH C 1
72141 |MRi CERVICAL SPINE WITHOU 80
73721 |MRIJOINT LOWER EXTREMITY 366
73723 |MRIJOINT LOWER EXTREMITY 8
73722 [MRLIOINT LWR EXTREMITY W 2
73223 [MiRiJOINT UEPER EXTREM W 2
73221 | MRIIOINT UPPER EXTREMITY 194
73718 |MRILOWER EXTREM NON-JOIN 35
73720 |MRI LOWER EXTREM NON-JOIN 10
72158 |MRE LUMBAR SPINE WITH AMD 22
72143 _ |MRI LUMBAR 5PINE WITHOUT 155
70542 |MR! ORSIT FACE NECK W/CON 1
70543 |MRi DRBIT FACE NECK WITH 3
70540 |MRI ORBIT FACE NECK WITHO 1
72197 |MRI PELVIS WITH AND WITHO 14
72196 |MRIPELVIS WITH CONTRAST 1
72195 |Mmi PELVIS WITHOUT CONTRA 12
72157 [NiRI THORACIC SPINE WITH A 4
72146 [MiRI THORACIC SPINE WITHOU 8
73218 | MRI UPPER EXT OTHER THAN 7
73220 |MR: UPPEREXTREM NON-JOINT 1
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Attachment G

Fatejeet Singh Sandhu, M.D.
Danbury Hospital Department of Radiology, 3" Floor
24 Hospital Ave, Danbury, CT 06810
Office (203) 797-7291

Current Appointment

Chairman, Department of Radiology, Danbury Hospital, Danbury CT, 3/2011-Present
Attending Radiologist, Danbury Radiological Associates, Danbury CT, 7/2002- Present
Attending Radiologist, Putnam Imaging Associates, Putnam Hospital, Carmel, NY 1/2003- present

Past Appointments

Attending Physician, Department of Radiology, University of North Carolina Hospitals, Chapel
Hill, NC 1996-2002

Assistant Professor of Radiology, Section of Vascular and Interventional Radiology, University of
North Carolina, 1996-2002

Chiet, Interventional Radiology, San Francisco General Hospital, 1993-1996

Assistant Director, Vascular Access Clinic, San Francisco General Hospital, 1993-1996

Attending Physician, VA Medical Center, San Francisco, CA 1992-1993

Attending Physician, Mt. Zion Hospital, San Francisco, CA 1991-1992

Post Graduate Medical Training

Interventional Radiclogy Fellowship 1992-1993
Emory Hospital/ Grady Hospital
Emory University School of Medicine, Atlanta, GA

Body Imaging Fellowship 1991-1992
San Francisco General Hospital
University of California, San Francisco

Radiology Resident 1987-1991
University of California, San Francisco

Internal Medicine Internship 1986-87
Yale University School of Medicine, New Haven, CT

Medical Education

Emory University School of Medicine, Atlanta, GA
Doctor of Medicine, June 1986.
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Undergraduate Education

Duke University, Durham, NC
B.A. Chemistry with Biological Specialization

Honors and Awards

Phi Eta Sigma, 1981

Phi Beta Kappa, 1982

Magna Cum Laude Duke University, 1982

Alpha Omega Alpha, 1985

Lange Book Award, Awarded to the most Outstanding Medical Student, 1986
Cum Laude Emory University, 1986

Hideyo Minagi Award, Outstanding Teacher of the Year Award, 1995
Distinguished Reviewer Award, Journal of Vascular and Interventional Radiology, 1996, 1997
Outstanding Workshop Faculty Member, SCVIR Annual Meeting, 1997, 1998
Charles Bream Award, Outstanding Teacher of the Year Award, 1999
Distinguished Faculty Award, SVIR Annual Meeting, 2000

Licensure and Certification

American Board of Radiology, 1991

CAQ, Vascular and Interventional Radiology, 1996, Recertified 2006
Connecticut State License

New York State License

California State License

Georgia State License

North Carolina State License

Memberships

American College of Radiology
American Roentgen Ray Society
Connecticut Radiological Society
Radiological Society of North America
Society of Interventional Radiology

Selected Publications

Sandhu JS, Goodman PC: “Pulmonary cysts associated with pneumocystis carinii pneumonia in
patients with AIDS.” Radiology 173:33-35, 1989.

Sandhu JS, Dillon WP: “MR demonstration of leukoencephalopathy associated with
mitochondrial encephalomyopathy: a case report.” AJNR 12: 375-79, 1991.

Sandhu JS, Wilson MW: “Use of a stone basket to treat lysis- resistant clot after pulse- spray
thrombolysis of an occluded hemodialysis graft.” AJR. 163: 957-959, 1994,
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Cello JP, Ring EJ, Olcott EW, Koch J, Gordon R, Sandhu J, Morgan DR, Ostroff JW, Rockey DC,
LaBerge J, Lake JR, Somberg K, Doherty C, Davila M, McQuaid K, Wall SD: “Endoscopic
Sclerotherapy versus percutaneous transjugular intrahepatic portosystemic shunt (TIPS) after initial
sclerotherapy in cirrhotic patients with acute variceal hemorrhage: a randomized controlled trial.”
Ann Intern Med. 1997, 126: 858-865.

Gordon RL, Ahl KL, Kerlan RK, Wilson MW, LaBerge JM, Sandhu JS, Ring EJ, Welton ML:
“Selected arterial embolization for the control of lower gastrointestinal bleeding.” Am Journal of
Surgery. 1997; 14: 24-28.
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Toni Ann Marchione L.R. T, (M)

Education Florida Hospital College of Health Sciences, Orlando, Fla.
BS — Radiologic Science 2012

United Hospital School of Radiology
Port Chester, NY
Certification in Radiologic Technology

Work Experience  Danbury Hospital, Danbury, CT
Director of Diagnostic Services 2010 — Present
Manager of Operations (Rad) 2007 - 2010
Manager RDI — Imaging Facility 2006 - 2007

Rye Radiology Associates, Rye Brook, NY

Assistant Administrator 2003 — 2006

Chief Technologist 1998 — 2003

Floor Supervisor 1995 — 1998

Staff Technologist 1993 — 1995
Professional Member, American Society of Radiologic Technologists
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Joleen Dennison, RT

Education Danbury Hospital School of Radiologic Technology, Danbury, CT
Radiology Technologist Certificate-1988

Work Experience  Danbury Health Systems, Danbury, CT
Manager, Operations Ridgefteld Diagnostic Imaging 2009- present
Manager, Operations Danbury Diagnostic Imaging 2008-present
Assistant Manager, Operations Danbury Diagnostic Imaging 2004-2008
CT Scan, Supervisor 1998-2004
Staff Technologist CT Scan 1990-1998
Staff Technologist X-ray 1988-1990
Technologist Aide 1986-1988

Professional Member, American College of Radiology
Member, AHRA-Association for Medical Imaging Management
Certified/Licensed Radiological Technologist

Responsibilities and experience including volume budget planning, department spending, oversee day-
to-day facility operation, compliance, relationship with outside billing company, work with Radiology
Management at Danbury Hospital, direct technical and front-end reports: Radiologic Technologists and
Customer Service Representatives, support and assist Technologists in clinical area.
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Attachment H

Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury
P.O. Box 2508
Cincinnati, OH 45201

Date: Person to Contaci:
Tracy Garrigus #31-07307
Toll Free Telephone Number:

DANBURY HEALTH CARE AFFILIATES INC 877-829-5500
24 HOSPITAL AVE ) Emplayer Identification Number:
DANBURY CT 06810-6099 22-2594968

Dear Sir or Madam:
This is in response to your request of August 8, 2008, regarding your tax-exempt status.

Our records indicate that a determination letter was Issued in August 1985 that recognized you as exempt from
Federal income tax. Our records further indicate that you are currently exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Caode.

Our records also indicate you are not a private foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code
because you are described in section 509(a){2).

Doners may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises,
transfers, or gifts to you or for your use are deductible for federal estate and gift tax purposes if they meet the
applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code.

If you have any quaestions, please call us at the telephone number shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely,

Cindy Westcott
Manager, Exempt Organizations
Deterrninations
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Attachment I

STATE OF CONNECTICUT

TEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
79 Ehn Streat

Hattford, CT 06106-5127

www.eLgovidep

Certificate of Use

lszued To

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging

For

Diagnostic and Therapeutic X-Ray Device Registration

Amey Marrella

Commissioner
Facility Information: Reg, #: 451 8
Newtown Diagnostic Imaging {aka Facility \D#)
153 S Main St. Application No: 201006518
Newtawn, CT QG470 |ssue Date; 12/22/2040
Reference: Renewing Fac; 1d# 04518 (3 X-Ray Expiration Date: 4/30/2012

devices) 153 8. Main St, Newtown, Ct.
08470
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
BUREAUOF AIR MANAGEMENT
DIVISION OF RADIATION

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging

153 South Main Street
Newtown, Connecticut 06470

Dafe of compliance: 12(22/10
The above facility appecied to be v compliance with pertinest sections of the State af Cornectic, Depariment of Envirorunental
Protecrion, ddininistrative Regulations seciion 19.34-1 shrough 19-25d-11 for X-ray Devices wsed for Dingrosis and TTerapy.

78 ELM STREET
HARTFORD, CT 66106-5127
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Attachment J
Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.
Comparative Financial Statements
{(Unaudited)
Periods Ending
September 30, 2010 and 2009
Form 2020
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.

Comparative Financial Statements
{(Unaudited)

Page 39 of 55

Periods Ending September 30, 2010 and 2009

Contents

Introduction
Financial Highlights
Statements of Financial Position

Summary ot Operations and
Change in Net Assets

Statements of Cash Flow

Notes o the Financial Statements

5-8
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Introduction

The Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc (DHCA) financial statements and notes included in
the following pages, one through eight, were prepared by management for internal use only
and are not audited. It has been management’s intent to follow Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), where possible. However, the primary use of these
statements is for the internal use of management for DHCA and no independent review has
been made to determine that all financial reporting is in compliance with GAAP. These
statements should not be relied on by any outside party to extend credit on them.
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.

Financial Highlights
{Unaudited)

Periads Ending September 30, 2016 and 2009
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CURRENT MONTH - YEARTO-DATE
Actual Budget Prior Actual Budget Prior
$210,558 $31,372 ($85,744) income (Losses} from Operations §1,252,332 $375,443 $623,257
$210,558 $31.3_?§ ($85,744) Excess Revenue (Fxpenses) $1,250. 333 $375,443 $523,257
Kay Performance Indicators:
14.8% 2.5% {7.7%) Operating Income {Loas) % of Net Revenye 8.0% 25% 3.7%
14.9% 25% {7.6%) Met Income (1.0s5) % of Net Revenue 8.0% 2.5% 3.7%
36.1% 48.9% 44 6% Sataries and Bonefits as a % of Net (tevenue 42.2% 46.7% 43.5%
5 axiE3 3% 93522 § 76,670 Average Annuaf Salaries and Benefits per FTE 84874 § 94,106 3 79,5485
Corporale Health Care:
1,246 1,119 1,099 Total Vigite 12,730 13,430 12,218
Worknet:
264 319 362 Total Visits 3,303 3,821 3,153
DDI:
301 300 2097 MRS 3,629 3,657 3,686
457 a62 439 CT's 5,732 £,654 5,601
239 231 154 Ultrasound 2,823 2,805 2479
873 B3G 645 Xray's B.151 8,025 7,832
64 63 80 Oiher/Surglca! Procedures B854 840 818
1,734 1,892 1,595 Total Procedures 21,189 20,980 20,416
RDI:
229 210 247 MRAl's 2,925 2,590 2,484
258 252 22 T's 3082 2973 2,676
311 147 153 Liltragound 2,769 1,845 1,574
289 204 294 Xray's 3,367 3,662 3214
282 210 297 Other/Surgical Procedures §,009 2,550 2,420
87 68.23 74 Marmimograghy 1,078 830,39 823
1,453 1,19 1,206 Total Procedures 16,250 14460 13,291
639 547 536 Ambutanze Transports 6978 6795 6662
75.0 745 718 FTEs 7.7 74.5 Fi.5
$ 331,809 $ 147882 § 29,274 ERIDA {excludes Non-Operating income) 2,737,854 % 1,8B22364 £ 1,960,482
23.3% 11.9% 2.5% Pergent to Total Net Revenue 17.5% 12.1% 13.8%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterments.
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Danbury Health Care Affilitates, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
{Unaudited)

September 30, August 30, September 30,

20710 2010 2009
ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash arid Cash Equivalents $ 1,442,013 % 1,416,980 § 897,205
Accounts Receivable-Net Allowances 1,686,460 1,490,034 1,403,957
Prepaid Expenses 45,723 117,714 140,200
Total Current Assets 3,174,198 3,024,728 2,241,452
Fixed Assets, at Cost 9,915,042 $,900,989 9,712,148
{Less): Accumulaied Depreciation {7,047,677) (6,935,456) (5,713,494}
Fixed Assets, Net 2,867 365 2,965,533 3,998,654
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6041561 § 5590261 & 6,240,106
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued Salaries $ 306,972 % 274493 3 283,599
Accounts Payable 330,106 321370 340,480
Accrued Expenses (119,164) {107,887} 23,626
Current Portion of Long Term Debt 1,337,769 1,329,460 1,241,395
Due To Affiliates 374,766 457,819 459,032
Total Current Liabilities 2,230,449 2,275,255 2,348,133
Cther Ligbilities B,500 8,500 8,500
Long Term Debt, Less Current Portion - 115,341 1,337,769
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,238,949 2,399,096 3,604,402
NET ASSETS-END OF PERIOD 3,802,612 3,591,165 2,545,704
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS § 6041561 § 5,990,281 % 6,240,106
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates , Inc.

Statements of Cash Flow
{Unaudited)

Periods Ending September 30, 2010 and 2008

2010 2009

CASH FEOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

AND NON-OPERATING REVENUE:

Change in Net Assets 1,256,908 $ 525403

Non Cash Expenses and Revenue included in Income From Operations:

Depreciation and Amortization 1,334,182 1,334,361

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts 244,102 179,363

Change in Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) in Net Accounts Receivable (526,608) {341,489)

Decrease (Increase} in Prepaid Expenses 94,477 {43,528)

Increase in Accrued Salaries 23,373 10,269

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (10,374) 115

(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses {142,790 {27,545}
" {Decrease) in Inter-Company Payables {84,266) (46,4886)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2.‘!85).1)?3”7'rr 1,590,453
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Property, Plant and Equipment - Net (202,893) {194,753}
NET CASH (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (202,893) {194,753)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

{Decrease) in Lang- Term Debt {1,241,396) (1,177,215)
NET CASH (USED) BY FINANGING ACTIVITIES (1,241,396} (1,177,215)
NET INCREASE IN CASH 744,718 218,485
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 697,295 478,810
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,442,013 $ 607,008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
{Unaudited)

September 30, 2010

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Form 2020
Revised 11/08

Organization

Danbury Health Care Affiliates (DHCA) is a not-for-profit, 501 (c) (3) Corporation. DHCA
received its favorable ruling from the IRS on August 27, 1985. Tt operates healtheare
programs, which complements the Hospital’s services but which are more appropriately
provided by other than an acute care hospital.

At the present time, DHCA operates the following services (or cost centers) for the benefit of
the Danbury Hospital, its employees, medical staff and the Danbury area residents and

business community:

Administration

Provides administrative and financial services for DHCA. The charges for these services are
subsequently charged to the applicable DHCA service centers and other DHS entities, The
charges are recorded as a credit to expense and set each fiscal year at a budgeted amount
intended to allow the administration service to break even.

Worknet
A service that provides work related rehabilitation and recovery services to the community.

Employee Health
The Employee Health Service is operated on the Hospital campus. It is operated under a

contract with the Hospital to provide medical services for employees. The Employee Health
Center receives a monthly payment, which is budgeted to brezkeven over the fiscal year.

Corporate Health

Corporate Health serves the business community by providing company specific health
services to the employees of corporate entities int the Danbury area that do not wish to employ
their own heaith service staff on a full time basis. Corporate Health serves the companics
with which it contracts at several locations in the area or they will provide staff on site.

DDI

Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (DD} is a freestanding out-patient imaging center, offering
state-of-the-art High Field Strength MRI, Spiral CAT Scanning, Ultrasound and
Computerized X-Ray/Fluoroscopy.

RDI

Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging (RD) is also a freestanding out-patient imaging center,
offering the same services as DDI (X-Ray/Fluoroscopy is digital), with the addition of
Mammography and Bone Density services. RDI also offers invasive procedures such as
Ultrasound guided thyroid and breast biopsies.
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Unaundited)

September 30, 2010

Cartus
DHCA provides medical services to the employees of Cartus.

EMS

Emergency Medical Services provides medical services to the area.

Presentation

The accompanying financial statements were prepared by the Management in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). However the statements have not been
subjected to an independent review to determine that GAAP has always been followed.

Revenue

Gross revenue except for other revenue is identified by the DHCA cost center that produces
the revenue.

Other revenue represents the fees charged from Emergency Training Resources (ETR) for the
costs of providing training classes.

Expenses

Expenses are incurred by the various DHCA cost centers, paid or incurred (services
performed) by the Hospital or the Parent Company, Western Connecticut Healtheare, Inc. and
recharged to DHCA and the various cost centers. if specific identification is not pessible
reasonable allocation precedures are followed,

2. Related Party Transactions

Below is a summary of the related party transactions as of September 30, 2010 and 2009.

2010 AXB
Dugto Affiliates
Denbury Hospital $  IMEB 5 459D
Developmert Fand 3567 % -
Denbury Office of Physician Services (1429

i IAT66 $ 49032

3. Fixed Assets

Page &
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.

Notes to the Financial Statements
{Unaudited)

September 30, 2010

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method of depreciation over the useful life
of the asset. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the expected lease term, furniture
and fixtures are depreciated over 10 years, except for draperies, which has a vseful life of
only 5 years, and computer equipment is depreciated over 3 years with all other equipment

being depreciated over § years.
Septertber 30,
210 2000
Major Movabies Equipent $ STRIB S 5M6300
Data Processing Bquipmrent L0272 LoR72
Mbtor Vehicle 13518 18,518
Eepipment P Radiclogy Cir 42,553 42,553
Fumiture ard Fixtures M7 54,271
Leasshold Inproverrents 304,000 2827718
9915042 9712148
(Less) Accumulared Degreciation ' 700.677) (571349
Net Depreciable Assets $ 2867365 $ 3998654
. )
5. Net Revenue
Net revenue as of September is as follows:
September 30,
2010 2009
Patient Revenue $ 27,392.804 § 25,284,687
Allowance Adjustment (11.956,155) {11,258.,701)

3 15,436,649 % 14,025,986

Page 7
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Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Purchased Services

(Unaudited)

September 30, 2010

Page 48 of 55

Below is a summary of purchased services for the twelve months ended September 2010 and

2009.

Medical
Affiliated Companies
Outside Labs
General
Non-Medical
Transcript
Office Clean
Security

Waste Disposal
Courier

Broker Services
Collection

Page 8

September 30,

2010 2009
$ 0 2283313 %3 2,145,895
24,924 61,424
49,697 55,002
48,439 64,054
275,540 270,096
93,067 92,408
30,481 29,006
674 1,059
- 1,776
5,159 4,239
316,828 460,827
$ 3,328,122 §  3,185876
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Attachment K
Proposed NDI Rate Schedule
Source: Current DHCA DDI/RDI Rate List
MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING (MRI)
Descriplion CPT Code Charge
MRI, temporomandibular joint(s) 70336 $1,490.75
MRI, orbit, face, and neck without contrast . 70540 $1,454.48
with contrast material(s) 70542 $1,745.60
without contrast material(s), followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 70543 $2,016.90
MRA, head; without contrast material(s) 70544 $1,451.43
with contrast material(s) 70545 $1,450.33
without contrast material(s), followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 70546 $1,794.62
MRA, neck; without contrast materiai(s) 70547 $1,450.33
with contrast material(s) ‘ 70548 $1,450.33
without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 70549 $1,794.62
MAI, brain {including brain stem}; without contrast material 70551 $1,490.75
with conirast material(s) 70552 $1,788.50
without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 70553 $2,061.89
MR, chest (eg, for evaluation of hilar and mediastinal lymphadenopathy) 71550 $1,474.88
with confrast material(s) 71551 $1,766.00
without contrast materlal(s) followed by contrast matsrial(s) and further sequences 71852 $2,017.26
MRA, chest (excluding mycardium), with or without contract material(s) 71555 $1,536.38
MRI, spinal ¢canal and contents, cervical; without contrast material 72141 $1,507.03
with contrast material(s) 72142 $1,808.70
MRI, spinal canal and contents, thoracic; without contrast material 72146 $1,647.93
with contrast material(s) 72147 $1,807.60
MRI, spinal canal and contents, lumbar; without contrast material 72148 $1,631.65
with contrast material{s) 72149 $1,789.60
MRI, spinal canal and contents, without conirast material, followed by contrast material(s)
and further sequences; cervical 72156 $2,080.89
thoracic 72157 $2,079.63
lumbar 72158 $2,061.89
MR, pelvis; without contrast material(s) 72195 $1,475.73
with contrast material(s) 72196 $1,766.00
without contrast material(s) follewed by contrast material(s} and further sequences 72197 $2,030.51
MRA, pelvis, with or without contrast material(s} 72198 $1,534.28
MRI, upper extremity, other than joint; without contrast material(s) 73218 $1,454.48
with contrast material(s} 73219 $1,746.70
without contrast material{s) followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 73220 $2,016.90
MRI, any joint of upper extremity; without contrast material(s} 73221 $1,454.48
with contrast material(s) 73222 $1,745.60
without contrast material(s} followed by contrast material(s) and further sequeances 73223 $2,016.90
MRI, lower extremity other than joint; without contrast material(s) 73718 $1,454.48
with contrast material(s) 73719 $1,745.60
without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 73720 $2,016.19
MBI, any joint of lower extremity; without contrast material(s) 73721 $1.454.48
with contrast material(s) 73722 $1,745.60
without contrast materiali(s) foliowed by contrast material(s} and further sequences 73723 $2,016.90
MRA, lower extremity, with or without contrast material{s) 73725 $1,637.35
Form 2020
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MRI, abdomen; without contrast material(s) 74181 $1,474.88
with contrast material(s) 74182 $1,766.00
without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further sequences 74183 $2,030.51

MRA, abdomen, with or without contrast material(s} 74185 $1,534.28

MRI, breast, without and/or with contrast material(s); unilateral 76093 $1,455.12
hilateral 76094 $1,921.90

3D rendering with interpretation and reporting of CT, MRI, uitrasound or other
tomographic modality: not requiring image postprocessing on an independent
workstation. 76376 $416.18

requiring image postprecessing on an independent workstation 76377 $521.10

COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY (CT)

Description CPT Cede Charge
CT, head or brain; without contrast material 70450 $659.75
with contrast material(s) 70460 $806.05
without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s) and further sections 70470 $0987.58
CT, orbit, sella, or posterior fossa or outer, middle, or inner ear; without contrast material 70480 $719.40
with contrast material(s) 70481 $840.45
without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s) and further sections 70482 $1,012.00
CT, maxiilofacial area; without contrast material 70486 $699.20
with contrast material(s) 70487 $830.33
without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s) and further sections 70488 $1,006.83
CT, soft tissue neck; without contrast material 70480 $719.40
with contrast material(s) 70491 $840.45
without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s} and further sections 70492 $1,010.90
CTA, head, without contrast material(s} followed by contrast materials(s) and further
sections, including image posting processing 70496 $1,460.18
CTA, neck, without contrast materials(s} followed by contrast material(s) and further
sections, including image post-processing 70498 $1,460.18
CT, thorax; without contrast material 71250 $838.50
with contrast material(s} 71260 $983.53
without contrast material, followed by contrast material{s) and further sections 71270 $1,205.58
CTA, chest, without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further
sections, including image post-processing 71275 $1,664.38
CT, cervical spine, without contrast material 72125 $838.50
with contrast material(s) 72128 $979.58
without contrast material, followed by contrast materiai(s) and further sections 72127 $1,191.40
CT, thoracic spine; without conirast material 72128 $838.50
with contrast material 72129 $980.43
without contrast material, followed by contrast material and further sections 72130 $1,191.40
CT, lumbar spine, with contrast material 72131 $838.50
with contrast material 72132 $979.58
without contrast material, followed by contrast material and further sections 72133 $1,191.40
CTA, pelvis, without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further
sections, inciuding image post-processing 72191 $1,610.78
CT, pelvis; without contrast material 72192 $820.38
with contrast material 72193 $945.25
without contrast material, followed by contrast material and further sections 72194 $1,141.18
CT, upper extremity, without contrast material 73200 $719.60
with conirast material 73201 $833.50
without contrast material, followed by contrast material and further sections 73202 $1,020.70
CTA, upper extremity, without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material{s) and
further sections, including image post-processing 73208 $1,491.78
Form 2020
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CT, lower extremity, without contrast material
with contrast material

without contrast material, followed by contrast material and further sections

CTA, lower extremity, without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and
further sections, including image post-processing.

CT, abdomen; without contrast material
with contrast materiai
without contrast material, followed by contrast matetial and further sections

CTA, abdomen, without contrast material(s) followed by contrast material(s) and further
sections, including image post-processing

Computed Tomography; abdomen and pelvis; without contrast material

Computed Tomography; abdomen and pelvis; with contrast material(s)

Computed tomography; abdomen and pelvis; without contrast material in one or both
kody regions, followed by contrast material(s} and further sections in one or both body
regions

CT-Colonography, diagnostic, including image post processing w/out contrast
CT-Colonography, diagnostic, including image post processing with contrast

3D rendering with interpretation and reporting of CT, MRI, ultrasound or other

tomographic modality: not requiring image postprocessing on an independent
workstation.

requiring image postprocessing on an independent workstation

CT, limited or localized follow-up study

73700
73701

73702

73706
74150
74160
74170

74175
74176
74177

74178

74261
74262

76376
76377
76380

Page 51 of 55

$719.60
$838.50

$1,019.85

$1,504.83
$814.18
$961.40
$1,166.43

$1,621.88
$1,232.67
$1,429.99

$1,730.71
$1,223.95
$1,686.55

$416.18
$521.10
$536.60
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Financial Attachment I

|Danbuty Healthcare Associates - NOHCON |
Financial Attachment {.
7.a. Provide a y of revenue,

Page 52 of 55

. and vojume statistics, without the CON project, incremental ta the COM project, and witl the TON project,

{Dolaes are in thousands)
FyY 2016 FY 2014 FY 2011 FY 2611 FY 2012 FY 242 FY 2013 Fy 2013 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2014 F¥ 2014
Actual Projected  Projected  Projected 5 Projectsd  Projected Projfected  Projected  Projected J8 Profected  Projected  Projected
Bescription Resulta Wiout CON | | With CON liput COH & ta| Wioul COK  Incremental  With CON JE Wiout COM  incremental  With CON
RET PATIENT REVENUE
Man-Govermment 2994 59,526 - 5,528 510,008 1,282 $10514 1405 511938 515,045 1567 312,653
hsdicare 1527 1,503 - 1308 1345 212 £1,385 362 1748 §1,427 3 £330
Metizaid and Diher Modical Assisiancs 3 335 - 35 L 1 538 2 33 539 X 40
Crther Eovernment 3 - & & 2 58 2 57 2 ]
Tetal Met Patlent Patiasd Revenus 510,543 510,875 - 10,873 $11,39%6 1,549 511,944 51,791 513,75 §12 519 1964 514,5:3
Other Cperating Revenua $5,039 £5 004 - 55,554 55,054 - 5104 - 55,16 55,155 - 85,155
Reverye from Operntions 515,638 £15,377 - $15,877 514,445 1,549 £17.048 1,791 518339 $17.57% £954 519,668
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries ardt Fringe Banefis 96,596 56,294 - §6,594% 57,312 328 57,64 82 27925 57,532 338 58,330
Prolassionat { Contracied Secices 3a7 53z - 852 558 107 585 118 FitH 818 T 5
Supplies and Drugs 2,85¢ 2944 - 2,544 3,082 35 3,185 7 3,551 3,312 74 37286
Bav Detds 44 243 - 243 28 2 289 38 536 & 313 42 355
Oiher Operating Expense 1,797 3,700 - 1,758 1,768 o0 1833 770 3,553 1312 230 1,742
Suidntal 512004 517,434 - 512,414 512986 1,117 £13,553 LED 514,828 514,145 tald 515559
Deprecialionfamortizaton 1,334 3,373 - 1373 1338 158 1,381 1z9 1,550 1,395 155 1,555
inferest Expenss 151 5% - 31 - 74 - 55 &8 - 50 ]
L=zass Expense 235 387 - 87 913 175 941 180 1,121 DE 186 1,154
Total Operating Expenses $15,326 514,754 - 513,734 515,284 1,535 15,884 167 $17,5%2 515510 1308 518,218
Income {Loss) from Coerations 51,35 $1,123 - £1,133 51,155 24 $1,162 13 51,277 51,164 186 $1,350
HMon-Operating Income 55 52 £2 52 £ 52 52 2
Income hefore provisian for inpane taxss 41,258 €1,125 0 61,125 51,168 5234 $1,166 5113 51,279 £1,165 186 81,352
Provision far inoama taxes
Mgt incoms 51,258 $31,245 3¢ €1,155 51168 534 $1,166 5113 51,273 51,155 106 $L352
Retaired eanings, beginning of gaar $3,255 $3,356 $1.256 52,401 51,256 $3,968 $1281 53,593 54,735 51354 34,872
Retaired eamings, snd of year 512356 §2.A481 355 £2,85 £3 568 51281 £4,735 515 4872 55,902 SL580 56,224
FTEs 7 a - 778 Fan 50 202 84 24, 5i4 7.0 584
“Velume Statistics:
MR &55% £.528 6528 6,724 833 6,526 3,068 EACES] 7,133 LE05 83318
€7 Scan 814 8552 - 8,669 5,98 665 2,187 a3 13,000 9,472 954 i 426
Uitressung 592 8,398 §,398 6,590 1,080 6,768 1,151 7959 €332 LE37 bk
Xeay 11538 15,857 - 11,837 12 393 5025 12,558 5955 18,514 . 12,895 5,202 19,136
Tote! Frocadures 32498 35852 - 33432 34,435 7,706 35,468 8,973 48447 i 85,552 5,556 46,118
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Financial Attachment II

{Danbury Healthcare Assotiates - NDI GON

Financial Attachment il

Page 53 of 55

T.h. Please provide three years of proJections of Incremental revanue, axpense and volume statistics attributahte to the proposal in the follewing reparting format:

Type of Service Dascription

Imaging Varicus Modalities

Type of Unit Deseription: Procedures

#of Months in Qperstion 1% months
[Py 2011 ] (1} {2} (3) (4} {5} {5} {7} (8 {9} (10}

FY Projected Incramental Rate Units Gross Allowancesf Charfty Sad et Operating Gainf{Loss)
Total (ncremental Expenses: 30 Revenus Peductions Care Dabt Revenue Expenses  -om Operztions
Col.2*Col. 3 Col4-£ol3  Col 2Total® Col g-<Col9

Total Faeility by Cols - Col.7 ol 47 Col. 4 Tutal

Fayer Category:

tedicare S0 0 50 s0 - - 30 50 %0
Medicaid - - - - - - - - -
CHAMPLIS/TriCare - - - - - - - - -
Total Governmental 0 SG ] ) ] $0 EL) S0
Commericial Insurers - - - - - - - - .
Uninsurad - - - - - - - - .
‘Tetal NonGovernment [} 50 S0 S0 50 $0 50 30
Total All Payers 50 o] $0 50 50 S0 %0 58 $0
[Fraoiz 1 2} {2 (3) ) (s} ) {m 8 El 10}
FY Projected Incremental Rate rits Gross ABowances, Charity Bad Net Opergting Gainf{Loss}
Totat Incremental Expenses: $1,4%2,008 Revenue Daductions Care Debt Revenue Expenses  -otn Operstions

Cal.2*Col. 3 Col.2-CebS Cof.iTotal® ColB-Cal 9

Total Fachlity by -Colé - Cok7 ol 47 Col 4 Total

Payar Category.

Medicare 4407 2,105 855,667 542,183 - - 5313 464 5407,463 {593,973)
Medicaid $407 2 3,690 2,338 - - 1352 1,757 1405)
CRAMPUS/TriCare 407 i1 4,428 2,568 - - 1860 1,834 (754
Tatal Governmental 2125 $863,785 $547,089 50 S0 $315,695 5411,152 {$94,458)
Commericial Insurers 2407 5,525 2,245,988 1,029,510 - 21,634 1,194 844 1,068,515 125,31%
Lininsured $407 58 23,615 - 7,939 10,852 4,725 11,245 {6,522}
Total NonGovernment 5,583 $2,269,602 $1£,029,510 47,939 432,587 1,159 567 51,050,770 5118,797
Total All Payers 5407 7.708 $3,133,387  $1,578,598 $7,939 $32,387 $1.516.263 81,481,924 524,338

Form 2020
Revised 11/08
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[Fr 2013 -

FY Projecied ncremental
Totai incremental £xpenses:

Tetat Facility by
Payer Category:

Meadicare

redicaid
CHAMPUS/TriCara
Totat Governmental

Conmericial Insurers
Uninsuned
Total NonGevernment

Tetal All Payers

Page 54 of 55

[FY 2014

FY Frojected Incramental
Total Incrementai Expenses:

Tetal Facility by
Payer Category:

Medicare

Medicaid
CHAMPLS/TriCate
Toial Gevernmental

Commericial insurers
Uninsured
Total NohGovarnment

Total All Payers

Form 2020
Revised 11/08

() (2 3 ) {5} 16} 6] {s) 19) (1o
Rate Units Gross Aliowances/ Charity Bad Net Operating Sain/{ioss)
$1,640,060 RAevenus Deductions Cara Debt Rayenua Expenses  -om Oparatians
Col. 2% Col. 3 Col4-Col: Coi.lTotal* Colg-Col 9
-G8 - CohY ol 4/ Col 4 Total

$404 2,452 890,735 628,599 - - $362,126 $447,868 {585,733}
404 11 3,272 2,711 - - 1562 1,931 {370}
404 13 5,127 2,973 - - 2,153 2,240 {86}
2,475 51,000,134 $634,283 50 %0 $365,851 5452,039 {586,189}

404 G,435 2,600,319 1,194,083 - 24,504 1,981,822 1,173:582 208,250
A04 ag 27,342 - 8,745 13,128 5468 12,360 (6,892)

5,504 $2,627.861 81,194,083 8,746 $37,731 $1,387,301 51,187,943 $199,358

5404 84979 $3,627,995 1,825,386 58,748 537,731 $1,753,151 51630982 5113165

) 2 {2) {4 ) 1 e ) is) {10}
Rate Units Gross Allowancesf Charity Bad Met Gperating Gainf{Loss)
$1,766,085 Revenue Deductions Care Drist Revenue Expenses  -om Operations
Col. 2% Col.3 Cola-Col5 Col.lTotzi* Col &-Cal 9
-Gol& - Cobl7 ol 47 Col. 4 Total

5421 2,621 1,103,996 700,670 - - 3403,320 $482,286 {578,366}

471 11 4,781 3,021 - - 1,739 2080 {341)

421 14 5,713 3,313 - - 2,398 2,495 (93]

2,645 $1,114,469 $707,010 50 S0 $407 454 5486,862 {579,403

421 B,&87% 2,897,810 i,331.454 - 27,454 1,538,902 1,265,923 272978

421 72 30,468 - 9,784 14,590 5,084 13,310 {7,217)

6,351 $2,928,278 $%,331.454 $9,754 $42,085 - 31,544 955 51,279,234 5205,762

3421 9,598 84,042, TA8 52,038,465 49,784 542,045  §1,952,454 %1766,005  $186,359
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Finaneial Attachment i
7.c. Financial Assumptions

Net Fatient Revenue:
Without Froject:
With Projact:

Valume:
Wwithout Froject:
With Project:
Cither Gpersting Revenue:

‘Without Project:
With Project:

Szlaries and Fringe Benafits:
Without Project:
With Project:

Professional f Contracted Srvs:
Without Project:
With Projeck:

supplies and Drugs:
Witheut Project:
With Project:

Bad Debi:
Without Profect:
Wlth Prajsct:

Other Op Expense:
Without Projact:
With Froject:

Cepraciation:
Without Project:
With Project:

interest:
Without Project:
With Project;

Lessa Expenza:
Without Project:
WWTHE Project:

FTEs:
Wwithout Praject:
With Froject:

Form 2020
Revised 11/08

Determined using kistoricsl payment experience with 0% anausl incresse in govt rates and 2% annual increase in nongovt rates,
Determined using historical payment experiences applied tc projecied valumes at D3 jocation,

Assumption is basaed on 35 volume crease per year, No change in payormi,
incremental MR, C7, ©X, Ultrasound volume at N site,

Astumas 1% increase annuakly
WA

Assunsption Is based on historic aepense comblined with FTE increeses and inflationary incraases approx 3% snnually,

incramental expense based on anticipatzd FTE increasas associsted with peoject

Based on historice! expense plus 55 annuzl inflation increase par vaar,
incremental expense based on anticipated increase in DRA reading fzes.

assumption is based on historical expenses plus 4% inflation increases par year.
Projected using historical actuals applied o incremental velumes plus 4% inflagion annsally.

Assumption is based on 1% of gross revenue consistent annualiy.
Froject assumption is based an 13 of gress ravanue related to incraments! voluma,

Inchudes a 4% snnuel increase on expenses annually.
Project assumption is based on axpesrience applied o Incramaental volume finchudes overhesd Le. purch srv, maintenance, other nonsal)

Assumption is based on historic annual capital spending.
Aszumption bas=d on kistoric NDI daprecistion on existing eguizpment

Based an cusrent interest of axisting debt rolled forward annuatly,
frojection assumes repayment of $1.2M nota a1 7. 25% intersst over 5 year

Inciudes a 3% annust incroasa on expansss annualtly.
Projected Rent Expense for NI location increasing 3% annuakiy.

Inctades annuzt incresse invarlable staffing required to support grawth combined with costinued producivity inftetives currertly undenway.
Incremental staffing increases per year to suppori incremental valume.




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

June 24,2011

VIA FAX & EMAIL ONLY

Sally F. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. .
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC by Danbury Health

Care Affiliates
Dear Ms. Herlihy:

On May 26, 2011, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) received your initial Certificate
of Need application filing on behalf of Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (“Applicant’) for the
acquisition of a Computed Tomography (“CT”) scanner and a Magnetic Resonance Imaging
(“MRI”) scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC (“NDI”) by Danbury Health Care
Affiliates, Inc. (“DHCA™).

OHCA has reviewed the CON application and requests the following additional information
pursuant to General Statutes §19a-639a(c):

Page 10

1. Please readdress Question 2a and provide a detailed explanation as to why there is a clear
public need for this proposal. Provide evidence in support of your explanation.

Page 12

2. Please revise Table 2.a., “Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Equipment
Unit”, by addressing the following items:

a. Provide actual utilization statistics for NDI’s CT and MRI scanners for fiscal
vears (“FYs™) 2008 through 2010. Annual NDI scan volumes for each scanner
need to be provided for the three year period.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860} 418-7053



Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. June 24, 2011
Docket Number: 11-31703-CON Page 2 of 3

b. Revise each line of the scan volumes presented in the “CFY 2011” column,
updating CT and MRI volumes for the most recently completed month. Identify
the number of months represented in the “CFY 2011 column.

c. Expand the table to include all CT and MRI scanners operated by Danbury
Hospital {on and off campus). Be sure to include historical, current year and
projected scan volumes.

d. The “CT Subtotal” and “MRI subtotal” lines of the table reflect projected scan
volume without the project for FYs 2012 through 2014 instead of projected scan
volume with the project. Revise the “CT Subtotal” and “MRI subtotal™ lines of
the table to include the projected scan volume with the project for FYs 2012
through 2014. Please note the total lines reflecting the projected scan volume for
the same time period do not need revision as they appear to reconcile with the
volume totals provided in the Applicant’s Financial Attachment 1 (page 52). -

3. Please reconcile NDI's CT and MRI scan volumes for FY 2010 in the revised Table
2.a.with CT and MRI scan volumes presented in Attachment F, page 29 of the CON
application. If CT or MRI scan volumes differ between the two sources, please provide a
detailed explanation as to why such a difference or differences exist.

4. TFor all projected scan volumes by scanner presented in revised Table 2.a. (whether CT or
MRI), provide an explanation in each case where there is an observed decrease in an
individual scanner’s volume from one fiscal year to the next fiscal year.

Page 13

5. The Applicant states that existing referrals to NDI are generated by local primary care
physicians, pediatric physicians, medical subspecialists and surgical subspecialists.
Please identify the towns from which the existing referrals originate.

6. Please describe the quality of the equipment the Applicant proposes to acquire and how
the Applicant plans to incorporate this equipment into its other imaging equipment usage.

Page 15

7. Please answer question 5.g. of the CON application, which addresses how the proposal
will affect the financial strength of the state’s health care system.



Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. June 24, 2011
Docket Number: 11-31703-CON Page 3 of 3

In responding to the questions contained in this letter, please repeat each question before
providing your response. Paginate and date your response, 1.e., each page 1n its entirety.
Information filed after the initial CON application submission (i.e. completeness response letter,
prefile testimony, late file submissions and the like) must be numbered sequentially from the
Applicant’s document preceding it. Please begin your submission using Page 56 and reference
“Docket Number: 11-31703-CON.” Submit one (1) original and six (6) hard copies of your
response. In addition, please submit a scanned copy of your response, in an Adobe format (.pdf)
mncluding all attachments on CD. If available, a copy of the response in MS Word should also be
copied to the CD.

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please feel free to contact Jack Huber or Steven
W. Lazarus at (§60) 418-7001.

Sincerely,
?@& G Heden

Jack A. Huber
Health Care Analyst
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To: 18604187853 From: (8594) 08719711 18:47 M Page 1 0of 8

@ WESTERM CONNECTICUT HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

" 24 Hospital Ave
Danbury, CT 06810

403.730.7000
DanburyHesptistorg
From:  Sally Herlihy
VP Planning
To: Jack Huber
Fax;  860-418-7083 No.of Pages: 8 {including cover pags)
Phone: 860-418-7001 Date: August 19, 2011
RE: CON Completeness Leiter CG:
O Urgant {1 For Review O Plzase Comment O Flease Reply {1 Please Recycle
CON Completeness 1 atier

Proposal fo Acquire Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging for Danbury Health Care Affiliates
Docket Number: 11-31703-CON

CONFIDENTIALITY
The document accompanying this transmission cortalns information rom Danbury Hospital, which fs confidantial endfas legally priviteged,
The infoemation is intendad only far use by the ingividual or entity named o the transmission sheet.

Iyou are not the intended razipient, you afe hereby notified tia using, disclosing, copying, istributing or taking any action in reliance an the
contents of the transmitted infamnation {s stricthy prokibited and that the document should be immediately returned to Dantury Hespital,

Opt-Out: %



To: 18604187853 From: (8994) 0819711 10:48 A Page 2 of 8

Page 66

- WESTERN CONNECTICUT
" HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL « NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospilal Ave.
Danbury, CT 06310
203.738.7000

WestamCennecticutHeatiNetwork.org

August 19, 2011

The Honorable Jawel Mullen, M.D,
Commissicner

CT Oflice of Health Care Access
Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue

MS #13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C. by Danbury Health Care
Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Cammissioner Mullen:

Based on a June 24, 2011 correspondence from your office requesting additional information on Pocket
Number: 11-31703-CON, please find enclosed Darbusy Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (DHCA) responses o
your questions.

I you have any questions that the following submission does not answer, plaase conlact me so that we may
provide whatever additional information you need in your deliberations. | can be reashed direclly at 203-

739-4903, or sally. herlihy @ wethealthnetwork.org.

Sincerely,

Sally F. Herihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network

¢c: Enclosure

Opt-Out: e
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To: 18604187053 From: (8594}

August 18, 2011 Docket Number: 11-31703-CON 57

Page 10

1, Pleass readdress Question 2a and provide a detailed explanation as to why there is a clear
public need for this propesal. Provide evidence in support of your explanation.

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC (ND) is a free-standing imaging center already providing CT and MRI
scanning for patients in the Newtown area in its location at 153 South Main Street, Newtown. This
application does not add any additional imaging capacity to the service area but will keep this tacility open
for existing patients and future patients who find this location most accessible. NOI is currently privately
owned and operated by a group of radiclogists who are interested in selling the faciity with its equipment
1o a subsidiary of Westem Connecticut Heaith Network (WCHN). The subsidiary is Danbury Health Care
Affifiates, inc. (DHCA,), the Applicant,

DHCA presently operates two out-patient imaging facilities, one in Danbury, CT (Danbury Diagnestic
Imaging or DDT) and one in Ridgefield, CT (Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging or RDI).

Publlc need supporiing acquisition of the technology and continued operation of the NDI facility by DHCA
can be summarized as follows:

+ There s a need to continue the existing setvice in Newtown for the patients who are cuirently utilizing
the services provided thers. Purchase of the equipment thera will snhanca uniformity of care and
integration of eperations with DHCA, an established, stable, quality-oriented provider of imaging
services.

+ With the addition of ND! to DHCA, residents of the towns utilizing DB and RD! will have the option of
utilizing the Newlown faclity, knowing that they will recelve the same quality program as they would
recaive if they drove to the DDl and RDI facilities. Gurrent utilization of the imaging offered at DDI and
RD! locations is based on physician referral and includes residents fram the towns of Newtown, Sandy
Hook, Southbury, Brookfield, and Bethel (see Attachment G, zip code analysis, pages 21 and 22 of the
CONj.

+  Currently, DDf and RDI are operating at full capacity and beyond. Both facilities perform MRl and T
scans during the following hours:

MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
MRl | 7:30 AM~  {7:30 AM - 7:30 AM - 7:30 AM - T30AM~ 730 AM-
5 PM aPM 8 PM 8 PM 3PM 2 FM
CT 8 AM - 8 AM — 8 AM - 8AM - 8 AM -
5PM 5PM 5PM 5 PM 5PM

DDI has averaged 5,526 CT scans per year over the last 3 years and 3,608 MRI studiss per year in
the same time frame (200B-2010). RDI has averaged 2,729 CT scans over the last 3 years and 2,585
MR studies per y=ar over the last 3 years. (Ses Table 2a, infra). There is a need In the immediate
Danbury area to have the additional capacity for patients who require seanning done in an appropriate
fime frame and NDI has the existing capacity.

« DHCA has plans to expand the hours that NDI is apen to assist patients with scheduling which will
improve access. The axtended hours will be the addition of weekday hours by 3.5 hours per day
beginning in Year 2, and expansion of Saturday hours to 8 hours a day in Year 3.

NDI current hours of operation area as follows:

MON | TUE [ WED [ THU | FRI SAT
MBI § AM — £:30 PM Dally
CT & AM ~ 4:30 PM Daily

Opt-Out: e



To: 18604187853

August 18, 2011

From:

Dockat Number: 11-31703-CON

(8594)

88719711 10:48 A

The population in tha service area is growing okdsr, and population aging will lead to increased

demand fer healthcare sarvices. The need will continue to grow fer CT and MR! scans with more

58

patients over the age of 65 requiring imaging. The following charls dernonstrate the aging of the U.S.
population over the last ten years.

U.5. Population by Sex and Selecied Age Groups , 2000-2010
Age 2000 Percentage 2010 Percentage
65 years & older 34,991,753 12.4% 40,257 984 13.0%
62 years & older 41,056,029 14.7% 49,972,181 168.2%

hito:/fwvww. census.aoviprod/een201 O/briefs/c2010br-03.pdf

Over the next 5 years the population is projecied to grow 1% per year in the towns in the DHCA
service area, Including Newiown, and the 5 towns adjacent to Newtown, In the nexi 5 years. This
growth, combined with an aging population, will create agddifional demand for imaging.

CT Population for Six Adjacent Towns to Proposed NDI Facility

Town
Newtown 2010
2015
growth rate/yr
10 ape distribution 65+
Bethel 2010
2015
growth rate/yr
*10 age distribution 65+
Brookfield 2010
2015
growth ratefyr
'10 age distribution 65+
Danbury 2010
2015
growth rate/yr
'10 age distribution b5+

Total
26,331
26,680
0.30%

10%
18,380

18,02

0.30%
11%
16,825
19,328
2.80%
12%
77,748
84,280
1.60%
12%

Town
Monroe 2010
2015
growth ratefyr
10 age distribution 65+
Southbury 2010
2015
growth ratefyr
’10 age distribution 65+
Six Town Total 2010
2015
growth ratefyy
*10 age distribution 65+
STATE growth ratefyr
*10 age distribution 65+

Totat
19,646
19,341
-0.30%

12%
19,838
15,676
-0.20%

25%

178,768
188,007
1.00%
13%

0.20%
14%

HipJ/iwww.cerc.org

olume projections for NDI include factors related to aging of the population, movement of seme of the
patients from DDI to NDI, the expanded hours for existing NUI patients in the Newtown area who need
scanning either on Saturday or weekday evening hours, petential future upgrade of a CT scanner at NDI,
and a modest projected growth of 3% each year for the first thres years of operation for NDI, consistent
with other DHCA imaging locations,.

Page 12

2. Please revise Table 2.a,, “Historical, Current, and Projected Yolume, by Equipment Unit”, by
addressing the following items:

Opt-Out: *xxx

Page 4 of 8
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August 18, 2011 Docket Number: 11-31703-CON 59

a. Provide aciual utilization statistics for NDI's CT and MRI scanners for fiscal years
(“FYs”} 2008 through 2010. Annual NDI scan volumes for each scanner need {o be
provided for the three year period.

b. Revise each line of the scan volumes presented in the *CFY 2011” column, updating CT
and MBI volumes for the mosi recently completed month. ldentify the number of
months represented in the “CFY 201" column,

c. Expand the table to include ali CT and MRI scanners operated by Danbury Hospital {on
and off campus). Be sure to include historical, current year and projected scan
volumes,

d. The “CT Subtotal” and “MR! subtotal” lines of the table reflect projected scan volume
without the project for FYs 2012 through 2014 instead of projected scan volume with
the project. Revise the “CT subtotal” and “MRI subtotal” lines of the table to include
the projected scan volume with the project for FYs 2012 through 2014. Please note the
total lines reflecting the projected scan volume for the same time period do not need
revisian as they appear to reconcile with the voluime totals provided in the Applicant’s
Financial Attachment 1 (page 52}.

Table 2a: Historical, Current, and Projected Vaolume, by Equipment Unit

* Projected Volume
é‘:g: :[3 \gg::l“;feted FYs) CFY Volume {First 3 Full Operational FYs)™"
FY 2008 | FY 2009 | FY 2010 | FY 2011 9Mihs | FY 2012 |FY 2013 | FY 2014
annualized

Soanner*™*
DOI-CT 5,153 5,694 5,732 5,708 5,683 5,854 6,029
DDl - MR 3,532 3,663 3,628 3,544 3,483 3,598 3,706
RDI-CT 2,365 2,741 3,082 2,857 3,248 3,343 3442
RBI - MR! 2,360 2471 2,925 3,175 3,231 3,328 3,428
DH/DMAC-CTH** 7,088 10,281 9,157 7,732 3170 3265 3362
DH/DMAC-MBI* 4,597 7,073 6,865 8,813 4866 5011 5161
NDI-CT §62 766 429 336 668 803 954
NDI - MBI 1139 1,077 845 690 934 1,068 1,205
CT Subtetal 15,469 19,482 | 18,400 16,733 17,408 17,887 | 18,351
MRi Subtotal 11,628 14,286 | 14,264 14,222 14,676 15212 | 15,784
Total 27,097 33,768 | 32,664 30,895 32,082 33,100 | 34,178

* For pariods greater than & months, report annualized volume, kentifying tha number of aclual months covered and the method of
annuafizing, For perinds Jess than six menths, repor actual volume and identily the parad covared.,

** |f {he first year of the proposal a pariiaf year, provida the first pariial year and then the first ihree full FY's. Add columns as necessary.
“*= Identity each scanner separately and add lines as necessary. Also break eut Inpatient/outpatient/E0 volumes if applicable.

s £ iy years. In a footnate, identify the period covered by the Applicant's FY {e.g. July 1-June 30, calendar year, etc.}.

=+ Note~ AS requested It 2.6 we have included the OP CT and MRI volumes at DH. This does not include Inpatient or ED palient
voleme. The financlal information submilted in the Application does nt reflect the inclusion of DH volume, as the applicant is DHCA.

3. Please reconcile NDI's CT and MRI scan volumes for FY 2010 in the revised Table 2.a. with CT
and MRI scan volumes presented in Attachment F, page 29 of the CON application. If CT or
MRI scan volumes differ between the two sources, please provide a detailed explanation as to
why such a difference or differences exist.

Piease see ravised figures presented in Table 2,a. above for FY 201G at NDI. Attachment L has alse been
included in this response which provides corrected volumes for errors reported in the NDI chart previously
provided on Attachment F, page 29. These new figures reflect a correction in the date range used to
gensrale the report

Opt-Qut: Xxxx
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To: 18684187053 Fram: (8594) 88719711 10:49 A Page 6 of 8

August 18, 2011 Docket Number: 11-31703-CON ]
FY106 NDI Volume MBI CT
Aftachment F 845 429
Reviszd Table 2.a. 845 429

4. For all projected soan velumes by scanner presented in revised Table 2.a, {whether CT or MRI),
provide an explanation in each case where thera is an observed decrease in an individual
scanner's volume from one fiscal year to the next fiscal year,

The dacline in GT volume figures for DDI, RD! and DH/DMAG betwaen FY 2010 and YTD 2011 reflect a
national trend experienced by hospitals and imaging centers, Overall historical decline In CT has been
dacumenied as heing due to cancens raised about radiation exposure from CT procedures. As those
concems stabilize and methods for CT exposure reduction increase we feel CT scanning activity will grow,
ut at 2 slow rate.

Overall decline in NDI GT volumes were due to a medical leave of absance for a fulltime CT smpicyee and
the inability to fill the position with more than a part time employee for four months. Projected FY 2012
volume includes a slight decrease due to tha transition.

Although MRI valume declined at DD between 2002 and 2010, the decrease was only 34 MR scans or
approximately 1% of the volume. The MRI volume at DH/DMAG increased signfficantly batween 2008 and
2008 {from 4,597 1o 7,075) but declined o 5,865 scans in 2010 (a decline of approximately 5%).

Hewever, the 2010 volume at DH/DMAC is still a 2,268 scan increase from 2008. Collectively, DD, RDY,
DH/DMAC MRI volumes are growing with utilization shifting between the various sites.

NDI's MRI volumes decreased by approximately 5%, or 62 scans betwesn 2008 and 2009, 1n 2010, 845
MR scans were performed, which was a drop of 232 scans from the pravious year. This decline in
volume can be attributed to several factors - ND! stopped accepting a commercial payer for a six month
period, resulting in fewer patients with this Insurance, Additionally, from March 2070 to present, NDI has
only employad one fulltime MBI technologist and consequently, when the technologist has been away
thete have been no MRI exams performed.

NDI has additionz] capacity available for both GT and MRI scanning, which can be utifized by patients who
ara currantly using other facilities within the DHCA and DH/DMAC system.

Page 13

5. The Applicant states that existing referrals fo NDI are generated by local primary care
physicians, pediatric physicians, medical subspecialists and surgical subspecialists. Please
identify the towns from which the existing referrals originate.

Existing physician referrals to the NDI location are from Nawtown/Sandy Hook, Bethel, Brookfield,
Manrae and Southbury, This is reflected in the patient origin data for individuals receiving CTand MRI
services at ND! identified on Attachment D, page 23 of the CON application.

6. Please describe the quality of the equipment the Applicant proposes to acguire and how the
Applicant plans to incorporate this equipment into its existing imaging equipment usage.

Both the existing CT scanner and MRI equipment being utilized at the NDI facility meet American Coliege
of Radiology standards for diagnostic quality. However, if this application is approved, DHCA has future

plans to replace the GT unit with a 16-stice scanner to parallel the technology at its other OP facilities, and
this would occur pending need and within an approved capital budget cycle. The MR scanner and the CT

Opt-Out: %k
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scanner will remain af the Newtown facifity, and when thie GT scenner is replaced the old one would be
disposed of, with notification to OHCA,

As described in response to question #1 above, DHCA plans to incorporate the proposed equipment fo
help with pattent flow across its imaging network. Additional capacity is neaded based on use of our
existing MR and CT scanners operafing near capacity. Utilizing existing equipment to fill this need will
resoliva access and capacity issues without having to request additional imaging equipment within its
facilities. This will further assist to decompress our existing imaging centers and provide quicker access
for the community seeking our services. With the ability to utilize two already established imaging
maodalities in an additional ouipatient location within the service area, future requests by patiends for
Imaging services will be able to be accommodated within appropriate ime frames,

ND! voluma projections begin with FY 2012 and raflect stetus guo volumes duting the transition year, with
a ramp-up that coincides with expanded weekday hours in year two (3 ¥ hiours per day M-F = 17.5
hoursfweek) and further sxpansion to Saturday hours (8 hours) in year 3. Increased accessiaility for
pakierts will resuli from changes in the NDI schedule to matek: the hours of operation at both the DDI and
RDI faciities by the end of the third year,

Page 15

7. Please answer question 5.g. of the CON application, which addresses how the proposal will
affect the financial strength of the state’s health care system

This propesal will not resuit in an unnacessary duplication of services as i is a continuation of a diagnostic
imaging service to an existing patient base within the service area. it will strengthen the state’s health care
system because there will be no additional health care dolfars being spert on building a new facifily or
outfitting an existing building as an imaging facflity.

Moving an independent, physician operated imaging faciliity tc one that is Incorperated as part of a larger
organization will help reduce overall costs through opportunities for shared staffing, group purchasing and
other operational expenses. Therefore, thare should be savings to operate NDI, which will contribute to
the financial strength of Connecticut's health care system.

The focus of DHCA is to provide efficient and effsctive clinical care to our pafients. Integration of imaging

sites In the community seitings will support standards of practice consistently applied, including oversight
of uniformity of care and utifization standards supporting appropriate medical necessity of imaging.

Opt-Dut: *wexx
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Attachment L - Revised NDI ACTIVITY FOR FY 2010

MODALITY CPT  DESCRIPTION COUNT
CT SCANS 70460 | CT HEAD CR BRAIN WITH CONTRAST 2
CT SCANS 70480 | CT ORBIT/SELLAFOS3A EAR WITHOUT CONTRAST 1

CT SCANS 70481 | CT ORBIT/SELLA/FOSSA EAR WITH CONTRAST 2
CT SCANS 70486 | CT MAXILLOFAGIAL WITHOUT CONTRAST 12
CT SCANS 70490 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITHOUT CONTRAST 1

CT BCANS 70491 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH CONTRAST 4
CT SCANS 70492 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST i

CT 5CANS 71250 | CT THORAX WITHOUT GONTRAST 128
CT SCANS 71260 | CT THORAX WITH CONTRAST 16
CT SCANS 72128 | CT THORACIC SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 1

CT SCANS 72131 | CT LUMBAR SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 12
CT SCANS 72192 { CT PELVIS WITHOUT CONTRAST 31
CT SCANS 72193 | CT PELVIS WITH CONTRAST i3]
GT SCANS 72194 | CT PELVIS WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 5
CT SCANS 73200 | CT UPPER EXTREMITY WITHOUT COMTRAST 1

CT SCANS 73700 | CT LOWER EXTREMITY WITHOUT GONTRAST 3
CT 8CANS 74150 | CT ABDOMEN WITHOUT GONTRAST 29
CT SCANS 74160 | CT ABDOMEN WITH CONTRAST 7
CT SCANS 74170 | CT ABDOMEN WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 15
MREMBA BODY 71650 | MRI CHEST WITHOUT CONTHAST 1

MRIMRA EQDY 72195 | MREPELVIS WITHOUT GONTRAST 2
MRIMBA BODY 72197 | MRI PELVIS WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 14
MRYMRBA BODY 74181 | MRI ABDOMEN WITHOUT CONTRAST 2
MRIUMRBA BODY 74183 | MRI ABDOMEN WiTH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 10
MRIMRA HEAD NEURO 70543 1 MRI ORBIT FACE NECK WITH AND WITHOUT CONTHAST 4
MRUMRA HEAD NEURO 70544 | MBA HEAD WITHOUT CONTRAST 2
MRIMRA HEAD REURO 70545 { MRA HEAD WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
MRI/MBA HEAD NEURO 70551 | MRI BRAIN WITHOUT CONTRAST 35
MBIMBA HEAD NELRO 70553 | MRI BRAIN WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 61
MRIMRA HEAD NEURO 72141 ; MRI CERVIGAL SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 80
MRYMRA HEAD NEURG 72145 | MRI THORACIC SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 7
MAI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72148 | MRI LUMBAR SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 122
MRI/MBA HEAD NEURO 72156 | MRI CERVICAL SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 4
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72157 | MRI THORACIC SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT GONTRAST 7
MRI/MRBA HEAD NEURO 72158 | MRI LUMBAR SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST i3
MRIMBA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73218 | MRIUPPER EXT OTHER THAN JOINT W/0 CONTRAST 8
MAVMBA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73221 | MRIJOINT UPPER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 130
MRI/MRA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73223 | MR JOINT UPPER EXTREM W & W/Q CONTRAST 1
MRI/MAA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73718 | MRI LOWER EXTREM NON-JOINT W/Q CONTRAST 27
MRI/MAA MUSCULOSKETETAL { 73720 | MRI LOWER EXTREM NON-JOINT W & W/O CONTBAST g
MRIMBAMUSCULOSKETETAL | 73721 | MRIJCINT LOWER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 323
MRIMBA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73723 | MRI JOINT LOWER EXTREMITY W & W/O CONTRAST 2

Opt-Out: %xxx
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. WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

BANBURY HOSPITAL « NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810
203.739.7000

WasternConneclicutHeatihiNetwork.org

August 19, 2011

The Honorable Jewel Mullen, M.D,

Commissionar

CT Office of Health Care Access
Depantment of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue

MS #13HCA

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C. by Darnbury Health Care
Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Commissioner Mullen:

Based on a June 24, 2011 correspondence from your cffice requesting additional information on Docket
Number: 11-31703-CON, please find enclosed Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (DHCA) responses to
your guestions. .

If you have any questions that the following submission does not answer, please contact me so that we may
provide whatever additional information you need in your deliberations. | ¢can be reached directly at 203-
739-4903, or sally.herlihy @ wethealthneiwork. org.

Sincerely,
Aeay 7 teniise
)
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning
Western Gonnecticut Health Network

cc: Enclosure
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1. Please readdress Question 2a and provide a detailed explanation as to why there is a clear
public need for this proposal. Provide evidence in support of your explanation.

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC (NDI} is a free-standing imaging center already providing CT and MRI
scanning for patients in the Newtown area in its location at 153 South Main Street, Newtown. This
application does not add any additional imaging capacity o the service area but will keep this facility open
for existing patients and future patients who find this location most accessible. NDI is currently privately
owned and operated by a group of radiologists who are interested in selling the facility with its equipment
to a subsidiary of Western Connecticut Health Network {(WCHN). The subsidiary is Danbury Health Care
Affiliates, Inc. (DHCA,), the Applicant.

DHCA presently operates two out-patient imaging facilities, one in Danbury, CT (Danbury Diagnostic
Imaging or DDI} and one in Ridgefield, CT (Ridgefield Diagnostic imaging or RD}).

Public need supporting acquisition of the technology and continued operation of the NDI facility by DHCA
can be summarized as follows:

 There is a need to continue the existing service in Newtown for the patients who are currently utilizing
the services provided there. Purchase of the equipment there will enhance uniformity of care and
integration of operations with DHCA, an established, stable, quality-ariented provider of imaging
services.

+ With the addition of NDI to DHCA, residents of the towns utilizing DDI and RDI will have the option of
utilizing the Newtown facility, knowing that they will receive the same guality program as they would
receive if they drove to the DDI and RDI facilities. Current utilization of the imaging offered at DDI and
RDI locations is based on physician referral and includes residents from the towns of Newtown, Sandy
Hook, Southbury, Brookfield, and Bethel (see Attachment C, zip code analysis, pages 21 and 22 of the
CON). :

» Currently, DDl and RDI| are operating at full capacity and beyond. Both facilities perform MR1 and CT
scans during the following hours:

MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
MRI 7:30 AM — 7:30 AM - 7:30 AM — 7:30 AM — 7:30 AM — 7:30 AM —
6 PM 8 PM 8 PM 8 PM 8 PM 2 PM
CT 8 AM - 8 AM — 8 AM — 8 AM — 8 AM —
5 PM 5 PM 5 PM 5 PM 5PM

DDI has averaged 5,526 CT scans per year over the last 3 years and 3,608 MR! studies per year in
the same time frame (2008-2010). RDI has averaged 2,729 CT scans over the last 3 years and 2,585
MRI studies per year over the last 3 years. (See Table 2a, infra). There is a need in the immediate
Danbury area to have the additional capacity for patients who require scanning done in an appropriate
time frame and NDI has the existing capacity.

+ DHCA has plans to expand the hours that NDI is open to assist patients with scheduling which will
improve access. The extended hours will be the addition of weekday hours by 3.5 hours per day
beginning in Year 2, and expansion of Saturday hours to 8 hours a day in Year 3.

NDI current hours of operation area as follows:

MON | TUE | WED \ THU | FRI SAT
MRI 8 AM — 4:30 PM Dalily
CT 8 AM — 4:30 PM Daily
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* The population in the service area is growing older, and papulation aging will lead to increased
demand for healthcare services. The need will continue to grow for CT and MRI scans with more
patients over the age of 65 requiring imaging. The following charts demonstrate the aging of the U.S.
population over the last ten years.

U.S. Population by Sex and Selected Age Groups , 2000-2010
Age 2000 Percentage 2010 Percentage
65 years & alder 34,991,753 12.4% 40,267,984 13.0%
62 years & older 41,256,029 14.7% 49,972,181 16.2%

hitp:/fwww.census.qoviprod/cen2010/briefs/c2010by-03. pdi

Over the next 5 years the population is projected to grow 1% per year in the towns in the DHCA
service area, including Newtown, and the 5 towns adjacent to Newtown, in the next 5 years. This
growth, combined with an aging population, will create additional demand for imaging.

CT Population for Six Adjacent Towns to Proposed NDI Facility
Town Total Town Total
Newtown 2010 26,331 Monroe 2010 19,646
2015 26,680 2015 19,341
growth rate/yr  0.30% growth ratefyr  -0.30%
10 age distribuiion 65+ 10% 10 age distribution 65+ 12%
Bethel 2010 18,380 Southbury 2010 19,838
2015 18,02 2015 19,676
growth rate/yr  0.30% growth ratefyr  -0.20%
710 age distribution 65+ 11% 10 age distribution 65+ 25%
Brookfield 2010 16,825
2015 19,328 Six Town Total 2010 178,768
growth rate/yr  2.80% 2015 188,007
10 age distribution 65+ 12% growth rate/yr 1.00%
Danbury 2010 77,748 10 age distribution 65+ 13%
2015 84,280
growth ratefyr 1.60% STATE growth rate/yr 0.20%
’10 age distribution 65+ 12% 10 age distribution 65+ 14%

hiip:/www.cerc.org

Volume projections for NDI include factors related to aging of the population, movement of some of the
patients from DDI to NBI, the expanded hours for existing NDI patients in the Newtown area who need
scanning either on Saturday or weekday evening hours, potential future upgrade of a CT scanner at NDI,
and a modest projected growth of 3% each year for the first three years of operation for NDI, consistent
with other DHCA imaging locations,.

Page 12

2. Please revise Table 2.a., “Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Equipment Unit”, by
addressing the following items:
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a. Provide actual utilization statistics for NDI's CT and MRI scanners for fiscal years
(“FYs”) 2008 through 2010. Annual NDI scan volumes for each scanner need to be
provided for the three year period.

b. Revise each line of the scan volumes presented in the “CFY 2011” column, updating CT
and MRI volumes for the most recently completed month. Identify the number of
months represented in the “CFY 2011” column.

¢. Expand the table to include all CT and MRI scanners operated by Danbury Hospital (on
and off campus). Be sure to include historical, current year and projected scan
volumes.

d. The “CT Subtotal” and “MRI subtotal” lines of the table reflect projected scan volume
without the project for FYs 2012 through 2014 instead of projected scan volume with
the project. Revise the “CT subtotal” and “MRI subtotal” lines of the table to include
the projected scan volume with the project for FYs 2012 through 2014. Please note the
total Iines reflecting the projected scan volume for the same time period do not need
revision as they appear to reconcile with the volume totals provided in the Applicant’s
Financial Attachment 1 (page 52).

Table 2a: Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Equipment Unit

. Projected Volume
ag:ta; \gg;r;ﬁated FYs) CFY Velume {First 3 Full Operational FYs)**
FY 2008 | FY 2009 FY 2010 | FY 2011 9 Mths | FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
annualized

Scanner®™”*
bDI - CT 5,153 5,694 5,732 5,708 5,683 5,854 6,029
DDl — MRI 3,632 3,663 3,629 3,544 3,493 3,598 3,706
RDI-CT 2,365 2,741 3,082 2,957 3,246 3,343 3,442
RDI — MRI 2,360 2,471 2,925 3,175 3,231 3,328 3,428
DH/DMAC-CT***** 7,089 10,281 9,157 7,732 3170 3265 3362
DH/DMAC-MR/[***** 4,597 7,075 6,865 6,813 4866 5011 5161
NDI - CT 862 766 429 336 668 803 954
NDI — MR 1139 1,077 845 690 934 1,058 1,205
CT Subtotal 15,469 19,482 18,400 16,733 17,406 17,887 18,391
MRI Subtotal 11,628 14,286 14,264 14,222 14,676 15,212 15,784
Total 27,097 33,768 32,664 30,995 32,082 33,100 34,175

“* For periods greater than & months, report annualized volume, identifying the number of actual months sovered and the method of
annualizing. For pericds less than six manths, report actual volume and identify the period covered,
** If the first year of the proposal a partial year, pravide the first partial year and then the first three full FYs. Add columns as necessary.
** |dentify each scanner separately and add lines as necessary. Also break out inpatient/outpatient/ED volumes if applicable.
*** Fill in years. In a fooinote, identify the period coverad by the Applicant’s FY {e.g. July 1-June 30, calendar year, eic.).
=+ Note - As requested in 2.c we have included the OP CT and MRI volumes at DH. This does not include Inpatient or ED patient
volume. The financial information submitted in the Application does not reflect the inclusion of DH volume, as the applicant is DHCA.

3. Please reconcile NDI's CT and MRI scan volumes for FY 2010 in the revised Table 2.a. with CT
and MRI scan volumes presented in Attachment F, page 29 of the CON application. i CT or
MRI scan volumes differ between the two sources, please provide a detailed explanation as to
why such a difference or differences exist.

Please see revised figures presented in Table 2.a. above for FY 2010 at NDI. Attachment L has also been
included in this response which provides corrected volumes for errors reported in the NDI chart previously
provided on Attachment F, page 29. These new figures reflect a correction in the date range used to
generate the report.



August 18, 2011

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON

FY10 NDI Volume MRI CT
Attachment F 845 429
Revised Table 2.a. 845 429

60

4. For all projected scan volumes by scanner presented in revised Table 2.a. (whether CT or MRI),

provide an explanation in each case where there is an cbserved decrease in an individual
scanner’s volume from one fiscal year to the next fiscal year.

The decline in CT volume figures for DDI, RDI and DH/DMAC between FY 2010 and YTD 2011 reflect a
national trend experienced by hospitals and imaging centers. Overall historical decline in CT has been
documented as being due to concerns raised about radiation exposure from CT procedures. As those

concerns stabilize and methods for CT exposure reduction increase we feel CT scanning activity will grow,

but at a slow rate.

Overall decline in NDI CT volumes were due to a medical leave of absence for a fulltime CT employee and

the inability to fill the position with more than a part time employee for four months. Projected FY 2012
volumse includes a slight decrease due to the transition.

Although MRI volume declined at DD between 2009 and 2010, the decrease was only 34 MRI scans or

approximately 1% of the volume. The MRI volume at DH/DMAC increased significantly between 2008 and

2009 (from 4,597 to 7,075) but declined to 6,865 scans in 2010 (a decline of approximately 5%).

However, the 2010 volume at DH/DMAC s still a 2,268 scan increase from 2008. Collectively, DDI, RDI,

DH/DMAC MRI volumes are growing with utilization shifting between the various sites.

NDI's MRI volumes decreased by approximately 5%, or 62 scans between 2008 and 2009. In 2010, 845

MRI scans were performed, which was a drop of 232 scans from the previous year. This decline in
volume can be attributed to several factors - NDI stopped accepting a commercial payer for a six month

period, resulting in fewer patients with this insurance. Additionally, from March 2010 to present, NDI has

only employed one fulltime MRI technologist and consequently, when the technologist has been away

there have been no MRI exams performed.

NDI has additional capacity available for both CT and MRI scanning, which can be utilized by patients who

are currently using other facilities within the DHCA and DH/DMAC system.
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5. The Applicant states that existing referrals to NDI are generated by local primary care
physicians, pediatric physicians, medical subspecialists and surgical subspecialists. Please
identify the towns from which the existing referrals originate.

Existing physician referrals to the NI location are from Newtown/Sandy Hook, Bethel, Brookfield,
Monroe and Southbury. This is reflected in the patient origin data for individuals receiving CT and MRI
services at NDI identified on Attachment D, page 23 of the CON application.

6. Please describe the quality of the equipment the Applicant proposes to acquire and how the
Applicant plans to incorporate this equipment into its existing imaging equipment usage.

Both the existing CT scanner and MRI equipment being utilized at the NDI facility meet American College

of Radiology standards for diagnostic quality. However, if this application is approved, DHCA has future

plans to replace the CT unit with a 16-slice scanner to parallel the technology at its other OP facilities, and
this would occur pending nead and within an approved capital budget cycte. The MRI scanner and the CT
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scanner will remain at the Newtown facility, and when the CT scanner is replaced the old one would be
disposed of, with notification to OHCA.

As described in response to question #1 above, DHCA plans to incarporate the proposed equipment to
help with patient flow across its imaging network. Additional capacity is needed based on use of our
existing MRI and CT scanners operating near capacity. Utilizing existing equipment to fill this need will
resolve access and capacity issues without having to request additional imaging equipment within its
facilities. This will further assist to decompress our existing imaging centers and provide quicker access
for the community seeking our services. With the ability to utilize two already established imaging
modalities in an additional outpatient location within the service area, future requests by patients for
imaging services will be able to be accommodated within appropriate time frames.

NDI volume projections begin with FY 2012 and reflect status quo volumes during the transition year, with
a ramp-up that coincides with expanded weekday hours in year two (3 V2 hours per day M-F = 17.5
hours/week) and further expansion to Saturday hours (8 hours) in year 3. Increased accessibility for
patients will result from changes in the NDJ schedule to match the hours of operation at both the DD! and
RDI facilities by the end of the third year.

Page 15

7. Please answer question 5.g. of the CON application, which addresses how the proposal will
affect the financial strength of the state’s health care system

This proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of services as it is a continuation of a diagnostic
imaging service to an existing patient base within the service area. It will strengthen the state’s health care
system because there will be no additional health care dollars being spent an building a new facility or
outfitting an existing building as an imaging facility.

Moving an independent, physician operated imaging facility to one that is incorporated as part of a larger
organization will help reduce averall costs through opportunities for shared staffing, group purchasing and
other operational expenses. Therefore, there should be savings to operate NDI, which will contribute to
the financial strength of Connecticut’'s health care system.

The focus of DHCA is to provide efficient and effective clinical care to our patients. Integration of imaging
sites in the community settings will support standards of practice consistently applied, including oversight
of uniformity of care and utilization standards supporting appropriate medical necessity of imaging.
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Attachment L - Revised NDI ACTIVITY FOR FY 2010
MODALITY CPT  DESCRIPTION COUNT
CT SCANS 70460 [ CT HEAD OR BRAIN WITH CONTRAST 2
CT SCANS 70480 | CT ORBIT/SELLA/FOSSA EAR WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
CT SCANS 70481 | CT ORBIT/SELLA/FOSSA EAR WITH CONTRAST 2
CT SCANS 70486 | CT MAXILLOFACIAL WITHOUT CONTRAST 12
CT SCANS 70490 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
CT SCANS 70491 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH CONTRAST 4
CT SCANS 70492 | CT SOFT TISSUE NECK WITH AND WITHQUT CONTRAST 1
CT SCANS 71250 | CT THORAX WITHOUT CONTRAST 126
CT SCANS 71260 | CT THORAX WITH CONTRAST 46
CT SCANS 72128 | CT THORACIC SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
CT SCANS 72131 | CT LUMBAR SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 12
CT SCANS 72192 | CT PELVIS WITHOUT CONTRAST 31
CT SCANS 72193 | CT PELVIS WITH CONTRAST 66
CT SCANS 72194 | CT PELVIS WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 5
CT SCANS 73200 | CT UPPER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
CT SCANS 73700 | CT LOWER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 3
CT SCANS 74150 | CT ABDOMEN WITHOQUT CONTRAST 29
CT SCANS 74160 | CT ABDOMEN WITH CONTRAST 71
CT SCANS 74170 | CT ABDOMEN WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 15
MRI/MRA BODY 71550 | MRl CHEST WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
MRI/MRA BODY 72195 | MRI PELVIS WITHOUT CONTRAST 2
MRI/MRA BODY 72197 | MRI PELVIS WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 14
MRI/MRA BODY 74181 | MBI ABDOMEN WITHOUT CONTRAST 2
MRI/MBA BOBY 74183 | MRI ABDOMEN WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 16
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 70543 | MRI ORBIT FACE NECK WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 4
MRI/MBRA HEAD NEURO 70544 | MBA HEAD WITHOUT CONTRAST 2
MRI/MBA HEAD NEURO 70546 | MRA HEAD WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 1
MRI/MBA HEAD NEURQO 70551 | MBI BRAIN WITHOUT CONTRAST 35
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 70553 | MRI BRAIN WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 61
MRI/MBA HEAD NEURO 72141 | MBI CERVICAL SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 60
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72148 | MRI THORACIC SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 7
MRBI/MBA HEAD NEURO 72148 | MRI LUMBAR SPINE WITHOUT CONTRAST 122
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72156 | MRI CERVICAL SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 4
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72157 | MRI THORACIC SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 7
MRI/MRA HEAD NEURO 72158 | MRl LUMBAR SPINE WITH AND WITHOUT CONTRAST 13
MRI/MRA MUSCULOSKETETAL 73218 | MRI UPPER EXT OTHER THAN JOINT W/O CONTRAST 8
MRI/MBA MUSCULOSKETETAL 73221 | MBI JOINT UPPER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 130
MRIMBA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73223 | MRIJOINT UPPER EXTREM W & W/O CONTRAST 1
MRI'MBRA MUSCULOSKETETAL 73718 | MRI LOWER EXTREM NON-JOINT W/O CONTRAST 27
MRI/MRA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73720 | MRI LOWER EXTREM NON-JOINT W & W/O CONTRAST 9
MRI/MBA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73721 | MRIJOINT LOWER EXTREMITY WITHOUT CONTRAST 323
MRI/MBRA MUSCULOSKETETAL | 73723 | MRI JOINT LOWER EXTREMITY W & W/O CONTRAST 2




Huber, Jack

From: cehrtich15@gmail.com on behalf of Conrad Ehrlich <cpe15@aol.com>
Sent: ' Tuesday, September 13, 2011 1:06 PM

To: Huber, Jack

Cc: Lazarus, Steven

Subject: Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON
Attachments: NDI CON 11-31703 pdf

Jack,

Please find attached a pdf briefly commenting on the data presented in Danbury Health Care Affiliates,
Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON from the perspective of a radiologist familiar with the region. |
hope it arrives in time to be helpful to OHCA's analysis of the completeness questions.

Thank you,

Conrad Ehrlich
HVRA Danbury, CT
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Clear Public Need: Explain why there is a clear public need for the proposed equipment. Provide
evidence that demonstrates this need.

a. The Applicant states that with the addition of NDI to DHCA, area residents will have the “option of utilizing the Newtown facility”.
Area residents already have that option.

b. The Applicant states that the proposal: 1) will give Newtown area residents the “option” to gain access to more timely appointments
and to the same quality program they would receive if they drove to DDI in Danbury or RDI in Ridgefield, 2) improve the uniformity of
care, and 3) not add additional capacity to the service area.

Newtown area residents already have no trouble getting same day appointments at HYRA's nearby advanced imaging facility and other
area facilities.

If referring physicians are not sending patients to NDI because they feel that NDI's equipment is of lower quality, despite its ACR
accreditation, then nothing will change after the purchase unless the equipment is replaced. And if the equipment is replaced, then this
becomes a very different proposal with negative financial and excess capacity ramifications.

There is already uniformity since the radiologists that currently own NDI, read its studies, and oversee its quality already do the same
for Danbury Hospital, DDI and RDI and will continue to do so0 at NDI after it is sold. Physicians in the region are aware of this fact.

c. The growth projections are incorrectly averaged. A weighted average should be used based upon current usage from the towns
served. (L3 (4309 +2598) + .3 (866) + 2.8 (408) + -.3 (170) + -.2 (845) + 1.6 (767}) /9963 = ,4498 % growth

d. bH/DMAC €T and MRI volumes project a steep decline in 2012 and overalf haspital system volumes in 2012 and 2013 are less than
they were in 2009 and 2010.

a, Regarding the explanation given for the decline in NDI volume, it is standard operating procedure for all viable imaging facilities with
enough demand to either employ enough technologists to cover each other, or to hire part-time or temporary technologists to fill in for
the full-time technologists who may be absent for prolonged periods of time. There are many companies that provide temps.

Provide the utilization of existing health care facilities and health care services in the Applicant’s
service area,

The applicant made no attempt to identify capacity of existing facilities in the service area. HVRA has sufficient capacity to decompress
and absorb DHCA’s patient volumes in a timefy manner,

Provide the following regarding the proposal’s location: The rationale for locating the proposed
equipment at the proposed site.

The Applicant states that NDI's site will “enhance convenience and access” to DHCA's current patient base. NDI has been an available
at the same location since 2003 and DHCA and NDI share the same patient base. This will not change after the purchase,

In the 8/18/11 response to the completeness questions, the Applicant does for the first time make reference to the fact that “Volume
projections for NDI include factors related to ... potential future upgrade of a CT scanner at NDI...” However, the Applicant does not
show the required corresponding “potential” expenses in their financial projections, even though the resultant “potential” increased
volumes-and “potential” profits-are-included. If the volume projections and future income shown-are-based upon expensive equipment
upgrades, then those additional expenses must also be shown in the financial projections for the analysis to be complete, accurate and
meaningful.

How and where the proposed population is currently being served.

Attachment D does not answer the question as to where the proposed population is currently being served. It simply lists the towns
where NDI's current population comes from. It does not show which facilities the increased volume of patients in the proposal will
come from, or to put it another way, which facilities the proposed population currently goes to for their services, HVRA currently serves
many patients from Newtown.



Those patients from Newtown who have been or currently are being served by RDI and DDI cannot automatically be moved over to
the NDI column because: 1) NDI's outdated equipment cannot produce the same types or quality of studies required, and 2) many
patients travel out of Newtown to see physicians in Danbury who end up ordering emergency studies which logistically are best done in
Danbury because the results will determine whether the patient must immediately return to the physician’s office for treatment or be
hospitalized.

The effect of the proposal on existing providers.

For NDI's volumes to increase as quickly as indicated in the proposal, the patients will have to come from existing providers. Population
growth and aging alone cannot generate those increases in volume,

Explain why the proposal will not result in an unnecessary duplication of existing or approved
health care services.

Continued operation of NDI perpetuates an unnecessary duplication of services because patients in Newtown already had ready access
to nearby facilities in Danbury and Southbury, HVRA’s Danbury facility can absorb NDI's volumes and decompress any backlogs at
DHCA facilities at a cost savings to the health care system.

Actual and Projected Volume:
If there were additional cases to be had, NDI would have extended its hours already.

The projected number of 5,025 x-rays in 2012 seems unrealistically high since the much busier RDI site performed only 3,387 in 2010.
It would be necessary to know how many x-rays NDI currently performs to make any sense of such an unusually high projected '
number, especially since the majority of the projected income will be derived from that number (5,025/7,708 = 65%, 5,025 x $407 =
$2,045,175. $2,045,175/$3,133,387 = 65%). The same holds true for ultrasound since the projected combined x-ray and ultrasound
volume of 6,106 units times $407 per unit is almost 80% of the projected income. And it is that income, not just that from MRT and CT,
that determines the financial viability of the MRI and CT projects and the entire business.

Financial Attachments:

The projections do not take into account the additional expenses contemplated by the Applicant, which are required to bring the
equipment up to the standard of the community.

In 2009, HVRA provided $66,781 of free care to Newtown residents through Kevin's Community Center, which is located in the same
building as NDI. DHCA has only projected $7,939 worth of free care, which is a gross underestimation of the amount they can expect.
The financials shouid reflect the greater number.

Multiplying the total number of procedures (units) times an average reimbursement of all modalities, which for 2012 is stated as $407,
typically results in an incorrect calculation of revenue. The more accurate way is to muitiply the number of cases of a specific modality
{MRI, CT, Ultrasound, X-ray) times the average reimbursement for that modality. Analysis by CPT code reimbursement is even mora
accurate.

The inaccuracy of the projections becomes magnified in future years when increases in lower reimbursed x-rays and ultrasound are
treated the same as higher reimbursed MRI's and CT's. This overestimateas future revenue. For example, from 2012 to 2014, DHCA
projects an increase of 1,334 low priced exams (1177 x-rays, 157 ultrasounds) but only an increase of 557 high priced exams (271
MRIs, 286 CTs). By multiplying both types of exams by the same average reimbursement, the significantly greater number of low
priced exams improperly inflates the revenue.




WESTERN CONNECTICUT |
HEALTH NETWORK )

DANBURY HOSPITAL < NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

" 24 Hospital Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810

WesternConnecticutHeatthNetwerk.org
DanburyHospital.org
NewMilfordHospital.org

September 12, 2011
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
PO Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134

Attn: Kimberly Martone,
Director of Operations

Re: Name Change

Dear Ms. Martone:

We are writing to inform you that as of September 23, 2011, Danbury Health Care Affiliates,
Inc. will formally change its name to Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

There will not be any change in ownership and no other changes to the organizational
structure, programs or services are being made. Attached for your reference is our current
organizational chart followed by an updated organizational chart to reflect the new name.

If you should have any questions regarding this name change, please contact me at (203)739-
4903. In the meantime, if we do not receive a response from you, we will assume that your agency
does not consider any additional notifications or filings to be necessary.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.
Sincerely,

M&/ jz; /;Za’%
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning

Aftachments
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 WESTERN CONNECTICUT L
7 HEALTH NETWORK - |
DANBURY HOSPITAL - NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL
24 Hospital Ave,
Danbury, CT 068810

' WestechnnecticutHeatlhNeiwork.org
DanburyHospital.org
NewMilfordHospital.org

September 12, 2011
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
PO Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134

Attn: Kimberly Martone,
Director of Operations

Re: Name Change

Dear Ms. Martone:

We are writing to inform you that as of September 15, 2011, the following entities within our
health network will be changing their name:

1. OLD NAME; Western Connecticut Healtheare, Tnc.
NEW NAME: Western Connecticut Health Network, Inc.
2, OLD NAME: Danbury Office of Physician Services, P.C
NEW NAME: Western Connecticut Medical Group, P.C.
3. OLD NAME: Danbury Hospital Development Fund, Inc.
NEW NAME: Western Connecticut Health Network Foundation, Tnc.
4. OLD NAME: Danbury Visiting Nurse Association, Inc.
NEW NAME: Western Connecticut Home Care, Inc.

There will not be any change in ownership and no other changes to the organizational
structure, programs or services are being made. Attached for your reference is a current
organizational chart of our organization followed by an updated organizational chart to reflect the
new names.



Page 2
9/12/2011

If you should have any questions regarding this name change, please contact me at (203)739-
4903. In the meantime, if we do not receive a response from you, we will assume that your agency
does not consider any additional notifications or filings to be necessary.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Aussy # Mesile
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

Attachments
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access '

September 16, 2011 Via Fax and Regular Mail

Sally F. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC by Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

This letter is to inform you that, pursuant to Section 19a-639a(d) of the Connecticut General
Statutes, the Office of Health Care Access has determined that the above-referenced application
has been deemed complete as of September 15, 2011. The date of September 15, 2011, also
begins the ninety-day review period of the application.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact Steven Lazarus at
(860) 418-7012 or me at (860) 418-7069.

Sincerely,

Jack A. Huber
Health Care Analyst
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

FAX SHEET

TO: SALLY F. HERLIHY

FAX: (203) 739-1974

AGENCY: _WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH NETWORK AFFILIATES

FROM: JACK HUBER

DATE: 9/16/2011 Time: ~ j2:55 0.

NUMBER OF PAGES: 2

(incinding transmittal sheet)

Comments: Transmitted:
Notification Letter Deeming the Following CON Application Complete

Proposal to Acquire Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging for Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

October 4, 2011

Sally F. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

Re:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition of a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Notice of Public Hearing

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

With the receipt of the completed Certificate of Need (“CON”) application information
submitted by Western Connecticut Health Affiliates, Inc. (“Applicant™) on September 135,
2011, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™) has initiated its review of the CON

application identified above.

Pursuant to General Statutes § 19a-638a (f), OHCA may hold a hearing with respect to
any Certificate of Need application.

This hearing notice is being issued pursuant to General Statutes § 19a-639a (f)

Applicant: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON

Proposal: Acquisition of a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown
Diagnostic Imaging, LL.C by Western Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc.

Notice 1s hereby given of a public hearing to be held in this matter to commence on:

Date: October 25, 2011

Time: 9:00 a.m.



Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. October 4, 2011
Notice of Public Hearing; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON Page 2 of 2

Place: Office of Health Care Access, Third Floor Hearing Room,
410 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut

The Applicant is designated as party in this proceeding. Enclosed for your information is

a copy of the hearing notice for the public hearing that will be published in The News
Times pursuant to General Statutes § 19a-639a (f).

Sincerely,

e 1N per

Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations

Enclosure

cc: Henry Salton, Esq., Office of the Attorney General

Wendy Furniss, Department of Public Health
Marielle Daniels, Connecticut Hospital Association

KRM:MAD:jah




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

October 4, 2011 Requisition # 36253

The News Times

333 Main Street

Danbury, CT 06810

Gentlemen/Ladies:

Please make an insertion of the attached copy, in a single column space, set solid under
legal notices, in the issue of your newspaper by no later than Friday, October 7, 2011.
Please provide the following within 30 days of publication:

e Proof of publication (copy of legal ad. acceptable) showing published date along with
the invoice.

If there are any questions regarding this legal notice, please contact Jack Huber or
Steven Lazarus at (8§60} 418-7001.

KINDLY RENDER BILL IN DUPLICATE ATTACHED TO THE TEAR SHEET.

Sincerely,

Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations

Attachment

ce: Danielle Pare, DPH
Marielle Daniels, Connecticut Hospital Association

KRM:MAD:jah



Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. October 4, 2011
Notice of Public Hearing; Pocket Number: 11-31703-CON

PLEASE INSERT THE FOLLOWING:

Statute Reference:
Applicant:

Town:

Docket Number:
Proposal:

Date:
Time:
Place:

Office of Health Care Access Public Hearing

19a-638(a)(9) as amended by P.A. 11-183

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Newtown

11-31703-CON

Acquisition of a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown
Diagnostic Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc.

October 25, 2011

9:00 a.m.

Office of Health Care Access, Third Floor Hearing Room,

410 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut

Any person who wishes to request status in the above listed public hearing may file a written petition
no later than October 20, 2011 (5 calendar days before the date of the hearing) pursuant to the
Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies §§ 19a-9-26 and 19a-9-27. If the request for status is
granted, such person shall be designated as a Party, an Intervenor or an Informal Participant in the
above proceeding. Please check OHCA’s website at www.ct.gov/ohca for more information or call
OHCA directly at (860) 418-7001.
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT'
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FAX SHEET

TO: SALLY HERLIHY
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FROM: JACK HUBER

DATE: 10/4/11 ‘ TIME:

NUMBER OF PAGES: 5
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Comments: DN: 11-31703-CON Hearing Notice

PLEASE PHONE IF THERE ARE ANY TRANSMISSION PROBLEMS.



Greer, Leslie

From: Laurie Miller <laurie@graystoneadv.com:>
Sent: Thursday, October 06, 2011 3:02 PM

To: Greer, Leslie

Subject: FW: Hearing Notice 11-31703-CON
Attachments: 11-31703np News Times.doc

Your legal notice is all set to run as follows:
Danbury News, 10/7 issue - $328.79

Thanks,
Laurie Miller

Graystone Group Advertising
2710 Morth Ave., Ste 200, Bridgeport, CT 06604
Ph: 203-549-0060, Fax: 203-549-0061,Y0ll free: 800-544-0005
email: laurie@graystoneadv.com

www . graystoneadv.com

------ Forwarded Message

From: "Greer, Leslie" <Leslie.Greer@ct.gov>
Date: Tue, 4 Oct 2011 14:42:08 -0400

To: ads <ads@graysteneadv.com>

Subject: Hearing Notice 11-31703-CON

To Whom It May Concern,
Please run the attached hearing notice in The News Times by October 7, 2011. For billing refer to requisition 36253, if

you have any questions feel free to call.
Thank you,

Leslie M. Greer §

CT Department of Public Health

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#HIZHCA

Hartford, CT 06134

Phone: (860) 418-7013

Fax: (860) 418-7053

Website: www.ct.gowohca <hifp://www.ct. gov/ohca>

% Please consider the environment before printing this message

------ End of Forwarded Message

--—- End of Forwarded Message



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Heaith Care Access

October 13, 2011 VIA FAX AND EMAIL ONLY

Sally F. Herlthy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Request for Prefile Testimony

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

The Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA™)} will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, October 25,
2011, at 9:00 a.m. in OHCA’s third floor hearing room, 410 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, regarding
the Certificate of Need (“CON™) application identified above. Pursuant to the Regulations of
Connecticut State Agencies § 19a-9-29 (e), any party or other participant is required to prefile in
written form all substantive, technical, or expert testimony that it proposes to offer at the hearing.
The Applicant’s prefile testimony must be submitted to OHCA no later than 2:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, October 19, 2011.

All persons providing prefiled testimony must be present at the public hearing to adopt their
written festimony under oath and must be available for cross-examination for the entire duration
of the hearing. If you are unable to meet the specified time for filing the prefiled testimony you
must request a time extension in writing, detailing the reasons for not being able to meet the
specified deadline.

Please contact Jack A. Huber at (860) 418-7069 or Steven Lazarus at (860) 418-7612, if you have
any questions concerning this request.

‘4...»

_ Smcerely,

: E L QU\;{ k;«MM.M_M

Melame A. Dillon T
Hearing Officer

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860} 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860} 418-7053
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

FAX SHEET

TO: SALLY FCHERLIHY

FAX: _(203) 739-1974

AGENCY: _WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH NETWORK AFFILIATES

FROM: JACK HUBER

DATE: 10/13/2011 Time: ~ 3:38 pn
]

NUMBER OF PAGES: 2
(including transmittal sheet)

Comments: Transmitted:
Letter Requesting Prefile Testimony Concerning:

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.’s Proposal to
Acquire Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON




To:

918604187893 From: (8534) 18718711 83:16 Pit

@ WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALITH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave
Danbury, CT G581
203.739.7000
DanburyHospbatorg
From;  Sally Herlihy
Vice President, Planning
To: Melania Dillon, Hearing Officer
Fax.  860-418-7053 No.of Pages: 2
Phene:  860-418-7001 Dats: October 18, 2011
RE: Dockst Number; 11-31703-CON e
ki Urgent ] ForReview [0 Please Comment O Piease Reply [0 Please Recycle

Fax

Par atiached [etter we are farmally requesting a one day extension for filing pre-lie testimony.
Thank you.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Thig documant accasmpanying this transmissicn contains information from Danbury Hospital, which fs confidential andfer legally priviteged.
The infermation is intended only for use by the individuai or entity named on the transmission shegt.

if your ara not the intendsad recipient, you are hereby notified that using, disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any acion in seflance on the
contents of the transmitted information is strictly probibited and that the document should be immeadiately retumed to Danbury Hospital.

Opt-0ut: xxex

Page

1 0of 2




To: 018604187053 From: (8594)

. WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL + NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Haspital Ave.
Banbury, CT 06810

WastemConnecticutHealthMetwark.org
CanburyHospital.org
NewtdlfordHospitak.org

Oclaber 18, 2071

Melanie A. Dillon

Heaiing Officer

CT Office of Health Care Access
Departrment of Public Health
410 Capitol Avenue

MS #13HCA

P.0. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.L.C. by Western Connecticut Health
Network Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Hearing Officer Dillon;

We recefved correspondence from your office regarding the filing of Prefile Testimony for Docket Number:
11-231703-CON on the aftarnoon of October 13, 2011. Dueto being out of the office for the past several
days | would like to farmally request a one-day extension for providing Ihe response (from 2:30 PM on
Wednesday, October 18, 2011 to 2:30 PM on Thursday, Cctober 20, 2011).

If you have any questlons, | can be reached directly at 203-733-4203 or sally.herlihv@wothealthnetwork.org.

Thank you in advance for your understanding.
Sincerely,
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning
Weslern Connecticut Health Network

Sent via facsimile: (860) 418-7053

Opt-Out: *xxx



OFTICE OF COMMISSIONER

TO: Melanie Dillon, Staff Attorney

FROM: Jewel Mullen, M.D., MP.H., M.P.A_, Commissionﬂ?v"\

DATE: October 17, 2011

RE: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. — Acquisition of a CT

Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC
CON #11-31703

T hereby designate you fo sit as a hearing officer in the above-captioned matter to rule
on all motions and recommend findings of fact and conclusions of law upon completion

of the hearing.

PHONE: (860) 509-7101 FAX: (860) 509-7111
410 CarrtoL AVENUE - MS#13COM, PO. Box 340308, HARTFORD, CoONNECTICUT 06134-0308
Affirmative Action / Equal Emploviment Opportunity Employer




STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

October 19, 2011 VIA FAX ONLY

Sally F. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, EL.C by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Letter Granting WCHNA’s Request for an Extension of Time to Submit its Prefile
Testimony for the March 25, 2011, Public Hearing

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

The Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”) is in receipt of the Western Connecticut Health
Network Affiliates, Inc.’s (* WCHNA’s”) letter, dated October 18, 2011, requesting a one day
extension of time for the submission of its prefile testimony concerning the Certificate of Need
application identified above. I have reviewed you request. Tam granting a one day extension of
time for WCHNA to submit its prefile testimony from Wednesday, October 19, 2011, to
Thursday, October 20, 2011, in regard to the pubic hearing scheduled for Tuesday, October 25,
2011. Consequently, the Applicant’s prefile testimony must be submitted to OHCA no later than
2:30 pm on Thursday, October 20, 201 1.

Please contact Jack A. Huber at (860} 418-7069 or Steven Lazarus at (860) 418-7012, if you have
any questions concerning this letter.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Tol-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

FAX SHEET

TO: SALLY F. HERLIHY

FAX: (203) 739-1974

AGENCY: WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH NETWORK AFFILIATES

FROM: JACK HUBER

DATE: 10/19/2011 Time: ~2:00 pm

NUMBER OF PAGES: 2

(including transmittal sheet)

T T TS T ——

Comments: Transmitted:

Letter Responding to the Applicant’s Request for an Extension of Time
to Submit its Prefile Testimony Concerning:

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.’s Proposal to
Acquire Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON



To: 918604187653 From: (8594) 10/20/11 @2:22 PH Page 1 of 14

@ WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEATH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospitai Ave
Darbury, CT 08510
203.739.7000
DanburyHosptial org

o Of
S HEMNTH G

From:  Sally Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

To: Melanie Dillon, Hearing Officer

Fax:  BB0-418-7083 Ne.of Pages: 14 (including cover sheet)

Phone; 880-418-7001 Date: October 20, 2011

RE: Docket Nurnber: 11-31703-CON Ce:

Urgent [1 for Review 1 Please Comment T]  Plaase Reply T Piease Recycle

Fax

Please find aftached ihe Pre-file Tastimony for Docket No. 11-31703-CON

COMFIDENTIALITY
The document accompanying this transmission contairs information from Danbury Hospital, which is confidential and/or legally privileged.
The infermation is miended oniy for 4se by the individual or entity named on the transmissicn sheet,

If you are ot the intended recipisnt, you are hereby notified that using, disclosing, copying, distributing or teking any action iz liance on the
contenys of the iransmitted information is sirictly prohibited aud that the document should be immediately resarned to Danbury Hospital,

Opt-Out: *xxx



To: 918604187653 Fram: . (89494) 18/20/11 82:23 PH Page 2 of 14

WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL » NEW MILFCRD HOSPITAL -

CUL T e Hospital Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810
. 2037807000

Westembonnécﬁcu’ti;ie:aithetm{ork.grg"j R
' DanburyHospital.org
NewMillordHospital.org

o202 |

October 20, 2011 i, Lo

Melanie A. Dillon, Esq.

Hearing Officer

Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitel Avenue, MS#I3HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Certificate of Need Application: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Propesal to Acquire a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Prefile Testimony for Hearing on October 25, 2011

Dear Hearing Officer Dillon,

Attached please find the Prefile Testimony being submitted on behalf of the Applicant, Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. Twill be at the hearing to adopt the testimony and
answer any questions that OHCA may have.

Also appearing with me will be Michael Daglio, ToniAnn Marchione, Jeet Sandhu, MD and Jenaifer
Zupcoe, They will assist with any specific information that may be needed, and will be available for
questioning by the OHCA staff if necessary.

Please let me know if there is anything else you need prior to the hearing. And thank you, in

advance, for the time you are taking with this application.

Respectfully submitted,

oy T Fntdy
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning

ce: Jack Huber, OHCA Analyst
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

Docket No.: 11-31703-CON
Acquisition of Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC Imaging Equipment October 20, 2011

Prefile Testimony of Sally Herlihy

Good morning Hearing Gfficer Dillon and OHCA staff. My narae is Sally
Heddihy, Vice President of Planning for Western Connecticut Health Networle, Tam here
this morning in response to your letter dated October 13, 2011 that requested prefile
testimony for the public hearing scheduled today regarding the acquisition of imaging
equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging. [hereby adopt the prefile testimony that
has been submitted (o you.

I would Iike to begin with a brief overview of the entities involved in this request
for a certificate of need to purchase the CT and MRI scanners from the Newtown
Diagnostic Irnaging (“NDI”) facility in Newtown, Connecticut. Some of the names of
the entities have changed since the initial CON application was filed. Then I would like
to summarize support for this CON reguest.

Since the initial CON application was filed, the Applicant, Danbury Health Care
Affiliates (“DHCA") formally had a name change to Western Connecticut Health
Network Affiliates (“WCHNA”) on Septernber 13, 2011, WCHNA is an affiliate of
Western Connecticut Health Network, Inc. (“WCHN?) the parent corporation which
operates, inter alia, Danbury Hospital, Danbury Hospital's outpatient facility (Danbury
Medical Arts Center or “DMAC™), New Milford Hospital and two diagnostic imaging
facilities. With the name change, Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI”) and Ridgefield
Diagnostic Imaging (“RDI”) were also renamed to Western Conrecticut Imaging -
Danbury and Western Connecticut Imaging - Ridgefield. For the purposes of consistency
with this application they will continue to be referred as “DDI” and “RDI” in my
remarks. The names wers changed to be consistent with the name of the parent
corporation. Attachment A contains the lstter of notice to OHCA regarding the new
names and a copy of the corporate organizational chart before and after the changes.

Background

Western Connecticut Health Network (“WCHN") currently offers imaging
services at five locations, including the two imaging locations on campus at Danbury

Opt-Out: ¥wsex
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Hospital ("DH”}, New Milford Hospital (“NMH™), and the two cuipatient imaging
facilities, DDI and RDE. DD and RDI ate operated within a separate 501(c}(3)
corparation known as Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. | WCHNA is
the applicant for this CON. WCHNA operates healthcare programs which compliment
the Hospital's services, but which are more appropriately provided by other than an acute
care hospital. However, the network that binds them together provides seability,
accessibiliy, excellent service and the ability to respond to patient health care needs
across the service area. The resources of the entire system are available as necessary for
each part of the system.

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (NDI} is an independent provider, privately owned
and operated by a group of radiologists who are interested in selling the facility with its
equipment to WCHN.” This CON application supports a strategic goal to maximize the
delivery system through maintenance of appropriate facilities and technology distribution
throughout the WCHN sites of care. This includes a comprehensive ambulatory network
of care anchored by our primary care physician practices with [ocations, facilities and
tiours that are accessible and designed to meet the needs of the communities we serve.

1. Integration of the Proposed Equipment inio WCHN’s System.

The integration of the equipment presently owned by the physicians who own
NDI would also mean the integration of that facility’s Jocation in Newtown into the
WCHN system as part of WCHNA. A miap of the primary service area for this
application illustrates wheye the 5 existing imaging services are provided as well as the
proposed Newtown location. See Attachment B.

Acguiring and operating imaging equipment (1 CT and 1 MRI) from an existing
provider in the market allows for services to remain unaffected in terms of location. The
transition will be seamless because there will be no change in the imaging services
offered, equipment, location, payer mix, service arez or target population as a result of
the acquisition of the imaging equipment at NDL Through its centralized scheduling
capabilities and with the addition of this location, WCHN will be able to offer its patients
greater access and choice as to where and when they car receive their imaging study
throughout its imaging systerm, without adding any additional imaging capacity to the
service area.

1I. How the Scanning Volumes (Actual and Projected) for NDI, WCHN's System

and Other Providers Will Support the Need for the Provosed Acouisition.

The scanning volumes for NDI, RDI, DD, DH/DMAC and NMH are set forth in
Attachment C. The volumes within each of these facilities vary according to the specific

""This group of two entities was former ly known as Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (“DHCA™.
® A CON Determination Letter was issited by OHCA on February 10, 2011 iadicating that a CON would

be required for the acquisition of the imaging equipment, but not for the purchass of NDI, Sez CON
Determination Report No. 11-31683-DTR.

Opt-Out: #xxx



To: 918604187053 From: (8994) 18/20/11 62:24 PH

equipment on site, staffing of the facility and the hours of operation. Overall, the system
is reaching maximum capacity for both CT scanning and MRI scans on its existing
equipment. Projections for the future show steady growth due to the aging of the
population and the increased need for imaging stdies. (Completeness Answers, 8/19/11,
p- 58). While the system is currently experiencing declining volumes based on some of
the specific sitvations listed below, these declines are expected to be temporary because
of the reasons involved:

+ The decline in CT volume figures for DDI, RDI and DH/DMAC and NMH
between FY 2010 and YTD 2011 reflect a national trend experienced by hospitals
and imaging centers, Overall historical decline in CT has been documented as
being due to concerns raised about radiation exposure from CT procedures. As
those concerns stabilize and methods for CT exposure reducticn increase, we feel
CT scanning activity will grow, but at a slow rate.

+  Overall decline in NDI CT volurmes were due to a medical leave of absence for a
fulltime CT employee and the inability to fill the position with more than a part
time employee for four months. Projected FY 2012 volume includes a slight
decrease due to the transition.

¢ Although MRI volume declined at DDI between 2009 and 2010, the decrease was
approximately 1% of the volume. The MRI volume at DEVDMAC increased
significantly between 2008 and 2009 (54%) but declined approximately 3% in
2010. However, the 2010 volume at DE/DMAC is still a 32% increase from
2008. Collectively, DD, RDI, DH/DMAC and NMH MRI volumes are growing
with utilization shifiing across the various sites.

¢ NDI's MRI volumes decreased by approximately 5% between 2008 and 2009, In
2010, 845 MRI scans were performed, which was a drop of 232 seans from the
pravious year. This decline in volume can be attributed to several factors - NDI
stopped accepting a commercial payer for a six month period, resulting in fewer
patients with this insurance. Additionally, from March 2010 to present, NDI has
only employed one fulltime MRI technologist and consequently, when the
technologist has been away there have been no MRI exams performed.

WCHNA believes that with correctioas to the above issues growth will continue and
the most prudent course of aciion to maintain appropriate capacity o provide access
to imaging services to the patients in the WCHN system is to purchase already
existing equipment in the primary service atea.

o With the addition of NDI to WCHNA, residents of the towns utilizing DDI
and RDI will have the opticn of utilizing the Newtown facility, knowing that

Page 5 of 14

they will receive the same quality program as they would receive if they drove
to the DT and RDI facilities. Current utilization of the imaging offered at
DDI and RDI lecations is based on physician referral and includes residents
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s Curently, DDI and RDI are operating at full capacity and beyond. Both facilities
perform MRI and CT scans during the following hours:

From: (8534)

18/20/11 82:75 PH

from the towns of Newtown, Sandy Hock, Southbury, Brockfield, and Bethel
(See CON App., Attachment C, Zip Code Analysis, pp. 21-22),

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT
MRI- T30 AM- | 730 AM - | 730 AM - [ T30 AM - {730 AM - | T30 AM -
DDIL, 6 PM 8 PM g PM 8 PM §PM 2PM
RDI
CT- 8 AM -~ 8§ AM - 8 AM ~ 8 AM - 8 AM ~
DDIL, 5PM 5PM SPM 5PM 5PM
RDI

DDI has averaged 5,526 CT scans per year over the last 3 years and 3,608 MRI
studies per year in the same time frame (2008-2010). RDI has averaged 2,729
CT scans aver the last 3 years and 2,585 MRI studies per year over the last 3
years. There is a need in the immediate Danbury area to have the additional
capacity for patients who require scanning done in an appropriate time frame and
NDI has the existing capacity,

s WCHNA has plans to expand the hours that NDTis open to assist patients with

scheduling which will improve access. The extended howrs will be the addition of

weekday hours by 3.5 hours per day beginning in Year 2, and expansion of Saturday
hours to 8 hours a day in Year 3.

NDI current hours of operation area as follows:

MON |

TUE |

WED |

THU |

ERI

SAT

8 AM —4:20 PM Daily

CT

8 AM —4:30 PM Daily

Volume projections for NDI include factors related to aging of the population, movement
of some of the patients from DDI to NDI, the expanded hotrs for existing NDI patients in
the Newtown area who need scanning either on Saturday or weekday evening hours,

potential future upgrade of a CT scanner at NDI, and a modest projected growth of 3%
each year for the first three years of operation for NDI, consistent with other WCHNA

imaging locations.

Conclusion

A need also exists for WCEN to have adequate imaging services for its entire system.

With DDI at capacity, and RDI nearing capacity, the ability to acquire the imaging

Opt-Out: ®exx
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equipment at NDI and offer another imaging facility close to Danbury will remedy that
neec. There should be no impact on any other providers of imaging equipment because
1o new equipment or new facility will be introduced into the service area, and any
additional patients are expected to come from within the Western Connecticut Health
Network system.

Respectiully submitted,

Ay F kb 1020 /11
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE Date
Vice President, Planning
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Attachment A

WESTERN CONNECTICUT -
HEAITH NETWORK 3

DANBURY HCSPITAL + NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

S B Hospll Ave.
Dabiiy, CT 06856

WestamCannectioutHaztiiNalverk.org
DanburyHospial.ag
NewMilfardHoapital.acg

September 12, 2011

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue, MS#{3HCA
PQ Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Attn: Kimberly Marione,

Ditector of Operations
Re: Mame Change

Dear Ms. Martone:

We are writing to inform you that as of Septenaber 23,2011, Danbury Health Care Affiliates,
Ing, will foreeally change its name to Western Connecticnt Health Networl Affiliates, Inc,

Thare will not be any change in ownership and no olier changes to the organizational
structure, programs ot services are being made. Attached for your reference is our current
organizational chart followed by an updaled organizations] chart to refiect the new name.

If you should have any questions regarding this name charge, please comact e at {203)739-
4903, In the meantime, if we do not receive a response from you, we will assume that your agency
does rot considet any additional notifications or Flings (0 bs fnecassary,

Thark you for your attention to this raatter.
Sincerely,

Sally F. Hedlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

Attachments
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WESTERN CONNECTICUT Cm
HEAITH NETWORK

DANBUEY HOSPITAL - KEW MILFORD HOSPITAL S

2d Hospltal Ava,
Danbury, GT 05810

WeslemGornaicdHeaihNatwark.org
BanburyHespital.org
MaseMilfordHospital.org

September 12, 20411
Oifice of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenve, MS#13HCA
PO Box 340308
Hartford, CT 06134

Altn; Kimberly Martones,
Director of Operations ;

Re: Name Chanpe

Dear Ms. Martone:

© We are writing to inform you that as of September 13, 2011, the following entities within our
health network will be changing their name:

1. OLD NAME: Western Connecticut Healtheare, Tne.
NEW NAME; Western Connectient Health Networls, Ine.

2, GLD NAME: Danbury Office of Physician Services, P.C
NEW NAME: Waestern Connectieut Medical Group, P.C.

3. OLD NAME: Danbury Hospitai Development Fund, Ino,
NEW NAME: Western Connecticut Health Network Foundation, Ine,

4. OLD NAME: Danbury Visiting Nuzse Association, Inc.
NEW NAME: Western Comnecticut Home Care, Inc.

There will not be any change in ownership and no other changes o the orgatizationa]
structure, programs or services are being made, Attached for your refezence is a carrent
organizationa} chart of our rganization folfowed by an updated organizational chart to reflect the
New names.

10
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Page 2
9/12/2011

If you should have any questions regarding this name change, please contact me at (203)739-
4903, In the meantime, if we da nol receive & respense from you, we will zesums that your agency
dosg not consider any #dditional notifications or filings o be nEcessary.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.
Sincerely,

Sally ¥, Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

Allaclinents

i1
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ATTACHMENT B

On the map (below) the red circles represent pritcary care physician office locations of
the Western Conaecticut Medical Group, the green boxes represent the WCHN current
(3) and proposed (1} outpatient imaging sites and the white cross/blue box represents the
hospital locations (2) with imaging capabilities. All imaging locations are within
WCHN’s primary service area.

12
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From: (8594}

ATTACHMENT C

Historical, Current, and Projected Volume, by Equipment Unit

18720711 @2:38 PH

CFY Projected Volume

Actual Volume « 1 (First 3 Full Operationat

(Last 3 Completed FYs) Volume! FYs)*

FY FY FY FY 2011 - FY FY FY

2008 | 2009 2010 | 9 menths 2012 2013 2014

annualized

Location/Scanner
DDI-CT 5,153 | 5694 5732 5708 | 5,683 | 583541 6,029
DDI - MRI 39321 3,663 3,620 3544 34931 3,598 3,706
RDI-CT 23651 2,741 3,082 2957 32467 33431 3442
RDI-MRI 2,360 2471 2925 30757 32311 33287 3428
DH/DMAC-CT 7,089 { 10,2811 9,157 77321 7809 7,887 7,966
DH/DMAC-MRI 45971 70751 6,865 6813} 70181 77228| 7445
NDI-CT 862 766 429 336 668 803 054
NDI - MRI 1139 1,077 845 690 034 1,058 1,205
NMH~CT 8,708 | B,667| 8,128 7685 77621 7839 7918
NMH - MRI 23171 22611 2,160 2911 2,998 3,088 3,181
CT Subtotal 24,177 | 28,149 | 26,528 24,418 | 25,168 | 25,727 | 26,309
MRI Subtotal 13,945 | 16,547 | 16,424 17,133 | 17,674 | 18,301 | 18,965
Total 38,122 | 44,696 | 42,952 41,551 | 42,842 | 44,027 | 45274

*  Assumptions that correlats with this projection were submitted in the CON Application,

5125711, p. 55.
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Huber, Jack

To: sally. herlihy@wecthealthnetwork.org
Subject: FW: Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON
Attachments: Availability of Imaging Centers to Newtown.pdf

Good afternoon Sally — Thank you for sending me a copy of your prefile testimony. OHCA received a copy of the
attached communication from D. Ehrlich yesterday. Hearing Officer Dillion instructed staff to include this memo in the
record. | wanted to make sure you received a copy. As of this moment no one has come forward to request status at
Tuesday’s hearing. Will keep you posted should we receive a request for status. Mid-Monday | will be sending you a
copy of the tentative hearing agenda as well as a drafted copy of the Table of the Record. Have a nice weekend.
Regards, Jack

Jack Huber
DPH — OHCA Health Care Analyst

From: cehrlichi5@gmail.com [mailto:cehilich15@gmail.com] On Behalf Of Conrad Ehrlich
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2011 12:08 PM

To: Huber, Jack; Daglio, Michael J.

Cc: Martone, Kim; Dillon, Melanie

Subject: Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON

To: Jack Huber, OHCA
Mike Daglio, DHCA

Due to my patient care responsibilities, and relatively short notice, 1 will be unable to attend the public hearing
on Tuesday October 25th for Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON. However, [ did
want to openly share some information with both OHCA and DHCA, some of which is already known to
DHCA, so that all concerned could be informed about the area's existing imaging capacity, and other
characteristics, before expensive health care infrastructure investment decisions are made.

Between 2009 and 2010, HVRA’s yearly Danbury MRI volume averaged 2,546 and its CT volume averaged

1,676. HVRA is capable of absorbing any purported backlog and future growth. HYRA's CT and MR
are state of the art; its MRl's are currently read by the world class subspecialists at Yale; its
contracted rates are less than those of DHCA, thus saving the public money; and HVRA's Danbury
location is as conveniently accessible o Newtown's residents as NDI itself, given the nature of the
road system. HVRA is actually much closer to Newtown's residents than the many other more popular
establishments in the area that they frequent without feeling inconvenienced. Please see the attached
comparison maps provided as a reality check.

Also, DHCA should know that between 2009 and 2010, HVRA provided an average of $57,226 of free
care per year to Newtown residents (at HYRA's rates). DHCA's financials have projected only $7,939
worth of free care per year and would have to be revised to be useful for making any

decisions regarding the price paid for NDI and the financial feasibility of the project.

[ wanted to make this information available before the hearing so that OHCA and DHCA could have
an opportunity to respond and ask for clarification. | would be happy to answer any questions and
provide additional data.

Sincerely,




Conrad Ehrlich
HVRA Danbury CT
203-797-1770
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The Law Office of Patricia A. Gerner, LLC
240 Ramstein Road P.O. Box 209

New Hartford, CT 06057

Phone: (860) 794-1907 Fax: (860) 489-938
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{including cover)

The document(s) accompanying this facsimile transmission cover page are privileged and contain confidential information
intended only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the
employee or agent responsible to deliver it to the intznded recipient, you are herehy notified that any dissemination, distribution use or
copying of this communication Is prohibited. If you have received this communication in erroy, kindly immediately notify us by
telephone so that we can arrange for the retrieval of the facsimile transmission at no cost to you. Thank you
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

Docket No.: 11-31703-CON -
Acquisition of CT Scanner and ME
Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LL.C by Western

Connecticut Healta Network E
Affiliates, LLC S - October 24, 2011

APPEARANCE

Please enter my appearance in Docket No. 11-31703-CON on behalf of the
Applicant, Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. (“WCHNA™) fk/a/
Danbury Health Care Affiliates. Inc. (“DHCA™).

I plan to attend the hearing on Tuesday, October 25, 2011 on behalf of my client.

Peticie . Jovner Jet.24, 401/

Patricia A, Gerner Date
The Law Office of Patricia A. Gerner, LLC

240 Ramstein Road: P.O. Box 209

New Hartford, CT 06059

Phone: (860) 794-1907

Fax: (860) 489-9380

Email: KLG1{@aol.com
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The Law Office of Patricia A. Gerner, LLC
240 Ramstein Road P.O. Box 209
New Hartford, CT 06057
Phone: (860) 794-1907 Fax: (860) 489-9380

Facsimile Transmittal

pates _(JoT. 214, 2011 T

To: ~JACK Huser. SR
DPH : Qe o HigaryCare Adoiss

Fax #: (€00) HI8-"70573

phones: (S04 18- 700}

From: Pat Gerner

Fax #: _(860) 489-9380

Phone #: (860) 794-1907

Number of Pages O’Z
(including cover)

The document(s) accompanying this facsimile transmission cover page are privileged and contain confidential information
intended only for the use of the individual(s) or entity named above. Ifthe reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the
employee or agent responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution use or
copying of this communication is prohibited. If you have received this ccmmunication in errar, kindly immediately notify us by
telephone so that we can arrange for the retrieval of the facsimile transmission at no cost to you. Thank you
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

e

Docket No.: 11-31703-CON
Acquisition of CT Scanner and MRI
Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western
Comnecticut Health Network
Affiliates, LLC October 24, 2011

APPEARANCE

Please enter my appearance in Docket No. 11-31703-CON on behalf of the
Applicant, Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. (“WCHNA™) f/k/a/
Danbury Health Care Affiliates. Inc. (“DHCA”™).

I plan to attend the hearing on Tuesday, October 25, 2011 on behalf of my client.

Patoiee 4 ;/ZA/)MA, del. 24 a?f//

Patricia A. Gerner Date
The Law Office of Patricia A. Gerner, LLC

240 Ramstein Road: P.O. Box 209

New Hartford, CT 06059

Phone: (860) 794-1907

Fax: (860) 489-9380

Email: KLGl@aocl.com
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44, WESTERN CONNECTICUT
2¢ HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL = NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

Sent Via Facsimile

October 24, 2011

TO: CT Department of Public Health

Office of Health Care Access

Attention: Jack Huber

From: Carolyn McKenna (203) 739-7790 {2 pages - includes cover}
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLICHEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

Docket No.: 11-31703-CON

Acquisition of CT Scanner and MRI

Scanner from Newiown Diagnostic

Imaging, LLC by Western

Connecticot Health Network

Affiliates, LLC October 24, 2011

APPEARANCE

Piease enter my appearance in Docket No. 11-31703-CON on behalf of the
Applicant, Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc, (“WCHNA”) f/k/a/
Danbury Health Care Affiliates. Inc. ("DHCA™).

I'plan to attend the hearing on Tuesday, October 25, 2011 on behalf of my client,

(bl X TR epo 1024

Carclyn L. MEKenna Date
General Counsel

Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

Phone: (203} 739-6868

Fax: (203) 739-8342

Email: Carolyn,mckenna@wethealthnetwork.ore
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING

Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition of a CT Scanner and a MRI Seanner from

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LL.C, by
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

October 25, 2011, at 9:00 a.m.

L Convening of the Public Hearing
I1. Applicant’s Direct Testimony (10 minutes)
III. OHCA Questions

IV.  Public Hearing Recessed/Closed

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

TABLE OF THE RECORD

APPLICANT: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
DOCKET NUMBER: 11-31703-CON

PUBLIC HEARING: October 25, 2011, at 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: 410 Capitol Avenue, Third Floor Hearing Room

Hartford, Connecticut

EXHIBIT

DESCRIPTION

A

Letter from Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. (“Applicant”), dated May
25, 2011, enclosing a Certificate of Need application for the acquisition of
a CT Scanner and a MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Tmaging,
LLC, by Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc., received by the Office of
Health Care Access (“OHCA™) on May 26, 2011,

OHCA’s letter to the Applicant, dated June 24, 2011, requesting additional
information and/or clarification in the matter of the CON application under
Docket Number: 11-31703.

Applicant’s responses to OHCA’s letter of June 24, 2011, dated August 19,
2011, in the matter of the CON application under Docket Number: 11-
31703, received by OHCA on August 19, 2011,

Email received from from Dr. Conrad Ehrlich, dated September 13, 2011,
enclosing comment on the data presented in the matter of the CON
application under Docket Number 11-31703, received by OHCA on
September 13, 2011.

Letter from the Applicant, dated September 12, 2011, noting a name
change within the health network from Danbury Health Care Affiliates,
Inc., to Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., in the matter
of the CON application under Docket Number: 11-31703, received by
OHCA on September 15, 2011.

OHCA’s letter to the Applicant, dated September 16, 2011, informing them
that their application has been deemed complete in the matter of the CON
application under Docket Number: 11-31703.

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave.,, MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860} 418-7053
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G OHCA’s request for legal notification in The News Times and OHCA’s
Notice to the Applicant of the public hearing scheduled for October 25,
2011, in the matter of the CON application under Docket Number: 11-
31703, dated October 4, 2011.

H OHCA'’s letter to the Applicant, dated October 13, 2011, requesting prefile
testimony in the matter of the CON application under Docket Number: 11-
31703.

I Designation letter, dated October 17, 2011, designating Melanie Dillon as
hearing officer in the matter under Docket Number; 11-31703-CON

J Facsimile letter, dated October 18, 2011, from the Applicant requesting a

one day extension for filing pre-file testimony in the matter of the CON
application under Docket Number: 11-31703, received on October 18,
2011

K OHCA’s letter to the Applicant, dated October 19, 2011, granting a one
day extension for filing of the pre-file testimony in the matter of the CON
application under Docket Number: 11-30703.

L Email received from from Dr. Conrad Ehrlich, dated October 20, 2011,
enclosing comment on the data presented in the matter of the CON
application under Docket Number: 11-31703, received by OHCA on
October 20, 2011.

M Letter from the Applicant enclosing prefile testimony, dated October 20,
2011, in the matter of the CON application under Docket Number: 11-
31703, received by OHCA on October 20, 2011

N Email received from the Law Office of Paticia A., Gerner, LLC, with
Notice of appearance of attorney Patricia A. Gerner in the matter of the
CON application under Docket Number: 11-31703, received by OIICA on
October 24, 2011.

0 Email received from the Applicant, with Notice of appearance of its
general counsel Carolyn L. McKenna in the matter of the CON application
under Docket Number: 11-31703, received by OHCA on October 24, 2011.
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Greer, Leslie

From: Huber, Jack

Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2011 2:54 PM

To: Dillon, Melanie; Lazarus, Steven; Greer, leslie

Cc: : Martone, Kim

Subject: FW: WCHNA Late File Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Attachments: OHCA NDI Late File Submission 11 08 2011.pdf

Dear All: Attached are WCHNA's Late File electronic submission. Jack

From: Herlihy, Sally [mailto:Sally. Herlihy@wcthealthnetwork.org]
Sent: Tuesday, November 08, 2011 2:48 PM

To: Huber, Jack

Subject: WCHNA Late File Docket No. 11-31703-CON

Hi Jack,

Please find attached the Late File responses requested from Western Connecticut Health Netwerk Affiliates, inc.
following the Public Hearing.

Feel free to call me if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Sally

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

24 Hospital Avenue, Danbury, CT 06810
Voice: (203) 739-4903

Fax: (203) 739-1974

Emaii: sally. herlihy@wcthealthnetwork.org
Web: WesternConnecticutHealthNetwork.org

Executive Assistant: Michelle Johnson
Voice: (203) 739-4935
Email: michelle.johnson@wcthealthnetwork.org

DANBURY HOSPITAL » REW MILFORD HOSPITAL

Danbury Hospital New Milford Hospital
24 Hospital Avenue 21 Elm Street
Ranbury, CT 06810 New Milford, CT 06776
(203) 739-7000 (860} 355-2611
DanburyHospital.org NewMilfordHospital.org

Learn More About Western Connecticut Health Network

C] Visit WesternConnecticutHealthNetwork.org




& A Video Announcing Western Connecticut Health Networlk
s A Video Message from CEQ John Murphy, M.D.

piease Note: My email address has changed. Flease update my information in your contacts.

This transmittal is intended for a particular addressee(s). If it is nct <lsar that you are the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you
have recaived this transmittal in error; any review, copying or distribution or disseminatien is strictly prohibited, If you suspect that you have
received this transmittal in error, piease netify Western Connecticut Health Network immediately by email reply to the sender, and delete the
transmittal andg any attacnmenis.

RCADER BEWARE: Infernet e-mail is inherently insecure and occasionally unreliable. Please contact the sender if yvou wish to arrange for
secure communication or fo verify the contents of this message.




‘@ WESTERN COMNECTICUT HEALTI NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave

Darbuey, CT 06810
203,738, 7000
DanburyHosplialorg
From:  Sally Herlhy
Vice President, Planning
To: Melanig Dillon, Hearing Officer
Fax: 860-418-7053 No. of Pages: 14 (including cover sheet)
Phone: 860-418-7001 Date: November 8, 2011
RE: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON Ce: fClick here and type name]
}é Urgent 1  For Review [0 Please Comment O Please Reply [J Piease Recycle

Fax

Please find aitached the Late File material for Docket No. 11-31703-CON.

A PDF version will be sent to Jack Huber, OHCA Analyst and the original mailed to your office.

CONFIDENTIALITY
The document ascompanying this transmission contains infermation from Danbury Hospital, which is confidential and/or lagaily privileged.
Tha information is interded only for use by the individua! or entity named on the transmission shest.,

i you are not the intended recipient, you are hersby notified that using, disclosiag, eopying, distributing or taking any action in reliance en the
contents of the transmitted information is strictly prohibited and that the document should e immediately retumad to Danbury Bospital.
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November 8, 2011

Melanie A. Dillon, Esq.

Hearing Officer

Depariment of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Certificate of Need Application: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Late File Material requested from Public Hearing held on October 25, 2011

Dear Hearing Officer Dilion:

Please find enclosed the Late File responses on behalf of Westermn Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc. ("WCHNA”} following the Public Hearing held at the OHCA offices on October 25,
2011. This response provides clarification to the CON application filed on behalf of WCHNA to
acquire Newtown Diagnostic Imaging’s CT and MRI scanners and addresses the following five
areas:

Fevised Attachment C

Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC

Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI[ and RDI

Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites ard a distributed healthcare delivery system
Separate Revenue and Expense projections for CT and MRI services with NDI, including
gross/net calculations by modality

NhLh -

Please let me know if there is any additional information you require.

Respectiully submitted,

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

cc. Jack Huber, OHCA Analyst
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Late File Question #1

Revised Attachment C - Volume projections from 9 Months actual to full year actual FY
2011, including all Danbury Hospital CT and MRI volume (inpatient and outpatient).

Below is the revised table with CT and MRI volumes provided by location.

Assumptions:

B

The information has been refreshed to include 12 month actual results for Fy 2011.

FY 2012 numbers have been revised to reflect the current FY 2012 budget.
The volume provided highlights historical volume at all locations.

Danbury Hospital's results are provided in more detail to reflect inpatient and Qutpatient
campus activity while DHMAC volume is listed separately {DHMAC is Danbury
Hospital's Medical Arts Center located next to the Hospital).

The volume identified is based on fiscal year results and not calendar year results (the
OHCA imaging survey requests calendar year data).

in summary, the results below demonstrate Danbury Hospital's focus to decompress the
Danbury Hospital site by shifting patients to the offsite locations consistent with our strategy for
customer need and improved access.
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Volume for CT/MRI by Site

CoICT
ROICT
NEW DH CT - Inpt
NEW OHCT - Al OP
NEW DHMAC CT
NDICT
IP&OP NMHCT
DI MRI
ROI MRI
NEW DH MR - Inpt
DH MR - All
MNEW op
NEW DHMAC MRI
NDI MR
IP&OP NMHMRI
Subset:
DDI/RBI/DHMAC CT
BHCT
ALL DH sites {ex NMH)

DDIRDIDHMAC MRI

DH MAI

ALL DH siles {ex NMH)

Revised
12mos
| Fvos | Fyos | Fyio | Fy11 | Fv12 | Fvi3 | Fy1a |

5153 5694 5732 5579 5794 5968 6147
2,365 2,741 3,082 2,834 3,014 3,104 3,198
11,774 13,0830 11,935 12,236 12,255 12,378 12,502
19,297 19986 18,545 17,235 17,373 17,546 17,722
5107 6230 6154 6468 6,417 6481 6,546
862 766 549 a3 668 803 954
8708 8667 8128 7,683 7,766 7,844 7,922
53196 57,114 54125 52368 53287 54124 54,990
3,532 3,663 3,629 3,631 3,573 3,680 3,7
2360 2471 2925 3075 3114 3207 3,304
1,296 1,389 1,379 1,285 1,316 1,356 1,397
4899 4475 4026 4023 3695 3805 3,920
2,024 2,768 3,068 3,111 3,273 3,372 3,473
1139 1,077 910 707 934 1,088 1,205
2317 2261 2160 2911 2924 3012 3,102
17,567 18,104 18,097 18653 18829 18500 20,190
12,625 14665 14,968 14,882 15,225 15553 15890
31001 33016 30,480 29,471 29,628 29924 30,223
43626 47,681 45448 44,353 44,853 45477 46114
7,816 8,902 0,622 9,717 9,960 10,259 10,567
6,195 5,864 5,405 5,318 5,011 5,161 5,316
14,114 14,766 15,027 15,035 14,971 15,421 15,883
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Late File Question #2

Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC locations

We are unable to provide volume by the individual scanners located in the Danbury Hospital.
Volume is tracked by modality and not by scanner at the Hospital location.

Cagacitv on CT scanner #1 located in Danbury Hospital:

This scanner is the primary emergency room scanner and inpatient scanner. In addition to these
cateqgories, outpatient CTs, especially for those with allergy issues, are performed on this
scanner. This is our standard of care for patients at high risk for developing an allergic reaction
that may require an immediate medical response if a life threatening reaction occurs,

Capacity on CT scanner #2 located in Danbury Hospital:

The second CT scanner in the Hospital is used primarily for interventional biopsies and
drainages, overflow of emergency room patienis, overflow of inpatients, and serves as a backup
scanner which is a mandated reqguirement to be an accredited Stroke Program. Because of the
extremely variable daily case loads that result from inpatient and ER scanning along with the
unpredictable case mix for interventional cases, it is almost impossible to schedule routine
outpatient procedures in a reliable manner on this scanner.

Although we are unable to calegorize the scan volume per hospital-based CT scanner, it is
understandable that even if each CT scanner was fully devoted to straightforward patient
scanning, the utilization rates would be beyond capacity based on the draft imaging guidelines
provided by OHCA (where 9,000 scans per hospital scanner would be considered full
utilization). Currently, over 30,000 scans are performed within the Hospital annually. While the
time-consuming interventional cases are done on the second scanner {(which dramatically
skews utilization rates and alters capacity determination) it is observable that the scanners are
functioning beyond capacity.

As noted during the Public Hearing for this CON application, it is disadvantageous to outpatients
to be scheduled at the Hospital for a variety of reasons. Again, based on the draft imaging
guidelines where 5,000 scans per outpatient scanner is considered full capacity, the outpatient
scanners at DDl and DMAC are already beyond capacity as 5,700 and 6,200 scans were done
respectively in FY 2010. Additional capacity is needed to handle some of the outpatients who
are currently imaged at the Hospital.

While WCHN’s MRI scanning is currently within capacity as set forth in OHCA’s draft imaging
guidelines, the Newtown location is needed for those patients already using ND!, and will
continue to make MRI accessible in the Newtown area.
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Late File Question #3:

Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI and RDI

The capacity was determined by the following process:

A capacity analysis template was developed to determine the capacity for each location. The
amount of available capacity (for two weeks) is determined by the number of potential
appointment slots for each day in each modality (CT, MRI). A random two week period is then
selected to determine average weekly volumes by modality and location. The total amount of
potential capacity is then divided by actual velumes which then gives the percentage of facility’s
total capacity.

Example of template:

e T ——
_BO0AM- 800 AM- 00AM- BOOAM- |

Max.capacity (patients) T
Number of patients '
Random scheduled days ' '

This method is sensitive to the different uses of specific imaging scanners, and may differ from
OHCA generalized maximum scanning volumes. For instance if you have one MRI that does
only (or mostly} certain specific procedures that take longer, your actual volume would be lower
than the volume on a general MRI doing a variety of scanning procedures— and when you divide
the number of appointmenis possible for the specific procedure with the number of actual
volume, it would be a more accurate reflection of when the scanner is at maximum capacity.

This highlights the importance of differentiating when you have an unusual situation — which
might not happen as often in the outpatient setting, but can happen in a large hospital with
multiple pieces of equipment where specialization can occur.
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Late File Question #4

Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites and a distributed healthcare delivery
system

For the past twenty years, Western Connecticut Health Network ("WCHN”, formerly known as
Danbury Health Systems), has been executing a distributed health care services delivery
strategy. Through its various affiliates, WCHN has successfully delivered greater access to
healthcare services to the communities it serves. This strategy has coincided with Danbury
Hospital's Master Facility Plan to relocate outpatient services that exist in the Hospital facility to
more convenient outpatient settings and to provide greater facility capacity to support vital
Hospital-based services. The acquisition of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (*NDI") is a
continuation of this strategy in a cost effective manner for WCHN that requires no additional
imaging capacity in the region. This CON application supports our strategic goal to maximize
the delivery system by maintaining appropriate facilities and technology distribution throughout
the WCHN sites of care. This includes a comprehensive ambulatory network of care anchored
by our primary care physician practices with locations, facilities and hours that are accessible
and distributed. |

Consistent Distributed Health Care Delivery Strateqy

WCHN is a healthcare delivery system that combines the resources and expertise of Danbury
Hospital, New Milford Hospital, Western Connecticut Medical Group, and their affiliates, which
includes imaging services provided by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates
{“WCHNA"). The WCHN service area includes 43 communities in Litchfield, Fairfield and New
Haven counties in CT and Dutchess, Putnam and Westchester counties in NY. The primary
service area represents 13 Connecticut towns and four New York towns with a combined
population of 275,000. The network deploys services to provide stability, accessibility, excellent
service and the ability to respond to patient health care needs across the service area. The
resources of the entire network are available as necessary to support each part of the network.

Nationwide, over the past 15 years a broad range of care has been transitioned from inpatient to
outpatient settings.  WCHN's health care delivery strategy has been consistent with these
trends and demonstrated in our historical and recent CON activity.

The opening of the Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI”) location in 2001 is one of the first
examples of this strategy to move diagnostic imaging services out of the Hospital proper and
into a more accessible outpatient location on Germantown Road. As the Hospital's inpatient
and emergency depariment demands for imaging services continued to increase, the
comingling of these patients with outpatients became more difficult to manage from a capacity
standpoint. This also became a major inconvenience for outpatients as their appointments
would routinely get “bumped” or cancelled in order to accommodate the time-sensitive clinical
needs of the inpatient or emergency patient. This strategy was successful in both providing
better access to outpatient imaging services to patients and physicians and providing greater
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capacity at the Hospital to meet the growing demands for inpatient and emergency department
imaging.

As demands for critical Hospital-based facilities and diagnostic imaging continued to grow, it
became clear that additional outpatient services needed to be moved out of the Hospital proper.
In 2006, WCHN opened its Danbury Medical Arts Center (“DMAC”) to provide capacity for a
gastroenterology physician practice, endoscopy suites, a cardiovascular physician practice,
cardiovascular testing, nephrology practice, and an ocutpatient dialysis unit, Al of these services
existed in the main Hospital and required patients to navigate parking and a large, complex
Hospital facility to attend their outpatient appointment. These clinical departments also require
frequent access to diagnostic imaging services and the DDI location had already begun to reach
capacity. At the same time, demands in the Hospital’s inpatient and emergency services, as well
as special procedures in radiology, continued to grow. To accommodate the diagnostic imaging
needs of these clinical areas, a diagnostic imaging center was also added to the DMAC facility.
The opening of the DMAC was a continuation of the strategy to move outpatient services out of
the Hospital in order to provide improved access and provide greater capacity to support the
growing demands for Hospital-based services.

White these strategies were being executed, WCHN was also increasing primary care and
subspecialty care presence into communities further from the Hospital as a continuation of its
distributed strategy. A greater primary care and subspecialty presence in our service areas lead
to CON approvals for the Ridgefield Surgical Center, Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging, Southbury
Outpatient Cardiovascular Services, and the Southbury Sleep Center expansion. [t has also
lead to additional primary care and subspecialty practices, as well as laboratory draw stations
into these towns.

Continuation of the Strateqgy

As we continue to pursue our distributed health care service delivery strategy, we intend to add
primary care and subspecialty practices to provide greater access to services in the
communities we serve. As evidenced through our established Network, WCHN has made a
concerted effort over the past several years to increase the number of employed and aligned
physicians across the service area. The number of employed physicians continues to increase
and access to healthcare services in our region has benefited. The WCHN Primary Care
alignment strategy was reported to OHCA in Docket Number 10-31560-CON, and is reflected in
Condition #4 of the approval for the DH and NMH Affiliation. The near-term impacts these
efforts have on WCHNA’s NDI application under consideration are the following:

s A new Wilton practice location was added to the network in October 2011, which is
anticipated to increase demand on Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging.

* A new Monroe practice location will commence operations during November 2011,
which is anticipated to increase demand on Newtown Diagnostic Imaging.

+ Discussions are in process to further align with physicians and add additional primary
care and subspecialty physician presence in Southbury, Newtown, and Bethel.
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The WCHN physician alignment strategy is a multifaceted approach toward enhancing access
to primary care service and subspecialty care that includes the following:

Physician employment - investments in a physician network and practice management
infrastructure in WCMG. This offers a desirable option for physicians interested in employment,
contributes to the delivery of effective care, and facilitates a common electronic medical record
platform for exchange of patient information.

Increasing the humber of providers across the service area — Recruitment is ongoing to
achieve primary care alignment and growth with a target of 40 additional new or aligned primary
care physicians by 2015, including expansion in underserved markets and succession planning
for physicians approaching retirement. Recruitment will continue at this pace for the next
several years as needs are identified and appropriate candidates selected. In FY 2011, 22
primary care physicians joined the medical staff.

Development of a Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) model of care - The PCMH
focuses on changing the way medical care is delivered with coordination and partnership in
managing patient health. It is an enhanced primary-care model that provides comprehensive
and timely care and emphasizes teamwork by providers and engagement by those receiving the
care. Principles of care include an ongoing relationship with a personal physician, coliective
responsibility for ongoing needs, cocrdination and integration of care across the health care
system and patient’s community, enhanced access, and delivery of quality and safe services.

« Two medical home pilots have been initiated in the Southbury and Brocokfield, CT.

* Additional WCMG primary care practices are targeted to achieve NCQA designation during
2011/2012 and once established, outreach efforts will be extended to assisting any
independent physicians in developing this model in their practices.

« Achievement of Leve! | designation for DH'’s Seifert and Ford Medical Clinic located in
Danbury.

+ DH will have the first primary care residency program completely integrated into a PCMH
and through partnership with the FQHC will help them move toward PCMH designation.

Training new providers and retention within the service areas — The Department of
Medicine at DH offers a three-year medical residency program that includes a primary care
track. It includes comprehensive preparation for the practice of general internal medicine.
Previous graduates have stayed in the area and are on the staif at Danbury Hospital.

integrated Health IT platform — State of the art information technology that facilitates sharing
of patient information amongst providers of care is a priority for the system. DH has taken a
leadership role in the implementation of a regional health information exchange which is named
HealthLink. The HealthLink exchange is a patient centric system that provides two way
communications between all providers on the exchange including primary care physicians,
specialists, clinics, home health agencies and other providers of care. The HealthLink user
community continues to grow with over 700 authorized users accessing the systems to view
current and prior records for the palienis that they are treating.
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NDI’'s Role in the Strategy

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (NDI) is an independent provider, privately owned and operated
by a group of radiologists who are interested in selling the facility with its equipment to WCHN.

To support these services and to remain consistent with our strategy, we plan to also provide
ancillary support services in these same communities. The NDJ] acquisition is an ideal
opportunity for WCHN to provide diagnostic imaging services closer to those patienis we serve
and will be serving in the towns immediately surrounding the Newtown location. These services
already exist in this community under different ownership, so there would be no increase in
imaging capacity in the region. Acquiring NDI will provide WCHN the ability to offer choice of
locations to our patients through our centralized scheduling system, have their diagnostic
studies and reports of those studies in WCHN's information system, and provide all of WCHN
providers the opportunities to view these results in their electronic medical records, providing an
uninterrupted continuum of care,

With the addition of NDI to WCHNA, residents of the towns utilizing WCHNA (who now only
have the options of DDI and RDI) will have the option of utilizing the Newtown facility, knowing
that they will receive the same guality program as they would receive if they drove to the DDI
and RDI facilities. Current utilization of the imaging offered at DDI and RDI locations is based
on physician referral and includes residents from the towns of Newtown, Sandy Hook,
Southbury, Brookfield, and Bethel (See CON App., Attachment C, Zip Code Analysis, pp. 21-
22). Except for emergency situations, patients ordinarily travel from their homes and places of
work to an imaging facility. The patients wha live in Newtown and north and east of Newtown
and utilize either DDI or RD1 will have better access at NDI, especially with the addition of
Saturday hours and extended hours during the week. Patients who currently use NDI come
primarily from Newtown and Sandy Hook. Over a two y2ar period between 2008 and 2010,
over 50% of the patients who utilized NDI lived in Newtown or Sandy Hook. (See CON
Application, Attachment D, NDI Patient Distribution, p. 23}.

To estimate new imaging volumes from our new Monroe practice, an analysis of historical
referral volumes from nine primary care physicians was performed. The analysis showed that
the average number of monthly referrals to an imaging facility from a practice made up of three
(3) primary care physicians would be approximately 75 exams. When extrapolated on an
annual basis, it is anticipated that the three physician group would refer approximately 900
imaging exams per year. With the addition of the Monroe practice of three primary care
providers in November of 2011, NDI is projected 1o handie additional volume that the practice
will generate.

Need for imaging services also exists for WCHN to have adequate imaging services for its
entire network. With DDI at capacity, and RDI nearing capacity, the ability te acquire the
imaging equipment at NDI and offer another imaging facility close to Danbury will remedy that
need. There should be no impact on any other providers of imaging equipment because no
incremental equipment or new facility will be introduced into the service area, and any additional
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patients are expected to come from within the WCHN. Upgrading the CT scanner will occur, but
that is done at all imaging facilities when new equipment is required.

The integration of the equipment presently owned by the physicians who own NDI would also
achieve integration of that facility’s location in Newtown into the WCHN system as part of
WCHNA. Acquiring and operating imaging equipment (1 CT and 1 MRI)} from an existing
provider in the market allows for services to remain unaffected in terms of location. The quality
of the service is expected to improve at NDI with the purchase of a 16 slice CT scanner in the
next year. The transition will be seamless because there will be no change in the imaging
services offered, equipment, location, payor mix, service area or target population as a result of
the acquisition of the imaging equipment at NDI.

Results of the Distributed Strateqy

A map provided as Attachment B, page 12 in our pre-file testimony demonstrates the locations
of primary care and the current and proposed imaging sites in WCHN's service area. This map
is included below.

» The red circles represent primary care physician office locations of the Western
Connecticut Medical Group.
« The green boxes represent the WCHN current (3) and proposed (1) outpatient imaging
: sites.
» The white cross/blue box represents the hospital locations (2) with inpatient and
outpatient imaging capabilities.
All imaging locations are within WCHN’s primary service area.

*

10
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Late File Question #5

Separate Revenue and Expense projections for CT and MRI services with NDJ, including
gross/net calculations by modality

Below is the detailed P&L. by modality.

Assumptions:

Net revenues by modality were modeled using current net revenue experience
Expenses were allocated accordingly
The revenue and expenses below are projected using existing eguipment, expanded
hours, and include the expansion from the primary care strategy

+ Any equipment upgrades and/or replacement would be considered and planned for
during the WCHN'’s planning budget process

« The replacement of the CT scanner would be considered in the capital planning (It is
important to note that the expense and any incremental revenue has not been included
in the financials provided).

* The potential impact of a CT replacement on the P&L would add approximately $85K in
incremental depreciation expense

12
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- WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL < NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospitad Ava.
Danbury, CT 06810
203.732.7000

WasternConnecticutHealihMNetwork.org
DanburyHospital.org
NewMilfordHospital.org

November 8, 2011

Melanie A. Dillon, Esq.

Hearing Officer

Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
410 Capitol Avenue, MS#13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: Certificate of Need Application: Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
l.ate File Material requested from Public Hearing held on October 25, 2011

Dear Hearing Officer Dillon:

Please find enclosed the Late File responses on hehalf of Western Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc. {'WCHNA") following the Public Hearing held at the OHCA offices on October 25,
2011. This response provides clarification to the CON application filed on behalf of WCHNA to
acquire Newtown Diagnostic Imaging’s CT and MRI scanners and addresses the following five
areas:

Revised Attachment C

Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC

Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI and RDI

Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites and a distributed healthcare delivery system
Separate Revenue and Expense projections for CT and MRI services with NDI, including
gross/net calculations by modality

AN -

Please let me know if there is any additional information you require.

Respectfully submitted,

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

cc. Jack Huber, OHCA Analyst
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Late File Question #1

Revised Attachment C - Volume projections from 9 Months actual to full year actual FY
2011, including all Danbury Hospital CT and MRI volume (inpatient and outpatient).

Below is the revised table with CT and MRI volumes provided by location.

Assumptions:

The information has been refreshed to include 12 month actual results for FY 2011.
FY 2012 numbers have been revised to reflect the current FY 2012 budget.
The volume provided highlights historical volume at all locations.

Danbury Hospital's results are provided in more detail to reflect Inpatient and Qutpatient
campus activity while DHMAC volume is listed separately (DHMAC is Danbury
Hospital's Medical Arts Center located next to the Hospital).

The volume identified is based on fiscal year results and not calendar year results (the
OHCA imaging survey requests calendar year data).

In summary, the results below demonstrate Danbury Hospital's focus to decompress the
Danbury Hospital site by shifting patients to the offsite locations consistent with our strategy for
customer need and improved access.
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Volume for CT/MRI by Site

DDI GT
RDICT
NEW DH CT - Inpt
NEW DHCT - All QP
NEW DHMAC CT
NDI CT
IP&OP NMHCT
bDI MR!
RDI MRI
NEW DH MRI - Inpt
[2H MRI - All
NEW OP.
NEW DHMAC MRI
NDI MRI
IP&OP NMH MRI
Subset:
DDKRDIDHMAC CT
DHCT

ALL DH sites (ex NMH)

DDI/RDI/DHMAC MRI

DH MRI

ALL DH sites (ex NMH)

Revised
12mos
Fvos | FYos | Fv1o | FY11 | Fyi2 | FY13 | Fvia |
5153 5694 5732 5579 5794 5068 6147
2,365 2741 3082 2,834 3014 3104 3198
11,774 13,080 11,935 12,236 12,255 12,378 12,502
19,227 19,986 18,545 17,235 17,373 17,546 17,722
5107 6230 6,154 6468 6417 6481 6546
862 766 549 332 668 803 954
8,708 8667  B128 7,683 7766 7,844  7.922
53,196 57,014 54125 52068 53287 54124 54000
3532 3,663 3,629 3531 3573 3680 3791
2,360 2471 2925 3075 3,114 3207  3.304
1296 1,389 1,379 1,205 1,316 1,356 1,397
4,899 4475 4,026 4023 3,695 3805 3920
2,024 2,768 3,068 3111 3273 3372 3473
1,139 1,077 910 707 934 1,068 1,205
2317 2261 2160 2911 2924 3012 3102
17,567 18,104 18,097 18,653 18,829 19,500 20,190
12,625 14,665 14,968 14,882 15225 15553 15,890
31,001 33,016 80,480 20,471 29628 29,924 30203
43626 47,681 45448 44,353 44853 45477 46114
7916 8902 9,622 9717 9,980 10259 10,567
6,195 5864 5405 5318 5011 5161 5316
14,111 14,766 15027 15035 14,971 15421 15883
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Late File Question #2

Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC locations

We are unable to provide volume by the individual scanners located in the Danbury Hospital.
Volume is tracked by modality and not by scanner at the Hospital location.

Capacity on CT scanner #1 located in Danbury Hospital:

This scanner is the primary emergency room scanner and inpatient scanner. In addition to these
categories, outpatient CTs, especially for those with allergy issues, are performed on this
scanner. This is our standard of care for patients at high risk for developing an allergic reaction
that may require an immediate medical response if a life threatening reaction occurs.

Capacity on CT scanner #2 located in Danbury Hospital:

The second CT scanner in the Hospital is used primarily for interventional biopsies and
drainages, overflow of emergency room patients, overflow of inpatients, and serves as a backup
scanner which is a mandated requirement to be an accredited Stroke Program. Because of the
extremely variable daily case loads that result from inpatient and ER scanning along with the
unpredictable case mix for interventional cases, it is almost impossible to schedule routine
outpatient procedures in a reliable manner on this scanner.

Although we are unable to categorize the scan volume per hospital-based CT scanner, it is
understandable that even if each CT scanner was fully devoted to straightforward patient
scanning, the utilization rates would be beyond capacity based on the draft imaging guidelines
provided by OHCA (where 9,000 scans per hospital scanner would be considered fuli
utilization). Currently, over 30,000 scans are performed within the Hospital annually. While the
time-consuming interventional cases are done on the second scanner (which dramatically
skews utilization rates and alters capacity determination) it is observable that the scanners are
functioning beyond capacity.

As noted during the Public Hearing for this CON application, it is disadvantageous to outpatients
to be scheduled at the Hospital for a variety of reasons. Again, based on the draft imaging
guidelines where 5,000 scans per outpatient scanner is considered full capacity, the outpatient
scanners at DDI and DMAC are already beyond capacity as 5,700 and 6,200 scans were done
respectively in FY 2010. Additional capacity is needed to handie some of the outpatients who
are currently imaged at the Hospital.

While WCHN’s MRI scanning is currently within capacity as set forth in OHCA’s draft imaging
guidelines, the Newtown location is needed for those patients already using NDI, and will
continue to make MRI accessible in the Newtown area.
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Late File Question #3:

Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI and RDI

The capacity was determined by the following process:

A capacity analysis template was developed to determine the capacity for each location. The
amount of available capacity (for two weeks) is determined by the number of potential
appointment slots for each day in each modality (CT, MRI). A random two week period is then
selected to determine average weekly volumes by modality and location. The total amount of

potential capacity is then divided by actual volumes which then gives the percentage of facility’s
total capacity.

Example of template:

o M T W TH  FRI  SAT  TOTALWK .
Hours of Operation  8:00AM- 800 AM- 8:00 AM- 800 AM- 8:00 AM- el
' 5:00P.M. 500 P.M. 5:00P.M. .5:00 PM. 5:00 PM.

vax. capaciy (pationts)

Number of patients
Random scheduled days
Random scheduled days
g

% Capacity

This method is sensitive to the different uses of specific imaging scanners, and may differ from
OHCA generalized maximum scanning volumes. For instance if you have one MRI that does
only (or mostly) certain specific procedures that take longer, your actual volume would be lower
than the volume on a general MRI doing a variety of scanning procedures— and when you divide
the number of appointments possible for the specific procedure with the number of actual
volume, it would be a more accurate reflection of when the scanner is at maximum capacity.

This highlights the importance of differentiating when you have an unusual situation — which
might not happen as often in the outpatient setting, but can happen in a large hospital with
multiple pieces of equipment where specialization can occur.
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Late File Question #4

Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites and a distributed healthcare delivery
system

For the past twenty years, Western Connecticut Health Network ("WCHN”, formerly known as
Danbury Health Systems), has been executing a distributed health care services delivery
strategy. Through its various affiliates, WCHN has successfully delivered greater access to
healthcare services to the communities it serves. This strategy has coincided with Danbury
Hospital's Master Facility Plan to relocate outpatient services that exist in the Hospital facility to
more convenient outpatient settings and to provide greater facility capacity to support vital
Hospital-based services. The acquisition of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging {*“NDI"} is a
continuation of this strategy in a cost effective manner for WCHN that requires no additional
imaging capacity in the region. This CON application supports our strategic goal to maximize
the delivery system by maintaining appropriate facilities and technology distribution throughout
the WCHN sites of care. This includes a comprehensive ambulatory network of care anchored
by our primary care physician practices with locations, facilities and hours that are accessible
and distributed.

Consistent Distributed Health Care Delivery Strateqy

WCHN is a healthcare delivery system that combines the resources and expertise of Danbury
Hospital, New Milford Hospital, Western Connecticut Medical Group, and their affiliates, which
includes imaging services provided by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates
("WCHNA"). The WCHN service area includes 43 communities in Litchfield, Fairfield and New
Haven counties in CT and Dutchess, Putnam and Westchester counties in NY. The primary
service area represents 13 Connecticut towns and four New York towns with a combined
population of 275,000. The network deploys setrvices to provide stability, accessibility, excellent
service and the ability to respond to patient health care needs across the service area. The
resources of the entire network are available as necessary to support each part of the network.

Nationwide, over the past 15 years a broad range of care has been transitioned from inpatient to
outpatient settings. WCHN’s health care delivery strategy has been consistent with these
trends and demonstrated in our historical and recent CON activity.

The opening of the Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI”} location in 2001 is one of the first
examples of this strategy to move diagnostic imaging services out of the Hospital proper and
into a more accessible outpatient location on Germantown Road. As the Hospital's inpatient
and emergency department demands for imaging services continued to increase, the
comingling of these patients with outpatients became more difficult to manage from a capacity
standpoint. This alsoc became a major inconvenience for outpatients as their appointmenis
would routinely get “bumped” or cancelled in order to accommodate the time-sensitive clinical
needs of the inpatient or emergency patient. This strategy was successful in both providing
better access to outpatient imaging services to patients and physicians and providing greater
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capacity at the Hospital to meet the growing demands for inpatient and emergency department
imaging.

As demands for critical Hospital-based facilities and diagnostic imaging continued to grow, it
became clear that additional outpatient services needed to be moved out of the Hospital proper.
In 2006, WCHN opened its Danbury Medical Arts Center (“DMAC”) to provide capacity for a
gastroenterology physician practice, endoscopy suites, a cardiovascular physician practice,
cardiovascular testing, nephrology practice, and an outpatient dialysis unit. All of these services
existed in the main Hospital and required patients to navigate parking and a large, complex
Hospital facility to attend their outpatient appointment. These clinical departments also require
frequent access to diagnostic imaging services and the DDI location had already begun to reach
capacity. At the same time, demands in the Hospital's inpatient and emergency services, as well
as special procedures in radiology, continued to grow. To accommodate the diagnostic imaging
needs of these clinical areas, a diagnostic imaging center was also added to the DMAC facility.
The opening of the DMAC was a continuation of the strategy to move outpatient services out of
the Hospital in order to provide improved access and provide greater capacity to support the
growing demands for Hospital-based services.

While these strategies were being executed, WCHN was also increasing primary care and
subspecialty care presence into communities further from the Hospital as a continuation of its
distributed strategy. A greater primary care and subspecialty presence in our service areas lead
to CON approvals for the Ridgefield Surgical Center, Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging, Southbury
Outpatient Cardiovascular Services, and the Southbury Sleep Center expansion. It has also
lead to additional primary care and subspecialty practices, as well as laboratory draw stations
into these towns.

Continuation of the Strateqy

As we continue to pursue our distributed health care service delivery strategy, we intend to add
- primary care and subspecialty practices to provide greater access to services in the
communities we serve. As evidenced through our established Network, WCHN has made a
concerted effort over the past several years to increase the number of employed and aligned
physicians across the service area. The number of employed physicians continues to increase
and access to healthcare services in our region has benefited. The WCHN Primary Care
alignment strategy was reported to OHCA in Docket Number 10-31560-CON, and is reflected in
Condition #4 of the approval for the DH and NMH Affiliation. The near-term impacts these
efforts have on WCHNA’s NDI application under consideration are the following:

» A new Wiiton practice location was added to the network in October 2011, which is
anticipated to increase demand on Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging.

* A new Monroe practice location will commence operations during November 2011,
which is anticipated fo increase demand on Newtown Diagnostic Imaging.

» Discussions are in process to further align with physicians and add additional prlmary
care and subspecialty physician presence in Southbury, Newtown, and Bethel.
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The WCHN physician alignment strategy is a multifaceted approach toward enhancing access
to primary care service and subspecialty care that includes the following:

Physician employment — investments in a physician network and practice management
infrastructure in WCMG. This offers a desirable option for physicians interested in employment,
contributes to the delivery of effective care, and facilitates a common electronic medical record
platform for exchange of patient information.

Increasing the number of providers across the service area — Recruitment is ongoing to
achieve primary care alignment and growth with a target of 40 additional new or aligned primary
care physicians by 2015, including expansion in underserved markets and succession planning
for physicians approaching retirement. Recruitment will continue at this pace for the next
several years as needs are identified and appropriate candidates selected. In FY 2011, 22
primary care physicians joined the medical staff.

Development of a Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) model of care — The PCMH
focuses on changing the way medical care is delivered with coordination and partnership in
managing patient health. It is an enhanced primary-care model that provides comprehensive
and timely care and emphasizes teamwork by providers and engagement by those receiving the
care. Principles of care include an ongoing relationship with a personal physician, collective
responsibility for ongoing needs, coordination and integration of care across the health care
system and patient’s community, enhanced access, and delivery of quality and safe services.

» Two medical home pilots have been initiated in the Southbury and Brookfield, CT.
Additional WCMG primary care practices are targeted to achieve NCQA designation during
2011/2012 and once established, outreach efforts will be extended to assisting any
independent physicians in developing this model in their practices.

» Achievement of Level | designation for DH’s Seifert and Ford Medical Clinic located in
Danbury.

» DH will have the first primary care residency program completely integrated into a PCMH
and through partnership with the FQHC will help them move toward PCMH designation.

Tfaining new providers and retention within the service areas — The Department of
Medicine at DH offers a three-year medical residency program that includes a primary care
track. Itinciudes comprehensive preparation for the practice of general internal medicine.
Previous graduates have stayed in the area and are on the staff at Danbury Hospital.

Integrated Health IT platform — State of the art information technology that facilitates sharing
of patient information amongst providers of care is a priority for the system. DH has taken a
leadership role in the implementation of a regional health information exchange which is named
HealthLink. The HealthLink exchange is a patient centric system that provides two way
communications between all providers on the exchange including primary care physicians,
specialists, clinics, home health agencies and other providers of care. The HealthLink user
community continues to grow with over 700 authorized users accessing the systems to view
current and prior records for the patients that they are treating.
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NDI’s Role in the Strateqy

Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (NDI) is an independent provider, privately owned and operated
by a group of radiologists who are interested in selling the facility with its equipment to WCHN.

To support these services and to remain consistent with our strategy, we plan to also provide
ancillary support services in these same communities. The NDI acquisition is an ideal
opportunity for WCHN to provide diagnostic imaging services closer to those patients we serve
and will be serving in the towns immediately surrounding the Newtown location. These services
already exist in this community under different ownership, so there would be no increase in
imaging capacity in the region. Acquiring NDI will provide WCHN the ability to offer choice of
locations to our patients through our centralized scheduling system, have their diagnostic
studies and reports of those studies in WCHN’s information system, and provide all of WCHN
providers the opportunities to view these results in their electronic medical records, providing an
uninterrupted continuum of care.

With the addition of NDI to WCHNA, residents of the towns utilizing WCHNA (who now oniy
have the options of DDI and RDI) will have the option of utilizing the Newtown facility, knowing
that they will receive the same quality program as they would receive if they drove to the DDI
and RDI facilities. Current utilization of the imaging offered at DDI and RDI locations is based
on physician referral and includes residents from the towns of Newtown, Sandy Hook,
Southbury, Brookfield, and Bethel (See CON App., Attachment C, Zip Code Analysis, pp. 21-
22). Except for emergency situations, patients ordinarily travel from their homes and places of
work to an imaging facility. The patients who live in Newtown and north and east of Newtown
and utilize either DDI or RDI will have better access at NDI, especiaily with the addition of
Saturday hours and extended hours during the week. Patients who currently use NDI come
primarily from Newtown and Sandy Hook. Over a two year period between 2008 and 2010,
over 50% of the patients who utilized ND! lived in Newtown or Sandy Hook. (See CON
Application, Attachment D, NDI Patient Distribution, p. 23).

To estimate new imaging volumes from our new Monroe practice, an analysis of historical
referral volumes from nine primary care physicians was performed. The analysis showed that
the average number of monthly referrals to an imaging facility from a practice made up of three
(3) primary care physicians would be approximately 75 exams. When extrapolated on an
annual basis, it is anticipated that the three physician group would refer approximately 900
imaging exams per year. With the addition of the Monroe practice of three primary care
providers in November of 2011, NDI is projected to handle additional volume that the practice
will generate.

Need for imaging services also exists for WCHN to have adequate imaging services for its
entire network. With DDI at capacity, and RDI nearing capacity, the ability to acquire the
imaging equipment at NDI and offer another imaging facility close to Danbury will remedy that
need. There should be no impact on any other providers of imaging equipment because no
incremental equipment or new facility will be introduced into the service area, and any additional
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patients are expected to come from within the WCHN. Upgrading the CT scanner will-occur, but
that is done at all imaging facilittes when new equipment is required.

The integration of the equipment presently owned by the physicians who own NDI would also
achieve integration of that facility’s focation in Newtown into the WCHN system as part of
WCHNA. Acquiring and operating imaging equipment (1 CT and 1 MRI} from an existing
provider in the market allows for services to remain unaffected in terms of location. The quality
of the service is expected to improve at NDI with the purchase of a 16 slice CT scanner in the
next year. The transition will be seamless because there will be no change in the imaging
services offered, equipment, location, payor mix, service area or target population as a result of
the acquisition of the imaging equipment at NDI.

Results of the Distributed Strateqy

A map provided as Attachment B, page 12 in our pre-file testimony demonstrates the locations
of primary care and the current and proposed imaging sites in WCHN'’s service area. This map
is included below.

» The red circles represent primary care physician office locations of the Western
Connecticut Medical Group.

» The green boxes represent the WCHN current (3) and proposed (1) outpatient imaging
sites.

» The white cross/blue box represents the hospital locations (2) with inpatient and
outpatient imaging capabilities.

* Allimaging locations are within WCHN’s primary service area.

10
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Late File Question #5

Separate Revenue and Expense projections for CT and MRI services with NDI, including
gross/net calculations by modality

Below is the detailed P&L by modality.
Assumptions:

¢ Net revenues by modality were modeled using current net revenue experience
Expenses were allocated accordingly

+ The revenue and expenses below are projected using existing equipment, expanded
hours, and include the expansion from the primary care strategy

» Any equipment upgrades and/or replacement would be considered and planned for
during the WCHN's planning budget process

* The replacement of the CT scanner would be considered in the capital planning (It is
important to note that the expense and any incremental revenue has not been included
in the financials provided).

» The potential impact of a CT replacement on the P&L would add approximately $85K in
incremental depreciation expense

12
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

November 23, 2011

Sally F. Herlihy
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition of Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LL.C by Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

On November 8, 2011, the Office of Health Care Access (“OHCA”™) received the information
requested by OHCA as late file submissions from the public hearing held in this matter on
October 25, 2011. With the receipt of the late file submissions, the hearing on the above
application is hereby closed.

The date of November 8, 2011, begins the sixty-day post-hearing review period of the
application. Pursuant to §19a-639a(d) OHCA shall issue a decision not later than January 7,
2011.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact Jack A. Huber or
Steven W. Lazarus at (860) 418-7001.

~Sincerely,

MAD:swl

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
< Office of Health Care Access

S
%) Y

January 5, 2012

Sally I'. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810

Re:  Certificate of Need Application, Docket Number 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in
Newtown

Dear Ms, Herlihy:

Enclosed please find a copy of the Proposed Final Decision rendered by Hearing Officer Melanie
Dillon in the above-referenced case.

Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 4-179, Western Connecticut Health Network, the
party in this matter, may request the opportunity to file exceptions and briefs and/or present oral
argument, in writing, with the Deputy Commissioner, OHCA of the Department within fourteen
(14) days from the date of this notice, or by January 19, 2012. If no such request is received by
this date, the Deputy Commissioner will assume those rights to be waived and will render a Final
Decision in this matter. '

If you wish to expedite the process and avoid the necessity that the Deputy Commissioner await
the expiration of the aforementioned fourteen days, you may submit a written statement to the
Deputy Commissioner affirmatively waiving those rights.

Sincerely,

[t W11 2
Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave,, MS#13HCA, P.0.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free; 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053



Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Proposed Final Decision

Applicant: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Project Title: Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography

Scanner and a Magnetic Resonance Imaging Scanner
from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in Newtown

Project Description: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
(“Applicant™) is proposing to acquire and operate a computed tomography (“CT”)
scanner and a magnetic resonance imaging (“MRI”) scanner, currently owned and
operated by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, at a proposed capital expenditure of
$1,200,000.

Procedural History: On September 15, 2011, the Office of Health Care Access
(“OHCA”) received the completed Certificate of Need (“CON™) application for the
above-referenced proposal. The Applicant published notice of its intent to file the CON
application in The Danbury News Times on March 17, 18 and 19, 2011.

A public hearing regarding the CON application was held on October 25, 2011. On
October 4, 2011, the Applicant was notified of the date, time, and place of the hearing,
On October 7, 2011, a notice to the public announcing the hearing was published in The
Danbury News Times. Commissioner Jewel Mullen designated Melanie Dillon, Staff
Attorney as the hearing officer in this matter on October 17, 2011. The hearing was
conducted as a contested case in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform
Administrative Procedure Act, General Statutes § 4-166 et seq. and General Statutes §
19a-639a (). The Hearing Officer considered the entire record in rendering this proposed
final decision.
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10.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The Applicant is a wholly-owned tax exempt subsidiary of Western Connecticut
Health Network (“WCHN?™). Danbury Hospital (“DH") and New Milford Hospital
("NMH?") are also subsidiaries of WCHN. Ex. A, pp. 9, 19, 35, 45.

WCIN provides imaging services at the following five locations: (1) DH; (2)
NMH; (3) Danbury Medical Arts Center (“DMAC”) on DH’s main campus; (4)
Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI”) at 21 Germantown Road in Danbury; and (5)

Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging (“RDI”) at 901 Ethan Allen Highway in Ridgefield.
Ex. A, pp.9,14; Testimony of Saily Herlihy, Vice President of Planning, WCHN, Public Hearing,
October 25, 2011.

There are 2 MRI scanners, a 3.0 tesla-strength and a 1.5 tesla-strength, and two 32-

slice CT Scanners located at DH. Testimony of ToniAnn Marchione, Director of Diagnostic
Services, WCHN, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

DMAC cperates a 64-slice CT scanner, a 1.5 tesla-strength MRI scanner, PET-CT,
mammography, and plain x-ray. Testimony of Ms. Marchione, Public Hearing, October 25,
2011.

DDI provides a 32-slice CT scanning service, a closed 1.5 tesla-strength MRI
scanning service, ultrasound and general radiological services. Ex. A, p. 9.

RDI provides a 32-slice CT scanning service, a closed 1.5 tesla-strength MRI
scanning service, ultrasound, mammography, bone density and general radiological
services. Ex. A, pp.9, 10, 14,

The Applicant proposes to acquire a single slice CT scanner and a 1.5 tesla-strength
MRI scanner, currently owned and operated by Newton Diagnostic Imaging
(“NDI”), a freestanding imaging center located at 153 South Main Street in
Newtown. Ex. A, p. 9.

NDI currently provides CT scanning, MRI scanning, ultrasound, and general
radiological services. Ex. A, p. 9.

The Applicant proposes to purchase NDI for $1,200,000, which includes the
acquisition of the CT scanner and MRI scanner, and assume the lease for the space
NDI occupies. Ex. A, pp. 9, 14.

NDI acquired its CT scanner and MRI scanner pursuant to a CON determination
issued in 2003 under Docket Number 03-30170-CON. Since OHCA determined
that a CON was not required for the acquisition of the equipment, NDI was not
required to demonstrate a clear public need for the equipment and therefore, OHCA
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did not analyze whether the equipment was needed in NDI’s service area. Docket
Number 03-30170-CON.

11.  The primary service area for NDI includes the towns of Newtown /Sandy Hook,
Danbury, Bethel, and Southbury. The service area represents 75% of the total
patient volume at the Newtown location. Ex. A, p. 11.

12, Historical CT & MRI utilization for NDI is as follows:

Table 1;: NDI’s Historical CT & MRI Utilization

Site-Equipment | FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 | FY 2011
NDICT 862 766 549 332
NDI-MRI 1,139 1,077 910 707
Ex.P,p.3

13, NDI has experienced decreasing volumes over the years due to insurance and

staffing issues. Testimony of Ms. Herlihy; Testimony of Jeet S. Sandhu, M.D., Chairman of the
Radiology Department, Danbury Hospital, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

14, If the proposal is approved, the Applicant anticipates that there will not be any
further staffing issues as NDI will have access to the Applicant’s vast system wide
personnel and insurance agreements that cover additional types of scans for which

NDI is not currently reimbursed under its limited insurance contracts. Testimony of
Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

15.  With proper staffing and the resources available within the WCHNA group to help
keep costs down, there will be improved service at the NDI facility and the
Applicant claims it will take the stress off of the WCHN scanners by absorbing

some of the patients who now travel to DH for imaging services. Testimony of Ms.
Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

16. Following the proposed acquisition of NDI, there will be no changes in the
provision of diagnostic imaging services. NDI, however, will no longer provide
cosmetic vein procedures that have been performed at this location. Ex. A, p. 11.

17.  The Applicant intends to replace NDI’s single-slice CT scanner with a 16-slce CT
scanner that approximates the technology offered at its other outpatient imaging
locations. The existing single-slice CT scanner will be disposed of with
notification being made to OHCA when the scanner is decommissioned. Ex. C, pp.
60-61.

18. The Applicant does not intend to replace the existing Newtown MRI scanner.
Ex. C, p. 60.
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19.  The following is a list of existing providers in NDI’s service arca:

Table 2: Existing Providers in NDI’s Primary Service Area

Provider Locations Equipment Hours of Operation

Housatonic Valley | 67 Sandpit Road, | CT Scanner (16 Mon. - Fri.: 8:00

Radiology Danbury Slice) am. — 5:00 p.m.;

Associates MRI Scanner Saturday, 8:00 a.m.
(1.5T) —12:00 pm.

800 Main Street, CT Scanner (1

Southbury slice)

MRI Scanner

(1.07)
Northeast 73 Sandpit Road, | MRI Scanner Mon, Wed., Fri.
Radiology Danbury (1.0T) 8:00 a.m. — 5:00
Associates p.m.; Tues., Thurs.

12:00 p.m. —
. 8:00p.m.

Diagnostic 385 Main Sireet, | CT Scanner (16 Mon.-Fri, 7:00 am.
Imaging of Southbury Slice) —9:00 p.m.;
Southbury MRI Scanner (1.5T | Saturday, 8:30 a.m.-

Open) 12:30 p.m.

20.

21.

22,

23.

Ex. A, p. 25; Ex. L; OHCA Imaging Survey Responses.

The Applicant operates a total of four CT scanners and four MRI scanners in the
primary service area and existing providers operate three CT scanners and four
MRI scanners in the primary service area. Accordingly, OHCA finds that there are
a total of seven CT scanners and eight MRI scanners in the primary service area for
NDL

The Applicant claims that additional scanning capacity is needed based on
utilization of the Applicant’s existing outpatient CT & MRI scanners nearing
capacity. Utilizing existing equipment to fill this need will resolve access and
capability issues without having to request imaging equipment within its facilities.
Ex. A, p. 10; Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

" The Applicant asserted that the CT scanners and MRI scanners at both DDI and

RDI are operating at full capacity and beyond but failed to provide evidence of the
same. Ex. M, p. 5.

OHCA questioned the applicant with respect to how it determined that RDI was at
full capacity at the hearing and Dr. Sandhu testified that he utilized information
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

from OHCA’s draft imaging standards' to look at the number of CT scans expected
in a routine outpatient setting. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

Based on an 8-hour work day with a certain amount of time allocated to each slot,
Dr. Sandhu claims that 85% of total utilization, as referenced in the draft imaging

standards, works out to approximately 3,500 CT Scans. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu,
Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

OHCA requésted that the Applicant provide the calculations for how it determined
that DDI and RDI were operating at full capacity in a late file. Public Hearing, October
25,2011,

In the Applicant’s late file submission, it explained that the CT scanners at DH are
performing over 30,000 scans annually and that DDI and DMAC performed 5,700
and 6,200 CT scans respectively in FY 2010. Ex. P, p. 4.

The Applicant asserted that additional capacity is needed to handle some of the
oufpatients who are currently imaged at DH. Ex. P, p. 4.

With respect to MRI, however, the Applicant did not provide any information with
respect to how capacity was determined for WCHN’s MRI Scanners. Instead the
Applicant asserted that while the WCHN’s MR1 scanning is currently within
capacity, the Newtown location is needed for those patients already using NDI and
to maintain MRI accessibility in the Newtown area. Ex. P, p. 4.

The Applicant also explained the process by which capacity was determined but
did not provide the actual calculations for DDI and RDI as requested at the hearing.
Ex.P,p. 5.

The Applicant also asserts that the proposal provides the ability to utilize the
system’s centralized scheduling functions thereby decompressing patient volume
across the sites of care and enhancing patient access for imaging services. Ex. C, p.
61.

Specifically, the Applicant asserts that DDI is not capable of absorbing additional
patients in the future. If some patients living east of DH could utilize the NDI
facility, it would assure prompt attention to scanning and greater accessibility for

patients that live in the area and relieve the pressure off DDI and other sites.
Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011,

The proposal is consistent with the Applicant’s network services strategy to move
its outpatient and ancillary services, including imaging services, away from DH and
into the community, closer to its patients and its network of primary care

' OHCA is not utilizing the draft imaging standards in this decision as they have not been promulgated as
regulations.
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physicians. Testimony of Michael Daglio, Senior Vice President of Operations, Danbury
Hospital, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

33. The opening of the DDI location in 2001 is one of the first examples of this
strategy to move diagnostic imaging services out of the Hospital proper and into a
more accessible outpatient location on Germantown Road. As the Hospital’s
inpatient and emergency department demands for imaging services continued to
increase, the comingling of these patients with outpatients became more difficult to
manage from a capacity point of view. Ex. P, p. 6.

34. The Applicant continues to pursue their distributed health care service delivery
strategy and intends to add primary care and subspecialty practices to provide
greater access to services in the communities they serve. Listed below are some of
the recent and near-future examples of this strategy:

i) Amnew Wilton practice location was added to the network in October 2011,
which is anticipated to increase demand on RDI;

1) A new Monroe practice location will commence operations during November
2011, which is anticipated to increase demand on NDI; and

111} Discussions are in process to further align the Applicant with the physicians
and add additional primary care and subspecialty physician presence in
Southbury, Newtown and Bethel.
Ex. P, p. 6.

35. The Applicant’s historical CT scanner utilization by site is as follows:

Table 3: Applicant’s Historical CT Scanner Utilization by Site

Site-Equipment | FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 | FY 2011
DDI 5,153 5,694 5,732 5,579
RDI 2,365 2,741 3,082 2,834
DH 31,001 33,016 30,488 29,609
DMAC 5,107 6,230 6,154 6,468
Total 43,626 47,681 45,456 44,490
Ex.P,p.3
36. DH has two hospital based CT scanners with a combined 29,609 scans for FY 2011
or approximately 14,805 scans per scanner in FY2011. Ex. P, p. 3.
37. The first CT scanner located at DH is utilized primarily for its Emergency

Department patients and therefore, any outpatients scheduled on it may have to

wait for hours depending on any emergencies on hand. Testimony of Mr, Daglio, Public
Hearing, October 25, 2011.
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38.

39.

40,

41.

42,

43.

44.

The second CT scanner at DH is utilized predominantly for interventional
procedures, such as biopsies, drainages, overtlow of emergency room patients,
overflow of inpatients and serves as a backup scanner which is a requirement to be
an accredited Stroke Program. These procedures can take 2 to 3 times as long as a
diagnostic scan. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011; Ex. O, p. 4

The outpatient CT scanners located at DMAC and DDI performed a total of 12,047
CT scans in FY 2011 or approximately 6,024 scans per scanner in FY 2011. Ex. P,
p- 3.

Although RDI appears to have some available capacity, the Applicant does not
expect patients currently utilizing imaging services at NDI to travel to RDI in
Ridgefield for their services. For example, approximately 21% of DDI’s patient
population originates from the towns of Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook whereas
only 6% of RDI’s patient population originates from Newtown, Bethel and Sandy
Hook. Ms. Marchione, Public Hearing Testimony, October 25, 2011.

Utilization of the CT scanner at NDI is low with only 332 scans in Y 2011;
however, the DH, DMAC and DDI scanners are the scanners most likely to be
utilized by residents of the primary service area of NDI and those particular
scanmers all appear to be operating at or beyond capacity.

Patients residing east of DH would be able to utilize the CT scanner at NDI, which
would assure prompt attention to scanning and greater accessibility for patients that
live in the area. It would also relieve pressure off DDI and other sites. Testimony of
Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 201 1.

‘Additionally, the utilization of the CT scanners at DH, DMAC and DDI are
sufficient to warrant the acquisition of at least one additional CT scanner. As the
Applicant testified at the hearing, acquisition of the NDI CT scanner will prevent

the DH and DDI from seeking additional imaging equipment in the near future.
Testimony of Ms, Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

The Applicant provided the following projections for CT scanning utilization over
the next three years:

Table 4: Applicant’s Projected CT Scanner Utilization by Site

Site-Equipment FY 2012 FY 2013 | FY 2014
DDI 5,794 5,968 6,147
RDI 3,014 3,104 3,198
DH 29,628 29,924 30,224
DMAC 6,417 6,481 6,546
NDI 668 803 954

Ex.P,p.3
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45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

Projected volume increases for the Newtown location are attributable to the
following factors:

a. Aging of the population;

b. Movement of some of the patients from DDI to NDI;

c. The expanded hours for existing NDI patients in the Newtown area who

need scanning either on weekday evening hours or on Saturdays;

d. Future potential upgrade of the CT scanner at NDI.

Ex. C, p. 58.

The Applicant also anticipates that NDI will receive referrals from its new Monroe
practice. The Applicant determined that a group of three physicians would refer
approximately 75 patients monthly or 900 per year. Ex. P, p. 9.

The Applicant is projecting 3% annual growth for each of its imaging locations
including NDI based upon both historical utilization and an aging population in the
service arca. Ex. A, p. 13; Ex. C, p. 58.

Historical utilization of WCHN’s CT scanners in the service arca show an overall
decline of 4.7% in FY 2010 and 2.1% in FY 2011. Therefore, OHCA questions
whether utilization of the CT scanners operated by WCHN will increase over the
next three years, particularly since some of volume at DDI and DI will be shifted
to NDIL

Despite concerns about historical and projected utilization of the CT scanner
located at NDI and decreasing volumes on the CT scanners at WCHN’s existing
site, OHCA finds that the utilization of the DI, DMAC, and DDI CT scanners are
sufficient to warrant the acquisition of an additional CT scanner by the Applicant.

The Applicant’s historical MRI utilization by site is as follows:

Table 5: Applicant’s MRI Historical MRI Utilization by Site

Site-Equipment | FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 { FY 2011
DDI 3,532 3,663 3,629 3,531
RDI 2,360 2,471 2,925 3,075
DH 6,195 3,864 5,405 5318
DMAC 2,024 2,768 3,068 3,111
Total 14,111 14,766 15,027 15,035
Ex.P,p. 3

The two MRI scanners located at DH are underutilized. The two hospital based
scanners performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY 2011 or approximately, 2,659

scans per scanncr.

Out of the 5,318 scans in FY2011, only 1,295 were for'inpatients. Despite slight
increases in inpatient MRI scans at DH in FY 2009 and FY 2010, the inpatient
scans returned to FY 2008 levels in FY 2011.
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53.  The amount of MRI scans performed on the two DH MRI scanners steadily
decreased between FY 2008 and FY 2011 at an overall rate of 14.2%.

54.  Additionally, the amount of MRI scans performed by NDI has also decreased from
1,139 scans in FY 2008 to 707 scans in FY 2011, which represents an overall
decrease of approximately 37.9% between FY 2008 and FY 2011.

55. There are a total of eight MRI scanners in the primary service area for NDI; four of
which are operated by the Applicant.

56. The Applicant provided the following projections with respect to MRI utilization at
each of its sites:

Table 6: Applicant’s MRI Projected MRI Utilization by Site

Site-Equipment FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
DDI 3,573 3,680 3,791
RDI 3,114 3,207 3,304
DH 5,011 3,161 5,317
DMAC 3,273 3,372 3,473
NDI 934 1,068 1,205
Ex.P,p. 3

57. Inlight of historical utilization, the projected growth in MRI scanning appears to be
reasonable. Nonetheless, the utilization of the two MRI scanners at DH remains
low as does the utilization of the MRI scanner at NDI,

58. Additionally, the Applicant has available capacity to absorb the number of scans
projected for NDI's MRI scanner over the next three fiscal years.

59. Based upon the available MRI capacity at the hospital and low MRI utilization at
NDI, OHCA is unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the
Applicant to acquire and operate the MRI scanner located at NDI. Moreover, there
is available capacity on the two MRI scanners at DI to absorb the existing MRI
volume from NDL

60. 'WCHNA projects the following incremental gains from operations for the NDI
location:

Table 7a: Financial Projections Incremental to the CT Acquisition

: Fiscal Year
Description 2012 2013 2014
Incremental Revenue from Operations $290,000 $348,000 $414,000
Incremental Total Operating Expense $280,000 $319,000 $367,000
Incremental Gain from Operations $10,000 $29.,000 $47.000
Scan Volame 668 803 954

Ex. P, p. 13.
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Table 7b: Financial Projections Incremental to the MRI Acquisition

Fiscal Year

Description 2012 2013 2014

Incremental Revenue from Operations $743,000 $850,000 $959,000

Incremental Total Operating Expense $712,000 $773,000 $843,000
Incremental Gain from Operations $31,000 $77,000 $116,000
Scan Volume 934 1,068 1,205

Ex. P, p. 13.
DISCUSSION

CON applications are decided on a case by case basis and do not lend themselves to
general applicability due to the uniqueness of the facts in each case. Inrendering its
decision, OHCA considers the factors set forth in General Statutes §19a-639 (a) and the
Applicant bears the burden of proof in this matter by a preponderance of the evidence.
Goldstar Medical Services, Inc., et al. v. Department of Social Services, 288 Conn. 790
(2008); Swiller v. Commissioner of Public Health, No. CV 95-0705601 (Sup. Court, J.D.
Hartford/New Britain at Hartford, October 10, 1995); Bridgeport Ambulance Serv. v.
Connecticut Dept. of Health Serv., No. CV 88-0349673-S (Sup. Court, J.D.
Hartford/New Britain at Hartford, July 6, 1989); Steadman v. SEC, 450 U.S. 91, 101
S.Ct. 999, reh'g den., 451 U.S. 933 (1981); Bender v. Clark, 744 F.2d 1424 (10th Cir.
1984); Sea Island Broadcasting Corp. v. FCC, 627 ¥.2d 240, 243 (D.C. Cir. 1980).

The Applicant proposes to acquire and operate a CT and an MRI scanner, currently
owned and operated by NDI in Newtown. FF7. The Applicant currently provides
imaging services at the following locations: (1) DH; (2) NMH (3) DMAC; (4) DDL;
and (5) RDI®. Fr2.

DH has two hospital based CT scanners with a combined 29,609 scans for FY 2011 or
approximately 14,805 scans per scanner in FY 2011, FF36. The outpatient CT scanners
located at DMAC and DDI performed a total of 12,047 CT scans in FY 2011 or
approximately 6,024 scans per scanner in FY 2011. FF39. Utilization of the CT scanner
at NDI is low with only 332 scans in FY 2011; however, the DH, DMAC and DDI
scanners are the scanners most likely to be utilized by residents of the primary service
arca of NDI and those particuiar scanners all appear to be operating at or beyond
capacity. FF39. Although RDI appears to have some available capacity, the Applicant
does not expect patients currently utilizing imaging services at NDI to travel to RDI in
Ridgefield for their services. FF40. For example, approximately 21% of DDI’s patient
population originates from the towns of Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook whereas only
6% of RDI’s patient population originates from Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook.
FF40. Additionally, the current utilization of the CT scanners at DH, DMAC and DDI is

2 OHCA did not include the volume on the scanners [ocated at NMH since it is not located in the primary
service area of the proposal.
3 OHCA did not consider RDI volumes in reaching its decision since it is not within the primary service

area of the proposal.
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sufficient to warrant the acquisition of at least one additional CT scanner. FF43. Patients
that live east of DH and currently utilize DH and DDI scanners would be able to utilize
the CT scanner at NDI, which would assure prompt attention to the scanning, provide
greater accessibility and relieve pressure off the CT scanners located DDI and DH. FF42.,
Furthermore, the acquisition of the NDI CT scanner will prevent the DH and DDI from
seeking additional imaging equipment in the near future. FF43. Accordingly, despite
OHCA’s concern about historical and projected utilization of the CT scanner located at
NDI and decreasing volumes on the CT scanners at WCHN’s existing sites, OHCA finds
that the utilization of the DH, DMAC, and DDI CT scanners are sufficient to warrant the
acquisition of an additional CT scanner by the Applicant. FF49.

The two MRI scanners located at DH are underutilized. FF51. The two hospital based
scanners performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY 2011 or approximately, 2,659 scans per
scanner. FF52. Out of the 5,318 scans in FY 2011, only 1,295 were for inpatients.
FF52. Despite slight increases in inpatient MRI scans at DH in FY 2009 and FY 2010,
the inpatient scans returned to FY 2008 levels in FY 2011, FF52. The amount of MRI
scans performed on the two DH MRI scanners steadily decreased between FY 2008 and
FY 2011 at an overall rate of 14.2%. FF53. Additionally, the amount of MRI scans
performed by NDI has also decreased from 1,139 scans in FY 2008 to 707 scans in 2011,
which represents an overall decrease of approximately 37.9% between FY 2008 and FY
2011. FF54. There are a total of eight MRI scanners in the primary service area for NDI;
four of which are operated by the Applicant. FF55. In light of historical utilization, the
projected growth in MRI scanning at WCHN sites appears to be reasonable. Nonetheless,
the utilization of the two MRI scanners at DH remains low as does the utilization of the
MRI scanner at NDI. FF57. Based upon the available MRI capacity at DH and low MRI
utilization at NDI, OHCA is unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the
Applicant to acquire and operate an additional MRI scanner at NDI. FF59. Moreover,
there is available capacity on the two MRI scanners at DH to absorb the existing and
projected MRI volume from NDI. FF58.

-With respect to the financial feasibility of the proposal, WCHNA has projected
incremental gains from operations for both the CT and MRI scanners. FF60. OHCA
finds that the acquisition of the CT scanner is financially feasible. While the acquisition
of the MRI scanner appears to be financially feasible, WCHNA as noted above has failed
to establish that there is clear public need for the acquisition of an additional MR1
scanner at the NDI location,
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Order

Based upon the foregoing Findings and Discussion, the Certificate of Need application of
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Ine. for the acquisition and operation of
a computed tomography scanner and magnetic resonance imaging scanner is hereby
MODIFIED, subject to the following conditions:

1.

The Applicant's request to acquire a CT scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging
is appreved.

The Applicant's request to acquire a MRI scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging
is denied.

The Applicant shall submit to OHCA in writing the CT scanner's initial date of
operation at the Newtown, Connecticut location.

The Applicant shall provide OHCA with the number of scans performed annually on
the CT scanner located at NDI within thirty days of the end of each fiscal vear for the
next three years. If actual utilization is lower than projected in the CON application
after three years of operation, the Applicant shall schedule a meeting with OHCA to
discuss the potential relocation of the CT scanner.

Should the Applicant plan to operate the CT scanner identified in this proposal at a
location other than 153 South Main Street in Newtown, Connecticut, the Applicant
shall notify OHCA of the new location, no later than one month after the equipment's

relocation.

Should the Applicant fail to comply with any of the aforementioned conditions, OHCA
reserves the right to take additional action as authorized by law. All of the foregoing
constitutes the final order of the Office of Health Care Access in this matter.

Based upon the foregoing, I respectfully recommend that the Deputy Commisstoner
approve the application of WCHNA to acquire the CT scanner operated by NDI and
deny the application of WCHNA to acquire the MRI scanner currently operated by NDI.

[-J-1d \{vb@ﬂmﬁ/@ﬂ/

Date eldnie A. Dillon, Esq.

Hearmg Officer
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{;@’ WESTERN CONMECTICUT HEALTH METWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospitad Ave
Danbuiry, CT 06810
203.739.4903
CanbunyHosptial.arg

From:  Sally Herlihy

Vice Prasident, Planning

T Kimberly Martone, Director of Operafions

Fax: 860-418-7053 No. of Pages: 2 (including cover sheat)

Phone: B60-418-7028 Data: January 8, 2012

RE: Proposed Final Decision cc:

Urgent I ForReview {1 Please Comment [l Please Reply [ Please Recycle

Fax

Please find attached a request for Docket No, 11-317063-CON. The original will be mafled fo your office.

CONFIDENTIALITY
The document sceampanying this tansmission contains information fiom Oanbury Hospial, which is confidentiat and/or legally priviteged,
The Information i intended oniy far use by the Individual or entity namad on the tansmission sheat,

i ¥
if yott az¢ rot the intended recipient, you are heraby notified that using, disciosing, copying, disiritisting or taking any action in reliance on the
canterts of the transmitted information is strictly prohibited and thal the documast should be immediately ratusmed t Danbury Hospital.

Opt-Out: *exx
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¢ HEALTH NETWORK
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24 Hospltal Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810
203.732.4003
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Janvary 9, 2012

The Honorable Jewel D, Mullen, M.D,
Comumissioner

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Cate Access

410 Capitel Avenue  MS #13HCA
F.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: OHCA Docket Number 11-31703-CON Western Connecticut Health Network
Acquisition of Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC
(“NDI") by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Commissioner Mullen,

This letter is a request by Western Connectiont Health Network to have the opportunity to fife
exceptions and briefs and present oral argument to the Department of Public Hezlth concerning the
Proposed Final Decision vendered by the Office of Health Care Access on Jannary 5, 2012. The
decision is adverse to the applicant, Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. (“WCHNA™)
because it denies WCHNA the ability to purchase the existing MRI machine currentiy owned and
operated by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC.

Ihave filed a request under the CT Freedom of Information Act to obtain a copy of the entire record
on file with the Office of Health Care Access in this docket, inclnding the transciipt of the hearing
held on October 25, 2011, in order to prepare the documents we will submit to you.

I you have any questions regarding this request, please contact me at 203-739-4903 or at
sally herliby@wethealthnetwork.org.

Sincerely,
a7, /;Lw:axj

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Hezlth Network

1 €

Opt-Qut: *eex



{g} WESTERN CONNECTECUT HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave
Danbury, CT 06810
203.7392.4803
DanburyHosptial.org

From:  Sally Herihy

Vice President, Planning

To: Kimberly Martone, Director of Operations

Fax: 860-418-7053 No. of Pages: 2 (including cover sheet)

Phone: 860-418-7029 Date: January 9, 2012

RE: Proposed Final Decision CC:

Urgent O  For Review [1 Please Comment [T Please Reply [0 Please Recycle

Fax

Please find attached a request for Docket No. 11-31703-CON. The criginal will be mailed to your office.

CONFIDENTIALITY
The document accompanying this transmission contains infermation from Danbury Hospital, which is confidentfal and/or legafly privileged.

The information is intended anly for use Dy the individual or entity named on the transmission sheet.

£ 3
If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that using, disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the
contents of the transmitted information is strietly prohitited and that the document shouid be immediately retumned to Danbury Hospital,




WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL « MNEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave,
Danbury, CT 08810
203.738.49083

WestemnQConneclicutHeathNetwork.org
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January 9, 2012 R s

The Honorable Jewel D. Mullen, M.D.
Commissioner

CT Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Re: OHCA Docket Number 11-31703-CON Western Connecticut Health Network
Acquisition of Imaging Equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LL.C
(“NDT”) by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.

Dear Commissioner Mullen,

This letter is a request by Western Connecticut Health Network to have the opportunity to file
exceptions and briefs and present oral argument to the Department of Public Health concerning the
Proposed Final Decision rendered by the Office of Health Care Access on January 5, 2012. The
decision is adverse to the applicant, Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. (“WCHNA™)
because it denies WCHNA the ability to purchase the existing MRI machine currently owned and
operated by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC.

I have filed a request under the CT Freedom of Information Act to obtain a copy of the entire record
on file with the Office of Health Care Access in this docket, including the transcript of the hearing
held on October 25, 2011, in order to prepare the documents we will submit to you.

If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact me at 203-739-4903 or at
sally.herlihy @wcthealthnetwork.org.

Sincerely,
Juoy Fobute
}é{é‘« ij i{' )d";v 5]

Sally I. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network

& €
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Sitate of t‘mem'mt

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
STATE CAPITOL

REPRESENTATIVE DEBRALEE HOVEY

R A R ASSISTANT REPUBLICAN LEADER
ONE HUNDRED TWELFTH ASSEMBLY DISTRICT . __'i -

MEMBER
LEGISLATIVE OFFICE BUILDING PG Jis : EDUCATION COMMITTEE
RGOM 4200 : INTERNSHIP COMMITTEE

HARTFORD, CT 06106-1591 R e o JUDICIARY COMMITTEE
‘ o eTie ¢ TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
TOLL FREE: {800) 842-1423 PR e T s
FAX: (860) 240-0207

Debrales Hovey@housegop.ct.gov
January 17, 2012

Commissioner Jewel Mullen, MD, MPA, MPH
Department of Public Health

Office of Health Care Access

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13HCA

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Dear B Mullénf >

I am writing in support of the full transfer of ownership of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging
from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging Associates to the Western Connecticut Health
Network for the benefit of Newtown and Monroe. This will allow for residents in the
surrounding communities to receive the care they need and deserve.

I believe that a partial transfer of ownership will only go to jeopardize the quality of care
that people have come to expect from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging. By allowing for a
full transfer of ownership, we can ensure that efficient and effective services will
continue to be provided. '

As we look for ways to improve health care, I urge you to reconsider your original
decision and allow for a full transfer and purchase to take place. Thank you for your
attention to this pressing matter and please feel free to contact me if you have any
questions. - ' '

Sincerel

%

Debral.ee Hovey
State Representative
112% District

Please Visit My Website At www.rephovey.com



 WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL - NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ava.
Danbury, CT 06810

WasternConnecticuiHealthNetwork.org
DanburyHospital.org
NewMilfordHospital.org

The Honorable Jewel Mullen, M.D.
Commissioner

Department of Public health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO
Public Health Hearing Section

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re: Certificate of Need Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC in
Newtown, CT

Dear Commissioner Mullen,

Attached please find the original and two copies of the Applicant’s Exceptions to the
Proposed Final Decision issued in the above-captioned case on January 5, 2012, Please call me if
you have any questions regarding this submission.

The Applicant, Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., (“WCHNA™) and its
parent company, Western Connecticut Health Network (“WCHN") thank you, in advance, for the
time you take to consider the information that we are providing.

Respectfully submitted,

sy 3, ot

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE TR
Vice President, Planning :

cc: Diane Buzzetti, Paralegal
DPH Hearing Section




STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

DOCKET NO.: 11-31703-CON

WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH

NETWORK AFFILIATES, INC.

ACQUISITION OF CT SCANNER &

MRI SCANNER FROM NEWTOWN

DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING, LLC FEBRUARY 7, 2012

EXCEPTIONS TO PROPOSED FINAL DECISION

BACKGROUND

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., (“WCHNA™), the Applicant in OHCA

Docket No. 11-31703-CON, hereby presents exceptions to the Proposed Final Decision

(“Proposed Decision”) rendered by the hearing officer on January 5, 2012. In its certificate
of need application (“the Application™), WCHNA sought to acquire two pieces of imaging
equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (“NDI”) ', a privately operated facility in 5
Newtown that owns and operates 1 CT scanner and 1 MRI scanner. The Proposed Decision

approved the acquisition of the CT scanner, but denied the Applicant, WCHNA, the ability to

acquire the MRI scanner and recommended that NDI's imaging scans be absorbed by

Danbury Hospital (“DH” or “the Hospital”), which is owned by Western Connecticut Health

Network, Inc. (“WCHN”), the parent company of the Applicant.

WCHNA intended to keep the existing office in Newtown so that an imaging facility east of
Danbury could not only retain its existing patients, but - with more resources available from
WCHNA - absorb the volume of its patients who live in the Newtown arca. Asking these
patients to drive to a Hospital facility to have routine outpatient imaging performed is an
undue burden to the patients and counter to the Applicant’s comprehensive outpatient service
strategy. Based on inaccurate findings of fact, the decision relies on the misconception that
Danbury Hospital’s 2 MRIs are not being utilized at maximum capacity, when, in fact they
are now being utilized at full capacity. There is a need for WCHNA to acquire the MRT at
NDI to keep the 2 MRIs at the Hospital for inpatients who require the inpatient setting and
services, and outpatients who need access to hospital-based services (such as anesthesia) as
part of the MRI study, as well as those outpatients who specifically require the capacity of a
3 T MRI scanner, the only 3T scanner in the WCHN network.

' Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC is a physician operated radiology practice in Newtown that is owned by
twelve radiologists.



Contrary to the Proposed Decision, there is evidence in the record of the need for WCHNA
to acquire the MRI in Newtown. And while the decision to deny WCHNA the acquisition of
the MRI is based on Danbury Hospital’s capacity to absorb more MRI scans per year, neither
the Hospital nor its parent company, WCHN, were made co-applicants in the Application.
Since NDI is privately owned by a group of radiologists, it is impossible for the Office of
Health Care Access (“OHCA”) to conclude that the MRI scans now being performed at NDI
can be absorbed by the Hospital.

The following factors contributed to a convoluted record and proposed decision:

1. Up until the hearing, there had been no discussion about Danbury Hospital’s scanners
except for one question in the Completeness Questions which asked for imaging
volumes at the Hospital. (Record, p. 57)>. Throu ghout the application process the
focus was on the Applicant, WCHNA, but this changed at the hearing,

2. OHCA never made WCHN a co-applicant in this Application and WCHN came to the
hearing at WCHNA’s request.

3. There were no Interrogatories prior to the hearing in this Application. Therefore, there
was no questioning about Danbury Hospital’s MRI scanners except for the one
question about volume asked in Completeness.

4. Late files were requested by OHCA at the hearing, but not put in writing after the
hearing was over. While there was a question related to separating out the volume
on each of the MRI scanners at the Hospital, there was never a request that WCHNA
(through WCHN) indicate the time required for each procedure or the maximum
capacity of each MRI. (Discussion of the Late Files at the hearing is attached as
Appendix B, Transcript of the Hearing, pp. 40-41. The entire transcript is attached as
Appendix D).

The Chairman of Radiology at Danbury Hospital, Dr. Fatejeet S. Sandhu, was present at the
hearing. When questioned by the hearing officer as to whether Danbury Hospital could
accommodate the volume of patients currently being scanned at NDI, his response was that
the Hospital, as well as the other WCHNA facilities, were “. . . pretty much at complete
utilization”. (Hearing Transcript, p. 26). OHCA requested that a fate file (Late File #3) be
submitted as to how the volumes were calculated at DDI and RDI (two other outpatient
imaging facilities owned by the Applicant),” but did not ask for those calculations from
Danbury Hospital. (Transcript of the Hearing, 11/25/11, p. 16 and pp. 40-41). The
Applicant believed that with Dr. Sandhu’s testimony at the hearing, they had provided the
best evidence possible that the MRI scanners at the Hospital were fully utilized and not
available to absorb patients from an outside provider.

The Hospital’s two MRI’s are used primarily for inpatients, nursing home patients, patients
requiring anesthesia and patients who are predisposed to contrast reactions. The Hospital

* Page numbers in the Record are referenced according to the numbering which appears on the CD of this
docket.

* DDI is Danbury Diagnostic Imaging located in Danbury and RDI is Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging located in
Ridgeficld, CT. These are the two outpatient imaging facilities currently owned and operated by the Applicant,
WCHNA.



setting is also required for outpatients who have the need for a higher level of MRI imaging.
The Hospital has one 3T MRI, which is used for complex scanning {Testimony of Mr.
Michael Daglio, Chief Operating Officer, WCHN, Hearing Transcript, p. 23). Interventional
procedures such as biopsies are performed in the Hospital, and outpatients waiting for more
routine MRI scanning are often bumped. (Testimonyof Dr. Sandhu, Hearing Transcript, p.
24). Dr. Sandhu explained that the number of cases depends upon the mix of cases that are
being performed and the length of time it takes to perform these different cases. The length
of time for inpatient and hospital-based outpatient scanning is routinely longer due to the
complexity or type of scanning being performed, as well as the acuity of the patient.

OHCA does not currently have published regulations or guidelines regarding the standards
for maximum capacity on imaging equipment. When the hearing on this application
concluded, Dr. Sandhu asked OHCA staff how the agency evaluates maximum capacity on
imaging equipment, and staff emailed a copy of the “Certificate of Need Standards for the
Acquisition of Imaging Equipment”, However, Dr. Sandhu was told by OHCA staff that
these guidelines are the product of a working group coordinated by OHCA which has not yet
completed its work, and has not voted on the guidelines. Therefore, there are no regulations
or guidelines in existence. Nonetheless, in the Proposed Final Decision, OHCA relied on a
standard number of scans for both hospitals and outpatient facilities when it evaluated
whether the Applicant’s volume was sufficient to allow acquisition of another MRI. When
measured against an arbitrary standard that is not discussed, the capacity on WHCN’s MRI
scanners was found not to be fully utilized.

THE EXCEPTIONS

The Applicant takes exception to the part of the Proposed Decision that relates to the
determination about MRI scanning capacity, Contrary to OHCA’s conclusion, WCHNA has
sufficient volume at its existing facilities to substantiate the need for the additional space
available on the MRI at NDI in Newtown. However, OHCA’s Proposed Decision indicates
that WCHNA did not provide evidence to support that fact. There are three key Findings of
Fact that the Applicant is contesting (No. 28, No. 29 and No. 51). These inaccurate findings
lead to an inaccurate conclusion in Finding of Fact No. 59.

Finding of Fact No. 28 states, in part, that:

“With respect to MRI, however, the Applicant did not provide any information with
respect to how capacity was determined for WCNH'’s MRI Scanners. . ..”
(Proposed Final Decision, p. 5, Record, p. 163.

Finding of Fact No. 51 states:

“The two MRI scanners located at DH are underutilized. The two hospital based
scanners performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY2011 or approximately 2,659 scans
per scanner.”

(Proposed Final Decision, p. 8, Record, p. 166).

Finding of Fact No. 29 states:
“The Applicant also explained the process by which capacity was determined but did
not provide the actual calculation for DDI and RDI as requested at the hearing.”




(Proposed Final Decision, p. 5, Record, p. 163).

Finding of Fact No. 59 states and concludes: :

“Based upon the available MRI capacity at the hospital and low MRI utilization af
NDI, OHCA is unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the Applicant
to acquire and operate the MRI scanner located at NDI. Moreover, there is available
capacity on the two MRI scanners at DH to absorb the existing MRI volume from
NDI.” (Emphasis Added).

(Proposed Final Decision, p. 9, Record, p. 167).

DISCUSSION

In terms of whether the Applicant provided information sufficient to establish that there was
a clear public need, WCHNA was of the understanding that it had provided evidence to
OHCA throughout the application, completeness documents, the hearing and late files
sufficient to establish the fact that there is a clear public need - not to establish a brand new
MRI - but to acquire an existing MRI now functioning at less than full capacity.
Nevertheless, to the extent that the Applicant did not understand what the agency was
looking for was not the Applicant’s fault. Because there are no published guidelines or
regulations for the acquisition of imaging equipment, and the process led the applicant to
believe that it had provided all necessary information, there are additional facts that may
clarify the record, and which the Applicant would like to be considered before the Final
Decision is rendered. Even without the additional evidence, the record supports a decision to
allow acquisition of the MRI scanner as well as the CT scanner. But had QHCA asked for
the information that is being submitted today, it would have made the situation a lot clearer.

At the hearing, OHCA asked for five late files. The request was never put into writing, but
the transcript of the hearing indicates that the five files included the following:

1. Revised Attachment C (Historical, Current and Projected Volume by Scanner)

2. Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC

3. Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI and RDI

4. Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites and a distributed healthcare
delivery system

5. Separate revenue and expense projections for CT and MRI services including
gross/net calculations by modality

(Transcript, pp. 40 - 41)*.

Of note, there was no late file requested to describe how capacity was determined at the
Hospital (“DH”), even though this question was asked of DDI and RDL

* The transcript identifies Late Files #1, #2, #3, #4 and #6, without identifving a Late File #5. When submitting
the Late Files, the Applicant numbered them sequentially #1 through #5. See Hearing Transcript, p. 41,
attached in Appendix B, an full transeript contained in Appendix D.




The Danbury Hospital MRIs: (Finding of Fact #28 and Finding of Fact #51)

The Applicant updated all of the volumes by scanner for the full FY2011 in Late File #1 with
Danbury Hospital’s volume listed by the type of patients scanned (inpatient or outpatient)
rather than by scanner. (Record, p. 145). In Late File #2, WCHNA indicated that it could
not provide volume by scanner at the Hospital because volume is tracked by modality and
not by scanner. (Record, p. 146). The information simply does not exist.

At the hearing, Dr. Sandhu explained that the number of cases needed to reach maximum
capacity depends upon the mix of cases that are being performed and the length of time it
takes to perform these different cases. Inpatient and hospital-based outpatient MRI scanning
takes longer due to the complexity or type of scanning being performed. Because OHCA did
not request additional information in the late files, Dr. Sandhu believed that he had answered
OHCA’s question regarding the fact that the Hospital’s existing MRI scanners were
functioning at sufficient capacity to allow for the acquisition of the NDI MRL

In the cover letter accompanying the Late Files, Sally Herlihy, V.P. for Planning at WCHN,
listed the late files that the Applicant believed OHCA was looking for, and then asked QOHCA
to please let her know if any additional information was required. (WCHNA Late Files, p. 1
Cover Letter, Record, p. 143). No further data was requested by OHCA. Since there were
no questions subsequent to the hearing, and Dr. Sandhu believed he had answered the
question concerning Danbury Hospital’s MRI scanning at the hearing, it was surprising to the
Applicant that OHCA then made its ruling in a way that is contrary to what actually exists.

Since Dr. Sandhu works with the inpatient and outpatient volumes at the Hospital every day,
his testimony that the Hospital is utilizing the two MRI scanners at the facility to the fullest
extent possible was considered by the Applicant to be the best possible evidence of the use of
the scanners. If OHCA believed that the actual calculations that demonstrated volume were
necessary, especially in light of the fact that there are no regulations or guidelines published
on imaging standards, a Late File requesting this information should have been requested.

The information in Appendix A, Tables 1 and 2, contains a breakdown of the specific types
of scanning and the length of time it takes to perform procedures which are ordinarily
handled at the Hospital setting, whether inpatient or outpatient. These are procedures which
are done in a hospital setting because of the need for anesthesia, and also because of the
presence of on-site radiologists for immediate reading of scans when necessary. The process
is very different from the routine of an outpatient facility, and takes longer per scan than MRI
scanning done in an office or outpatient-only facility. The chart breaks down the specific
types of MRI scanning specifically performed at the Hospital, demonstrating the additional
time required for inpatients to be scanned.

Although the Hospital is open seven days a week, twenty four hours a day, hospital scanning
is done during the day when full staffing is available, except for emergency situations. There
is little scanning done in the evening or during the night, both for the quality of patient care
provided as well as hospital resource efficiency. The DH MRI service is scheduled for 71
hours each week, with availability to perform scans 24/7 on an emergency basis, The




individual MRI cases scanned at the hospital on average take 104 minutes vs 45 minutes at
an outpatient facility. Appendix A (Note # 2 on page 13 and discussion on page 14).
Appendix A provides detail regarding the length of time scans take in the hospital and
demonstrates that the due to several factors such as complexity of the scans and acuity of the
patients, the DH scanners are being operated at close to 100% capacity. The fact that the
Hospital’s MRI scanners are at maximum capacity can also be evaluated by whether there is
space available or if patients having imaging done have to wait for their exams.

The following is an example of the typical wait time for outpatient scanning at the three
WCHNAs facilities in the service area:

As of January 10" at 2 p.m. — Next available Openings for MRI
e  DH - January 16" at 2 p.m. '
e DHMAC- January 25" at 2 p.m.
e DDI - January 13" at 11 a.m.

While some patients can wait the additional time before an appointment becomes available,
this information is an indication that the MRIs are in full use at DDI, DHMAC and at the
Hospital.

While it is the position of WCHNA that there is enough evidence in the record to determine
that the Danbury Hospital MRI scanners are not able to absorb additional volume, and that
they are functioning at maximum capacity, we request that if necessary, you add this
information and the information in Appendix A to the record in order to clarify the situation.
Finding of Fact #28 should reflect the fact that WCHNA provided evidence to demonstrate
that the WCHN MRI scanners are operating at full capacity.

Finding of Fact #51 concludes that the two MRI scanners at DH are underutilized. There is
no explanation of how that conclusion was reached. While OHCA states that ™ . . . J[t]he two
MRIs at the Hospital performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY2011 or approximately 2,659
scans per scanner” (Proposed Final Decision, p. 8, Record, p. 166), there is no reference to
what the maximum capacity is supposed to be. There are no OHCA regulations or guidelines
on imaging equipment. OHCA did not cite to any national or association guidelines, or
regulations or guidelines used in other states. The record is devoid of any reference to what
constitutes maximum capacity. For these reasons, Finding of Fact #51 should be stricken
from the record. It is this conclusion which led to the denial of the Applicant’s request to
acquire the MRI in Newtown.

The MRI Scanners at DDI and RDT: (Finding of Fact #29)

Finding of fact #29 is inaccurate because OHCA asked for “an explanation of how capacity
was determined for DDI and RDI” in Late File #3 at the hearing. (Hearing Transcript, p. 41)
and WCHNA did exactly that: (WCHNA Late File Q. #3 Record, p. 147): it provided the
template that is used to determine capacity and explained how the template works. It was not
clear that OHCA then wanted the template filled in with examples of specific weeks to show
that the volumes indeed meant that the MR scanner was being fully utilized.




Volumes had already been provided in the CON application and in Late File #2 for the MRI
scanner at RDI and the MRI scanner at DDI. (Record, p. 145). The information provided in
Appendix A, Table 3 clarifies the volumes that WCHNA has been performing between 2009
and 2011 and also adds the volume from the Hospital’s scanners. Through WCHNA the
operation of community imaging locations coincides with Danbury Hospital’s Master
Facility Plan to relocate outpatient services that exist in the Hospital facility to more
accessible outpatient settings and to provide greater facility capacity to support vital
Hospital-based services. The acquisition of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (“NDI”} is a
continuation of this strategy in a cost effective manner for WCHN that requires no additional
imaging capacity in the region.

It is also important to note that the hours of operations at these locations (are beyond a
normal 8 hour business day or 40 hour work week. These locations are already operating at
63.5 hrs. per week, making expanding any more hours to create more capacity difficult to
achieve.

It is understood that the imaging standards are under review and are changing, but without
alerting the Applicant to the fact that there was a standard being used that is not published,
the Applicant had nothing to rely on. OHCA had the volumes for RDI and DDI. DDI
performed 3,531 MRI scans in FY2011 and RDI performed 3,075 scans in FY2011 (Late
File, Record, p. 145).

If this additional information is needed to clarify the situation at DDI and RDI, we would ask
that it be added to the record so that the record is an accurate reflection of WCHNAs
facilities. Finding of Fact #29 is misleading because it appears that OHCA asked for the
actual calculation of how the template works. An examination of the transcript from the
hearing will verify that this was not what the hearing officer asked for. (Hearing Transcript,
p- 40).

The MRI at NDI

No exception is being sought regarding the facts of NDI's volume. However, an explanation
may assist in understanding why WHCNA is interested in acquiring the MRI at NDL The
decision points out that not only is NDI underutilized in terms of the use of its MRJ, but that
volume has been declining over the last few years. (Finding of Fact # 54). However, the
Applicant explained why the volume has been decreasing — and it is one of the reasons that
the owners of NDI are interested in selling. They do not have the resources to staff the
facility in Newtown in the same way that WCHNA will be able to do, and there have been
issues with insurance. WCHNA has a large group of highly trained technicians in both MRI
and CT scanning who could be called upon when personnel issues arise and NDI needs
coverage. More qualified staffing would also allow the facility to operate in the evenings and
on Saturday on a regular basis, which will raise the MRI volume in Newtown because area
patients who now travel to Danbury Hospital, DDI or DHMAC will have access closer to
home. The quality of service at NDI would improve if WCHNA is allowed to acquire the
facility because the record reflects that WCHNA will put resources into NDI that will



improve both staffing and equipment. The Letters of Support enclosed in Exhibit C support
this decision. Without approval to acquire both the CT scanner and the MR scanner,
WCHNA will not acquire the NDI facility.

The fact that OHCA issued a Proposed Final Decision allows the Department of Public
Health (“DPH?”) to consider the record and take additional evidence to clarify any
irregularities that occurred during the process. Had the Late File list been put in writing, it
might have been clearer what OHCA was looking for. Had there been written questions
(ordinarily Interrogatories) sent out before the hearing, the applicant would also have been
alerted to the specific concerns of the agency.

I the explanation set forth in this document {or the additional information in Attachment A)
satisfies DPH that the MRI scanners in the WCHN system which are located in the NDI
service area (as designated by OHCA)® are functioning at capacity or so near that the
acquisition of an existing MRI will fill a clear public need, the Proposed Final Decision
should reflect that WCHNA be allowed to acquire NDI's existing MRI scanner. If the facts
provided throughout the administrative process and which are highlighted in this document
and those which are provided now in Appendix A do not prove that there is a public need for
this acquisition; that is completely different. But if there is sufficient utilization of the
existing MRI scanners under the control of the Applicant and its parent WCHN, which
includes Danbury Hospital, and this application is denied as to the MRI because there was
confusion as to whether OHCA had been given the specific information it was looking for to
make the decision, that would be an injustice to the applicant which will ultimately create
hardship for patients who live east of Danbury and require CT or MRI scanning. For all of
the wrong reasons, the decision itself will be the wrong decision.

CONCLUSION

In addition to the Finding of Facts regarding capacity that are inaccurate, Finding of Fact #59
draws a conclusion that is impossible to achieve. Danbury Hospital (“DH’) cannot absorb
the existing MRI volume from NDI because neither the Danbury Hospital nor Western
Connecticut Health Network (or its affiliate, WCHNA, the Applicant) has any control or
ownership of NDI. NDI is a wholly owned limited liability company owned and operated by
twelve radiologists. Tf the MRI scanner is not purchased by WCHNA, it will remain in
operation at NDI under its current ownership.

If the intent of OHCA was to eliminate the MRI scanner in Newtown, this decision does not
do that. NDI can continue to operate the MRI scanner in its facility, which will eliminate the
projected cost savings to the health care system that could have been achieved. It will also
eliminate the improved access to MRI scanning that the Applicant could have provided by
assisting with staffing and capital improvements.

Under the conditions of the Proposed Decision, it is not feasible financially or operationally
tor WCHNA to purchase the CT scanner and operate it in the space utilized by the twelve
physicians/owners, and not own and operate the MRI scanner. Financing for the acquisition

5 Proposed Final Decision, Finding of Fact No. 11.




of the facility is based on the ability to spread the cost of operating the facility over the
revenue received by operating both pieces of imaging equipment.

The Applicant respectfully requests that DPH consider the information that is provided in
this document in order to correct the facts that are not accurate. If that is done, the
conclusion would allow WCHN to acquire both the CT and MRI scanners at NDI in a
modified Final Decision.

Respectfully submitted,

Ay, 7. hentily

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network
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APPENDIX A

Danbury Hospital’s MRI Scanners
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Table 1 - MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital

A B C D E F
Average | Number Actual Average | Variance | Additional
scanner of MRI annual number of Case Capacity
time in cases minutes it | of cases volumes | atan OP
Minutes | performed | takes to columnD | ata Center vs
for at the perform would Hospital- | an
Specific Hospital specific translate | based inpatient
Cases at MRI to in an MRI center by
the procedures | outpatient | center vs | procedure
Hospital ! at the MRI an type*
hospital center = | outpatient
{(AxB) D45 MRI
minutes” | Center =
D-B®
Exam Type
Anesthesia
180 196 35,193 782 587 300%
Arthrograms
70 127 8,896 198 71 56%
Abdomen w/Contrast
20 283 25,515 567 283 100%
Bilat Breast
50 205 18,476 411 205 100%
Breast Biopsy
120 10 1,173 26 16 167%
Needle Placement
120 20 2,346 52 33 167%
MRA
90 323 29,034 645 323 100%
Runoffs — lower
extremities 150 20 2,933 65 46 233%
Face/Neck/Orbits
w/Contrast 90 78 7,039 156 78 100%
Other
45 4,057 182,562 4,057 - 0%
Total MRI Exams at R T R o '
Hospital .0 " - 59 5,318 313,166 6,959 | 1,641 31%
IP additional minutes
to all IP cases’ 30 1,205 38,850 863 N/A N/A
Emergency Room
additional minutes to
all ER cases® 30 98 2,933 65 N/A N/A
Total Additional. = | - S R
Minutes to add to IP - | ° o .
and ED cases ' 1,393 41,783 929
GRAND TOTAL - N N ._ s
Capacity Variance’ 5,318 354,948 | 7,888 2,570 48%
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Notes for Table 1:

1.

2.

Column A: The average time it takes each Hospital-based MRI exam type to be
completed

Column D The average time for a standard outpatient MRI exam to be completed in
any of the Network’s facilities is 45 minutes. Dividing the total number of Hospital-
based exam minutes by 45 minutes yields the number of MRI exams that could be
completed in the same time period at an outpatient facility.

Column E: When taking the same amount of total MRT exam minutes from the
Hospital-based MRI exam volume, the Hospital performed 5,318 MRI exams, while
an outpatient MRI facility could produce 6,959 standard outpatient MRI exams, or
1,641 additional MRI exams.

Column F: This represents the number of incremental MRT exams that could be
performed in an outpatient center in the form of capacity percentages. By way of
example, in the same amount of time it takes to perform 196 MRI exams with
anesthesia at the Hospital, an outpatient MRI center can perform 782 standard
outpatient MRT exams or a 300% improvement in capacity.

Inpatient additional minutes to all IP cases: This row represents the additional time it
requires to perform an MRI exam on inpatients, due to transportation and
maneuvering a patient from their bed, to the MRI scanner. During the time of
transportation and maneuvering of the patient, the MRI scanner remains idle. Of the
5,318 cases indicated, 1,295 exams were performed on inpatients. When you
multiply the estimated 30 minutes of time to the 1,295 inpatient exams performed
during the period, it requires an additional 38,850 minutes of time on the MRI
scanners. An outpatient MRI facility could perform an additional 863 MRI exams
during the time it took to transport and maneuver patients on 1,295 inpatient exams.
Emergency additional minutes to all E.R. cases: The Emergency Room 1s located on
the first floor of the Tower building and the MRI Department is located on the 34
floor of the Stroock Building. The separation of these two locations causes the same
phenomenon related to transportation and maneuvering of patients as the Inpatients.
When using the same estimated time factor of 30 minutes, multiplied by 98 E.R. MRI
exams, the result 1s an additional 2,933 minutes of MRI time. An outpatient MRI
facility could perform an additional 65 outpatient MRI exams during the same time
period.

In Summary: It is the Applicant’s position that many Hospital-based MRI exams are
more complex, and require greater time to complete than the standard MRT exams
that are performed on a standard outpatient MRI scanner. Therefore, capacity,
measured by the number of exams performed on an MRI scanner, must be viewed
differently for a Hospital-based scanner versus an outpatient facility scanner. Based
on the number of exams at the Hospital MRI scanners and the types of exams these
represent, it is the applicant’s estimate that the Network’s outpatient facilities operate
at 48% greater exam capacity than the Hospital scanners can.

Based on this analysis, and using a weighted average of 104 minutes as an average scan time
for the Hospital MRI exams (as demonstrated in Table 1), it is clear that the Hospital MRI
scanners at the Hospital are at full capacity. To illustrate this point, the applicant has

14



completed the template it uses to measure capacity on its outpatient MRI scanners and
adapted it for the Hospital MRI scanners (inpatient and outpatient).

Table 2 — Capacity Analysis on Hospital MRI Scanners

Hours of Operation
Various periods
within timeframe
Operating Hours 1.5
Operating Hours 3T

MRI Scanner 1 Max
capacity

MRI Scanner 2 Max
capagity

Total Max, capacity
(patients)

Number of patients
Random Week
Random Week

Avg

% Capacity

M

7:30
AM

8:00pm

12.5

9

12

9

21

sz
A

18
86%

T
7:30
AM

8:00pm
12.5
9

12

21

1 8
BERNSY
19.5
93%

MRI
w TH FRI
7:30 7:30 7:30
AM AM AM
8:00pm 8:00pm  8:00pm
125 12.5 12.5
9 9 9
12 12 12
9 9 9
21 21 21
225 225 225
107% 107% 107%

SAT TOTAL/Wk
7:30 AM
4:00P.M.
8.5
11

11 116

"._:.1 1 111

R e 120

10.5 115.5

95% 100%

Table 3 — Shift in MRI Volumes from Inpatient to Qutpatient Settings

The strategic initiative to shift MRT outpatients from testing at Danbury Hospital to non-

hospital-based outpatient facilities operated by the Applicant WCHNA can be observed in
the bar graph, with 546 reductions in Danbury Hospital volume and 815 procedure growth in
OP centers for the same time period.
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APPENDIX B

Hearing Transcript, Pages 40 — 41
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Department of Public Health

10/25/2011 Transcription
Page 40
3 HEARING OFFICER: Well, I think he gave us
2 it |
3 MR. DAGLIO: Yeah, we don't know who provided
4 yveah, we don’'t know. All of the things he proposad
5 we den't knew those o be factual, his volumes, his
& pecple who refer to him, we don't know that
7 information.
8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
i [CROES COMMENTING]
1G ME., DAGLIC: I thought you meant our own,
11 gure, we can provide our own,
1z HERRING OFFICE®: All right.
i3 MR. DAGLIC: Let'e gef can we get that rvight
14 in the recopd?
15 HEARING OFFICER: I was getting excited.
is ME., DAGLIO: I would like ko keiow.
1% HERRING OFFICER: Ckay, it was worth asking,
18 but wyou krew the answer. So I'm going to have Me,
19 Hubsr go through the late files just ao we're oleawr
20 o1l what we nsed.
21 MR. HUBER: Lare £ile #i 1is a revized
2% Attactment © from the pretrial testimony providing
23 us with the twelve month T and MRI scan volumes for
Z4 fiszcal year 2011. ZLate Eils #2, & tehle that
25 illustrates the annual volume wait a mirute wait a
2 minute. I wrote two things on different lines hers.
Brandon Smith Heporting & video
880-545%-1850 product ion@brandonreporting . com 248 Pearl Strest
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Tepartment of Public Health

10/25/2011 Transcription
Page 41
i The table that indicates the total volume by
2 lovarion in a Forma: similar to Attachment C.
1 HERRING OFFICER: No, wait
4 M3. ZUPCOE: Mo wait. It was by scanner.
L ME. HITRER: Ho, that was
6 HEARING OFFICEK: Lats file #1 iz supposed to
7 do total volume including inpstient and ocutpatient.
g Late file #2 is = table showing breaking dourn the
g hospital scanners' volums by scanner.
ig¢ MR. HUBER: Okay. Should I start from rhe
11 top?
1z HEARING OFFICER: Are those olesy now, late
13 file #1 and #Z, we're good?
14 CHEHOWN:  Th hm,
i5 HEARRING OFFICER: Okay.
1% ME. HUBER: Late file #3 is an explanation as
17 to how capacity was determined for DDE and BDI.
ig Late file #4 is strategy for distribution of health
19 care services. Late file #5 im revenuse and exXpensse
20 statements individually addressing the OT and the
Il MRY acquisiticns.
22 ' HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I think that
23 concludes the hearing. 0id you all wsnb to make a
24 cloging statement?
25 MR, BROLIO: I actually had a gquestion for
| 25 clarification just on this if it's ckay, the
Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting ., com 24% Pear] Straet
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APPENDIX C:

Letters of Support
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Sotate of Connectiryt
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
STATE CAPITOL
HARTFOIED, GOMNECTICUY 05106150

REPRESENTATIVE CHRISTOPHER LYDINY WISE GHAHRATAM
TindlE HURORED S TH ASSEMBLY DISTRICT PUBLIE BIEAL T GOMSSITYES
EEIPRLATIVE OFRICE BUILGRES MEMEER
HUCRA 2213 EDUCATIIN CotsdbenYee
HARTFORD, ©F 081 1t HUBAY SERVICES DOMERTTSE

CAPITOL BEN-SA-B400
FOLL FREE: tdiitbar-fane
PR SO B0-RI0E
E3AL: Divindapbar Lpddvgions &l yow

Ty 11, 2632 R

Conissioner Jevsl blullen, M0, MPA, MBI
Pepetment ol Public Healh

Qifiee of Healil Cuve Avcnsy

40 Capital Aveane M3 BITHIA

Mariford, CT 065340308

Dgar D, Mutlen,

L writing in supposs ol The sransler of overship of Newtown Diagnostie Imaging From Mewtown [Hagnogie
Iinaging Assaeiates to the Western Connecriont Health Matwork. As Vice-Chalrman of the Public Health Commitiss
sl opmlasens State Reprasanbative, § bowe an Interest in maintaiming acoess ro medical core far the marndsaes of sy
Uiy,

It iz my saderstanding thee your office bus When the wsual siep o only alfewing a partial fransfer of awnueship,
Westerday, Pk af longlh with DFH stafTre try snd bener understand this declzion. Rven aiter speaking with
yisue ataff, | remmin consersed about thiz devision, os # may jsopardize the bopsfer of b faetlily. As we continng 4o
atltlyess the fepportant jesue o healthe care tefim, i is Dmporeunt dhat we strive 1o crmste agpresntes o peavide
betler cove at lower eosts. Allwuing Sacility to enter fhe network will allow for frproved cantiruity of cars,
unification of medical records and syore direcs comsmmioaion with 1 olher medits! 2nd surgleal services our
oitieons are turrentiy vecalving,

Ngwiiri Diagnostic [mnging ks the sy hvnglag frcility In Newtewn and seives athor nefalloring communiios as
woll, This {5 cspewioliy important for o senior cilirens to seovive (he cane Ihey sead, b grdar 1o paivtain this
serwien Tt yeurs 10 omme and enhance the medical care and sevess for Uie comvetty, | mm requestitg Gal you
sesonsidae your dusision and aflow % full transfor und jurchass s ke plase.
Thank veu for your considemmling,
. i

Lo fL

4t 63}5, i !

y]
} W ':\': .

ol Lty
Stafe Reprosentative

1057 Eistrivs

GRS WENTOWN

20




Newtown Misicipal Cemer

3 Primesgy Streed

Toewtow, £ ontecticws 084
Tel. (203) 204201

Fax {303) 2704203
Jirxesedornaaniiireiow g gov

55 Wk R WL Y L TOWN OF NEWTOWN
OFFICE OF THE FIRST SELECTMAN

E. Patricias Llodes
First Selecyman

January 182002

Jewet Mullan, MO, MPA, MPH
CC Malarie Dillon, Esg,
Conngcde office of Health Care Access

Brege D, Mulblen:

As Mewiown First Selecuman T have an fueessst in maistaining access o medios] care For the members
of Qur Commmunity.

1 12 my snderstanding that vour office has taken the vnusust step of allowing only 2 patial transfer nf
owtership of Newtown Disgnostie Tnaging 1o the Weslern Conneeticat Heplth Network, We appreciye
the curpe ciimae of health care reform with scecuntable care ergaizations forming and nesworks of
sarvioe providers alignitg © grovide bever care m lower costs. | have been inforned that 5 pariial
wransfer wouid fikely aliminate considerntion of Newtows Dispmestic as pact of tin heath atre netwark.
Obver that sitution. and secogrizing tha the viest msjority of our residents receive dheir headth care
through than netwerk. we are contered that the patisd transier would essentiolly sestriet or climinate
e o the services of Newtown Thagnestic. Full transfer of Newtown Dagnestic 1o Western
Lonneoticnt Health Network aitows for improved comtinuity of care, unification of medics] records and
more direct commumcation with the other medical and sergieat services our citizens are curremtly
recsiving,

Mewiown Diagnostls Inuging 5 the ooly ieaging facifity 1n Newtown 1n order 1o maisin this service
for veark o come and enlizner the medies] care and access for e volrnonity | am requesiing fat vou
recorsider sour decision and atbow o foll wansfor and purchnse o take place.
Sincerely,
5
&
B Parrivia Llodm

Fiest Selocrman .

st Addune Welber, M
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lanuary 10, 2012

Jewaz] Mullen, MDD, MPA, MPH
Commisioner

Office of Health Core Access
419 Capitol Avenue

ME #I3HCA

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Drear By, Muticn,

We are writing in suppont of the transfer of ownership of Mewtown DHageostic Imaging from
Mewtown Diagnostic imaging Assoctates to the Western Connecticut Mealth Network. As
mesnbers of the community we have zn interest In mainteining access o medicat care for the
miesbers of our cofirnunity.

It is pur wagcmlaﬁding that your office has taken the unusual siep of enly alowing a partial
transfer of ewnership, This muy jeopardize e mansfer of the fecility. In the current climaie of
health care, reform where accountable care organizations are forming and networks of service
providers are aligning to provide betier care at Jower costs it is imporian to us thet the facility
gnter the Network whete the vast majority of our citizens receive their health care. This will
allow for improved contituily of care, unification of medical reconds sad mors dirsct
commnurication with the sther medical and swpical services our citizens are currently receiving,

MNewwtown Diagnostic Emaging is the only bmaging faetilty in Newtown, In order 1o maimain this
servics for years 10 come and sulmnce the medical eare and sccess Tor the COmITURILY, we are
requesting that veu rooonsidar your decision and ailow a full transfer and purchaso 1o iake place,

Thank you for vour consideration,

/;fwﬁ%ﬁ“ 9&;33;’@& A T it of
. % Lot dene Dt oo bos
Nus o> “ :

L%J - buasa, Sandy ol A

L8 o \\.M,,;%’:,_mf e 5 b s i A
Newtown, Conpesticul’ otary Cluf - W”}‘F Ak H@i’{

Sincerely,

H
ey RO , Mecdewn
co: Melaaic Dillap, esq. (et Jhoedl,

A Q@ ;..%@%j‘” Stmviansta KL, Al

B Ry Llp efb et
el e W B
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January 10, 3612

Jewel Mullen, MD, MPA, MPH

Copnisioner

Cifice of Headth Care Agcess

419 Capitol Avenus

ME FE3HCA i
Hartford, CT 961340308

Py Or. Mullen,

We e writing in support of the fransfer of ownership of Mewtewn Diagnostic Imaging from
MNewtown Diagnastic Imaging Associates w the Western Connecticut Health Network, As
members of the commmnity we have an interest in maintaining sccess to medical care for the
members of ur community,

Tt is our understanding that vour office has taken the unuaual step of only allowing a partial
transter of ownership, This may jeopardize the transfer of the lacility. In the current climate of
health care reform whers accountable care organizationa are forming and networks of service
prviders are aligning 1o provide betier care at lower costs it is imporfant to us that the facility
erter the Network where the vast majority of our citizens receive their headth care. This will
aflew for improved continnity of care, unificarion of medical records and more dirent
sommmunication with the other medical and surgical services our citizens are currenily recaiving,

Newiown Diagrostic Imaging i4 the ondy lmaging facility in Newtown, [n order to maiatsin this
service for years 1o come and enhance the medival care and access for the commnunity, we ere

regeesting that you recongider your decision and alfow a full wansfer and purchase 1o toke place.

Thark you for your consideration,

Sinceraly,

Mewiowa, Connecticnt Rowary Ulob
cor Melande THilan, esq.

S
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Hearing Transcript
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Department of Public Health
10/25/2011 Transcription

Page 1

Pages: 1-43

STATE OF CONNECTICUT
Hartford, =ss

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS
HEARING HELD CN: OCTOBER 25, 2011
BEFORE MELANIE DILLON, ESQ., HEARING OFFICER
DOCKET # 11-31703-CON

. Applicant: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Present: _
Jack Huber, Staff Analyst
Meglanie Dillon, Hearing Officer
Kimberly Martcne, Director of OHZA
Barbara Olejarz, Transcriptionist
Toni Ann Marchicne, Director of Diagnostic Services
Jennifer Zupccoe, V.P. Finance, WCHNA
Dr. Jeet Sandhu, Chairman of Radiolecgy, Danbury Hospital
FPat Gerner, Esqg., Counsel for WCHNA _
Michael Daglio, Chief Operating Officer, WCHNA
Sally Herlihy, V.P. Planning, WCHNA
Carclyn McKenna, Legal counsel for the system

Mary Indomenico

Official Court Transcriber

HEARTING OFFICER: Good morning. Before we
begin, please make sure all cell phones and beepers

are turned off. This public hearing before the

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-545-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



Department of Public Health

10/25/20311 Transcription
- Page 2
1 Offlce*dfﬁHéélth Care Access identified by docket
2 #11M31703—CON.is being held on October 25, 2011 to
3 conglder Western Connécticut Health Network
4 Affiliates, Inc., CON application for the
5 acquisition of equipment from Newtown Diagnostic
6 Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network
7 Affiliates, Inc.
8 This public hearing is being held pursguant to
] General Statutes Section 12{a), 632 (a) and will be
10 conducted ag a contested case in accordance with the
11 provisions of Chapter 54 of the Connecticut General
.12 Statutes, the uniform admiﬁistrative procedure.
13 I am Melanie Dillon and I have been designated
14 by Commigsioner Jewel Mullan of the Department of
15 Public Health to serve ag the hearing officer for
16 thig matter. The staff members assigned to me on
17 this case is Kimberly Martone, Director of
18 Operations, Stephen Lazarus, and Jack Huber.
19 Administrative and technical support is being
20 provided by Barbara Olejarz. Following the hearing
21 I will issue a proposed final decision in accordance
22 with General Statutes, Section 4-17%. In making its
23 decision, OHCA will consider and meke written
24 findings concerning the principles and guidelines
25 get forth in Section 12(a) 639 of the General
26 Statutes.

860-549-1850

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street



Department of Public Health

10/25/2011 Trangcription
Page 3
1 The applicant, Western Connecticut Health
2 Network Affiliates, Inc. has been designated as a
3 party in this proceeding. Are there any other
4 persons who wish te offer testimony or make a
5 statement.in this case other than thoée individuals
12 représeﬁting the applicant? Let the record show
7 thét no one has come forward.
8 At this time I would like all of the
5 individuals who are géing to testify on behalf. of
10 . the applicant to stand, raise your right hand, ahd
11 be sworn. -After I read the statement, please affirm
iz by szaying 'ves'.
13 WITNESSES, Sworn.
14 ' HEARING QOFFICER: Will all those individuals
15 who Jjust took the cath, please state your full name
16 the full time you spesk and adopt any written
- 17 testimony you have submitted on the record. For all
18 : those individuals testifying on behalf of the
19 applicant, please mzke sure that you have printed
20 your name and affiliation con the sign-up sheet that
21 has been made availzble for this hearing.
22 At this time I will ask staff to read into the
23 record those documents already appearing in OHCA's
24 © table of record in this case. 21l documents have
25 been identified in the table of record for reference
26 purposes. Mr. Huber?

, Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



Department of Public Health

10/25/2011 Transcripition
Page 4
1 MR. HUBER: Thank you. For the record, my
2 name is Jack Huber; I'm an OHCA staff member. Prior
3 to today's public hearing, a copy of the proposed
4 table of record was conveyed to the applicant. The
5 two page table of record identifies Exhibite A
6 through 0. In the interest of time and if you and
7 the applicant are in agreement, I would like to
8 present a formal reading of each individual exhibit
9 , into the record and offer this said table of record
10 in its entirety for inclusion in today's proceeding.
11 : HEARING COFFICER: Okay. Thank you. Do you
12 have any additional exhibits to enter into the
13 record?
14 - MR. HUBER: No, we do not.
15 HEARING OFFICER: Does the applicant have any
16 opjections to any of the exhibits?
17 ' MS. GERNER: Yesg, Commlissioner Hearing
18 Officer Dillon. My name isg Pat Gerner and I'm here
19 this morning representing Western Connecticut Health
20 Network Affiliates. So good morning to you and to
21 OHCA staff. The applicant would like to make an
22 objection on the record to Exhibit D. This is email
23 corregpondence from Dr. Conrad Erlique (phonetic)
24 dated September 13, 2011 which wasg not sent tc the
25 applicant at the time that he sent the email to the
26 agency, nor did Dr. Erlique subseguently send a copy

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street



Department of Public Health

10/25/2011 _ Transcription
_ Page 5
1 | of that to the applicant since September 13th. As.a
2 résult, the applicant did not see a copy.of that
3 exhibit until vesterday afternocon when a discussicon
4 of the table of the record came up and a copy was
5 sent down from OHCA to the applicant. PBut without
) gufficient time to really respond for thig morning's
7 hearing. The applicant is not going to make a
8 formal objection to having this exhibit removed from
9 the record because we know that the hearing officer
i0 ' can accept this email from an interested person as
il part of the record and give it whatever appropriate
12 weight it ghould have. But we would like to peint
13 cut that Dr. Erligue did not seek party or
14 _ intervener status, which he could have done to be a
15 part of this hearing where he could-héve been crocss
16 examined on those topics that he raised in his
17 emalil. He alsoc indicated in later email that he
18 would not be present at this morning's hearing. 8o
19 the material the evidence, the topics, the issues
20 that he railsed in those emalls we understand cannot
21 be used as evidence as the basis of the decision.
22 However, Lo the extent that there are any issues
23 that he raised or any topics in those emails that
24 vou would like further information on, the staff at
25 Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates would
26 be very happy to provide late files if you would

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-54%-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Peazrl Street



Department of Public Health

10/25/2011 Transcription
Page 6
1 simply indicate which issues or topics you would
2 o like further information about. And if you could do
3 that at the end of the hearing, they would
4 appreciate it very much.
5 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
6 MS. GERNER: Thank you.
7 . : HEARING OFFICER: Thank yvou. 8So I think I
8 heard you it's not a formal objection, just noting
9 M&. GERNER: We'd like the cbkbjection noted on
10 the record.
11 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
12 MS. GERNER: Because of the circumstances, but
13 we're not objecting to having the document remszin in
14 ‘ there knowing that you will uge it for the
15 appropriate with the appropriate weight.
16 HEARING OFFICER: Absolutely. I think we
17 might actually have a few questions that we're golng
‘18 to agk at the hearing that relé%e back to that.
19 But to the extent that obviously I would give you
20 the opportunity to provide additional late files in
21 ‘ regponse
22 , MS. GERNER: Thank vyou.
23 HEARING OFFICER: - other issues that we feel
24 - need to be addressed. Thank you.
25 Okay. At thisg time Western Connecticut Health
26 Network Affiliates I think we're just going to
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1 start saying "WCHNA", may proceed with its
2 testimony.
3 MS. HERLIHY: Good morning Hearing Officer
4 Dillon and OHCA staff. My name is Sally Herlihy and
5 I'm the vice president of planning Western
6 Connecticut Health Network and I'm here today on
7 behalf of Western Connecticut Health Network
8 Affiliates, Inc. in terms of the CON application to
9 acquire the imaging equipment currently being used
10 at Newtown Diagnostic Imagine in Newtown,
11 Connecticut. I hereby adopt my pre-file testimony.
12
13 Participating in the hearing with me today are
14 the following individuals and I'll just go across
15 the room here. Mike Daglio, Senior V.P. of
16 Operations at Danbury Hospital, Carolyn McKenna,
17 Legal counsel for the gystem, Dr. Sandhu, Chairman
18 of Radioclegy, Jennifer Zupcoe, V.P. of Fiﬁénce
19 Operations and Decision Support, and Toni Ann
20 Marchione, Director of Diagnostic Services.
21 I'd like to just briefly highlight some of the
22 points of my testimony. As you know, Western
23 Connecticut Health Network, the parent corporation
24 has five locations where patients can access imaging
25 services. Thoege include Danbury Hospital, New
26 Milford Hespital, Danbury Medical Arts Center in
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1 Danbury which is 1qcated at Danbury Hospital for

2 outpatient sgcanning, and two facilities out in the

3 community, bkoth Danbury Diagnostic Imagine and

4 Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging. |

5 If approvedr Newtown Diagnostic Imaging will

6 joint Danbury and Ridgefiéld locations where imaging
7 services are provided out in the community, rather

8 than at the hospital. This is the direction that

9 Western Connecticut ﬂealth Network is aiming fof.
10 Beginning with more primary care in the community,
11 we're focusing on placing most outpatient services
12 closer to where the patients live. Patients travel
i3 from their homes to receive imaging services after
14 they've scheduled an appointment. So for patients
15 living in Newtown and the surrounding area ecast of
16 Danbury, a location in Newtown make the services
17 more accesgssible. Patients are already using Newtown
18 Diagnogtic Imaging. It's an ongoing radiology
19 practice where CT scans and MRI scans are done on
20 the equipment. NDI has experienced some decrease in
21 volumes over the last three vyvears due to some
22 insurance and staffing issues as we noeted. The
23 physicians who own the practice want to sell the
24 equipment in Western Connecticut Health Network
25 Affiliates, has made plans to acquire the imaging
26 equipment and remain in the same location in Newtown
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1 if you approve this application.
2 - With proper staff and the resources availsble
3 within the Western Connecticut Health Network
4 Affiliates group to help keep costs down, NDI will
5 not only see improved service at the facility, but
6 it will heip to make take the streés off the rest
7 of the system by_abéorbing some of the patients who
8 now travel to Danbury Hospital for imaging services.
9 By adding the extended hours of evening and five
10 houré on Saturdayg over time, patient accessibility
11 Vwill'be greatly improved. The need exists for this
12 facility not only for the patients in the immediate
13 area of Newtown, but also to prevent either Danbury
14 Hospital or DDI to seek additional imaging equipment
15 in the near future. DDI is currently performing
156 over 5,000'CT scans each year.  DDI is also
17 performing over 3,500 MRI scans. This is a
18 non-hospital site. DDI is not capable of absorbing
19 additicnal patients in the future. Having.some of
20 them who live east of Danbury Hospital to go to the
21 MDT facility, would assure both prompt attention to
22 the scanning and greater accessibility for those
23 patients who live in the area and relieve the
24 pressure off of DDI and other sites.
25 Thank you for your time this morning. To hear
26 more of the details of our application, we're
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1 availakle to answer guestions.
2 : HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. Is there
3 anyone elge who is going to testify or does that
4 conclude it? You answered one of.our gquestions. We
5 .‘ were going to ask what DMAC stand (sic) for. So now
6 we know, Danbury Medical Arts Center. |
7 Now ig DMAC located on the campus of the
8 hogpital? And what's what services are offered.at
9 DMAC?

10 MS. MARCHIONE: Hi, Tonl Ann Marchioﬁe. We

11 offer CT scan, MRI, mammography, plain x-ray and

12 ~that's it in the radiology area ©f DMAC.

13 HEARING OFFICER: Okay; And agide from

14 radiology, are there other services available there?

15 MS. MARCHICONE: Yes. There's nuclear medicine

16 services and the rest are surgical services,

17 physician offices and cardiac PET CT_and there's

18 alsc cardiac services in the building.

19 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Now with respect to

20 : the so you have a CT and an MRI at DMAC?

21 MS. MARCHIONE: Correct.

22 HEARING OFFICER: Now how many other MRT

23 scanners are located on the hogpital campus?

24 MS. MARCHIONE: Two .

25 HEARING OFFICER: Two?

26 MS. MARCHICNE: Uh hm. Two MREI scanners and
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1 two CT scanners.
2 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. And is that -- in
3 addition to the two
4 MS. MARCHICNE: That's iﬁ addition; that's
5 actually in the hospital.
6 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. So there's a total of
7 three MRI scannerg and three CT scanners on the
8 hospital campus?
9 MS. MARCHIONE: Correct.
10 HEARING OFFICER: Now Attachment C shows the
11 historical, current, and projected volume by
12 equipment unit. I noticed that we just it still
13 has nine menths annualized per fiscal year 2011.
14 Could we get a complete fiscal year 2011 at this
15 point?
16 MS. ZEPCOE: Thig ig Jen Zepcoe. We can
17 certainly provide that afterwards. We don't have
18 that information here.
19 HEARING OFFICER: <Ckay. But you could put it
20 in a late file? |
21 MS. ZEPCOE: Yes.
22 HEARING OFFICER: I beliesve Attachment C, and
23 you can correct me if I'm wrong, is the game table
24 that was provided in the completeness responses.
25 MS. MARCHIONE: With the addition of New
26

Milford Hesgpitalg' numbers.
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1 | HEARTNG OFFICER: Okay. And in the Jet me
2 find the page for you.
3 MS. MARCHIONE: Page 137
4 | | ~ HEARING OFFICER: I think it's page 59.
5 | There's a footnote that's stated for Danbury
6 Hospital and DMAC you included outpatient CT and MRI
7 volumeé, but you did not include inpatient or ED
8 patient volume?
9 MS., ZEPCOE: That's correct.
10 HEARTNG OFFICER: Is there a reason why we
11 excluded the inpatient and ED volums?
12 MS. ZEPCOE: Again, this is Jen Zepcoe. It
13 was my belief that we were looking jusf to really
14 add the outpatient volume. We could certainly
15 “provide the ED or inpatient volume as well.
16 HEARING QFFICER: Okay. 8o do it. 8c could
17 we get that off there and another - well I guess
18 ckay, so I guesg what we would get is a revised a
19 revised Attachment C and we'll just work off the
20 pre-files so we don't get confused here.‘ ind have
21 total vdlumes for the Danbufy Hospital and DMAC.
22 and if you could could you break it up by scanner?
23 MS. ZEPCOE: Yes.
24 s " HEARING OFFICER: Is that possible? Cause I
25 ' krnow we've had applications in the past where they
26 told us they can't break 1t out by scanner.
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1 MS. MARCHICNE: Toni Ann Marchione. I think

2 we can break it out by scanner, but the only

3 scanners that actually perform exams on ED or

4 inpatients would be the actual hospitai scanners,

5 not the DMAC. We don't service ED or inpatients

6 there.

7 HEARING OFFICER: ©Sco DMAC with just the

8 outpatient?

9 MS. MARCHIONE: Right.
10 HEARING QOFFICER: So why don't why don't we
11 keep it instéad of making.it Attachment C, way too
12 convoluted, if we could do Attachment C ag like file
13 one, we'd have a full fiscal year 2011 actuals. And
14 then total veolumes for Danbury Hospital and DMAC.and
15 those in the respective columns for CT and MRI. And
16 then late file #2 could be the volumes.by scanner.
17 Doeg that make sense?
18 SEVERAL: Uh hm.
19 HEARING OFFICER: Does that make sense to you
20 Jack?
21 ME. HUBER: Uh hm.
22 HEARING OFFICER: Cause I don't want to make
23 .this teco messy breaking it out by scanner.
24 UNKNOWN: And I'd just like to add to make
25 sure that those numbers provided are géing to ke
26 consistent with the imaging survey that vyour
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1 facility is currently sending in to our office as
2 well,
3 'HEARING OFFICER: With respect to New Milford
4 Hospital I know it's somewhat ouﬁ of the service
5 area for this particular application, but how many
6 scanners does New Milford Hospital have?
7 MS. MARCHIONE: One CT scanner and one MRI
8 scanney.
9 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. And as far as the
10 volumes provided in Attachment C, were those just
11 outpatients volumes as well?
12 MS. MARCHIONE: We'd have to confirm it, but I
13 think it was just cutpatient
14 MS. HERLIHY: 'Thig is Sally Herlihy. I
15 believe they were actually total volumes. I will
16 confirm that for you.
17 HEARING OFFICER: Ckay. So if we could make
18 sure Attachment C has the total volumes.
19 MS. HERLIHY: 8o it would be consistent.
20 HEEARING OFFICER: And I believe it's clear
21 from the application, but just to reconfirm.DDI has
22 one CT and one MRI scanner?
23 MS. MARCHIONE: Correct.
24 HEARING OFFICER: And RDI has one CT and one
25 MRI scanner?
26

MS. MARCHIONE: Correct.
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Now in the pre-file
2 application you state that the DDI and RDI are
3 operating at full capaciﬁy and beyond. And I
4 ' believe did I say that I think it was in a
5 pre-file testimony as well. How did how did vou
& arrive that RDI was operating at full capacity? How
7 did vou detérmine that?
a8 [AT THIS POINT l:OS:bO RECORDING QUALITY BECOMES
S BOOR] |
10 ' DR. SANDHU: (ineudible) Chairman of
11 Radiology. We're essentially using data pretty much
12 from the advisory board, we get the number of CT's
13 | that are done and what are expected in a routine
14 .outpatient setting. You knew, a work day with a
15 certain (inaudible). 85% of (inaudible} patients
16 1g congidered to be full capacity which based on
17 that information it works out to about 2,500 CT's.
i8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. But RDI is currently
19 at about 2,706?
20 DRE. SANDHU: RDI is actually it's zbout
21 | 5,700.
29 HEARING OFFICER: RDI?
23 DR. SANDHEU: I'm sorry; I apologize.
24 HEARING CFFICER: That's okay.
25 DR. SANDHU: (inaudible).
26 HEARTING OFFICER: RDI 18 2,729 according to
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1 : the pre-file and then 2,585 for the MRI. So you
2 gaid you used the 85% 7
2 DR. SANDHU: (inaudiblej 3,500 is the number
4 {(inaudible) .
5 HEARING OFFICER: Now could you provide us
6 with how you like the numbers you came up with in
7 uﬁilizing that calculation? So that could be like
<] _ file #3, how capacity wag determined for both CDI
9 and RDT,
10 The radiclogists that own NDI read the studies
11 and oversee the gquality doc the same for Danbury
12- | Hospital, DDI, and RDI?
13 DR. SANDHU: That's right.
14 HEARING OFFICER: Cofrect? So it would be the
15 game
16 DR. SANDHU: ({inaudible).
i7 HEARING OFFICER: -- overseeing it.
18 DR. SANDHU: (inaudible).
19 HEARING OFFICER: Could you restate your
20 answer to the last question? I'm sorry. So it was
21 whether the radiologists that currently own NDI read
22 | the studies and oversee the quality do the same for
23 Danbury Hecspital, DDI, and RDI?
24 ' ’ DR. SANDHU: The same group of radioiogists
25 they're currently doing {(insudible} capacity.
26 HEARING CFPFICER: Thank you. How do you
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1 explain the lower utilization of the scanners owned
2 and operated by NDI?
3 DR. SANDHU: Well I think yvou know,
4 essentially there's several issues that come into
5 play. Predéminantly operationai and contractual
6 issues that come into play, resulting in lower
7 utilization.
8 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Could you explain some
9 of those operational issues?
10 DR. SANDHU: Well partly its staffing issﬁes
11 that come into play. 2nd I think that may ke one of
12 the advantages here with the integration of NDI into
13 the larger network as having a larger pool of
14 resources avallable to fully staff all éf the
15 imaging facilities. And also, contractually I think
16 with scme (inaudible) contracts that are in play,
17 it's not fully accessible there whiéh will also
18 (inaudible) the number of patients (inaudible) the
19 facility.
20 MR. HUBER: Jack Huber for the record. If the
21 proposal were to be approved, when would you
22 anticipate replacing the service CT =canner at
23 (inaudible) ?
24 | MR. DAGLIO: This is Mike Daglio, Seniér Vice
25 President of Operations at Danbury ﬁospital. We
26 : anticipate it won't be too long. Tt may be within
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1 the next year or two that we replace that, depending
2 on our capital budget allowance and cycle of capital
3 o priQrities. We anticipate i1t in a year or two that
4 would be that would be replaced.
5 | MR. HUBER: Have you at this point
6 investigated any type of replacement?
7 _ MR. DAGLIO: We have we have a pretty
8 MR. HUBER: Through a vendor or?
9 _ ' MR. DAGLIO: We have a pretty consistent
10 replacement plan of our fleet Qf egquipment across
11 , the network. We have a pretty standard replacement
12 period of time and we have a pretty consistent
13 gelection of vendors that we use. If you lock at
14 our outpatieht imaging centers, we always try to get
15 the best pricing wheﬁ looking at both purchasing.
16 So we do have a couple of vendors that we typically
17 use. 8o we do know what style CT scanner we would
18 put in there to be consistent with the other CT
19 scanners in the network. Try to standardize the
20 aeguipmant.
21 - MR. HUBER: T believe you identified within
22 the applicaticn the number of slices that you would
23 be reguesting?
24 - MR. DAGLIO: That's right.
25 ME. HUBER: Is that 167
26 MR. DAGLIC: We typically do a 16 slice
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1 scanner that are upgradable for future growth 1f
2 .necessary and if needed.
3 : MRE. HUBER: With respect to the Newtown CTl %
4 : scanner, to what degree does the one slice capacity
5 effect the extra (inaudible)} scanner that'g
6 operating now?
7 DR. SANDHU: Again, the increase in the
8 | {inaudible}, development of the CT scanners, the one
9 slice 1g better (inaudible) than the overall number
10 of (inaudible) is capable of doing.
11 . MR. HUBER: If that's the case and the
12 potentizl upgrade to the CT scanner has been
13 included in the projections in Attachment C, why
14 would one anticipate a greater annual volume than
15 what's presented here? |
16 MR. DAGLIC: Why wouldn't we procject? The
17 rprojection that we want to make are always
18 ' conservative. We understand maybe take a step back
19 and talk about our strategy. If we look at Danbury
20 Hogpital, we do have two MRI's and two CT scaﬁners
21 : in the hospital procéss. Qur overall strategy for
22 the network is to move outpatients out of our
23 hospital campus. It'g inefficient; it's very
24 difficult for them to navigate parking, to navigate
25 elevatorsg, and get into our imaging centers in the
26 hospital for outpatient needs. So the geanners and
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1 the MRIs that we have in the hospital we really want -
2 to we really want to allocate the inpatient
3 services and emergency (inaudible) so we don't delay
4 any inpatient care and discharge planning, as well
5 as any delays in the emergency {(inaudible)}. So our
6 goal is to move all of the outpatients imaging to
7 the extent possible, off the main campus and
8 diétribute it out into the community whére the
9 patients live or work and have easier access to
10 parking at the - at the facility.
13 In that case we're talking about 1it's hard to
12 really know for sure what the total volumes.would
13 bhe. But we looked at where we would spread volumes
14 nore effecfively {inaudible) hospital being off the
15 main campus or (inaudible) main tower. But we have
16 a distributed plan for imaging services. We have a
17 centralized scheduling sesrvice that would allow us
18 to look at all of the schedules for all of the sites
19 and new patientg (inaudible) with it or whether it's
20 cloge to their work or their home, whatever is more
21 convenient for them. So the spread of ths actual
22 volume ig difficult to (inaudible).
23 HEARING OFFICER; (inaudible) .
24 MR. DAGLIO: We have a network strategy. We
- 25 have & whole strategy for the network (inaudible)
26 that include primary care, (inaudible). If you
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1 look at it historically (portion inaudible)
2 | [TAPE CLEARS HERE SIGNIFICANTLY AT 1:14:02]
3 ' MR. DAGLIO: -- our Southbury cardiology
4 practice and our Southbury primary care sgervices.
5 So it's a consistent strategy and we can walk you
6 through that for sure in terms of our distributed
7 outpatient services and moving patients out of the
8 : hospital'for outpatient services. The DMAC building
9 , itself the CON we did for that was that very
10 purpose to move cardiclogy in general, surgery, and
11 GI out of the hospital. The cardiology practice was
12 : in the tower of the hospital for outpatient
13 services. It's very inconvenient to do that for
14 patient outpatient services and that was really the
15 purpoge of the DMAC building back in 2006. So it
16 was a very consisﬁent strategy. It's something
17 we've been dolng for a number of years and we
18 continue to perpetuate that strategy. We still
19 have a few more outpatient services in the hospital
20 that would be moving out in the near future. 8o
21 ' that is our geocal and we can walk you through it. To
22 - the extent you want the details, we can provide that
23 for vyou, sure.
24 HEARING OFFICER: You can?
25 . MR. DAGLIO: Yes.
26 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
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1 MR. DAGLIO: I mean you know, we'd have to be
2 able to create that for you, but we do have
3 MS. GERNER: We don't have it written
4 "MR. DAGLIO: -- in a written plan.
5 " HEARING OFFICER: Got it. So you say you
6 waﬁt to move more disgtribute more out into the
7 community. Have more of your outpafient gervices
8 out there and keep the scaﬁners and the MRI in the
9 - hogpital for inpatient and ED services?
10 MR. DAGLIO: That's right.
1% . HEARING OFFICER: Well it's hard - without the
12 volumesg it's hard fof us to see. I mean could you
13 just tell me I mean do you have like a figure you
14 can gay do the inpatient and ED volumes warrant
15 moving all of the ocutpatient scans off the hospital
16 campus?
17 MR. DAGLIC: So the
18 MS. HERLIHY: Other capacity prcblems with the
19 current CT scanners.
20 MR. DAGLIO: 'That's right. The CT scanner for
21 ED is certainly very well utilized. And when you
22 look at trying to schedule outpatients on that
23 scanner, it's very difficult. Emergencies come in,
24 o the patients get bumped, and they could wait an hour
25 or twoe for those. 8o we do have gignificant volumes
26 in the ED and for the inpatient the same purpose.
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1 We have a wvery disciplined team on the floor df
2 hospitals working a discharge plan and making sure
3 ' . patients get the appropriate imaging and results of
4 their imaging for the discharge plan. We want to
5 make sure that's not interrupted. What we have done
6 is scaled bkack the hours of operaticn of those
7 ‘scanners to make sure we're efficiently staffing
a those scanners. The ED goeg 24/7. But the
9 inpatient we do scale back services to really try to
10 manacge the imaging for the inpatients and that's
11 really to keep them clear. The MRI's we do have a
12 3-T MRT at the hospital campus. 8So that will always
13 have outpatients on it for patients who require a
14 higher level éf MRI imaging. So the MRI the 2-T
15 MRI will still support outpatient sgervices simply
16 because it's the only one we have in our fleet of
17 equipment. You really can't support more than one
18 3-T in this region I believe.
19 UNKNOWN: Okay. Well I'm looking at the
20 | volumes that are reported on our hospital reporting
21 system. But these are accurate. For CT sgcans, it
22 locoks like vyou said there's two scanners on the
23 | campus, so for inpatient only for Danbury, it looks
24 like 11,000 in tetal. So that would be 5,500 per
25 scanner. But I think the real guestion is you know,
26 is I mean I understand you're trying to improve the
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1 efficiency in the flow of both scanners, but each
2 one operating at 5,000 I mean is that a capacity
3 issue for the hospital?
4 DR. HUBER: If I could just reiterate a
5 . comment here?
6 HEARING OFFICER: Uh hm.
7 DR. SANDHU: Also I want to reiterate
2 everything that Mike said. Trying to do outpatients
=9 with a mix of inpatients, I think is very
10 detrimental and disadvantageous to the outpaltients
11 becausgse unfortunately they do get bumped guite
l12 fre@uently.
13 And alsc, specifically for the numbers in the
14 CT scanner. As I gaid, you know, looking at
15 utilization it really depends on the mix of cases
16 that vyou are doing to determine that exact number.
17 and actually one of the CT scanners that we have
18 there we've used predominantly for interventional
19 procedures, biopsieg, drainage, CT guided
20 procedures, which in and of itself takes up much
21 more time. %o in the amount of time that you're
22 going to be able to do one interventional biopsy
23 drainage procedure, theoretically you could probably
24 do two or three cutpatient scansg. So as a result
25 those numbers become very skewed and in fact, you
26 probably have to lock at it maybe as one and a half
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1 or one and a quarter CT scanners to lock at those
2 numbers realistically. Cause if I do you know five
3 interventional procedures, that literally is five or
4 six hours worth of time on that CT scanner. So ycu
5 know, that needs to be kept into consideration in
6 terms of utilization of the scanners within the
7 hospitals themselves.
8 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. And that‘s one
9 CT scanner on the hospital campus that's dedicated
19 for the interventional
12 DR. SANDHU: It's it agaln inpatients, ER
12 patients are also done on that scanner, but
13 predominantly utilized for interventional
14 procedures.
15 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
16 MR. HUBEER: Declining annual gtand-bysg at the
17 Newtownn location have been attributéble Lo
18 technician staffing problems. What changes will be
19 made in the future to resolve the situation?
20 MS. MARCHIONE: Toni Ann Marchione. We have a
21 large number of employees in the system that can
22 that are multi-modality, can do CT and MRI and
23 regular x-ray. We can easily back fill any leave of
24 absence or pregnancy leave or anything like that
25 where I think NDI at this point doesn't have that
26 capability. So we would be we have a lot more
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1 employees to use to ke able to back fill any issues
2 that they would havé there,
3 HEARING OFFICER: Coﬁld the volume at the NDI
4 facility be accommodated at either or both EDI and
5 RDI or perhaps even the hospital?
) | DR. SANDHU: I mean basically if you lock at
7 the numbers here T think they're pretty much at
8 complete utilization.
] HEARING OFFICER: Whatvdo you mean?
10 DR. SANDHU: Well if you're using 3,500 CT
11 scans per CT per year, we're doing well over that
12 number already. and I think getting back to the
13 point here in terms of accessibility, customer
14 satisfaction, ease of use, these are all significant
15 igsues for patient satisfaction. And you know, I
16 think having the capability of them meeting that
17 need is very important for the patients themselves.
18 HEARING OFFICER: The 2,500 number and correct
19 | me if I'm wrong, but I believe that was with MRI and
20 that's in our proposed imagihg standard which we
21 don't we're not in regulation yet. But CT and I
22 recall that tc be closger to 5,000 for an outpatient
23 OT scanner. So it locks when T look at RDI's
24 numbers at least for FY 2010 and even the nine mcnth
25 annualized we're talking about 3,000. 8o it seems’
26 you have existing capacity at RDI.
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1 MS8. MARCHIONE: Do you wani me to? Tonil Ann
2 _ Marchicne. We do have existing capacity at RDI.
3 The idea ié that we are at full capacity at DDI,
4 which is Danbury Diagnostic Imaging and the DMAC
5 _ which is also in Danbury. And to help alleviate
6 that capacity, we have Newtown patients that come
7 : down to Danbury and the DMAC that if we could
8 deccmpress the capacity by providing them service
9 = closer to home and faster imaging within two or
1cC three davysg; that's the idea of adding NDI to our
11 | services. |
12 HEARTNG CFFICER: Could you decompress that
13 at Ridgefield?
14 MS. MARCHIONE: We we could attempt that and
15 there are a lot ¢f the times where patients will
16 walt the longer amount of days instead of traveling
17 from Newtown to Ridgefield.
18 HEARING OFFICER: What is the traveling
19 _ digtance from Newtown to Ridgefield?
20 MS. MARCHTONE: I don't know if I cculd answer
21 that
22 HEARTHNG OFFICER: And if you don't know the
23 distance maybe time that it takeg?
24 DR. SANDHU: Basically from the center of
25 Newtown to Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging is probably
26 30 minutes.
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1 HEARING CFFTCER: So there might be some
2 hesitancy on the part of Newtown patients?
3 MR. DAGLIC: This is Mike Daglio again. For
4 our centralized scheduling we always offer first
5 available. 8o if a patient lives in Danbury or
6 wérks in Danbury, we always offer Ridgefield. And
7 _ many times they'll say, "I'd rather wait than drive
8 to Ridgéfield" for that. Again, the strategy of
g o ' bringing services closer to where our strategy is in
10 terms of primary care distribution, specialty
11 ' distribution, is to bring those services closer to
12 the community. Thig was a this is a low cost
13 propogal for us to add some capacity closer to our
14 distributed practices and distributed you know,
15 _ - growth areas where we have newer practices. So this
16 was just more of that distribution of capacity to
17 handle. So is there ability if you look within our
18 _ network, yes, there would be some capascity at the
19 ' hospital for example. But again, our strategy is to
20 move people out of the hospital, make 1t more
21 convenient to navigate our facilities to get their
22 outpatient services.
23 HEARING CFFICER: and I know I just asked
24 with respect to CT mainly, but MRI it locks like
25 that was declining at NDI as wéll. Could that ke
26 accommodated at some of the other facilities that
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1 volume?
2 MS. MARCHIONE: Again, Toni Ann Marchione.
3 That could be accommodated at the Ridgefield
4 facility. VBut again we're faced with the issue of
5 the patient choosing to come to Danbury which is
6 cleoser than Ridgefield and waiting for their
7 procedures.
8- HEARING OFFICER: What is the driving time
9 “from Newtown to Danbury?
10 MS. ZEPCOE: 15, 20.minutes I would szay.
11 DR, SANDHU: About 20 minutes.
12 "HEARING OFFICER: 2And it sounds as if those
13 patients.opt to go to Danbury rather than
14 Ridgefield. 1Ig there a lot of traffic in
15 Ridgefield?
16 MS. ZEPCOE: Ridgefield is further south. You
17 have to go by the mall and it's really one main road
18 to get in so it's traffic, vyes.
19 MS . HERLIHY:. This is Sally Herlihy. On the
20 attachment of the CON where we had it I think it
21 was pages 21 and 22, it showed the volume for the
22 patients for the last three years that utilized both
23 the Danbury and Ridgefield facilities and then page
24 23 was the actual Newtown Diagnostic Imaging. And
25 if you look at those charts, the Newtown volume is
26 relatively low in utilization of both of those
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1 facilities probably because of the distance and the
2 access. Whereas Newtown is obviously the number one
3 ' town of patient reéidents for the Newtown Diagnostic
4 Imaging, but it's much lower on both the MRI énd cr
5 ‘ ' scan of the two existing facilities.
6 | HEARING OFFICER: I mean that's my concern.
7 Is the Newtown has low utilization and it seems that
8 you have existing capacity at least one of your
9 : cutpatient facilities. So that's why I'm asking
10 gome of those questions.
11 MR. DAGLIO: They're good guestions to ask in
12 terms of capacity. BSo if you look at our aggregate
13 capacity there's capacity even in New Milford you
14 could say. 8o again, it's distribution where to
15 _ Sally's point, 21% of the patients at DDI come from
16 a couple of towns around Newtown that we've
17 discussed in our CON application. So if you look at
18 - Bethel, Newtown, Sandy Hook, and Southbury, 21% of
19 the patient volumes at DDI in Danbury come from
20 thoge towns, where NDI cbviously is a closer
21 solution for them. In RDI, those same towns make up
22 6% of the volume. So it's not as easy to get
23 patients to go down Route 7 south of the mall into
24 Ridgefield for their imaging if they live in those
25 : towng, éspecially Newtown intc Southbury.
26 our strategic growth plan and again I'm happy
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1 to share that with you, includes new practices in
2 Monroe, in Wilton, in the more southern parts of the
3 areas that will drive and ocur projectionsg will
4 drive some of the growth in those locations. 8o
5 they're not specifically discussed in our CON, but
6 we'd be happy to share with you what cur network
7 strategic plan ig for primary care officeszs and
8 digtribution specialty care south of Ridgefield
9 which would bring imaging up and south of Newtown:
10 which would also bring imaging up as well. And
11 those are some of the projectionzg we have for
12 growing utilization of ouf serviées.
13 UNKNOWN : I'm going fo ask probably the same
| 14 overall guestion just more blgntly. So 1if you could
15 really just address by acguiring this pra;tice why
16 you need Danbury Hospital, the system, Western
17 Connecticut system needs these two additilonal pieces
18 of equipment for the record.
19 MR. DAGLIO: For the record. Consistent with
20 thig is Mike Daglio, Senior V.P. of Operations. To
21 be consistent with our strategy of growing -- our
22 distributicn strategy for health care services, to
23 have imaging only in speéific locationg or bkack to
24 Danbury at the mother ship if vou wiil, all coming
25 back is not part of cur strategy. Our strategy is
26

to get the serviceg out into those communities. Our
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i - long term strategy is to be further cut into those
2 communities where these services exist or they will
3 exist for our network. Our goal is to bring all of
4 our ancillary and specialty care and laboratory
5 care, imaging care, closer to those markets to those
6 dreas of distribution that we're focusing on. It's
7 not as easy to have pétients come back to New
8 Milford or Danbury or Ridgefield when we have a
9 C '~ capacity oppertunity in Newtown, a very low cost
.10 | option for the record, to add capacity without
11 adding capacity to the region. You know, we
12 understand in aggregate there is capacity and that
13 is true., But to get it distributed in a more even
14 focus for us and to bring it closer to the patients
15 is really is really where we're going with this.
16 So you know, I understand where you're coming
17 from, but it‘s in terms of this our ability to be
18 able tc move the ancillary support services closer
19 to where we want to be for our primary care
20 physiciang and our specialty. That's what it's
21 about. It's about our strategy for distribution and
22 maybe that would be helpful if we shared more of
23 that with vou to kind of paint that picture.
24 ‘ UNKNOWN: I. just don't want you to have to
25 recreate a plan, but

26 MR. DAGLIC: It's very consistent. It's not
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1 difficult to
2 _ UNKNOWN : Why vou need it and supports that
3 HEARING OFFICER: What iate file number are we
4 on? |
5 [CROSS CONVERSATION]
6 HEARING CFFICER: I guess that would be 4.
7 MR. DAGLTO: It's very consistent with what we
8 did in Southbury. Patients weren't going to drive
9 16 miles to Danbury for their cardiovascular
10 imaging. We wanted to bring it closer to them. We
11 | ' had a cardiology practice as part of ocur network out é
12 there. 7o bring those services closer to them is %
i3 really is really it's all about our strategy of |
14 distribution of gervices.
15 UNKNOWN : We'll call it the gtrategy for
16 digtribution of
17 MR. DAGLIO: Health Care Services.
18 UNKNCWN: -- Health Care Services.
19 MS. HERLIHY: This is Sally Herlihy. In the
20 ' pre-file on Attachment B, page 12, it actually gave
21 you a picture of the service area and the map and
22 the location. The Newtown Diagnostic Imagiﬁg
23 facility is the only one east of the hospital and
24 thé location is still within the primary service
25 érea, but positioned between the physician offices
26 where those patients are being referred for imaging
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i gerviceg. So it would create access.
2 HEARING OFFICER: Did you-all provide us with
3 ah original of this pre-file? Cause I have a fax
4 copy and it's not 1t doesn't come out probably as
5 nicely in a fax.
6 MS. HERLIHY: We can provide that, ves.
7 HEARING OFFICER: ‘I like maps.
8 MS. HERLIHY: We sent a EDF, but vyves we can.
o HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
10 MS. HERLIHY: .- Absolutely.
11 [CRCSS COMMENTING]
12 MS. HERLIHY: This is Sally Herlihy. I have
13 the original that was faxed to you if you'd like to
14 take it?
15 "HEARING OFFICER: Is that your only ccpy? 1
16 don't want to take that.
17 MS. HERLIHY: I have the PDF version. You can
18 have it. Would you like a copy of the map? This is
19 the original. |
20 HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. It would be
21 helpful. I think the map would look better in color
22 instead of shades of grey.
23 That s so much better.
24 MR. DAGLIO: Sc if you see on the map as we
25 move as we move to provide services eastward, to
26 consclidate all of that volume back at Danbury where
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1 we have where we're approaching capacity at DDI and
2 the DMAC building, it would be very difficult for usg
3 to absorb that into our busiest centers. The only
4 other option at that point is the Ridgefield Center
5 which has some capacity; we all agree. But to move
6 _patiehts east of that area over to Ridgefield is
7 just we don't see that happening today in our
8 existing centralized scheduling process where the
9 scheduler has a view of every center. So to bring
10 that volume to congolidate that volume or that
11 capacity into our two busiest locations because in
12 my view point in our strategy to bring them back
13 into the hospital is not what we want to do. But to
14 bring them back to DDI or to DMAC building would be
15 the only other option and both of those are
16 approaching capacity with the volumes that they have
17 there. The RDI is the only other sgolution, but it
18 Just doesn't even happén today in our distributicn
19 in trying to move patients from east of Danbury over
20 to Ridgefield. Tt does happen in the southern part
21 of Danbury, but not so much east of Danbury where
22 they'd rather gtay closer to where they work or
23 where they live to have their appointmeﬁts. |
24 HEARING OFFICER: 8So there was discussion
25 earlier about the replacement of the one glice CT
26 gcanner with a 16 glice I think it was. Was that
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1 factored into the financials eventually replacing
2 the CT scanner at some point?
3 MS. ZUPCOE: Thig is Jen Zupcoce. Not it was
4 not. And that was largely because the volume is
5 also not has not been factored into the financials
6 either. So any incremental volume associated with a
7 | ‘ 16 slice was not added in.
8 HEARING OFFICER: Ckay. The projections you
9 said the projections with a 16 slice weren't
10 factored into the financial projection? But it
11 appears that the volume projections for NDI did take
12 | inte account the upgrading the CT scanner
13 eventually. Is that correct?
14 MS. MARCHIONE: Toni Ann Marchione. That
15 algo the projections included in upgrade of the
16 hours, not just of the CT scanner we were going to
17 " be open longer and the addition of a Saturday alsc;
18 that's how we were going to be adding capacity on
i9 the CT scanner.
20 HEARING QFFICER: At NDI? And that's at NDI?
2. . . MR. DAGLIO: Yes.
22 MS. MARCHIONE: Yes.
23 HEARING OFFICER: So you're projecting 1,200
24 MRI's and about 900 CT scanners, is that correct in
25 2014 with a new piece of
26 ‘MS. MARCHIONE: No, I don't no, we did not
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1 include the equipment in that projection.

2 _ HEARTNG OFFICER: 8o basically the upgrade of

3 the equipment is not included in the projections.

4 MR. DAGLIO: Right.

5 MS. MARCHICNE: That's correct.

6 MS. ZUPCOE: Correct.

7 HEARING OFFICER: And yvou're not certain of

8 when that's going to happen?

9 . MR. DAGLIO: We had an annual capital process
10 every vear where we determine our priorities for the
11 health network. It is anticipated we could
12 potentially do that next year, but again we have
13 significant capital investments that we're making
14 right now in New Milford Heospital as part of the new
15 network they have significant IT investment we're
16 making there. 8o we we don't know what 2013's
17 capital capital projects will look like yet. We dc
18 _ know what 2012 will look like. We typically buy the
19 equipment and then depreciate it over seven years or
20 s0. 8o that seven year depfeciétion would be
21 factored intc an annual P & I, for the location. It
22 would be typically how we would structure that. AL
23 _ some point there will be an end of life issue with
24 this scanner; we will have to replace it. : But we
25 typically have a flset management process of about
26 geven tce eight years for a CT scanner,
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1 ' ' MR. HUBER: Jack Huber for the record. I have
2 a couple of questions on some of the financials.
3 Can you provide a break out of the proposed 51.2
4 million dollar capital expenditure, s?ecifically
5 addressing the cost for the proposed CT scanner and
6 MRI séanner?
7 MS. ZUPCOE: T think the $£1.2 million dollar
8 is the investment in order to purchase the business
‘9. from DRA.
10 MR. HUBER: Okay. So there are no costs
11 attributable to the units themselves?
12 MS. ZUPCOE: No.
13 MR. DAGLIO: What we had is this is Mike
14 Daglic. We had a third party independent evaluation
15 firm come in and do an audit for us on the asset
16 purchase evaluating. the business as well as.the
17 7 agsets within the business and the evaluation came
18 | back at about $1.2 million dollars, all inclusive.
19 MR. HUBER: With resgpect to the proposed
20 - acguisition of the two imaging scanners, please
21 provi@e a geparate revenue and expense statement.
22 The first statement would cover the projected
23 , operation of the proposed CT scanner service. And
24 the second statement would cover the projected
25 operation of the proposed MRI scanner. And the
26 revenue and expense statement that you filed with
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1 the proposal, it's combined
2 MS. ZUBCOE: It's combined.
3 MR. HUBER: -- and we're asking for it tc be
4 geparated.
5 ' HEARING OFFICER: 8¢ is that a late file?
6 MR. HUBER: Sc that would be late file #5.
7 , HEARING OFFICER: I believe we asked about
8 listing providers in the area in the CON
9 ..application, but volumes weren't.provided.
10 MR. DAGLIO: By provider?
11 HEARING OFFICER: Right. Are you able to get
12 any of those volumes for any of the providers? |
13 MR. DAGLIO: Yes.
14 ' HEARTNG OFFICER: You are?
15 MR. DAGLIO: Getting volumes by providers?
16 Sure. |
17 MS. HERLIHY: Can you restate the guestion®?
18 I'm sorry. I think we're answering two different
19 things.
20 [CRCSS COMMENTING]
21 MS. MARCHIONE: Other vyou mean for other --
22 MR. DAGLIC: You mean of other people? No,
23 no. "
24 E [CROSS COMMENTING]
25 MR. DAGLIO: So you mean Dr. Erliique's
26 . . practice for example?
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Well, I think he gave us
2 it |
3 ‘MRL DAGLIO: Yeah, we don't know who provided
4 yeah, we don't know. All of thé things he proposed
5 we don't know those to be factual, his Volumes, his
G people who refer to him, we don't know that
7 _ information.
8 ' HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
9 [CROSS COMMENTING]
10 MR. DAGLIC: I thought you meant our own,
11 gsure, we ¢an provide our own.
12 HEARTNG CFFICER: All right.
13 MR. DAGLIC: Let's get c¢an we get that right
14 in the record?
15 ' HEARING OFFICER: I wasg getting excited.
16 | MR. DAGLIO: TI would like to know.
17 HEARTING OFFICER: Okay, it was worth asking,
18 but you knew the angwer. So I'm going to have Mr,
19 Huber go through the late files just so we're clear
20 on what we need.
21 _ MR. HUBER: Late file #1 is a revised
22 Attachment C from the pretrial testimony providing
23 : us with the twelve month CT and MRI scan volumes for
24 | fiscal year 2011. Late file #2, -a table that
25 | illustrates'the annual volume wait a minute wailt a
26 minute. I wrote two things on different lines here.
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1 The table that indicates the total volume by
2 location in a format similar to Attachment C.
3 HEARING OFFICER: No, walt
4 MS. ZUPCCE: No wait. It was by scanner.
5 | MR. HUBER: No, that was
6 EEARING OFFICER: Late file #1 is suppesed to
7 do total volume including inpatient and outpatient.
8 Late file #2 is a table showing breaking down the
9 £ hospital scannerg' volume by sgcanner.
10 MR. HUBER: Okay. Should I start from the
11 top?
i2 " HEARING CFFICER: Are those clear now, late
13 file #1 and #2, we're good?
14 UNKNOWN: Uh hm.
15 _ HEARING OFFICER: Ckay.
16 - MR. HUBER: Late file #3 1s an explanatiocn as
17 to how capacity was determined for DDT and RDI.
18 ‘ Late file #4 is strategy for distribution of health
19 care services. Late file #6 i1s revenue and expense
20 gstatements individually addressing the CT and the
21 ' MRI acquisitions.
22 : HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I think that
23 concludes the hesring. Did you all want to make a
24 ' - closing statement?
25 MR. DAGLIO: I actually had a question for
26 clarification just on thig if it's ckay, the
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1 _ strategic plan of distribution. To the level of |
2 ' detall there are a number of providers out in the
3 community who are looking to work with health
4 networks because of the external forces on payers
5 and reimbursement for private practices and they're
& looking to join a network. To the extent that we
7 know who we're talking to in terms of and why we
8 think this igs a real need for the distributed
9 distributed imaging center, to what level of detail
10 would you be asking us to disclcose some of that?
11 Many of these people want that confidential in terms
12 ' of - in terms of the discussions we're having, but
13 they're playing intc our thoughts in terms of how we
14 . need to have a distributed anciilary strategy. 1Is
15 it towns? Is it specialties? Is it you know, those
16 types of things thaﬁ you're looking for?
17 HEARING OFFICER: You can probably state
18 'gpecialties' without stating the doctor's name. I
19 think that would be fine.
20 MR. DAGLIO: I meant that is playing into a
21 lot of our thinking here in terms of where we need
22 to bring the services to them. That isn't obviously
23 " ¢lear in the CON, but it's clear in some of our
z24 projections'that we know of. So I just wanted to
25 get that clarification.
26 HEARING OFFICER: Would you like to make a
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1 closing statement? You don't have to; it's not a
2 reguirement.
3 MS., GERNER: I think.on behalf of Western
4 Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, we'd like to
5 thank you for giving us an opportunity to respond
6 with late files cértainly to some of the issues that
7 may not have been out in the open initially, but are
8 kind of subsurface issues that if it will help in
9 understanding the.importance of this application to
10 them for the future, not just for today but as is
11 mentioned, in the testimony that it's an opportunity
12 for two pieces of eguipment that are already out
13 there in the community that it doesn't require the
14 purchase of additional equipment at thisrpoint, but
15 simply the opportunity to bring the sarvice out to a
16 place that already exists with'patients who axre
17 already using that facility. And hopefully the
18 answer ig we'll help you to see how that volume
19 will grow in that area to £ill that space that is
20 out there already estzkblished and already equipped
21 to go forward into the future. That's it. Thank
22 you.
23 HEARING OFFICER: One last thing. We talked
24 about the emails that we had receivéa. I was just
25 looking now I can't find it. Ch here. In the last
26 it's page 3 of that email communication from Dr.
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1 Erligue. It talks about using an average
2 reimbursement for all modalities and multiplying the
3 total number of procedures. I think it might be
4 helpful if you could address that part. You don't
5 have to do it right now on the record, I mean unless
6 you want te. But
7 MS. ZUPCOE: I can do it now. It 1is actuzslly
.8 incorrect the statement that is there. We actually
9 when the financials were develbped, we actually de
10 model the gross charges and the net révenue by
11 modality based on the volume specific to either MRI,
12 CT. What yoursaw there was just Lrying to follow
13 the OHCA format for providing by payer the total
14 grogs. revenue split by payer. So it didn't ask us
15 to provide it for CT versus MRI versusg x-ray
16 separately, so we came up with a blended number to
17 show on that document. However, the detail behind
18 it is definitely was prepared based on modality --
19 very specific how our contracts work and how our
20 charge is, which is congistent with the CPT document
21 that we provided which is you know, éharges by CpPT.
22 |
23 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.
24 MS. ZUPCCE: So it was prepared accurate.
25 HEARTING CFFICER: Did you want to provide like
additional documentation

26
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1 MS. ZUPCOE: Sure.
2 HEARING OFFICER: -- showing how you actually
3 came up with
4 MS. ZUPCOE: Yes, absolutely.
5 HEARING QFFICER: -- the numbers. Just like
6 you stated, just so we have it c¢learly and reflected
7 on the fecord.
8 MS. ZUPCOE: I think T think what else it
9 will show as part of the #5.I think. 2s I try to
10 highlight the revenue and expenses for the late
11 filing #5, it would come you could see it there.
12 HEARING OFFICER: ©Oh, okay.
13 [CROSS CONVERSATION]
14 MS. ZUPCOE: Becausge in thé revenue and
15 expenses you're asking for CT and MRI, so you'd see
16 it there.
17 | HEARING OFFICER: Okay, that sounds peffect.
18 Great. Thank vyou. In conclusion of this hearing,
19 a proposed final decision will be rendered did I
20 already say this pursuant to Gensral Statute,
21 Section 4-179 -- in accordance with 4-179, the
22 applicant shall have 14 days to request oral
23 argument and file briefs or to waive thig right.
24 That's once the propcsed final decision is rendered.
25 Obviocusly we have late files that we're going to
26 recelve from you first and I just realize as I gay
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1 that, I don't think we gave you a date in which to
2 file those. Typically we go about two weeks out.
3 So do you have a calendar? November 8th? November
4 8th for late files. Is that enough time?
5 MR. DAGLIC: We'll make it.
6 HEARING OFFICER: 2ll right. So November 8 for
7 the late files. 2And in the meantime, this hearing:
8 identified by Docket #11-31703CCON is hereby
g recessed. We will close the hearing once we receive

10 the late files and review them and make sure that we

11 have all the information requested.

12 ATL: Thank you.

13

14 [HEARING RECESSED]
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1
2 . CERTIFI.CATE
3
4 I, Mary Indomenico do hereby certify that the forgoing

5 transcript of the hearing held on October 25, 2011 at the

6 Department of Public Health, Office of Health Care Access is a

7 true and accurate transcription of the recording presented tc me
8 to the best of my knowledge and ability.

9 IN WITNESS THERECF, T have hereunto set my hand this 31st

10 day of January, 2012.
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

January 24, 2011

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE CM RRR #9171082133393205517262
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application, Docket Number 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in Newtown

NOTICE OF ORAL ARGUMENT

Sally F. Herlihy, on behalf of Western Connecticut Health Network, has requested oral
argument regarding the recommendation of Hearing Officer Melanie A. Dillon, Esq.
Pursuant to Section 4-179, oral argument has been scheduled as follows:

Tuesdav, February 14, 2012 at 2:00 p.m.
Department of Public Health, Third Floor Hearing Room
410 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut

Respondent’s brief shall be filed on or before February 7, 2012. Please contact Diane Buzzetti
at (86(}) 509-7648 if you have any questions.

On February 14, 2012, you will have fifteen minutes to present your argument,

BY:

Lisa A. Davis, MB.A., B.SN. R.N.
Deputy Commissioner

c: Kimberly R. Martone, Director of Operations, OHCA

Telephone Device for the Deaf: (860) 509-7191
410 Capitol Avenue - MS #
RO, Box 340308 Hartford, CT 06134
Affirmative Action / An Equal Ovportunily Employer
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February 15, 2012

The Hon. Lisa A. Davis, M.B.A.,, B.S.N,, R.N.
Deputy Commissioner

Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO

Public Health Hearing Section

P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re: Certificate of Need Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC in
Newtown, CT

Dear Deputy Commissioner Davis,

Attached please find the original and two copies of the Applicant’s Request to Re-Open the
Hearing in the above-captioned docket.

Please call me at (203) 739-4903 if you have any questions regarding this request, or if any
further action needs to be taken by the Applicant.

Respectfully submitted,

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

cc: Marianne Horn, Esq.
DPH Legal Counsel

Diane Buzzetti, Paralegal
DPH Hearing Section




STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

DOCKET NO.: 11-31703-CON

WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH

NETWORK AFFILIATES, INC.

ACQUISITION OF CT SCANNER &

MRISCANNER FROM NEWTOWN

DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING, LLC FEBRUARY 15,2012

REQUEST TO RE-OPEN HEARING

The Applicant in the above-captioned docket, Western Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc., respectfoily requests that the Department of Public Health re-open the
hearing in this docket to admit evidence submitted to the agency in its “Exceptions to
Proposed Final Decision” dated February 7, 2012. Oral argument on the Exceptions was
held on February 14, 2012.

Specifically, the Applicant asks that the following evidence submitted as part of the
Exceptions document be admitted to the Record:

1. Appendix A — MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital and Volume of MRI
scanning moving from Hospital to Outpatient Facilities

2. Appendix C - Letters of Support

The original hearing on this matter was held on October 25, 2011. The Exceptions were
presented to the Department of Public Health on February 14, 2012 and heard by Deputy
Commissioner Lisa Brady. At that time the Exceptions document was admitted to the
Record, but without Appendices A and C.

Respectfully submitted,

\géé, (L Fr Hesdideey
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning




ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A -~ MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital and Volume of MRI scanning
moving from Hospital to Qutpatient Facilities

Appendix C — Letters of Support



APPENDIX A

Danbury Hospital’s MRI Scanners




Table 1 - MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital

A B C D E F
Average | Number Actual Average | Variance | Additional
scanner of MRI annual number of Case Capacity
time in cases minutes it | of cases volumes | atan OP
Minutes performed | takes to column D | ata Center vs
for at the perform would Hospital- | an
Specific Hospital specific translate | based inpatient
Cases at MRI to in an MRI center by
the procedures | outpatient | center vs | procedure
Hospital ! at the MRI an type*
hospital center = outpatient
{AxB) D/45 MRI
minutes’ | Center =
D-B’
Exam Type
Anesthesia
180 196 35,193 782 387 300%
Arthrograms
70 127 8,896 198 71 56%
Abdomen w/Contrast
90 283 25,515 567 283 100%
Bilat Breast
90 205 18,476 411 205 100%
Breast Biopsy
120 10 1,173 26 16 167%
Needle Placement
120 20 2,346 52 33 167%
MRA
90 323 29,034 645 323 100%
Runoffs — lower
extremities 150 20 2,933 65 46 233%
Face/Neck/Orbits
w/Contrast 90 78 7,039 156 78 100%
Other .
45 4,057 182,562 4,057 - 0%
Total MRI Exams at - o - '
Hospital ' 59 5,318 313,166 6,959 1,641 N%.
IP additional minutes
to all IP cases’ 30 1,295 38,850 863 N/A N/A
Emergency Room
additional minutes to
all ER cases® 30 98 2,933 65 N/A N/A
Total Additional
Minutes to add to IP
and ED cases 1,393 41,783 929
GRAND TOTAL
Capacity Variance’ 5,318 354,948 7,888 2,570 48%




Notes for Table 1:

1.

2.

Column A: The average time it takes each Hospital-based MRI exam type to be
completed

Column D: The average time for a standard outpatient MRI exam to be completed in
any of the Network’s facilities is 45 minutes. Dividing the total number of Hospital-
based exam minutes by 45 minutes yields the number of MRI exams that could be
completed in the same time period at an outpatient facility.

Column E: When taking the same amount of total MRI exam minutes from the
Hospital-based MRI exam volume, the Hospital performed 5,318 MRI exams, while
an outpatient MRI facility could produce 6,959 standard outpatient MRI exams, or
1,641 additional MRI exams.

Column F: This represents the number of incremental MRI exams that could be
performed in an outpatient center in the form of capacity percentages. By way of
example, in the same amount of time it takes to perform 196 MRI exams with
anesthesia at the Hospital, an outpatient MRI center can perform 782 standard
outpatient MRI exams or a 300% improvement in capacity.

Inpatient additional minutes to all IP cases: This row represents the additional time it
requires to perform an MRI exam on inpatients, due to transportation and
maneuvering a patient from their bed, to the MRI scanner. During the time of
transportation and maneuvering of the patient, the MR1 scanner remains idle. Of the
5,318 cases indicated, 1,295 exams were performed on inpatients. When you
multiply the estimated 30 minutes of time to the 1,295 inpatient exams performed
during the period, it requires an additional 38,850 minutes of time on the MRI
scanners. An outpatient MRI facility conld perform an additional 863 MRI exams
during the time it took to transport and maneuver patients on 1,295 inpatient exams.
Emergency additional minutes to all E.R. cases: The Emergency Room is located on
the first floor of the Tower building and the MRI Department is located on the 3™
floor of the Stroock Building, The separation of these two locations causes the same
phenomenon related to transportation and maneuvering of patients as the Inpatients.
When using the same estimated time factor of 30 minutes, multiplied by 98 E.R. MRI
exams, the result is an additional 2,933 minutes of MRI time. An outpatient MRI
facility could perform an additional 65 outpatient MRI exams during the same time
period.

In Summary: It is the Applicant’s position that many Hospital-based MRI exams are
more complex, and require greater time to complete than the standard MRI exams
that are performed on a standard outpatient MRI scanner. Therefore, capacity,
measuted by the number of exams performed on an MRI scanner, must be viewed
differently for a Hospital-based scanner versus an outpatient facility scanner. Based
on the number of exams at the Hospital MRI scanners and the types of exams these
represent, it is the applicant’s estimate that the Network’s outpatient facilities operate
at 48% greater exam capacity than the Hospital scanners can.

Based on this analysis, and using a weighted average of 104 minutes as an average scan time
for the Hospital MRI exams (as demonstrated in Table 1), it is clear that the Hospital MRI
scanners at the Hospital are at full capacity. To illustrate this point, the applicant has



completed the template it uses to measure capacity on its outpatient MRI scanners and
adapted 1t for the Hospital MRI scanners (inpatient and outpatient).

Table 2 — Capacity Analysis on Hospital MRI Scanners

MRI
M T w TH FRI SAT TOTAL/Wk
7:30 7:30 7:30 7:30 7:30
Hours of Operation AM AM AM AM AM  7:30 AM
Various periods
within timeframe 8:00pm 8:00pm 8:00pm 8:00pm 8:00pm 4:00P.M.
Operating Hours 1.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 8.5
Operating Hours 3T 9 9 9 9 9
MRI Scanner 1 Max
capacity 12 12 12 12 12 11
MRI Scanner 2 Max
capacity 9 9 9 9 9
Total Max. capacity :
(patients) 21 21 21 21 21 11 116
Number of patients _
Random Week 17 A8 20 2R R 111
Random Week R e~ e~ SR~ X B~ R [V I 120
Avg 18 19.5 225 225 22,5 10.5 1155
% Capacity 86% 93% 107% 107%  107% 95% 100%

Table 3 — Shift in MRI Volumes from Inpatient to Qutpatient Settings

The strategic initiative to shift MRI outpatients from testing at Danbury Hospital to non-
hospital-based outpatient facilities operated by the Applicant WCHNA can be observed in
the bar graph, with 546 reductions in Danbury Hospital volume and 815 procedure growth in
OP centers for the same time period.
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APPENDIX C:

Letters of Support




Siate of Conueetirat
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

STATE CAPITOL
HARTEQRD, CONMECTICUY 06106-1591

REPREBENTATIVE CHRIBTOFHER LYBDY WCE CHARMAN

DN HUNDRED SO0TH ASSEMELY DIBTRICT PUBLIG HEALTH COMITTES
LEGSIATIVE SFRGCE BRLBME WMEMBER
BUOEE 2113 BDLKATION GOAKSTTEE
RARTRORD, OT 02DE-1381 FLIRAM SERVICES COMRYTEE

CAFITO - AD-EE0G
TOLL FREE: w0kl razys
FEY SOD-240-0008
AU Chratonhar L poda R e

laary 11, 2013 5

Tanmizsioner Jewed belion, MD MPA, MPi
Dopannwent of Public Health

Offiee of Health Cave Acvess

455 Capitol Avensic M2 B1310A

Honfowd, O7 061330368

BPoar Dr. Mutlen,

{ ais vwriring in Support of the tanster of ownership of MNewtowa Disgeostic Imagine fom Newlows Disgnostic
Imaging Assoeiates to the Westsn Cosnectieut Health Network, As Vice-Chairmon of the Pubdic ealth Cossmiftees
and hpwiown's Stare Represamtive, | hove an infernst 'n mainlainag access o medical core for the wembers of aur
conBsmUnity,

It Is my anderstsnding tit your office has when the winast step of only slfowing v sl fexesfer of evenershin,
Yevierday, | spoke 2t lenzil with PPFL staff ta try sl better inuderstand this decision. Fven afisr gpeaking with
vous 812fT, ] remiin concemed about this decision, as it may feopardize the transfer of the Ruellity. As we confinus o
aciclress e inyrsant issue of bealt case sefbrin, i is inpockai e we siive 10 create epparmnitiss 19 provids
bueiter care of fower costs. Alewing Bacility to enter he netwerle will 2llew for improvad consinuity of care,
unificatizn of medicad records ard more dirne communizalion with the ether medicel and surgical servizes our
citizens are cusrenlly recaiving.

Neswlown [Hagnosiic Ineaging i the iy Bnsging facilfy in Mewtown and serves pther niighbaring comemanitios a3
wietl, This is especially insportant for our seafor eitizens 1o secaive the wre they nead. In ader w qaingain this
srvive for pears o came and enhance the medical care snd aovess for the conmunity, 1 am requesting that you
wwegisidur vour decision aud alow 3 Al sramefer obd poachase te take plase.

Thank veu for yvewr voasiderstion.

iAF

qua e gﬁ{ Lyddy
Steds Representative
I 6% Distriny

SERVINE JHEVWTOVN



£ Pasricis Liodm
First Selechinam

Mewtown Musieigal Conter

3 Primeme Streg]

Tewtown, i onnecticnt 964
Tol. (343) 2704381

Fax (2031 2HR4265
jfﬁmf.s.“:‘i‘éﬂm@%}!f&’lﬁ’x‘é}ﬂ’fi74'& $ i

WL HEWII DS gt T{) “"N {)F N{\:W’TQWTQ
OFFICE OF THE FIRST SELECTMAN

Jamuary 17, 2042

Jewerd Mullen, MEL MBA, MPH
CT: Melanie Dilkon Esq.
Connectiowt 0ffice of Meatth Care Access

Prear D Mailen:

As Newtorwn Firs Selectman T hawe as interest in mabtaning access 1o medical care o the members
of our community.

i is wmry urderswrding tat ooy office has taken the unusual sten of allowing only 2 partial twansfer of
ervaesship of Newsown Disgnostic fmaging o the Wegern Connactics Health Network, We appreciare
the current clirate 6f health care refbnr: with sceowumtable cuse organizations forming and networks of
scrvice pravidess aligning o provide better care at lower costs. | have boen informed that pariisf
transfer wodd Bkely sliminate considerntion of Newiown Diagnostic a5 part of thar hesth care network,
Criven thal situstion, and recognizing dha the vast mutority of our residents reeoive their health care
through thar network, we are comverned that the partial traensfer would essentinlly peutricl or slimingte
aciess 1o the services of Newtoom Diagrostic. il mansfer of Nowtown [Hagmostic o Western
Cennegticst Health MNetwork allows for improved contimuity of care, wnifieation of medical records and
more disset corrmunscation wids the other medival end surgienl services nur ditizens ase currently
revetving.

Newown Diagnestic knaging s dhe only maging Rcility i Mewtows, by order s eintain g sarvice

for verrs o comwr and enlunce the medicsl care and access Tar e community | am regiesing that vou
reconsider your devision and afiow a full iransfer and purchase 1 wke place.

[ Barticia Hodes
Fiest Selecrrman

e Adem Welber, MLD



Japuary 10, 2012

Jewel Mullen, MDY, MPA, MPH
Comnisioner

Ofiee of Health Core Access
419 Capitol Avenue

SIS #13HCA

Hartford, CT 8013440308

Drear Dy, Mullen,

We are writing in support of the ransfer of ownership of Newiown [Magnostic Imaging from
Newtown Dingnostic Imaging Assoctates to the Western Connecticut Health Wetwork. As
meinbers of the comnunity we have sn interest In maintaindng aweess w medical care for the
meinbers of ot commuity.

It is our understanding that vour sffice has teken the unusual step of enly allowing z partiat
frapsfer of Gwnership. This may jeopardize the transfer of the Tacility. In the carent climate of
health care seform where aceourtable care organizations ase forming and networks of service
providers ate aligniog to provide better care at lowsr costs 1 18 imnportant to us that the facility
enter the Network where the vast majority of cur citizens receive thelr health care. This will
allow fos improved continuity of care, unification of medical yecords and more direct
commniirdcation with the other medical and surgical services our cithzens sre currently receiving.

Mewtown Disgnostic Imaging is the only hnaging facility in Newtown, In order 1o maintain this
service for years i come and enhance the medical care and access for the conununity, we are
requesting that you reconsider vour deecision and allow & full ranafer and purchise 10 take place,

Thank you for your cansideration.

Sincerely, E5oans ‘fﬁi v Lole O B L
‘ /fzﬁ—u & Cﬁf«%ﬂ"

. o R i
%{ iy o, Jhachsee, W\; thtc
Mewtown, Conae tmm}gp \{O\gﬁtt%z%

iy %M Weekons

e Melanie Dillan, e3q. kdém{
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lanuary 10, 2012

Tl Mullen, 810, MPA, MPH

Commisioner

Office nf Health Care Access

419 Capitol Avenue

A5 F13HOCA :
Hartford, CT 96134-0308

Dier v, Mublen,

We are writing in suppost of the transfir of ownership of Mewtown Pringriostic Imaging from
Newtewn Diagnostic Irmaging Associates 1o the Western Connecticut Health Mook, As
members of the conunumity we have an intersst in maintaining access to medieal care for the
members of our conmnily.

1t is cor understanding that your office has taken the urmisual step of enly allowing a paxtinl
transter of owaership. This may jeopardize the transfer of the facility. n the curvent clitnate of
beslth care refonn whees accountable care organizations are forming and neiworks of service
providers are aligning to provide better care at lower costs it is imporant 1o us that the Faoility
enter the Network where the vast majorily of o citizens recebve thely heakth care. Thiz wijl
wilow for irmproved contbnuity of eare, unifieation of medical records and more direot
communicaton with the other medical and surgical services our citizens ave currently receiving.

Newlown Diagnostic Tmaging is the only imaging facility in Newtown. In order to maintain this
service for years o cowne and enhanee the medical care and secesa for the comnunity, we are
requesiing that you reconsider your deelsion and allow a Full trunsfur and purchase to take place,

Thank yau for vour vonsideration,

Mewiown, Connecticnt Rotary Club

¢c: Melanie Dillan, esq.
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WESTERN CONNECTICUT
HEALTH NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL -~ NEW MILFORD HGSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave,
Danbury, CT 08810

WasternConnesticufHeatthNatwork, org
DanburyHospital.org
NewMifordHospital,org

The Honorable Jewel Mullen, M.D.
Comunissioner

Depattment of Public health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO
Public Health Hearing Section
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re: Certificate of Need Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC in
Newtown, CT

Dear Commissioner Mullen,

Attached please find the original and two copies of the Applicant’s Exceptions to the
Proposed Final Decision issued in the above-captioned case on January 5, 2012, Please call me if
you have any questions regarding this submission.

The Applicant, Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., (“WCHNA") and its
parent company, Western Connecticut Health Network (“WCHN") thank you, in advance, for the
time you take to consider the information that we are providing.

Respectfully submitted,

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE TRTET AR
Vice President, Planning L s

cc: Diane Buzzettl, Paralegal
DPH Hearing Section




STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

DOCKET NO.: 11-31703-CON

WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH

NETWORK AFFILIATES, INC.

ACQUISITION OF CT SCANNER &

MRISCANNER FROM NEWTOWN

DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING, LLC FEBRUARY 7, 2012

EXCEPTIONS TO PROPOSED FINAL DECISION

BACKGROUND

Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., (“WCHNA™), the Applicant in OHCA
Docket No. 11-31703-CON, hereby presents exceptions to the Proposed Final Decision
(“Proposed Decision”) rendered by the hearing officer on January 5, 2012. In iis certificate
of need application (“the Application™), WCHNA sought to acquire two pieces of imaging
equipment from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (“NDI”) ', a privately operated facility in
Newtown that owns and operates 1 CT scanner and 1 MRI scanmer. The Proposed Decision
approved the acquisition of the CT scanner, but denied the Applicant, WCHNA, the ability (o
acquire the MRIT scanner and recommended that NDI's imaging scans be absorbed by
Danbury Hospital (“DH” or “the Hospital™), which is owned by Western Connecticut Health
Network, Inc. ("WCHN?”), the parent company of the Applicant.

WCHNA intended to keep the existing office in Newtown so that an imaging facility cast of
Danbury could not only retain its existing patients, but - with more resources available from
WCHNA - absorb the volume of its patients who live in the Newtown area. Asking these
patients to drive to a Hospital facility to have routine outpatient imaging performed is an
undue burden to the patients and counter to the Applicant’s comprehensive outpatient service
strategy. Based on inaccurate findings of fact, the decision relies on the misconception that
Danbury Hospital’s 2 MRIs are not being utilized at maximum capacity, when, in fact they
are now being utilized at full capacity. There is a need for WCHNA to acquire the MRI at
NDI to keep the 2 MRIs at the Hospital for inpatients who require the inpatient setting and
services, and outpatients who need access to hospital-based services (such as anesthesia) as
part of the MRT study, as well as those outpatients who specifically require the capacity of a
3 T MRI scanner, the only 3T scanner in the WCHN network.,

! Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC is a physician operated radiology practice in Newtown that is owned by
twelve radiologists.



Contrary to the Proposed Decision, there is evidence in the record of the need for WCHNA
to acquire the MRI in Newtown. And while the decision to deny WCHNA the acquisition of
the MR is based on Danbury Hospital’s capacity to absorb more MRI scans per year, neither
the Hospital nor its parent company, WCHN, were made co-applicants in the Application.
Since NDI is privately owned by a group of radiologists, it is impossible for the Office of
Health Care Access (“OHCA”) to conclude that the MRT scans now being performed at NDI
can be absorbed by the Hospital.

The following factors contributed to a convoluted record and proposed decision:

1. Up until the hearing, there had been no discussion about Danbury Hospital’s scanners
except for one question in the Completeness Questions which asked for imaging
volumes at the Hospital. (Record, p. 572 Throughout the application process the
focus was on the Applicant, WCHNA, but this changed at the hearing.

2. OHCA never made WCHN a co-applicant in this Application and WCHN came to the
hearing at WCHNA’s request.

3. 'There were no Interrogatories prior to the hearing in this Application. Therefore, there
was no questioning about Danbury Hospital’s MRI scanners except for the one
question about volume asked in Completeness.

4. Late files were requested by OHCA at the hearing, but not put in writing after the
hearing was over., While there was a question related to separating out the volume
on each of the MRI scanners at the Hospital, there was never a request that WCHNA
(through WCHN) indicate the time required for each procedure or the maximum
capacity of each MRIL (Discussion of the Late Files at the hearing is attached as
Appendix B, Transcript of the Hearing, pp. 40-41. The entire transcript is attached as
Appendix D).

The Chairman of Radiology at Danbury Hospital, Dr. Fatejeet S. Sandhu, was present at the
hearing. When questioned by the hearing officer as to whether Danbury Hospital could
accommodate the volume of patients currently being scanned at NDI, his response was that
the Hospital, as well as the other WCHNA facilities, were “. . . pretty much at complete
utilization”. (Hearing Transcript, p. 26). OHCA requested that a late file (Late File #3) be
submitted as to how the yolumes were calculated at DDI and RDI (two other outpatient
imaging facilities owned by the Applicant),” but did not ask for those calculations from
Danbury Hospital. (Transcript of the Hearing, 11/25/11, p. 16 and pp. 40-41). The
Applicant believed that with Dr. Sandhu’s testimony at the hearing, they had provided the
best evidence possible that the MRI scanners at the Hospital were fully utilized and not
available to absorb patients from an outside provider.

The Hospital’s two MRI's are used primarily for inpatients, nursing home patients, patients
requiring anesthesia and patients who are predisposed to contrast reactions. The Hospital

? Page numbers in the Record are referenced according to the numbering which appears on the CD of this
docket.

* DD is Danbury Diagnostic Imaging located in Danbury and RDT is Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging located in
Ridgefield, CT. These are the two outpatient imaging facilities currently owned and operated by the Applicant,
WCHNA,



setting is also required for outpatients who have the need for a higher level of MRI imaging.
The Hospital has one 3T MRI, which is used for complex scanning (Testimony of Mr,
Michael Daglio, Chief Operating Officer, WCHN, Hearing Transcript, p. 23). Interventional
procedures such as biopsies are performed in the Hospital, and outpatients waiting for more
routine MRI scanning are often bumped. (Testimonyof Dr. Sandhu, Hearing Transcript, p.
24). Dr. Sandhu explained that the number of cases depends upon the mix of cases that are
being performed and the length of time it takes to perform these different cases. The length
of tire for inpatient and hospital-hased outpatient scanning is routinely longer due to the
complexity or type of scanning being performed, as well ag the acuity of the patient,

OHCA does not currently have published regulations or guidelines regarding the standards
for maximum capacity on imaging equipment. When the hearing on this application
concluded, Dr. Sandhu asked OHCA staff how the agency evaluates maximum capacity on
imaging equipment, and staff emailed a copy of the “Certificate of Need Standards for the
Acquisition of Imaging Equipment”, However, Dr. Sandhu was told by OHCA staff that
these guidelines are the product of a working group coordinated by OHCA which has not yet
completed its work, and has not voted on the guidelines. Therefore, there are no regulations
or guidelines in existence, Nonetheless, in the Proposed Final Decision, OHCA relied on a
standard number of scans for both hospitals and outpatient facilities when it evaluated
whether the Applicant’s volume was sufficient to allow acquisition of another MRL. When
measured against an arbitrary standard that is not discussed, the capacity on WIHCN’s MRI
scanners was found not to be fully utilized.

THE EXCEPTIONS

The Applicant takes exception to the part of the Proposed Decision that relates to the
determination about MRI scanning capacity, Contrary to OHCA’s conclusion, WCHNA has
sufficient voluine at its existing facilities to substantiate the need for the additional space
available on the MRI at NDIin Newtown. However, OHCA’s Proposed Decision indicates
that WCHNA did not provide evidence to support that fact. There are three key Findings of
Fact that the Applicant is contesting (No. 28, No. 29 and No. 51). These inaccurate findings
lead to an inaccurate conclusion in Finding of Fact No. 59,

Finding of Fact No. 28 states, in part, that:

“With respect to MRI, howevyer, the Applicarit did not provide any information with
respect to how capacity was determined for WCNH’s MRI Scanners, . . ,"”
(Proposed Final Decision, p. 5, Record, p. 163.

Finding of Fact No. 51 states:

“The two MRI scanners located at DH are underutilized. The two hospital based
scanners performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY2011 or approximately 2,659 scans
per scanner.”

(Proposed Final Decision, p. 8, Record, p. 166).

Finding of Fact No. 29 states:
“The Applicant also explained the process by which capacity was determined but did
not provide the actual calculation for DDI and RDI as requested at the hearing.”




(Proposed Final Decision, p. 5, Record, p. 163).

Finding of Fact No. 59 states and concludes: :

“Based upon the available MRI capacity at the hospital and low MRI utilization at
NDI, OHCA is unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the Applicant
to acquire and operate the MRI scanner located at NDI. Moreover, there is available
capacity on the two MRI scanners at DH o absorb the existing MRI volume from
NDL” (Emphasis Added).

(Proposed Final Decision, p. 9, Record, p. 167).

DISCUSSION

In terms of whether the Applicant provided information sufficient to establish that there was
a clear public need, WCHNA was of the understanding that it had provided evidence to
OHCA throughout the application, completeness documents, the hearing and late files
sufficient to establish the fact that there is a clear public need - not to establish a brand new
MRI - but to acquire an existing MRInow functioning at less than full capacity.
Nevertheless, to the extent that the Applicant did not understand what the agency was
looking for was not the Applicant’s fault. Because there are no published guidelines or
regulations for the acquisition of imaging equipment, and the process led the applicant to
believe that it had provided all necessary information, there are additional facts that may
clarify the record, and which the Applicant would like to be considered before the Final
Decision is rendered. Bven without the additional evidence, the record supports a decision to
allow acquisition of the MRI scanner as well as the CT scanner. But had OHCA asked for
the information that is being submitted today, it would have made the situation a lot clearer.

At the hearing, OHCA asked for five late files. The request was never put into writing, but
the transcript of the hearing indicates that the five files included the following;

1. Revised Attachment C (Historical, Current and Projected Volume by Scanner)

2. Breakout of volume by scanner for DH and DHMAC

3. Explanation of how capacity was determined for DDI and RDI

4. Description of Network strategy for ancillary sites and a distributed healthcare
delivery system

5. Separate revenue and expense projections for CT and MRI services including
gross/net calculations by modality

(Ttanscript, pp. 40 - 41)*,

Of note, there was no late file requested to describe how capacity was determined at the
Hospital (“DH”), even though this question was asked of DDI and RDI.

* The transcript identifies Late Files #1, #2, #3, #4 and #6, without identifying a Late File #5. When submitling
the Late Files, the Applicant numbered them sequentially #1 through #5, See Hearing Transcript, p. 41,
attached in Appendix B, an full transcript contained i Appendix D,




The Danbury Hospital MRIs: (Finding of Fact #28 and Finding of Fact #51)

The Applicant updated all of the volumes by scanner for the full FY2011 in Late File #1 with
Danbury Hospital’s volume listed by the type of patients scanned (inpatient or outpatient)
rather than by scanner. (Record, p. 145). In Late File #2, WCHNA indicated that it could
not provide volume by scanner at the Hospital because volume is tracked by modality and
not by scanner. (Record, p. 146). The information simply does not exist.

At the hearing, Dr. Sandhu explained that the number of cases needed to reach maximnm
capacity depends upon the mix of cases that are being performed and the length of time it
takes to perform these different cases, Inpatient and hospital-based outpatient MRI scanning
takes longer due to the complexity or type of scanning being performed. Because OHCA did
not request additional information in the late files, Dr. Sandhu believed that he had answered
OHCA’s question regarding the fact that the Hospital’s existing MR scanners were
functioning at sufficient capacity to allow for the acquisition of the NDI MRI,

In the cover lefter accompanying the Late Files, Sally Herlihy, V.P. for Planning at WCHN,
listed the late files that the Applicant believed OHCA was looking for, and then asked OHCA
to please let her know if any additional information was required. (WCHNA Late Files, p. 1
Cover Letter, Record, p. 143). No further data was requested by OHCA. Since there were
no questions subseguent to the hearing, and Dr. Sandhu believed he had answered the
question concerning Danbury Hospital’s MRI scanning at the hearing, it was surprising to the
Applicant that OHCA then made its ruling in a way that is contrary to what actually exists,

Since Dr. Sandhu works with the inpatient and outpatient volumes at the Hospital every day,
his testimony that the Hospital is utilizing the two MRT scanners at the facility to the fullest
extent possible was considered by the Applicant to be the best possible evidence of the use of
the scanners. If OHCA believed that the actual calculations that demonstrated volume were
necessary, especially in light of the fact that there are no regulations or guidelines published
on imaging standards, a Late File requesting this information should have been requested.

The information in Appendix A, Tables 1 and 2, contains a breakdown of the specific types
of scanning and the length of time it takes to perform procedures which are ordinarily
handled at the Hospital setting, whether inpatient or outpatient. These are procedures which
are done in a hospital setting because of the need for anesthesia, and also because of the
presence of on-site radiologists for immediale reading of scans when necessary. The process
is very different from the routine of an outpatient facility, and takes longer per scan than MRI
scanning done in an office or outpatient-only facility, The chart breaks down the specific
types of MRI scanning specifically performed at the Hospital, demonstrating the additional
time required for inpatients to be scanned.

Although the Hospital is open seven days a week, twenty four hours a day, hospital scanning
is done during the day when full staffing is available, except for emergency situations. There
is little scanning done in the evening or during the night, both for the quality of patient care
provided as well as hospital resource efficiency. The DH MRI service is scheduled for 71
hours each week, with availability to perform scans 24/7 on an emergency basis, The




individual MRI cases scanned at the hospital on average take 104 minutes vs 45 minutes at
an outpatient facility. Appendix A (Note # 2 on page 13 and discussion on page 14).
Appendix A provides detail regarding the length of time scans take in the hospital and
demonstrates that the due to several factors such as complexity of the scans and acuity of the
patients, the DI scanners are being operated at close to 100% capacity. The fact that the
Hospital’s MRI scanners are at maximum capacity can also be evaluated by whether there is
space available or if patients having imaging done have to wait for their exams.

The following is an example of the typical wait time for outpatient scanning at the three
WCHNA’s facilities in the service area:

As of January 10" at 2 p.m. — Next available Openings for MRI
e DI January 16" at 2 p.m.
s  DHMAC- January 25" at 2 p.m.
o DDI - January 13" at 11 a.m.

While some patients can wait the additional time before an appointment becomes available,
this information is an indication that the MRIs are in full use at DDJ, DHMAC and at the
Hospital.

While it is the position of WCHNA that there is enough evidence in the record to determine
that the Danbury Hospital MRI scanners are not able to absorb additional volume, and that
they are functioning at maximum capacity, we request that if necessary, you add this
information and the information in Appendix A to the record in order to clarify the situation.
Finding of Fact #28 should reflect the fact that WCHNA provided evidence to demonstrate
that the WCHN MRI scanners are operating at full capacity.

Finding of Fact #51 concludes that the two MRI scanners at DH are underutilized, There is
no explanation of how that conclusion was reached. While OHCA states that ” . . . [tfhe two
MRIs at the Hospital performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY2011 or approximately 2,659
scans per scannet” {Proposed Final Decision, p. 8, Record, p. 166), there is no reference to
what the maximum capacity is supposed to be. There are no OHCA regulations or guidelines
on imaging equipment. OHCA did not cite to any national or association guidelines, or
regulations or guidelines used in other states. The record is devoid of any reference to what
constitotes maximum capacity. For these reasons, Finding of Fact #51 should be stricken
from the record. It is this conclusion which led to the denial of the Applicant’s request to
acquire the MRI in Newtown,

The MRI Scanners at DDI and RDI: (Finding of Fact #29)

Finding of fact #29 is inaccurate because OHCA asked for “an explanation of how capacity
was determined for DDI and RDI” in Late File #3 at the hearing. (Hearing Transcript, p. 41)
and WCHNA did exactly that: (WCHNA Late File Q. #3 Record, p. 147): it provided the
template that is used to determine capacity and explained how the template works. It was not
clear that OHCA then wanted the template filled in with examples of specific weeks to show
that the volumes indeed meant that the MR scanner was being fully utilized.




Volumes had already been provided in the CON application and in Late File #2 for the MRI
scanner at RIDI and the MRI scanner at DDI, (Record, p. 145). The information provided in
Appendix A, Table 3 clarifies the volumes that WCHNA has been performing between 2009
and 2011 and also adds the volume from the Hospital’s scanners, Through WCHNA the
operation of community imaging locations coincides with Danbury Hospital’s Master
Facility Plan to relocate outpatient services that exist in the Hospital facility to more
accessible outpatient seftings and to provide greater facility capacity to support vital
Hospital-based services. The acquisition of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (“NDI”) is a
continuation of this strategy in a cost effective manner for WCHN that requires no additional
imaging capacity in the region,

It is also important to note that the hours of operations at these locations (are beyond a
normal 8 hour business day or 40 hour work week. These locations are already operating at
63.5 hrs. per week, making expanding any more hours to create more capacity difficult to
achieve.

It is understood that the imaging standards are under review and are changing, but without
alerting the Applicant to the fact that there was a standard being used that is not published,
the Applicant had nothing to rely on. OHCA had the volumes for RDI and DDI. DDI
petformed 3,531 MRI scans in FY2011 and RDI performed 3,075 scans in FY2011 (Late
File, Record, p. 145).

If this additional information is needed to clarify the situation at DDI and RDI, we would ask
that it be added to the record so that the record is an accurate reflection of WCHNA’s
facilities. Finding of Fact #29 is misleading because it appears that OHCA asked for the
actual calculation of how the template works. An examination of the transcript from the
hearing will verify that this was not what the hearing officer asked for. (Hearing Transcript,
p. 40).

The MRI at NDI

No exception is being sought regarding the facts of NDI's volume. However, an explanation
may assist in understanding why WHCNA is interested in acquiring the MRI at NDI The
decision points out that not only is NDI underutilized in terros of the use of its MRI, but that
volume has been declining over the last few years. (Finding of Fact # 54). However, the
Applicant explained why the volume has been decreasing — and it is one of the reasons that
the owners of NDI are interested in selling, They do not have the resources to staff the
facility in Newtown in the same way that WCHNA will be able to do, and there have been
issues with insurance. WCHNA has a large group of highly trained technicians in both MR1
and CT scanning who could be called upon when personnel issues arise and NDI needs
coverage. More qualified staffing would also allow the facility to operate in the evenings and
on Saturday on a regular basis, which will raise the MRI volume in Newtown because area
patients who now travel to Danbury Hospital, DDI or DHMAC will have access closer to
home. The quality of service at NDI would improve if WCHNA is allowed to acquire the
facility because the record reflects that WCHNA will put resources into NDI that will




improve both staffing and equipment. The Letters of Support enclosed in Exhibit C support
this decision. Without approval to acquire both the CT scanner and the MR scanner,
WCHNA will not acquire the NDI facility.

The fact that OHCA issued a Proposed Final Decision allows the Department of Public
Health (“DPH”) to consider the record and take additional evidence to clarify any
irregularities that occurred during the process. Had the Late File list been put in writing, it
might have been clearer what OHCA was looking for. Had there been written questions
(ordinarily Interrogatories) sent out before the hearing, the applicant would also have been
alerted to the specific concerns of the agency.

If the explanation set forth in this document (or the additional information in Attachment A)
satisfies DPH that the MRI scanners in the WCHN system which are located in the NDIT
service area (as designated by OHCA)’ are functioning at capacity or so near that the
acquisition of an existing MRI will fill a clear public need, the Proposed Final Decision
should reflect that WCHNA be allowed to acquire NDI's existing MRI scanner. If the facts
provided throughout the administrative process and which are highlighted in this document
and those which are provided now in Appendix A do not prove that there is a public need for
this acquisition; that is completely different. But if there is sufficient utilization of the
existing MRIT scanners under the control of the Applicant and its parent WCHN, which
includes Danbury Hospital, and this application is denied as to the MRI because there was
confusion as to whether OHCA had been given the specific information it was looking for to
make the decision, that would be an injustice to the applicant which will ultimately create
hardship for patients who live east of Danbury and require CT or MRI scanning. For all of
the wrong reasons, the decision itself will be the wrong decision.

CONCLUSION

In addition to the Finding of Facts regarding capacity that are inaccurate, Finding of Fact #59
draws a conclusion that is impossible to achieve, Danbury Hospital (“DH”) cannot absorb
the existing MRI volume from NDI because neither the Danbury Hospital nor Western
Connecticut Health Network (or its affiliate, WCHINA, the Applicant) has any control or
ownership of NDI. NDI is a wholly owned limited liability company owned and operated by
twelve radiologists. If the MRI scanner is not purchased by WCHNA, it will remain in
operation at NDI under its current ownership.

If the intent of OHCA was to eliminate the MRI scanner in Newtown, this decision does not
do that. NDI can continue to operate the MRI scanner in its facility, which will eliminate the
projected cost savings to the health care system that could have been achieved. It will also
eliminate the improved access to MRI scanning that the Applicant could have provided by
assisting with staffing and capital improvements.

Under the conditions of the Proposed Decision, it is not feasible financially or operationally
for WCHNA to purchase the CT scanner and operate it in the space utilized by the twelve
physicians/owners, and not own and operate the MRI scanier. Financing for the acquisition

5 Proposed Final Decision, Finding of Fact No. 11.




of the facility is based on the ability to spread the cost of operating the facility over the
revenue received by operating both pieces of imaging equipment,

The Applicant respectfully requests that DPH consider the information that is provided in
this document in order to correct the facts that are not accurate, If that is done, the-
conclusion wouid allow WCHN fo acquire both the CT and MRI scanners at NDIin a
modified Final Decision.

Respectfully submitted,

sy 3 bty
Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network
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Table 1 - MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital

A B C 3] E F
Average | Number Actuoal Average | Variance | Additional
scanner of MRI anrual number of Case Capacity
time in cases minutes it | of cases volumes | at an OP
Minutes | performed | takes to colomnD | ata Center vs
for at the perform would Hospital- | an
Specific  § Hospital | specific translate | based inpatient
Cases at MRT to in an MRI center by
the procedures | outpatien! | center vs | procedure
Hospital ' at the MRI an type*
hospital center = | outpatient
(AxB) /45 MRI
minutes” | Center =
D-B*
Exam Type
Anesthesia
180 196 35,193 782 587 300%
Arthrograms
70 127 8,806 198 71 56%
Abdomen w/Contrast
90 283 25,515 567 283 100%
Bilat Breast
90 203 18,476 411 205 100%
Breast Biopsy
120 10 1,173 26 16 167%
Needle Placement
120 20 2,346 52 33 167%
MRA
90 323 29,034 645 323 160%
Runoffs — lower
extremities 150 20 2,933 65 46 233%
Face/Neck/Orbits
w/Contrast 90 78 7,039 156 78 100%
Other
45 4,057 182,562 4,057 - 0%
‘Hasplta] o 05318 313,166 | 6,959 | 11,641 31%
IP additional minutes
to all IP cases’ 30 1,295 38,850 863 N/A N/A
Emergency Room
additional minutes to
all ER cases® 30 98 2,933 65 N/A N/A
 Total Additional 1 | T T T T
MmutestoaddtoIP AT T IR
and ED cases . - 1,393 . 41,783 929
GRANDTOTAL - = x| oo [ T T T R
Capacity Variance’ " 5318 | 354,948 7,888 | - 2,570 - 48%
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Notes for Table 1:

1.

2.

Column A: The average time it takes each Hospital-based MRI exam type to be
completed

Column D: The average time for a standard outpatient MRI exam to be completed in
any of the Network’s facilities is 45 minutes. Dividing the total number of Hospital-
based exam minutes by 45 minufes yields the number of MRI exams that could be
completed in the same time period at an outpatient facility.

Column E: When taking the same amount of total MRI exam minutes from the
Hospital-based MRI exam volume, the Hospital performed 5,318 MRI exams, while
an outpatient MRI facility could produce 6,959 standard outpatient MRI exams, or
1,641 additional MRI exams.

Column F: This represents the number of incremental MRI exams that could be
performed in an outpatient center in the form of capacity percentages. By way of
example, in the same amount of time it fakes to perform 196 MRI exams with
anesthesia at the Hospital, an outpatient MRI center can perform 782 standard
outpatient MRI exams or a 300% improvement in capacity.

Inpatient additional minutes to all IP cases: This row represents the additional time it
requires to perform an MRI exam on inpatients, due to transportation and
maneuvering a patient from their bed, to the MRI scanner. During the time of
transportation and maneuvering of the patient, the MRI scanner remains idle. Of the
5,318 cases indicated, 1,295 exams were performed on inpatients. When you
multiply the estimated 30 minutes of time to the 1,295 inpatient exams performed
during the period, it reguires an additional 38,850 minutes of time on the MRI
scanners. An outpatient MRI facility could perform an additional 863 MRI exams
during the time it took to transport and maneuver patients on 1,295 inpatient exams.
Emergency additional minutes 1o all E.R. cases: The Emergency Room is located on
the first floor of the Tower building and the MRI Department is located on the 34
floor of the Stroock Building. The separation of these two locations causes the same
phenomenon related to transportation and maneuvering of patients as the Inpatients.
When using the same estimated time factor of 30 minutes, multiplied by 98 E.R. MRI
exarns, the result is an additional 2,933 minutes of MRI time. An outpatient MR1
facility could perform an additional 65 outpatient MRI exams during the same time
period.

In Summary: Tt is the Applicant’s position that many Hospital-based MRI exams are
more complex, and require greater time to complete than the standard MRI exams
that are performed on a standard outpatient MRI scanner. Therefore, capacity,
measured by the number of exams performed on an MRI scanner, must be viewed
differently for a Hospital-based scanner versus an outpatient facility scanner, Based
on the nomber of exarns at the Hospital MRI scanners and the types of exams these
represent, it is the applicant’s estimate that the Network’s outpatient facilities operate
at 48% greater exam capacity than the Hospital scanners can.

Based on this analysis, and using a weighted average of 104 minutes as an average scan time
for the Hospital MRI exams (as demonstrated in Table 1), it is clear that the Hospital MRI
scanners at the Hospital are at full capacity. To illustrate this point, the applicant has

14



completed the template it uses to measure capacity on its outpatient MRI scanners and
adapted it for the Hospital MRI scanners {inpatient and outpatient).

Table 2 — Capacity Analysis on Hospital MRI Scanners

MRI
M T w TH FRI SAT TOTAL/Wk
7:30 7:30 7:30 7:30 7.30
Hours of Operation AM AM AM AM AM  7:30 AM
Various periods
within tirmeframe 8:00pm  8:00pm 8:.00pm 8:0Cpm  8:00pm  4:00P.M.
Operating Hours 1.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 12.5 85
Operating Hours 3T 9 9 9 9 9
MRI Scanner 1 Max
capacity 12 12 12 12 12 11
MRI Scanner 2 Max
capacity 9 9 9 g €]
Total Max. capacity
(patients) 21 21 21 21 21 11 116
Number of patients
Random Week : o 111
Random Week R \ 5 3 o 10" 120
Avg 18 185 225 225 22.5 10,5 115.5
% Capacity 86% 93%  107% 107%  107% 95% 100%

Table 3 — Shift in MRI Volumes from Inpatient to Qutpatient Settings

The strategic initiative to shift MRI outpatients from testing at Danbury Hospital to non-
hospital-based cutpatient facilities operated by the Applicant WCHNA can be observed in
the bar graph, with 546 reductions in Danbury Hospital volume and 815 procedure growth in
OP centers for the same time period,

& 2
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APPENDIX B

Hearing Transcript, Pages 40 — 41
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Department of public Health

10/25/2011 Transcription
Page 40
b HEARING OFRICER: Well, I think he gave us
2 it |
3 MR. DASLIO: Ysah, we don'i know who provided
4 veah, we don't know. All of the things he proposed
B we don't know those to bs factual, his volumes, his
& people who refer to him, we don't know that
7 information.
8 HERRING OFFICER: Okay.
B [CROSE COMMENTING)
1aG MR. DACGLIO:r I thought you meant our ows,
i1 sure, we pan provide our own,
1z HEARING OFFICER: ALl right.
i3 MR. DAQLIO: TLet's get can we geb that vight
14 in the vecord?
15 HEARING OFFICER: I was getting exciced.
1é ME., DAGLIO: I wonld like to knew.
1% HEARING OFFICER: Ckay, it was worth asking,
18 but you knew the znswer. So I'm going ro havs My,
KR Hubar go through the late files just so we're olasr
26 o what we sed.
21 MR, HUBER: Iate file #1 i3 a revissd
2z Actachment ¢ from the pretrial testimeny providing
23 s with the twelve wonth CT and MRI scan volumss fFor
24 figpoal year 2011. Late £ile #2. a tshle that
25 illustrates the amnual volume wait a minute wait a
26 mimitg. I wrote two things on different lines hera.

840-348~1850

Brandon Smith Eeporting & video
production@randonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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Dapartmens of Publie Health

15/25/2011 Trangceription
Page 41
i The tabie tha! indicates the total volume by
2 location in a Format similar to Attachment C.
3 HEARING CFPICER: Ho, wait
4 MZ. ZUPCOE: NHo wait. It was by scanner.
5 ME., HUBER: Wo, that was
g HERRING OFFIUBER: Late fils #3.' is guppozed to
7 do total volune ineluding impatient and sutpatient.
# Late file #2 is a table showing breaking down the
9 hospital scaaners' volums by scanner.
18 MR, HUBER: Okay., Should I start from the
i1 EOn?
12 HEARING QFFICER: Are thoge olear now, late
13 file #1 and #2, we're good?
14 UNRNCH:  Uh hm,
15 HEARING OPFICER: Okay.
i5 ME. RUBER: Late file #3 ig an explanation as
17 to how capacity was deteymined for DRI and RDI.
ig Late file $#4 is strategy for distribution of health
19 care services, Late file 46 is revenue and expense
20 gtatements individually addressing the ¢T and the
21 MRY acqguisitions.
23 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I tkink that
23 concludes the hearing. Dig you 81l wank o make 3
24 cloging statsment?
o5 MR, BAGLIC: I actually had a question Ffor
28 clarification just os this if it's okay, the
Branddon Smith Reporting & Video
B60-549-18E50 production@brandonreport ing . com 24% Pearl Straet
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APPENDIX C:

Letters of Support
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State of Comecticnt
HOMSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
STATE DAPHTCH,
MARTFORT, CIRNNECTICUT (Rfhe-15091

BEFRESENTATIVE CHRISTORHER LYDDY VICE SHARMAM
OME HIIINRED SRUTH SEBEMELY DISTIRISY PUIBLEC KA THECOMMITTER
LEGRLATIVE OPPICE Mulons MERBER
RO 41 EOUCATION COsMITRS
HARTFORD, CT 8185 i HUiAl SERVIEES QOMIATTER

CAPELCY HEl-140-8400
TOLL FREE: soirhan gy
PR B0 200-RR06
B3, Clisdapbar Lyddwfiods aloy

Jandkwy 11,2013 R

Crnmaoisaizner Jevwved bullen, 4D, MEA, P
Prgantrrent of Public Meald:

Ve of Health Cive Aocess

41T Capital Avee M3 FI3HOA

Wariford, U7 B 340304

BDear Iy, fudlen,

T am waiiing tn suppons of the srnsfer of ownership of Neweosar Utngnastic Tty Frosim, Mewtows Diagnogie
imagihg Assoriates to the Westors Csttneetlout Henlth Matwerk, As Viee-Chadtnmn of' the Publis Healih Commivies
and Nowliown's State Representarive, § e on intorest ln mabnaiiing docess w medical cars far the merdrg of guy
cotrmuniy,

It Is iy sncerstanding, dhat vowr affies bas ok the wisoof gep o onty aliowing o parinl transfer of ovensrshi,
Yestertiuy, Fspake at lsnglh with DPH staffro oy and beter mderstnd this dasision. Evan aftar spenling with
o 8abf T reminin concemed abow s dectsion, as i may jeopordize the banafer o he BacHity, As wg contings o
aaddress s froportan i heald enre veforon, Tt B Inporias Ahanwe sirive (o crente oppacdmities 1o pravide
Lettar aove ot lower waste. Allowiag Faeility to avier i setwinds Wil allow For impraved cantiacity of cars,
unification of medical recordy sl more direcy cortmuontion with ke aiher medical and surgical Servives pur
wirkeons sre werrently veceivlng,

Hewwitua Diognostie lnging B the.anly Tanging facility in Meveown dnd serves wiher nelghboring communitios s
will, This s vapevinlly Inportsnd for oor senor citizenz to recsive he care they aead, b order [ asintaln this
series ot yoaik 0 vtine and euhance the medicat care znd novess For the comemunity, 1 am requesting Gl you
veepusider your decislon and #flow o full traesbor aod parchase 1o ek plesz,

Thm]ﬁ’r\'au for your congiderdtion,

18
g‘m sl Lyatty
rnie Ropresentative
196> Pistyics

SERVIMG siWTCAN
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E. Patricis Liodra

Mewrown Minicipal Ceprer 1
Figst Seleciman

3 Prinwose Streey

Mewtows, £ ontectiour G440
Tel. (2033 2704701

Fax (203) 2704203
Jirseasdactmani@reio n-es, Qov

B8 AT TOWN OF NEWEOWN
OFFICE OF THE FIRST S$5LECTMAN

January |7, 2512

Jewet Mullen, MD, MPA, MPH
CC1 Melanie Dillon, Esg,
Connecrieur offive of Health Care Avcess

Dregie D, Muflen;

As Newrwn First Selactmag 1 e an bntorest in maistaining sccoss o medivs] care Tor the members
of our commiaity.

It is my anderstanding thay your office kas taken the unusus] step of dllowing oniy 2 partial wancfer of
owtership of Newiown Disghostie Imaging 1o the Weslern Comwsaticut Heplth Network, We apprecian
e currend climat of Hiealth care reform with sceounisble are arganlzations forming and networks of
service providers alfigning o grovids betor care at fower costs, 1 Kave been infornted fhat & pariial
ransfer wankd fikely eliminate considerston of Newtown DHagnostic as part of o hesth care netwark,
Uiven that siuation. end recognizing thin the vest arjority of our tesidunts receive dhelr Health cate
oy i netwrk. we are congerned that the paetind transfer wold esseatinlly restriet or eliminae
aueess 10 the services of Nowtown Diagnastic. Pull transfer of Newiown Dlagnastic w Western
Conneetivut Haalth Network alfows for fnproved continuity of care, umification of emedical records and
more diseet commanication with the other medical and surglent services our citizens are curestly
receiving.

Newtown Disgrostls Imaging s the enly inaging Breifity i Mewtown. T sider 1o mraltdatn thiz service
for veark o come und enhanee the medical care and gecess for the colrsthumity [ wm eeguesting ihat vou
reconstder your deeision and altow a ful] transfer and purchase &y ke pluce,

Sincerety,

£ ¥ o

B, Parricia Llodm
Fiirss Selectrman i

2 Adum Welwr, M0,
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January 10, 2012

Jeveel Multlen, MD, MPA, MPH
Cemmisioner

Office of Health Core Accsgs
419 Capital Avenue

ME #13HCA

Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Dear D, Mulien,

We are writing in support of the fransfer of ownership of Newlown [Hagrostic Imaging from
Mewtown Diagnostic lmaging Assoviates to the Western Connectisnt Health Network. As
mesmbiees of the commmunity we have en interest in maintaining access W niedical care lor the
mesnbeors of oug cofmrunity,

it is our understanding that your office s taken the unusual step of anly atlowing a partial
tramsfey of marﬂzhsp This may jeopardizs the fransfer of the facility. In the corrent climale of
heakth carmefbm whare accouriable care organizations are forming ard networks of service
providers sie aligning fo provide better care at lower costs if is rmporiant b us that the facility
enter the Netwark where the vast majority of o citizens receive their health care. This will
allow for imptoved sontinuity of ears, unification of medica] records and more direct
sonmnurication with the other mediest and surpical services our citivens are currently TEeeiving,

Newrown Disgnostic Enaging is the only inaging facility fn Newsown, In order to maintein this
service B yesrs to some and enhance the medical sare and access for the COmmEMItY, We are
tequesting thal you reconsider your decision and allow a full transfer and purchase 1o take place.

Thank you for your eensideration.

Sincerely, ﬁ;’kﬁ Lt g’“‘"""‘j HDJ"' < ol Tl Vtsdtonm o1

Tl (Dt ardte, i L
N&,m{ﬁ chi‘ okttt P r g

xS

""b e e

Newtown, Cormeetion! | utary Lluﬁ “‘) ) )
/f' Dm#
tor Melsake Dilan, 059, g.fdmnl"

I, %@j—* St Ao, il

o JM%W /z‘,wim
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Jameary 10, 2012

Jewel MuHen, MD, MPA, MPH

Copigionsr

Oiffiee of Health Care Access

419 Capitel Avenus

M #13HCA ¢
Hartford, €T 061341308

Deay Dr. Mullen,

W are writing in support of the transfer of ownership of Newtown Diagnostic Imaging from
Mewtown Dingnosiic Imaging Associates 1o the Western Connecticut Health Network. As
members of The community we have an inderest in maintaining sccess to medical cars for the
members of our compmunity.

Tt % our understanding that your office has taken the wpusual step of enly allowing a partial
transfae of ownership, This may jeopardize the fransfer of the facility, In Bhe current climate of
health care reform whers sccountable cars orgardzations ere forming and aetworks of service
providers are aligning 1o provide better care at lower costs it is Importact to us that the facility
ertter The Network where the vast majority of ony oftizens receive their heafth care. This will
allow for improved continuity of cave, unification of medical records and more dirent
sopyaumication with the other niedical and surgical services our eitizens are curvenily repeiving,

Newlvwa Diagnostic Tmaging is the oniy imaging fheility in Newiown, In order o maintsin this

service for years 10 come and enhanos the medical care and sgcess for the community, we are
reguesting that you reconsider your deeision and allow a full tansfer and purchase 10 take place.

Thark you for your consideration,
Sincerely, 9? ﬂ"‘V/ é‘ ’M“
o 'gz
/J ﬁﬁﬁ . FE;:( i A‘/\g‘ :}

ST ey ey E:““'w"';‘f‘"- *aﬁlg
s %ﬁy

Newiown, Connecticut Rotiary Club

ey Melanis Dillan, s5q.

Y
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Pegesg: 1-43

o : STATE OF CONNECTICUT
Hartford, ss

DEPAETMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS
HEARING HELD CN: OCTOBER 25, 2011 .
BEFORE MELANIE DILLON, ESQ., HEARING QFFICER
DOCKET # 11-31703-CCON

 Applicant: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Tnc.
Present: _ '
Jack Huber, Staff Analyst
Melanie Dillon, Hearing Officer
Kimberly Martone, Director of OHCA
Barbara Olejarz, Transcriptionist
Toni Ann Marchione, Director of Diagnostic Services
Jennifer Zupcoe, V.P. Finance, WCHNA
Dr. Jeet Sandhu, Chairman of Radiclogy, Danbury Hospital
Pat Gerner, Esqg., Counsel for WCHNA '
Michael Daglic, Chief Operating Officer, WCHNA
Sally Herlihy, V.P. Planning, WCHNA
Carolyn McKenna, Legal counsel for the system

Mary Indomenico

Official Court Transcriber

HEARING OFFICER:  Good morning. Before we
begin, please make sure all cell phones and beepers

are turned off. This public hearing before the

: Brandon Smith Reporting & Video ‘ :
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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1 The applicant, Western Connecticut Health
2 Network Affiliates, Inc. has been designated as a
,l3 party in this proceeding. Are there any other
4 persons who wish to cffer testimoﬁy or make a
5 statement in this case other than those individuals
6 represeﬁting the applicant? Let the record show |
‘7” thét no one has come forward.
8 | At this time I would like all of the
9 : individuals who are going to testify on behalf. of
10 the applicant to stand, raise yéur right hand, aﬁd
11 be sworn. -After I‘réad the statement, please affirm
12 by saying 'ves'.
13 WITNESSES, Sworr. ‘
14 HEARING OFFICER: Will all those individuals
15 whé just took the oath, please state your full name
16 the full time you gpeak and adept any written
- 17 testimony you have submitted on the record. For all
18 o those ihdividuals testifying on behalf of the
19 applicant, please‘make gure that you have printed
20 your name and affiliation on the sign-up sheet that
21 | has been made available for this hearing.
22 . At this time I will ask staff to read into the
23 record those documents already appearing in OHCA's
24 ~ table of record in thig case. 2all documents have
25 been identified in the table of record for reference
26 | purpoges.. Mr. Huber?

. Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandenreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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1 of that to thé applicant since September 13th. As‘a
2 result, the applicant aid not see a copy‘of that
3 exhibit until yesterday afterncon when a discussion
4 of the table of the record came up and a copy was
5 sent down from OHCA to the applicant.  But without
6 gufficient ﬁime‘to really respond for this morning's
7 hearing. The applicant is not going to make a
8 formal objection to having this exhibit removed from
9 _the record becauée we know that the heafing officer
10 can accept this emaii froﬁ an interested person as
11 part of the fecord and give it whatever appropriate
12 welght it should have. But we would like to point
13 out that Dr. Erlique did not seek party or
14 intervener status, which he could have done to be a
15 part of this hearing where he could.have‘been cross
L6 examined on - those topics that he raised in his
17 emall. He alsc indicated in later email that he
18 would not be present at this morning's hearing. So
19 the material the evidence, the topics, the issues
20 that he raised in thosge emails we understand cannot
21 be used as evidence as the basis of the decision.
22 However, to the extent that there are any lssues
23 that he raised or any topics in those emailg that
24 you would like further iﬁformation on, the staff st
25 Wegtern Connecticut Health Network Affiliates would
26 be very happy to provide late files if you would

60-5495-1850

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
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1 gtart saying "WCHNA", may pfoceed with its
2 testimony.
3 MS. HERLIHY: Good morning Eearing Officerl
4 Dilleon and OHCA staff. My name is Sally Herxlihy and
5 'I'm the vice pregident of planning Wezstern
6 Connecticut Health Network and I'm here today on
7 behalf of Western connecticut Health Network
8 R Affiliates, Inc. in terms of the CON applicaticn to
9 ' acquire the .imaging equipment currently being ﬁsed
10 _ at Newtown Diagnosgtic Imagine in Newtown,
13 _ Connecticut. I hereby adopt my pre-file testimony.
12
13 | Participating in the hearing with me today afe
14 : - the following individuals and I'll just go across
15 the room here. Mike Daglio, Senior V.P. of
16 Opefations at Danbury Hospital, Carolyn McKenna,
17 Legal counsel for the system, Dr. Sandhu, Chalrman .
18 ~ of Radioiogy; Jennifer Zupcoe, V.P. of Fiﬂénce
19 Operations and Decision Support, and Toni Ann
20 Marchione; Director of Diagnostic Services.
21 I'd like teo just briefly highlight some of the
22 points of my testimony. As you know, Western
23 Connecticut Health Netﬁork, the parent corporaticn
24 | has five locations where patients can access imaging
25 services. Those include Danbury Hospital, New
26 | Milford Hospital, Danbury Medical Arts Center in

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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1 .if you approve this application, '
2 - With proper staff and the resources available
3 within the Wésﬁern Connecticut Eealth Network
4l Affiliates group to help keep costs down, NDI will
5' not only see improved service at the facility, but
6 it will help to make take the streés cff the rest
7 of the system by absorbing some of the patients who
8 _ now travel to Danbury Hospital for imaging services.
9 ' -+ By adding the extended hours of evening and five
10 hours on Saturdays over time, patient accessibility
11 Wwill be greatly improved. The need-exists for this
12 facility not only for the patients in the immediate
13 area of Newtown, but also to prevent either Danbury
14 Hospital or DDI to seek additional imaging eguipment
15 in the near future. DDI is currently p@rfdrming
16 over S,OOO'CT scans each year. DDI is also
17 performing over 3,500 MRI scans. Thig is a
18 non-hospital site. DDI is not capable of absorbing
19 = additional patients in the future. Having'some of
20 ~ them who live east of Danbﬁry Hospital to go to the
21 MDI facility, wéuid assure both prompt attention to
22 the scanning and greater accessibility for those
23 patients who live in the area and relieve the
24 ' préesgure off of DDT and other sites.
25 Thank you for your time this morning. To hear
26 ‘ more of the details of our application, we're

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860~549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street
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1 two CT scanners. |
2 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. &And is that -- in
3 addition to the two
4 MS. MARCHIONE: That's iﬁ addition; that's
5 actually iﬁ the hospital. _
6 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. S0 there's a total of
7 three MRI scanners and three CT scanners on the
8 hospital campusg?
9 MS. MARCHIONE: Correct.
10 HEARING OFFICER: Now Attachment C shows the
11 higtorical, current, and projected volume by
12 equipment unit. I neoticed that we just it still
13 has nine months annualized per fiscal year 2611;
14 Could we get a complete fiscal year 2011 at this
15 point? .
16 MS. ZEPCOE: This is Jen Zepaoe. We can
17 certainly provide that afterwards. We don't have
18 that information here.
15 HEARING OFFICER:' Okay; But you could put it
20 in a late file?
21 MS. ZEPCOE: Yes.
22 HEARING OFFICER: I believe Attachment C, and'
23 you can correct me 1f I'm wroﬁg,‘is the same table
24 that wag provided in the completeness responses.
25 M8. MARCHIONE: with the addition of New
26

Milford Heospitals' numbers.

860-549-1850
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1 MS. MARCHIONE: Toni Ann Marchiocne. I think

2 we can break 1t out by scamner, -but the only

3 scanners that actually perform exams on ED or

4 inpatients would be the actual hospitai gcanners,

5 not the DMAC. We don't service ED or inpatients

6 there.

7 EEARING OFFICER: So DMAC with just the

8 outpatient?

9 MS. MARCHIONE: Right.
10 HEARINé OFFICER: So why don't why don't we
11 keep it instead of making it Attachment C, way too
12 convoluted, 1f we could do Attachment C as like file
13 one, we'd have a full fiscal year 2011 actuals. 2and
14 then total volumes for Danbury Hospital and DMAC‘and
15 .those in the. respective columns for CT and MRI. And
16 then late file #2 could be the volumes by scanner.
1.7 Does that make sense?

18 SEVERAL: Uh hm.-
19 HEARTING OFFICER: Does that make sense to vyou
20 Jack?
21 MR. HUBER: Uh hm.
22 HEARING OFFICER: Causge I don't want to make
23 .this tooc messy bresking it dut by scanner.
24 UNKNOWN: And I'd just like teo add to make
25 sure that those numbers provided are gbing to be
26 consistent with the imaging survey that your

860-549-1850
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1 HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Now in the pre-file
2 application you state that the DDI and RDI are
3 operating at full capacity and beyond. And I
4 believe did I say that I think it wag in a
5 pre-file testimony as well. How did how did you
6 arrive that RDI was operating at full capacity? How
7 did you determine that? o
8 {AT THIS POINT 1:05:00 RECORDING QUALITY BECOMES
9 . POOR] | |
io DR. SANDHU: {inaudible) Chailrman of
11 Radiology; We're egsentially using data pretty much
12 from the advisory board, we get the number of CT's
13 that are done and what are expected in a routine
.14 routpatient getting. You know, a work day with a
15 certain (inaudible) ., 85% of (inaudible) patients
16 is considered ﬁo be full capacity which based on
17 that information it works out to aboub 3,500 CT's.
18 HEARTNG OFFICER: Okay. But RDI is currently
19 at about 2,706? . |
20 - - DR. SANDHU: RDI is actually it's about
21 5,700.
22 HEARTING OFFICER: RDI?
23 DR. SANDEU: I'm sorry; I apologize.
24 HEARING CFFICER: That's okay.
25 DR.‘SANDHU: (inaudible) .
26 HEARING OFFICER: RDIT is 2,729 according to

860-549-1850
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1 explain the lower utilization of the scanners owned
2 ~and cperated by NDI? |
3 DR. SANDHU: .Well I think you know,
4 essentially there's geveral issues that come into
5 play. Predéminantly'Operational and contractual
6 igsues that come into play, resulting in lower
7 utilization. R
8 ‘ HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Could you explain some
o - of those operational issues?
10 . DR. SANDHU: Well partly its staffing igsues
11 that come into ﬁlay. And I think that may be one of
12 the advantages here with the integration of NDI into
13 | the larger network as having a larger pool of
14 - resources available to fully staff all of the
15 . , imaging facilities. And also, contractuaily I think
16 with some (inaudible) contracts that are in play, -
17 it's not fully accessible there whiéh will also
18 ' ' (inaudible} the number of patients (inaudible) the
19 facility.
20 MR. HUBER: Jack Huber for the record. If the
21 | proposal were to be approved, when would you
22 anticipate replacing the service CT gcanner at
23. (inaudible)?
24 - MR. DAGLIO: This is Mike Daglio, Senidr Vice
25 Président of Operationg at Danbury Hospital. We
26 : anticipate it won't be too long. It may be within

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
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1 ' gcanner that are upgradable for future growth if
2 necessary and if needed.
3 : . MR. HUBER: With regpect to the Newtown CT 
4 : gscanner, to what degree does the one slice capacity
5 effect the extra (inaudible) scanner that's
6 operating now?
7 DR, SANDEU: Again, the increase in the
g8 (inaudible), development of the CT scanners, the one
9 : slice is better (inaudible) than the overall number
10 of (inaudible) is capable of doing.
11 MR. HUBER: If that's the case and the
12 potential upgrade to the CT scanner has been
13 , included in the projections in Attachment C, why.
14 would cne anticipate a greater annual volume than
15 ' What'é presented here? |
16 MR. DAGLIC: Why wouldn't we project? The
17 projection that we want to make are always
18 ' conservative. We understand maybe take a step back
192 and talk about cur strategy. If we look at Danbury
20 | - Hospital, we do have twoe MRI's and two CT scanners
21 . in the hospital procéss. Our overall strategy for
22 the network is to move outpatients out of our
23 . hospital campus. It's inefficient; it's very
24 difficult for them to navigate parking, to navigate
25 elevators, and get into our imaging centers in the
26 hospital for outpatient needs. 8So the scanners and

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
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1 lock at it historically (portiocn inaudible)
2 ‘ [TAPE CLEARS HERE SIGNIFICANTLY AT 1:14:02]
3 MR. DAGLIO? -~ our Southbury cardiolegy
4 practice and our Southbury primary'care services.
5 Sc it's a cbnsistént strategy and we can walk vyou
6 through that for sure in.terms of our distributed
7 cutpatient services and moving patients out of the
8 hogpital for outpatient services. The DMAC building
9 itself the CON we did for that was that very
10 , purpcse to move cardiolegy in general, surgery, and
11 GI ocut of the hospital. The cardiology practice was
12 . in the -tower of the hospital for outpatient
13 | services. It's very inconvenient te do thaﬁ for
14 patient outpatient services and that was really the.
15 purpose of the DMAC building back in 2006. So it
16 was a very consisﬁent strategy. It's something
17 we've been doing for a number of years and we
18 : continue to perpetuate that strategy. We still
19 ' . have a few more outpatient serviées in the hdspital
20 ‘ that would be mbving out in the near futufe. So
21 . that is our geal and we can walk you through it. To
22 the extent you want the details, we cah provide that
23 for you, sure. |
24 ' HEARING OFFICER: You can?
25 ) MR. DAGLIO: Yes.

26 HEARING OFFICER: OQOkay.

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
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1 We have a very disciplined team on the floor of
2 hospitals working a discharge plan and making sure
3 patients geat the éppropriate imaging and results of
4 their imaging for the dischargé plan. We want to
5 make sure that's not interrupted. What we have done
6 is gcaled back tﬁe hours of operation of those
7 scanners to make sure we're efficiently staffing
8 thoge scanners. The ED goes 24/7. But the
9 inpatient we do scale back services to really try to
10 manage the imaging for the inpatients and that's
11 really to keep them clear. The MRI's we do have a
12 3-T MRT at the hospital campus. So that will always
13 have outpatients on it for patients who require a
14 : higher level éf MRI imaging. So the MRI the 3-7T
15 MRI will still support outpatient services simply
16 ' because it's the only one we have in our fleet of
17 equipment. You really can't support more than one
18 : 3-T in this region I believe.
19 | UNKNOWN: COCkay. Well I'm looking ét the
20 volumes that are reported on our hospital reporting
21 system. But these are accurate. For CT =cans, it
22 locks like vyou gaid there's two scanners on the
23 : | campug, so for inpatient-only‘for Danbury, it looks
24 - like 11,000 in total. So that would be 5,500 per
25 scanner. But I think the real gquestion is you know,
286 is I mean I understand you're trying to improve the

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
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71 or one and a quarter CT scanners'to loock at those

2 numbers realistically. Cause if I do you kﬁow five

3 interventional procedures, that literally ig five ox

4 gix hours worth of time on that CT scanner. 8o you

5 know, that needs to be kept into consideration in

6 terms of utilizaticn of the scanners within thé

7 hospitals themselves. . ,

8 HEARING OFFICER: Tﬁank vou. And that's one
9 . CT geanner on the hospital campuslthat‘s dedicated
10 for the interventiocnal
1. DR. SANDHU: It's it again inpatients, ER.
12 patients are also done on that scanner, but
13 predominantly utiiized for interventional
14 procedures.

15 HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

16 MR. HUBER: Declining annual stand-bys at the
17 Newtown location have been attributable to

18 technician staffing problems. What changes will be
19 made in the future to resoclve the situation?

20‘ MS. MARCHTIONE: Toni Ann Marchicne. We have a
21 large number of émployees in the system that can

22 that are multi—quality, can do CT and MRI and

23 regular x-ray. We can easily back £ill any leave of
24 abgence or pregnancy leave or anything like that

25 where I think NDI at thig point doesn't have that

26 capability. So we would be we have a lot more

'860-545-2850
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1 M3, MARCHIONE: Do you wanbt me to? Toni Ann
2 Marchione. We do have existing capacity at RDI.
3 The idea ié that we are af full capacity at DDI,
4 which ig Danbury Diagnostic Imaging and the DMAC
5 which is also in Danbury. And to help alleviate
& 'that capacity, we héve Newtown patients that come.
7 down to Danbury and the DMAC that i1f we éould
8 décompress the capacity by providing them service
[o closer to home and faster imaging within_twa.or
10 three days; that's the idea of adding NDI to our
11 | gervices. .
12 ' HEARING OFFICER: Could you decompress that
13 at Ridgefield?
14 ' MS. MARCHIONE: We we could attempt that and
15 there are a lot of the times where patients will
16 ' wait the longer amount of days instead of traveling
17 _ from Newtown to Ridgefield. |
18 | HEARING OFFICER: What is the traveling
19 7 distance from Newtown to Ridgefield?
20 | MS. MARCHIONE: T don't know if T could answer
21 - that |
22 o HEARING OFFICER: And if you don‘t‘know the
23 distance maybe time that it takes?
24 DR. SANDHU:‘ Bagically from the center of
25 - Newtown to Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging is probabiy
26 30 minutes.
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1 volume?
2 MS. MARCHIONE: Again, -Toni Ann Marchione.
3 That could be accommodated at the Ridgefield
4 facility. But again we're faced with thé iggue of
.5‘ the patient choosing to come to Danbury which is
6 closer than Ridgefield and waiting for theilr
7 procedures. |
8‘ HEARING OFFICER: What is the driving time
9 from Newtown to Danbury?
10 MS. ZEPCOE: 15, zo.minutes I would gay.
11 DR. SANDHU: About 20 minutes.
12 'HEARING OFFICER: And it sounds as if those
13 patients-opt to go to Darbury rather than
14 Ridgefield. 1Is there a lot of traffic in
15 Ridgefield? |
16 MS. ZEPCOE: Ridgefield is further south. You
17 have to go by the mall and it's really cone main road
18 to get in so it's traffic, ves.
19 MS. HERLIHY: This is Sally Herlihy. On the
20 attachment of the CON where we had it I think.it
21 was pages 21 and 22, it ghowed the volume for the
22 patients for the last three years that utilized both
23 the Danbury and Ridgefield facilities and then page
24 23 wag the actual Newtown Diagnogtic Imaging. And
25 i1f you lock at thHose charts, the Newtown volume is
26 relatively low in utilization of both of those

860-549-1850
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1 to share that with you, includes new practices in

2 Monroe, in Wilton, in the more southern parts of the

3 areas that will drive and our projections will

a drive some of the growth in thosé locations. So

5 _ © they're not specifically.discussed in our CCN, but

6 : we'd be happy to share wiﬁh you what our petwork

7 ' strategic plan is for primary care offices and

8 digtribution specialty care south of Ridgefield

9 Do which would bring imaging up and south of Newtown
10 which would also bring imaging up as well. And
11 those are some of the projeétions we have for

12 growing utilization of ouf serviées.

i3 . UNENOWN ¢ I'm going to ask probably the same
14 : overall question just more bluntly. So if you could
15 really just address by acquiring this practice why
16 | you need Danbury Hogpital, the system, Western |
17 Connecticut system needs these two addiﬁional pieces
18 of eguipment for the record.

19 o MR. DAGLIO: For the record. Consistent with
20 this ié Mike Daglio,lSenior V.P. of Operations. To.
21 be consistent with our strategy of growing -- our

22 distribution gtrategy for health care services, to
23 have imaging only in speéific locations or back to
24 Danbury at the mother ship if you wiil, all coming
25 back is not part of our strategy. Our strategy is
26 ' to get the services out into those communities. Our
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1 difficult to |
2 UNENOWN : Why you need it.and supports that
3 HEARING OFFICER: What late file number are we
4 on?
5 [CROSS CONVERSATION]
6 HEARING OFFICER: I guess that would be 4.
7 MR, DAGLIO: TIt's very consistent with what we
8 did in Southbury. Patients weren't going to drive
.9 16 miles to Danbury for their cardiovaécular
190 imaging. We wanted to bring it closer to them. We-
11 had a cardiology practice as part of our network out
12 there, To bring those gervices cloger Lo them is
13 really ig really it's all about our strategy of
14 distribution of services. -
15 UNENOWN : We'll call it the strategy for
16 distribution of
17 MR. DAGL;O: Health Care Serviceg.
1é UNKNOWN: -- Health Care Services.
19 MS. HERLIHY: This is Sally Herlihy. In the
20 rre-file on Attachment B, page 12, it actually gave
21 you a picture of the serviee area and the map and
22 the location. The Newtown Diagnostic Imaging
23 facility is the only one eagt of the hospital and
24 the location is still within the primaryAservice
25 érea, but positioned between the physician offices
26 where those patiénts are being referred for imaging

860-549-1850
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1 , : we have where we're approaching capacity at DDI and
2 the DMAC building, it would be very difficult for us
3 to absorb that into our busiest centers. ' The only
4 other option at that point is the Ridgefield Center
5 which has some capacity; we all agree. But to move
6 ’patieﬁts east of that area over to Ridgefileld is
7 just we don't see.that happening today in our
8 - existing centralized scheduling process where the
9 ﬁmu scheduler has a view of every . center. 8o to bring
10 that volume to consolidate that volume or that
11 capacity into our two busiest locationes because in
12 my view point in our strategy to bring them back
13 into the hogpital is not what we wan£ to do. But to
14 bring them back tc DDI or to DMAC building would be
15 the only other option and both of those are
16 ‘ approaching capacity with the volumes that they have
17 there. The RDI is the only other sclutien, but it
18 just doesn't even happén today in our distribution
19 in trying to move patients from east of Darnbury éver
20 to Ridgefield. It does happen in the southern part
21 . ‘ ~of Danbury, but not so much east of Danbury where
22 they'd rather stay closer to where they work or
23 where they live to have their appointmeﬁts. |
24 C - HEARING OFFICER: 8o there was discussion
25 j earlier about the replacement of the one slice CT
26 | gecanner with a 16 slicé I think it was. Was that
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1 include the equipment in that projection.

2 | HEBRING OFFICER: .Sb bagically thé uﬁgrade of

3 the equipment is not included in the projections.

4 MR. DAGLIO: Right.

5 MS. MARCHIONE: That's correct.

& M3. ZUPCOE: Correct.l

7 HEARIEG OFFICER: And you're not certain of

8 when that's going to happen?

9 - MR. bAGLIO: We had an annual capital.process
10 every year where we determine our priorities for the
11 health network. It ig anticipated we could
12 potentially do that next.year, but again we have
13 gignificant capital investments that we're making
14 right now in New Milford Hospital as part of the new
15 network they have significant IT investment We're
16- making there. 8o we we don't know what 2013'g3
17 capital capital projects will look like yet. We do
18 know what 2012 will loock like. We typically buy the
19 equipment and then depreciate it over seven years or
20 g0. So that seven year depreciétion would be
21 factored intc an annual P & L for the location. It
22 would be typically how we would structure that. At
23 some point there will be an end of life issue with
24 this scanner; we will have to replace it. But we
25 7 typically have a fleel management process of about
26 seven to eight years for a CT scanner.
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1 the proposal, it's combined
2 MS. ZUPCOE: It's combined.
3 MR. HUBER: -- and wé're asking for it to be
4 separated.
5‘ HEARING OFFICER: So ig that a late file?
6 MR. HUBER: Sc that would be late file #5.
7 HEARING OFFICER: I believe we agked about
8 1istin§ providers in the area in the CON
9 s application, but volumes weren'tﬁprovided.
10 MR. DAGLIO: By provider?
11 HEARING OFFICER: Right. Are you able to get
12 any of those volumes for any ofzthe:providers? |
13 MR. DAGLIO: Yes.
14 HEARING OFFICER: You are?
15 MR. DAGLIO: @Getting volumes by providers?
1le Sure.
17 MS. HERLIHY: Can you regtate the gquestion?
18 I'm sorry. I think we're answering two different
19 things. |
20 [CROSS COMMENTING]
21 MS. MARCHIONE: Other vyou mean for other --
22 MR. DAGLIO: You mean of other people? No,
23 noe. ‘
24 [CROSS CCOMMENTING]
25 MR. DAGLIO: So you mean Dr. Erligus's
26 practice for example?
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1 The table that indicates the total volume by
2 location in a format similar to Attachment C.
3 HEARING OFFICER: No, wait
4 MS. ZUPCOE: No wailt. It was by scanner.
5 MR. HUBER: No, that was |
6 HEARING CFFICER: Late file #1 is supposed to
7 do total volume incliuding inpatient and outpatient.
8 Late file #2 is a table showing breaking down the
9 i hospital scannersg' volume by scanner,
10 - MR. HUBER: Okay. Should I start from the
11 top?
12 " HBEARING OFFICER: Are those ﬁlear now, late
13 file #1 and #2, we're good?
14 ‘ UNENOWN: Uh hm.
15 : . HEARING CFFfICER: Ckay.
16 -+ MR. HUBER: Late file #3 is an explanation as
17 to'how capécity was determined for DDI énd RDT,
18 : Late file #4 1s strategy for distribution of health
19 care services. Late file #6 is revenue and expense
20 | statements individually addressing the CT and the
21 ' MRI acquisitions.
22 | HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I think that
23 - concludes the hearing. Did you all want to make a
24 o ~ closing statement?
25 ~ MR. DAGLIO: I actually had a queétion for
26 clarification just on this if it's okay, the

Brandon Smith Réporting & Video
860-549~1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Btreet
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1 closing staﬁement? You don't have to; it's not a
2 requireﬁent. |
3 M3. GERNER: I think on behalf of Western
| 4 Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, wéfd like to
5 thank you for giving us an opportﬁnity to respond
6 with late files certainly to some of the issues that
7 may not havé been out in the open initially, but are
8 kind of subsurface issues that if it will help in
9 understanding thelimportance of fhis application to
10 them forAthe-future, not just for today but as is
11 menticried, in the testimony that it's an opportunity
12 for tﬁo pleces of equi?ment that are already out
13 there in the community that 1t doesn't reguire the
14 purchase of additional equipment at this_point, but
15 éimply the opportunity to bring the service cut to a
16 place that already exists with-patients who are
17 already usging that facility. And hopefully the
18; answer is we'll help you to see how that volume
19 will grow in that area to fill that space that is
20 out there already established and already equipped
21 to go forward into the future. That's it. ‘Thank
22 VOU.
23 HEARING OFFICER: One last thing. We talked
24 'about the emails that we had receivé&. I was just
25 locking now I can't find it. Oh here. In the last
26 it's page 3 of that email communication from Dr.

860-549-1850

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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1 | MS. ZUPCQE: Bure.
2 HEARING OFFICER: ~- showingAhow you_acﬁually
-3 came up with | '
4 M8, ZUPCOE: Yes, absolutely.
5 . HEARING OFFICER: -- the numbers. Just like
6 you stated, just so we have it clearly and reflected
7 onrthe record.
8 . MS. ZUPCOE: I think I think what else it
9 E will show ag part of the #st think. As I try to
10 - highlight the revenue and expenses for the late
11 filing #5, itlwould come vou cculd see it there.
12 | HEARING OFFICER: Oh, okay.
i3 . [CROSS CONVERSATION]
14 ' MS. ZUPCOE: Because in thé revenue and
15 expenses you're asking for CT and MRI, éo vou'd see
16 it there.
17 HEARING OFFICER: Okay, that scunds perfect.
18 Great. Thank you. In conclusicon of this heéring,
19 - & proposed final decision will be rendered did T
20 alieady say this pursuant to General Statute,
21 Section 4-179 -- in accordance with 4-179, the
22 ~applicant shall have 14 days to request oral
23 argument and file briefs or to waive this right.
24 - That's once the proposed final decision is rendered.
25 Obviously we have late files that we're going to
26 ' receive from you first and I just realize as I say

Brandon S8mith Reporting & Video .
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street
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1 .
2 _ CERTIFICATE

I, Mary Indomenico do hereby certify that the forgoing

3

4

5 transcript of the hearing held on October 25, 2011.at the

6 Department of Public Health, Office of Heélth Care Access is a

7 true'and accurate transcribtion‘of the recording presented to me

8 to‘the best of my knowledge and ability.

Q IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto get my hand-.this 31st
1.0 day of January, 2012, | |

11 ; ‘ - .
| %ﬂjﬂ O S nghrens o /-31-12
7

- 12

.13 Mary Indomenico, Transcriber Date
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting. com 249 Pearl Street



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

January 24, 2011

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE CM RRR #9171082133393205517262
Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application, Docket Number 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in Newtown

NOTICE OF ORAL ARGUMENT

Sally F. Herlihy, on behalf of Western Connecticut Health Network, has requested oral
argument regarding the recommendation of Hearing Officer Melanie A. Dillon, Esq.
Pursuant to Section 4-179, oral argument has been scheduled as follows:

Tuesday, February 14, 2012 at 2:00 p.m,
Department of Public Health, Third Floor Hearing Room
410 Capitol Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut

Respondent’s brief shall be filed on or before February 7, 2012. Please contact Diane Buzzetti
at (860) 509-7648 if you have any questions.

On February 14, 2012, you will have fifteen minutes to present your argument.

v Lea Qo

Lisa A. Davis, M.B.A., B.SN., R.N.
Deputy Commissioner

c: Kimberly R. Martone, Director of Operations, OHCA

Teiephone Device for the Deaf (860} 509-7191
410 Capito? Avenue - MS #
F.O. Box 340308 Hartford, CT 06134
Afftrmative Action / An Equal Opportunity Employer




RLOCOMNMPCTICUT

<k
P NETWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL - NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hosuital Ave,
Danbury, CT 06810

WesternConnacticutHealthNstwork.org
DanburyHospital.ory
NewMilfordHospiiai.org

February 15, 2012

The Hon. Lisa A. Davis, M.B.A,, BS.N_, R.N.
Deputy Commissioner

Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO

Public Health Hearing Section

P.0. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re: Certificate of Need Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC in
Newtown, CT

Dear Deputy Commissioner Davis,

Attached please find the original and two copies of the Applicant’s Request to Re-Open the
Hearing in the above-captioned docket.

Please call me at (203) 739-4903 if you have any questions regarding this request, or if any
further action needs to be taken by the Applicant.

Respectfully submitted,

s

3 . I s
Asitey 7 Hdadeigy
A 7 j

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

cc: Marianne Horn, Esq.
DPH Legal Counsel

Diane Buzzetti, Paralegal
DPH Hearing Section




STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE ACCESS

DOCKET NO.: 11-31703-CON

WESTERN CONNECTICUT HEALTH

NETWORK AFFILTATES, INC.

ACQUISITION OF CT SCANNER &

MRI SCANNER FROM NEWTOWN

DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING, LLC FEBRUARY 15,2012

REQUEST TO RE-OPEN HEARING

The Applicant in the above-captioned docket, Western Connecticut Health Network
Affiliates, Inc., respectfully requests that the Department of Public Heaith re-open the
hearing in this docket to admit evidence submitted to the agency in its “Exceptions to
Proposed Final Decision” dated February 7, 2012. Oral argument on the Exceptions was
held on February 14, 2012.

Specifically. the Applicant asks that the following evidence submitted as part of the
Exceptions document be admitted to the Record:

1. Appendix A — MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital and Volume of MRI
scanning moving from Hospital to Outpatient Facilities

2. Appendix C - Letters of Support
The original hearing on this matter was held on October 25, 2011. The Exceptions were
presented to the Department of Public Health on February 14, 2012 and heard by Deputy

Commissioner Lisa Brady. At that time the Exceptions document was admiited to the
Record, but withont Appendices A and C.

Respectfully submitted,

)fﬁwj ] 1 He ‘A{L;i{;

Sally F. Herlthy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning




ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A — MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital and Volume of MRI scanning
moving from Hospital to Outpatient Facilities

Appendix C - Letters of Support




APPENDIX A

Danbury Hospital’s MRI Scanners




Table 1 - MRI Scanning at Danbury Hospital

A B C D E F
Average Number Actual Average | Variance | Additional
scanner of MRI annual number of Case Capacity
time in cases minutes it | of cases volumes | atan OP
Minutes performed | takes to columnD | ata Center vs
for at the perform would Hospital- | an
Specific Hospital specific translate | based inpatient
Cases at MRIT to in an MRI center by
the procedures | outpatient | center vs | procedure
Hospital ! at the MRI an type*
hospital center = outpatient
{AxB) D/45 MRI
minutes’ | Center =
D-B’
Exam Type
Anesthesia
180 196 35,193 782 587 300%
Arthrograms
' 70 127 8,896 198 71 56%
Abdomen w/Contrast
90 283 25,515 567 283 100%
Bilat Breast
90 205 18,476 411 205 100%
Breast Biopsy
120 10 1,173 26 16 167%
Needle Placement
120 20 2,346 52 33 167%
MRA
90 323 29,034 645 323 100%
Runoffs — Tower
extremities 150 20 2,933 65 46 233%
Face/Neck/Orbits
w/Contrast 90 78 7,039 156 78 100%
Other
45 4,057 182,562 4,057 - 0%
Total MRI Exams at : ]
Haospital 39 5,318 313,166 6,959 1,641 3%
TP additional minutes
to all IP cases 30 1,295 38,850 863 N/A N/A
Emergency Room
additional minutes to
all ER cases® 30 98 2,933 65 N/A N/A
Total Additional ' '
Minutes to add to IP
and ED cases 1,393 41,783 929
GRAND TOTAL
Capacity Variance’ 5,318 354,948 7,888 2,570 48%




Notes for Table 1:

1.

2.

Column A: The average time it takes each Hospital-based MRI exam type to be
completed

Colurmn D: The average time for a standard outpatient MRI exam to be completed in
any of the Network’s facilities is 45 minutes. Dividing the total number of Hospital-
based exam minutes by 45 minutes yields the number of MRI exams that could be
completed in the same time period at an outpatient facility.

Column E: When taking the same amount of total MRI exam minutes from the
Hospital-based MRI exam volume, the Hospital performed 5,318 MRI exams, while
an outpatient MRI facility could produce 6,959 standard outpatient MRI exams, or
1,641 additional MR] exams.

Column F: This represents the number of incremental MRI exams that could be
performed in an outpatient center in the form of capacity percentages. By way of
example, in the same amount of time it takes to perform 196 MRI exams with
anesthesia at the Hospital, an outpatient MRI center can perform 782 standard
outpatient MRI exams or a 300% improvement in capacity.

Inpatient additional minutes to all IP cases: This row represents the additional time it
requires to perform an MRI exam on inpatients, due to transportation and
maneuvering a patient from their bed, to the MRI scanner. During the time of
transportation and maneuvering of the patient, the MRI scanner remains idle. Of the
5,318 cases indicated, 1,295 exams were performed on inpatients. When you
multiply the estimated 30 minutes of time to the 1,295 inpatient exams performed
during the period, it requires an additional 38,850 minutes of time on the MRI
scanners. An outpatient MRI facility could perform an additional 863 MRI exams
during the time it took to transport and maneuver patients on 1,295 inpatient exams.
Emergency additional minutes to all E.R. cases: The Emergency Room is located on
the first floor of the Tower building and the MRI Department is located on the 3™
floor of the Stroock Building. The separation of these two locations causes the same
phenomenon related to transportation and maneuvering of patients as the Inpatients.
When using the same estimated time factor of 30 minutes, multiplied by 98 E.R. MRI

exams, the result is an additional 2,933 minutes of MRI time. An outpatient MRI

facility could perform an additional 65 outpatient MRI exams during the same time
period.

In Summary: It is the Applicant’s position that many Hospital-based MRI exams are
more complex, and require greater time to complete than the standard MRI exams
that are performed on a standard outpatient MRI scanner. Therefore, capacity,
measured by the number of exams performed on an MRI scanner, must be viewed
differently for a Hospital-based scanner versus an outpatient facility scanner. Based
on the number of exams at the Hospital MRI scanners and the types of exams these
represent, it is the applicant’s estimate that the Network’s outpatient facilities operate
at 48% greater exam capacity than the Hospital scanners can.

Based on this analysis, and using a weighted average of 104 minutes as an average scan time
for the Hospital MRI exams (as demonstrated in Table 1), it is clear that the Hospital MRI
scanners at the Hospital are at full capacity. To illustrate this point, the applicant has




completed the template it uses to measure capacity on its outpatient MRI scanners and
adapted it for the Hospital MRI scanners (inpatient and outpatient).

Table 2 -~ Capacity Analysis on Hospital MRI Scanners

Hours of Operation
Various periods
within timeframe
Operating Hours 1.5
Operating Hours 3T

MRI Scanner 1 Max
capacity

MRI Scanner 2 Max
capacity

Total Max. capacity
(patients)

Number of patients
Random Week
Random Week

Avg

% Capacity

M
7:30
AM
8:00pm
12.5
9

12
9

21

18
86%

T
730
AM

8:00pm

12.5
9

12
9
21
: : 18

19.5
93%

MRI

w
7:30
AM

8:00pm

12.5
9

12
9

21
S0

225
107%

TH FRi SAT TOTAL/WK
7:30 7:30
AM AM  7:30 AM
8:00pm 8:00pm 4:00P.M.
12.5 12.5 8.5
9 9
12 12 11
9 9
21 21 11 116
PR Rl 120
22.5 225 10.5 115.5
107%  107% 95% 100%

Table 3 — Shift in MRI Volumes from Inpatient to Qutpatient Settings

The strategic initiative to shift MRI outpatients from testing at Danbury Hospital to non-
hospital-based outpatient facilities operated by the Applicant WCHNA can be observed in
the bar graph, with 546 reductions in Danbury Hospital volume and 815 procedure growth in
QP centers for the same time period.
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APPENDIX C:

Letters of Support
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Siate of Tounecticut
HOUGE OF REPEESENTATIVES
STAYE CAPITOL
HARTEQRD, GONMECTICUT 051051391

ks
St

REFRESENTATIVE CHRISTOPHER LYDRIOY VIGE CHAIRAM
L6 HUNDRED SITH ASSEMBLY DISTRICT PUBLI BEALTH CORSTIEE
LETHATIVE OFFRCE Bl Dl BEMSER
RO a1 EOUCATIRN COMMITIEE
HARTFORD, OT (B0 1481 HELS AN SERVIEES COMBNTTEE

CAPITONL - #E80-240-5R10
TEEL FREE. 15476257
FRY, SEQ-ZRfGa8E
F-AAN0L - Christopher Lntdedfons o) gov

lanuary 11, 2002

Comimizoonar fowet duellen. MD, MPA, MPH
Pepariment of Public Heslth

Lo of Health Caee Access

435G Capitol Avenie M3 F13HCA

Hasrford, €T 061348302

Dar B, Mudlen,

b ar weritieg in sappont of tee dransfer of ownership of Newtown Dizgrostic Imaging from Newtows Diagnogtic
bnaging Azzociates to the Westers Conncctdent Health Meronwk, As Viee-Chaimmn of the Public Hleaih Comnrittes
and Npwlown's State Rapresentative, I have mn faterest i mainiaining access to medical cave for the meinbers of o
camsinity,

It iz pyy anderstanding that vous affice bag whon the snesual siep of only allswing n partie] fransfer of ownershis,
Yisterday. ¥ spoke ot kenglh with DPH saff 1o try and beter inderstand dis decision. Even aftsy speaking wilh
youe staff, | remin sonceoed about shis docision, as i may leopardize the transfer of e facility. As we contimss o
adelress il fnporzant ssue of bealtds care refor, B & Inporiat it we stive io drente opporanities t provide
beiler care af foweer cosls. Allewing facility to enter the network will allow for inproved contingity of care,
unificalion of ndice raverds and mare direc compmandcation with e ohey medizal and surgical servioes our
citizons arg gurrently receiving,

Hewlown Uingnosis Imaging i the endy imaging facility in Newtewn and serves sthor neighbadng rommumities a3
weetl, This is especislly fnmpormant for our sendor cilizens to ressive ihe care (hey aead. o arder w mrain this
service fof yaess to come mul enhance e medical care aod apoess for the commmunity, 1 am requesting that you
recanstlcr youy decision zmd sflow 2 full transfer and purchase to lake plage.

"i’i‘uﬂ'lki wou for yeur considesation,
g
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Newitows Munieipal Center

3 Primeose Stregt

Mewtown, Comsectisty 6470
Tel. (2035 270-4241

Fax (203) 2304303

st slecowaniinewisere et gor

E. Patrigie Licdrs
Fizst Selechnen

W N BN el T(}‘VN {} F N E WTGWN
OFFICE OF THE FIRST SELECTMAN

Januany 17, 202

Fewesl Mullen, MEL MPA, MPH
42 Melanie Dillon. Esg
Conmecion otfice of Mealth Care Aceess

Edear Dir. Mubben:

Az Mewtown First Selectman T have an fterest in maisaining sooess o medivgl swse St the members
of our cometumity.

1t i my understonding that your office has when the vrusual step of slowing only & partial tansfer of
ownesship of Mewiown Disgnostic Imaging to the Western Consecticut Health Network, We appreciate
the cuivent ciimate of health care reform with accountable care wrpaizntions eming sod networks of
sarvice providers sligning 1o provide better care 3t kewer cous, | Bave been informed that g panial
warsfr would Hkely ehminaie considermion of Newitows Diagnostic as part of thae hesth care setwork.
Chiven that situntion. and cecopnizing that the vast reajorisy of our residents reeaive thelr heglth esre
through that debwork. we are concerned that the pastisd rranafer would essendally sesteion ov elimingte
aceess 10 the services of Mewiowa Disgnostic. Full manstee of Nesstonen Disgnostic to Western
Connectiout Healih Network atlows for frproved contingity of care, unification of medizal reoords snd
e ditest commuanication with the other medical and surplenl services our ¢ifizens are currently
recelving.

Raswiown Diageostic Imaging is the cnly magisg fGeility in Newtowss o oder 1 maiotain this service
for yeurs o come and enbanes die medicel care and aceess for the wirenanify § s seouessing that vou
reconsider gourdecision and aliow o full wansfer and purchase to lake place,
Sincersly,
s
£

B Pateloia Liodea
Fiest Seleciman .

o Adam Welber, MDD




January 10, 2012

Fewel Mullen, MEL, MPA, MPH
Commisioner

Otice of Health Oae Accegs
419 Capitol Avenus
MEHIIHCA

Hartford, O 061340308

Dear P, bullen,

We are writing i support of the transfer of ownerdup of Wewiown Diagnostic Imaging from
MNewiown Diagnostic Imaging Assoctates to the Western Conneeticut Health Network., As
members of the conununity we have an interest in maintaining socess o niedical care for the
migmnsbers of our commimity.

It iz one understanding thet vour offfice has taken the upusual step of only allowing a partial
transfer of ownership, This may jeopardize the transfer of the faeility. In the cmrent clinuite of
heaith cars reform where accountable care organizations are forming and petworks of service
providers afe aligning to provide betier care at Jower costs it Is imnportant to us that the faciliey
snder the Nerwork where the vast meajority of our citfzens recetve: their bealth care. This will
allow for improved contimaty of care, urification of medicsl records and more direct
commurdeation with the other medical and surgical zervices our citizens are currently receiving.

Newtows Disgnostic Imaging Is the only aaping feility i Newtown. In ovder to maioisin this
service for years to come and enhance the medica! care and access for the commuaity, we are
requesting that vou reconsider vour decision and allew s full fransfor and prrchase to toke place.

Thank you for your considemtion.

S . g .
Sincerely, /‘? z el C}}fj\i ": ;:;%_‘M’ C“r o Clihoe Rf “i:”" ef

N ek 203. P AN S S ijezfiw
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N\J s oy

Mewtow, {‘@ﬁmmcu{ Qidl’x‘ {,in
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fapuary 10, 2012

Jewel Mullen, MDDy, MPa, MPH

Commigioner

Dffice of Health Care Access

419 Capitol Avenus

ME #13HOCA .
Hartford, CT 061 34-0208

Bear P Muollen,

We are wiiting in suppost of the transfer of awnership of Newtown Dingnostie Imaging from
Newtown Piapnostic Imaging Assocites 1o the Western Connecticut Health Nevwork. As
members of the community we have an inerest in mainteining aceess to medical care for the
members of our communily.

[t is our understanding that your office has 1aken the unmisual step of only allowing a partial
transier of owneyship, This may jeopariize the transfer of the facility. In the current climate of
health cave reforsn whers accountable care ovganizations ate forming and networks of service
providers are aligning 1o provide better tare 2t lower costs it is Important to us that the facility
enter the Network where the vast majarity of onr citizens reeeive their health eare. This will
wilow for improved eonibmity of cave, unifiestion of medicat records and more divee!
comymunication with the other medical and surgical services our citizens are curreatly receiving,

Rewiown Diagnossic Tmaging is the only imaging fcility in Newiown, In orderto maintdn this
service for years t eome and enhance the medical vare and secess for the copununity, we are
requesting that you reconsider your decision and aflow a full transfier and purchase to take plme.

cALD
z%%%ﬁ

Thaek you for vour consideration.

Sincerely,

(e
Py
\“M
i
i

Meswiown, Connectiont Rowary Club
cor Matanie Dillan, esq.
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

March 29, 2012 VIAFAX

Sally IF. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Request to Re-Open the Hearing and Admit New Evidence

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

The hearing for Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.’s (“WCHN") d/b/a Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.’s (“WCHNA”™) (herein known as “Applicants™)
proposal for the acquisition of a CT scanner and an MRI scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC was held on Tuesday, October 25, 2011, On February 15, 2012, the Office of
Health Care Access (“OHCA”) received the Applicants’ request to re-open the hearing and to
admit additional information attached to the request, specifically, noted as Exhibit Appendix A
and Appendix B.

The request to reopen the record in the above referenced docket is hereby Granted. The
additional information (specifically Appendix A and Appendix B) submitted as attachments to the
request received by OHCA on February 15, 2012 is entered into the record.

Attached please find a list of questions (Attachment 1) for your review and response. Your
response is due by April 13, 2012.

Please contact Jack A. Huber at (860) 418-7069 or Steven Lazarus at (860) 418-7012, if you have
any questions concerning this correspondence.

Sincerely,
/g L&K
[Rvnd {/; .‘QZ;E»»;/ j {;fﬁw’/

// f“'"/ ‘;
/ /' Joanne V. Ygandmﬁ, Esq.
.~ Hearing Oﬂi\(fir /

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0O.Box 340308, Hariford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. March 29, 2012
Reopening Public Hearing Page 2 of 2

1.

Attachment I

The Hospital MRI volume has fluctuated over the past 4 years. Additionally,
based on Exhibit A, Table 1, the Hospital’s outpatient MRI facilities are expected
to reach capacity at a higher level than the Hospital. Please explain why NDI’s
current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the Danbury Hospital system
(taking into account the scanners at the Hospital, DHMAC, RDI and DI}).

Does Danbury Hospital have adequate capacity to accommodate its current and
expected number of inpatients requiring magnetic resonance imaging?

With respect to the information provided in Appendix A, Table 1, entitled “MRI
Scanning at Danbury Hospital”, it appears that the Applicant concludes that its
Network outpatient MRI facilities operate at 48% greater exam capacity than the
MRI scanning service at Danbury Hospital. Please explain why such a conclusion
would not also hold true for the other non-network outpatient MRI providers that
are located within the NDI service area.

The Applicant projects 1,205 MRI scans for NDI in FY 2014, Please explain why
the existing eight MRI scanners currently located in the primary service area
cannot absorb this number of MRI scans projected to be performed at the NDI
location.
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To: 918604187853 From: (8594) 94/12/12 12:08 PH Page 1 of &

@ WISTERE CONNECTICUT HEALTH NEFWORK

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospita! Ave
Danbury, CT 06810
203.733.4903
DanhuryHosplial org

Frem:  Sally Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

To: Joanne Yandow, Esq. Hearing Officer

Fax;  860-418-7053 No. of Pages: 5 {including cover sheet)

Phone; Date; April 12, 2012
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April 10, 2012
By Facsimile and First Class Mall

Joanne V. Yandow, Esq.

Hearing Officer

Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO
Public Health Hearing Section
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re:  Certificate of Need Application, Dacket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Cennecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Proposal to Acquire & CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC in Newtown, CT
Response to DPH/OHCA Questions dated March 29, 2012.

Dear Hearing Officer Yandow,

Altached please find the original and two copies of the Applicant's Response to your March
29, 2012 letter requesting answers to questions relatad to oLr “Exceptions to Proposed
Final Decision” and the evidence allowed into the racord on February 15, 2012 in the above-
captioned docket.

Please call me at (203) 739-4908 if you have any questions regarding these responses, or if
any further action needs to be taken by the Applicant.

Thank you.
Raspectfully submitted,
/yfm% 7 ﬂ%

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
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Responses to DPHIOHCA Completeness Questions dated March 29, 2012

. The Hospital MRI volume has fluctuated over the past 4 years. Additionally,

based on Exhibit A, Table 1, the Hospital's outpatient MRI facilities are
expected to reach capacity at a higher level than the Hospital. Please explain
why NBI's current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the Danbury
Hospital system (taking into account the scanners at the Hospital, DHMAC, RDI
and DI).

Responss:

NDfi's current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the DH system because
DH does not own ND! or the scans associated with it. NDI is a competitor who is
interested in selling its practice. The existing practice serves patients who live in the
Newtown area, who have already chosen not to drive to Danbury or elsewhere to
have scanning done. The NDI practice Is accessible for the patients who live in the
greater Newtown area, There are no other MRI scanners in Newtown,

The Hospital's outpatient MR facilities are expected to reach capacity at a higher
level than the Hospital due to the shorter length of time per scan at cutpatient
fagilities. (Appendix A, Table [ to the Exceptions filed on February 7, 2012). In the
Proposed Final Decision, the issue was narrawed down to whether the Hospital had
capacity to absorb any of the NDI scans.

While the Applicént’s historical and projected volumes for all of its facilities were set
forth in ths Propesed Final Decision in FF #50 on page 8 and FF# 56 on page 9, the
Proposed Final Decision concluded that the MRI scans could only be absorbed by
DH.

The Proposed Final Decision issued by OHCA on January 5, 2012 stated in its
Discussion, infer afia,

... . Based upon the avallable MRI capacity at DH and low MRI utilization at
NDI, OHCA ig unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the
Applicant to acquire and operate an additional MR scanner at NDI. FF58.
Moreover, there is available capacity on the two MRI scanners at DH to
absorb the existing and projected MRI volume from NDI FF58. .. "

(Proposed Final Decision, 1/5/12, Discussion, p. 11.)

! Newtown First Selectman E. Patricia Llodra and State Representative Christapher Lyddy, Vice-Chairman of
the State Public Health Commiltee, have both written to DPH fo express their concerns about maintaining
access at NDI and improving the quality anc continuity of care, and ask that you approve the application, in
part, because 1 is the only imaging facility in Newtown area. {See “Exceplions fo Proposed Final Desision”,
2712, Attachment B, pp. 20 and 21).
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Based on this conclusion, the Applicant, in its Exceptions filed on February 7, 2012,
took exception to FF#59 (“Exceptions”, p. 5) but did not re-address other potential
locations. There was no reason to. OHCA stated it did not consider RD! volume
bacause it was not in the service area, (Proposed Final Decision, 1/5/12, p. 10, FN
#3) and only identified DH as having underutilized scanners. d., p. 11).

it should be noted that, even if space is available, the Applicant cannat direct NDI's
patients to any of its faciliies unless the application is approved and the Applicant
becomes the owner of the facility. And while NDI would remain in Newtown, under
WCHNA ownership, there could be a flow of patients between facilities o that
patients who are required to have MRI scanning are seen as quickly as possible in
the location that is most accessible.

Poes Danbury Hospital have adequate capacity to accommodate its current
and expected number of inpatients requiring magnetic resonance imaging?

Response:

Yes, Danbury Hospital has the capacity to accommodate the current number of
scans it now parforms, but no room for expansion unless it can optimize scheduling
across the various network locations. The volume at the hospital based MRI scanner
is constrained because the Hespital is required to do scanning for five (5) categories
of patients which significantly limits the overall number of patients which can be
accemmodated at the hospital. These includs;

s Inpatients;

+ Patients who are scheduled from nursing homes or require spacial assistance,
both of which are best served in a hospital setting for MR scanning;

+ Oulpatients who require a hospital setting for their scanning due to the spacific

- type of procedure, potential high risk category or need for a concomitant

pracecure (i.e. MR arthography or breast biopsy).

+  Children for whom dedicated sedation days are scheduled: and

+ Research patients.

As discussed during various presentations by the Applicant, and with documentation
provided in Exhibit A of the “Exceptions” filed on February 7, 2012, scans performed
on these types of patients necessitate a greater amount of dedicated time than many
of those performed in an outpatient facility consequent to the compiexity, intensity or
urgency of these hospital based scans, Over the past four years, the Hospital has
been performing between 5,000 - 6,000 scans despite these limitations.

With respect to the information provided In Appendix A, Table 1, entitled “MRI
Scanning at Danbury Hospital”, it appears that the Applicant concludes that its
Network outpatient MRI facilities operate at 48% greater exam capacity than the
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MR scanning service at Danbury Hospital. Please explain why such a
conclusion would not also hold true for the other non-network outpatient MRI
providers that are located within the NDI service area,

Responsa:

This conclusion may or may not be true. If the ther providers had requesied status
10 participate in this application, there would be evidence in the Record which would
confirm or deny the premise. However, there is no evidence as to whether the ather
4 providers are also capable of cperating at 48% greater exam capacity than DH.
They should be operating at & higher level of capacity than a hospital (since a
hospital is required to do scanning that takes a great deal longer to complete), but
the degree of efficiency, the skill of the technicians and their avallability, hours of
operation, technology used to perform the exams, the location of the facility and the
quality, based on the physicians involved, all play a role in the quantity of exam
capacity at each facility,

NDI has experienced difficulty with all of the factors just mentioned, and has been

forthright about their desire to sell their practice to an entity which would Jeave the

facility where it is to serve their patients, but would have the expertise, staffing and
experience to provide a more efficient quality service,

The Applicant projects 1,205 MRI scans for NDI in FY 2014. Please explain why
the eight existing MRI scanners currently located in the primary service area
cannot absorh this number of MRI scans projected to be performed at the NDI
focation.

Response:

Despite the existence of these eight scanners today, physicians and patients have
chosen NDI as their imaging provider of cheice. The Applicant cannot direct those
patients now utilizing NDI to other facities nor can they insist that physician
providers refer thelr patients to ancther imaging location.

NDI is an established private physician practice offering CT scanning and MRI scanning.
There is a Fair Market Value (FMV) for this practice and its lechnology, and the physician
owners are not going to abandon the opportunity to earn that value through a sale of the
business they have built and operated. The twelve (12) physicians who own i have a
property right in their professional office which cannot be shut down when they were not
even made applicants by the OHCA Hearing Officer.

Opt-Out : *xxx
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
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Jewel Mulien, M.D,, M.PIL., MP.A. Dannel Malloy

Commissioner Governor
TO: Joanne V. Yandow, Esq.
Hearing Officer
FROM: Jewel Mullen, M.D., M.P.H., M.P.A., Commissioﬂ@qfﬂ&
DATE: April 12,2012
RE: Western Connecticut Health Network d/b/a Western Connecticut Health Network

Affiliates, Inc. — Acquisition of a CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown
Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, Docket Number: 11-31703-CON

I hereby designate you to sit as a hearing officer in the above-captioned matter to rule
on all motions and recommend findings of fact and conclusions of law upon completion
of the hearing. This delegation supersedes the previous delegation to Melanie Dillon, which

is hereby revoked.

PHONE: (860) 509-7101 FAX: (860) 509-7111
410 CAPITOL AVENUE - MS#13COM, PO. Box 340308, HARTFORD, CoNNaECTICUT 06134-0308
Affirmative Action / Equal Employment Opportunity Employer
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

April 17,2012 VIA REGULAR MAIL
AND FACSIMILE

Sally F. Herlihy

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network

24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Request of Re-Open the Hearing and Admit New Evidence

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

On March 29, 2012, the aftached letter and Attachment 1 were mailed to you regarding the above-
referenced Office of Health Care Access (“OCHA™) matter. On April 12, 2012, I was designated
as the hearing officer in this matter fo rule on all motions and recommend findings of fact and
conclusions of law upon completion of the hearing.

As the March 29, 2012 letter was mailed out prior to my designation as hearing officer, I am
reissuing the letter and Attachment 1 and adopting the documents’ contents as of this date. Your
responses to the earlier letter were received on April 13, 2012 and will be reviewed as responsive
to the reissued letter and Attachment 1. If you have any additional information that is responsive
to the questions in Attachment 1, please provide them to me by April 26, 2012.

Please contact Jack A. Huber at (860) 418-7069 or Steven Lazarus at (860) 418-7012, if yvou have
any questions concerning this correspondence.

Slncerely,

7 ,Zk/zw” y & &Wé‘

oanne V.Y, do , Esq.
' Hearmg Ofiﬁcer

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860} 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-2688
Fax: (860) 418-7053
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Office of Hewlth Care Access

March 29, 2012 VIAFAX
Sally F. Herlihy
Vice President, Planning
Western Connecticut Health Network
24 Hospital Avenue
Danbury, CT 06810
RE:  Certificate of Need Application; Docket Number: 11-31703-CON

Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic

Imaging, LLC by Western Connecticit Ifealth Network Affiliates, Inc.
Request to Re-Open the Hearing and Admit New Evidence

Dear Ms. Herlihyy:

The hearing for Western Comnecticut Health Network Affiliates, inc.’s (“WCHN") d/b/a Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, nc.’s (“WCHNA™) (herein known as “Applicants™}
proposal for the acquisition of a CT scamner and an MRI scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Tmaging, TI.C was held on Tuesday, October 25, 2011. On February 15, 2012, the Office of
Health Care Access (FOHCA™) received the Applicants” request to re-open the hearing and to
admit additional information atfached to the request, specifically, noted as Exhibit Appendix A
and Appendix B.

“The request to reopen the record in the above referenced docket is hereby Granted. The

additional information (specifically Appendix A and Appendix B) submitted as attachments to the ;
request received by OHCA on February 15, 2012 is entered into the record. .

Attached please find a list of questions (Aftachment 1} for your review and response. Your
response is due by April 13, 2012.

Please contact Jack A. Huber at (860) 418-7069 or Steven Lazarus at (860) 418-7012, if you have
any questions concerning this correspondence.

Sincerely,

Joanne V. Yimdoyg Esq.
Hearing Oﬂi%r

An Equad Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephomne: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-5688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. March 29, 2012
Reopening Public Hearing Page2 of 2

L.

Attachment I

The Hospital MRI volume has fluctuated over the past 4 years. Additionally,
based on Exhibit A, Table 1, the Hospital’s outpatient MRI facilities are expected
to reach capacity at a higher level than the Hospital. Please explain why NDI’s
current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the Danbury Hospital system
(taking into account the scanners at the Hospital, DHMAC, RDI and D1).

Does Daobury Hospital have adequate capacity to accommodate its current and
expected number of inpatients requiring magnetic resonance imaging?

With respect to the information provided in Appendix A, Table 1, entitled “MRI
Scanning at Danbury Hospital”, it appeas that the Applicaut concludes that its
Network outpatient MRI facilities operate at 48% greafer exam capacity than the
MRI scanning service at Danbury Hospital. Please explain why such a conclusion
would not also hold true for the other non-network ountpatient MRI providers that
are located within the NDI service area, |

The Applicant projects 1,205 MRI scans for NDIin FY 2014. Please explain why
the existing eight MRI scanners currently located in the primary service area
cannot absorb this number of MRI scans projected to be performed at the NDI
location.
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CWESTERN CONNECTICUT
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DANBURY HOSPITAL - NEW MILFORD HOSPITAL

24 Hospital Ave.
Danbury, CT 06810
203.739.7000

WesternConnecticutbsatihNstwork.org
DanburyHospital.org
NewhMifordHospital.org

April 10, 2012
By Facsimile and First Class Malil

Joanne V. Yandow, Esq.

Hearing Officer

Department of Public Health

410 Capitol Avenue MS #13PHO
Public Health Hearing Section
P.O. Box 340308

Hartford, CT 06134

Re: Certificate of Need Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Proposal to Acquire a CT Scanner and an MRI Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC in Newtown, CT
Respeonse to DPH/OHCA Questions dated March 29, 2012.

Dear Hearing Officer Yandow,

Attached please find the origihal and two copies of the Applicant’s Response to your March
29, 2012 letter requesting answers to questions related to our “Exceptions to Proposed
Final Decision” and the evidence allowed into the record on February 15, 2012 in the above-
captioned docket.

Please call me at (203) 739-49083 if you have any questions regarding these responses, or if
any further action needs to be taken by the Applicant.

Thank you.
Respectfully submitted,

jgza{c /i }«’fm;:{,eégs

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning
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Responses to DPH/OHCA Completeness Questions dated March 29, 2012

. The Hospital MRI volume has fluctuated over the past 4 years. Additionally,

based on Exhibhit A, Table 1, the Hospital's outpatient MRI facilities are
expected to reach capacity at a higher level than the Hospital. Please explain
why NDI’s current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the Danbury
Hospital system (taking into account the scanners at the Hospital, DHMAC, RDI
and DI).

Response:

NDI’s current MRI scans cannot be accommodated within the DH system because
DH does not own NDI or the scans associated with it. NDI is a competitor who is
interested in selling its practice. The existing practice serves patients who live in the
Newtown area, who have already chosen not to drive to Danbury or elsewhere to
have scanning done. The NDI practice is accessible for the patients who live in the
greater Newtown area. There are no other MRI scanners in Newtown. '

The Hospital's outpatient MR facilities are expected to reach capacity at a higher
level than the Hospital due to the shorter length of time per scan at outpatient
facilities. (Appendix A, Table | to the Exceptions filed on February 7, 2012). In the
Proposed Final Decision, the issue was narrowed down to whether the Hospital had
capacity to absorb any of the NDI scans.

While the Applicént’s historical and projected volumes for all of its facilities were set
forth in the Proposed Final Decision in FF #50 on page 8 and FF# 56 on page 9, the
Proposed Final Decision concluded that the MRI scans could only be absorbed by
DH.

The Proposed Final Decision issued by OHCA on January 5, 2012 stated in its
Discussion, infer alia,

. Based upon the available MRI capacity at DH and low MRI utilization at
NDI, OHCA is unable to conclude that there is a clear public need for the
Applicant to acquire and operate an additional MRI scanner at NDI. FF59.
Moreover, there is available capacity on the two MRI scanners at DH to
absorb the existing and projected MRI volume from NDI. FF58. ...

(Proposed Final Decision, 1/5/12, Discussion, p. 11.)

' Newtown First Selectman E. Patricia Llodra and State Representative Christopher Lyddy, Vice-Chairman of
the State Public Health Committee, have both written to DPH to express their concerns about maintaining
access at NDI and improving the quality and continuity of care, and ask that you approve the application, in
part, because it is the only imaging facility in Newtown area. (See “Exceptions to Proposed Final Decision”,
21712, Attachment B, pp. 20 and 21).
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Based on this conclusion, the Applicant, in its Exceptions filed on February 7, 2012,
took exception to FF#59 ("Exceptions”, p. 5) but did not re-address other potential
locations. There was no reason to. OHCA stated it did not consider RDI volume
because it was not in the service area, (Proposed Final Decision, 1/5/12, p. 10, FN
#3) and only identified DH as having underutilized scanners. (Id., p. 11).

It should be noted that, even if space is available, the Applicant cannot direct NDI's
patients to any of its facilities unless the application is approved and the Applicant
becomes the owner of the facility. And while NDI would remain in Newtown, under
WCHNA ownership, there could be a flow of patients between facilities so that
patients who are required to have MRI scanning are seen as quickly as possible in
the location that is most accessible.

Does Danbury Hospital have adequate capacity to accommodate its current
and expected number of inpatients requiring magnetic resonance imaging?

Response:

Yes, Danbury Haospital has the capacity to accommodate the current number of
scans it now performs, but no room for expansion unless it can optimize scheduling
across the various network locations. The volume at the hospital based MRI scanner
is constrained because the Hospital is required to do scanning for five (5) categories
of patients which significantly limits the overall number of patients which can be
accommodated at the hospital. These include:

s [Inpatients;

» Patients who are scheduled from nursing homes or require special assistance,
both of which are best served in a hospital setting for MRI scanning;

« OQutpatients who require a hospital setting for their scanning due to the specific
type of procedure, potential high risk category or need for a concomitant
procedure (i.e. MR arthography or breast biopsy).

o Children for whom dedicated sedation days are scheduled; and

+ Research patients.

As discussed during various presentations by the Applicant, and with documentation
provided in Exhibit A of the “Exceptions” filed on February 7, 2012, scans performed
on these types of patients necessitate a greater amount of dedicated time than many
of those performed in an outpatient facility consequent to the complexity, intensity or
urgency of these hospital based scans. Over the past four years, the Hospital has
been performing between 5,000 — 6,000 scans despite these limitations.

With respect to the information provided in Appendix A, Table 1, entitled “MRI
Scanning at Danbury Hospital”, it appears that the Applicant concludes that its
Network outpatient MRI facilities operate at 48% greater exam capacity than the
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MRI scanning service at Danbury Hospital. Please explain why such a
conclusion would not also hold true for the other non-network outpatient MRI
providers that are located within the NDI service area.

Response:

This conclusion may or may not be true. If the other providers had requested status
to participate in this application, there would be evidence in the Record which would
confirm or deny the premise. However, there is no evidence as to whether the other
4 providers are also capable of operating at 48% greater exam capacity than DH.
They should be operating at a higher level of capacity than a hospital (since a
hospital is required to do scanning that takes a great deal longer to complete), but
the degree of efficiency, the skill of the technicians and their availability, hours of
operation, technology used to perform the exams, the location of the facility and the
quality, based on the physicians involved, all play a role in the quantity of exam
capacity at each facility.

NDI has experienced difficulty with all of the factors just mentioned, and has been
forthright about their desire to sell their practice to an entity which would leave the
facility where it is to serve their patients, but would have the expertise, staffing and
experience to provide a more efficient quality service.

The Applicant projects 1,205 MRI scans for NDI in FY 2014. Please explain why
the eight existing MRI scanners currently located in the primary service area
cannot absorb this number of MRI scans projected to be performed at the NDI
location.

Response:

Despite the existence of these eight scanners today, physicians and patients have
chosen NDI as their imaging provider of choice. The Applicant cannot direct those
patients now utilizing NDI to other facilities nor can they insist that physician
providers refer their patients to another imaging location.

NDI is an established private physician practice offering CT scanning and MRI scanning.
There is a Fair Market Value (FMV) for this practice and its technology, and the physician
owners are not going to abandon the opportunity to eam that value through a sale of the
business they have built and operated. The twelve (12} physicians who own it have a
property right in their professional office which cannot be shut down when they were not
even made applicants by the OHCA Hearing Officer.




Greer, Leslie

From: Buzzetti, Diane

Sent: Tuesday, May 01, 2012 11:59 AM
To: Greer, Leslie

Subject: FW:11-31703-CON

Leslie, please place a copy of this e-mail in the file. Thanks

From: cehrlich15@gmail.com [mailto:cehrlichl5@gmail.com] On Behalf Of Conrad Ehrlich
Sent: Monday, April 30, 2012 4:19 PM

To: Buzzetti, Diane

Cc: Huber, Jack; Lazarus, Steven; Martone, Kim; Davis, Lisa

Subject: Re: 11-31703-CON

Dear Attorney Yandow,

Please allow me to introduce myself. | am a radiologist with Housatonic Valley Radiological
Associates (HVRA) in Danbury, and | am writing in regard to pending CON 11-31703, in which HVRA
is referred to by the Applicant. The Record contains emails | sent to OHCA on 9/13/11, and

10/20/11 which shared observations, and provided the answer to OHCA's question about

the availability of MRI and CT at other facilities in the local area; an answer which the Applicant did
not provide. | have also copied (below) an 11/29/11 email sent to both OHCA and the Applicant, which did
not make it into the Record, and may be unknown to you. If I may, OHCA's key question as to whether the
entire pool of existing local facilities can accommodate the public's future need for imaging services
remains unanswered by the Applicant. The answer is yes, and at a much lower cost to the public. The
Applicant has avoided directly answering that question, and has tried to shift the focus of the
discussion by restating the question in terms of whether the Applicant exclusively has the capacity

to accommodate the public's future need for imaging services in Danbury and Newtown, and to
exclusively absorb NDI's volume, as if HVRA did not exist. | would once again respectfully restate that
HVRA already has the capacity to absorb any purported backlog and future growth in Danbury and
Newtown, and is readily accessible to the residents of Newtown, many of whom it serves.

The Applicant stated, "If the other providers had requested status to participate in this application,
there would be evidence in the Record which would confirm or deny the premise”, implying that the
information was otherwise unobtainable, and that it was someone else's responsibility for gathering
the evidence, when it is always the Applicant's responsibility. | do not feel that it is necessary for
status to be requested for facts, that are available simply for the asking, to be brought to light. HVRA's
volumes are, as it turns out, in the Record and were known to all before the hearing. | stand by the
observations and data in my emails. Since the hearing has been reopened, | would be happy

to provide data with a signed affidavit upon OHCA's request.

After reviewing the documents submitted since the 1/15/12 Proposed Decision, | feel it is worth
reiterating the following points.

1. To achieve the stated goal of providing the same quality images as DDI, WCHNA will have to
replace NDI's low quality CT and MRI. That will be very expensive for WCHNA, and therefore the
community. Those expenses are not contained in the financial projections as they should be for the

1



analysis to be meaningful. New faster machines with expanded capabilities will also be contrary to
WCHNA's stated goal of not duplicating capacity in the area.

2. The Applicant stated that OHCA's decision relied on the misconception that the hospital's inpatient
units were not being used at maximum capacity, suggesting that it was the only consideration and
basis for the decision. The record shows that OHCA also inquired about the availability of other units
in the area that patients could utilize. The Applicant made no effort to identify existing capacity at
other local facilities and chose to focus only on its internal capacity. Quite the contrary, when asked at
the hearing about the implications of HYRA's volume data, the Applicant simply stated "We don't
know those (numbers) to be factual”, hoping that the question would go away.

3. When asked why the eight existing MRI scanners in the area could not absorb future growth in
Newtown, the Applicant did not answer the question, and changed the subject to one of property
rights. The answer is that the other units in the area can absorb any future growth in Newtown.

Sincerely,

Conrad Ehrlich MD

203-797-1770

Danbury Health Care Affiliates, Inc. Docket Number 11-31703-CON

Conrad Ehrlich 11/29/11

to Melanie, Kim, Jack, Steven, Michael

Dear Attorney Dillon,

I recently had an opportunity to listen to the transcript of the 10/25/11 public hearing and review the Late Files. Respectfully, if the recc
accurate, then I must comment on some of the statements made at the hearing.

In response to Counsel Patricia Gerner's qualified objection to the information contained in my correspondence being in the record, bec
came as a last minute surprise, | would point out that the Applicant, if not Applicant's Counsel, was in prior possession of HVRA's MRI
volumes since 8/30/11 when | sent the Applicant an email inviting them to use HVRA's facility, as an alternative to spending millions o
NDI: ..."I see stated in the NDI Certificate of Need documents that the Hospital's outpatient facilities are operating beyond full capacity
a need to decompress patient volumes in the Danbury area by utilizing the excess capacity at NDI. It should be noted that 1) not only dc
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the excess capacity for which you are looking, but 2) it is equally if not more readily accessible to the patient population served by NDI
and 3) its utilizes superior state of the art imaging equipment (16 slice Siemens Sensation CT and 18-channel 1.5T Siemens Avanto MR
HVRA’s MRI volume was 2,570 and its CT volume was 1,788. These numbers may be shared with OHCA to answer their question abc
existing facilities in the service area.”

On September 13th, 2012, | shared this data with OHCA via email, along with additional observations of the obvious. | do not know wt
was made available to the Applicant. On October 20th, 2012, | again shared this information with the Applicant and OHCA because, as
email, | wanted to give all concerned the opportunity to seek clarification and additional documentation before the hearing so that it cou
as it was, that the information was unavailable in time to be considered or substantiated.

Regarding Counsel's implication that if the information warranted serious consideration that | would have requested intervenor status, tt
Counsel an opportunity to question me during the hearing, | wish to point out that since the facts spoke for themselves and were already
for all to seek further clarification and documentation well before the hearing, seeking intervenor status would have been an unnecessar
and formality, taking me away from patient care. | am always available for questioning.

All CON applicants are asked if there are already other providers in the area that have the capacity to handle any proposed
patient volumes. The Applicant has not acknowledged HVRA's capacity to absorb NDI's current and projected volumes at it
located facility which uses superior state of the art equipment. When OHCA asked the Applicant at the hearing if they had ¢
available capacity of HVRA, the response was, "We don't know those (numbers) to be factual.” They are factual and the inv
HVRA's facility remains open.
There would also appear to be a disparity between statements in the Completeness Letter response and the Late Files. Th
8/19/2011 response (see below) to the Completeness Letter explicitly stated that the volume projections were based on, an
factors, the upgrading of NDI's outdated single slice CT scanner to a multislice CT scanner. Logically, that is the only way tl
achieve their stated goals of enhancing uniformity of care and being able to assure patients that they "would receive the sal
program as they would receive if they drove to the DDI and RDI facilities", at least for CT scanning. The MRI would also ha
replaced for similar reasons.
Ta- 1SEOAIENED From:  U9S84) WAL S Pam def @

Volume projections for NOI include factons related o aging of the population, movement of soma of the

patients frern DDI to MO, the expanded hours for exisling NDI patients in the Mawtown ansa who need

scanning either an Saburday or weekday evening howrs, potantial futire upgrade of a CT seanmer at NDI,

and & modost projected growsh of 3% each year for the first thres years of operation for NDI, consistent

with ether DHCA imaging locabons,.
When it was subsequently pointed out to the Applicant that the financial projections did not include the expense of the new
scanner, the response was that the future volume projections and revenues were not based on the new multislice CT scanr
below). That begs the question as to which response was correct, since how can uniformity of care and being able to assur
they "would receive the same quality program as they would receive if they drove to the DDI and RDI facilities" possibly be
without upgrading the CT scanner, not to mention the MR, to the same level as DDI and RDI.

= The replacement of the CT scannar would be considered in the capital planning (It is
important to note that the expanse and any incremenial revenue has not been included
in the financials providad).

The Applicant has stated that the acquisition of NDI will not lead to an increase in imaging capacity in the service area (see below). The
could only be the case if the Applicant never replaced the existing equipment. However, to meet the goals of enhancing uniformity of
able to assure patients that they "would receive the same quality program as they would receive if they drove to the DDI an
facilities", the Applicant must replace, and indeed plans to replace, the outdated CT and MRI with modern equipment speci
engineered to increase both quality and imaging capacity. Therefore, expansion of imaging capacity in the area is a logical
that will naturally occur, if the Applicant acquires NDI.

Hospital-based services. The aam.rmmn of Mewiown Diagnostic Imaging ("NDI%) is a
continuation of this strategy in a cost effective manner for WCHN that requires no additional
imaging capacity in the region. This CON application supports our strategic goal to maximize

Sincerely,

Conrad Ehrlich
HVRA Danbury, CT



STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

September 7, 2012

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE

Vice President, Planning

Western Connecticut Health Network, Inc.
24 Hospital Avenue

Danbury, CT 06810

Re:  Certificate of Need Application, Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography Scanner and a Magnetic
Resonance Imaging Scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in-
Newtown, Connecticut

Dear Ms. Herlihy:

Enclosed please find a copy of the Proposed Final Decision rendered by Hearing Officer Joanne
V. Yandow in the above-referenced case.

Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 4-179, Western Connecticut Health Network, Inc.,
the party in this matter, may request the opportunity to file exceptions and briefs and/or present
oral argument, in writing, with the Deputy Commissioner, OHCA of the Department within
fourteen (14) days from the date of this notice, or by September 21, 2012. If no such request is
received by this date, the Deputy Commissioner will assume those rights to be waived and will
render a Final Decision in this matter.

If you wish to expedite the process and avoid the necessity that the Deputy Commissioner await
the expiration of the aforementioned fourteen days, you may submit a written statement to the
Deputy Commissioner affirmatively waiving those rights.

Sincerely,

Kol |V e
Kimberly R. Martone
Director of Operations

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.0.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308

Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Department of Public Health
Office of Health Care Access
Certificate of Need Application

Proposed Final Decision

Applicant: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
Docket Number: 11-31703-CON
Project Title: Acquisition and Operation of a Computed Tomography

Scanner and a Magnetic Resonance Imaging Scanner
from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LLC, in Newtown

Project Description: Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc.
(“Applicant™) is proposing to acquire and operate a computed tomography (“CT™)
scanner and a magnetic resonance imaging (“MRI”) scanner, currently owned and
operated by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, L.I.C, at a proposed capital expenditure of
$1,200,000.

Procedural History: On September 15, 2011, the Office of Health Care Access
(“OHCA”) received the completed Certificate of Need (“CON”) application for the
above-referenced proposal. The Applicant published notice of its intent to file the CON
application in The Danbury News Times on March 17, 18 and 19, 2011.

A public hearing regarding the CON application was held on October 25, 2011. On
October 4, 2011, the Applicant was notified of the date, time, and place of the hearing.
On October 7, 2011, a notice to the public announcing the hearing was published in 7%e
Danbury News Times.

Jewel Mullen, Commissioner of the Department of Public Health, designated Melanie A.
Dillon, Staff Attorney, as the hearing officer in this matter on October 17, 2011.

The hearing was conducted as a contested case in accordance with the provisions of the
Uniform Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 54 of the Connecticut General Statutes)
and § 19a-639 of the Connecticut General Statutes (“the Statutes™).
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The hearing officer heard testimony from the Applicant and in rendering this proposed
final decision, considered the entire record of the proceeding. OHCA’s authority to
review, approve, modify, or deny this proposal is established by §§ 19a-638 and 19a-639
of the Statutes. These provisions, as well as the principles and guidelines set forth in §
19a-639 of the Statutes, were fully considered by the hearing officer.

On January 5, 2012, Hearing Officer Dillon issued a Proposed Final Decision in this
matter to the Applicant. On January 12, 2012, the Applicant, pursuant to § 4-179 of the
Statutes, requested the opportunity to file exceptions and briefs and present oral argument
to the Department of Public Health concerning the Proposed Final Decision rendered by
OHCA on January 5, 2012. OnJanuary 24, 2012, Lisa A. Davis, Deputy Commissioner
of the Department of Public Health, granted the Applicant’s request to present oral
argument regarding the recommendation of Hearing Officer Dillon, to be held on
February 14, 2012.

On February 7, 2012, the Applicant filed its exceptions to the Proposed Final Decision
and requested that OHCA consider additional evidence it attached to its exceptions. On
February 14, 2012, the Applicant presented its exceptions to the Proposed Final Decision
to Deputy Commissioner Davis. On February 16, 2012, OHCA received the Applicant’s
request to re-open the hearing in this matter and to admit additional evidence into the
record. The request to reopen the record in this matter was granted by OHCA on March
29, 2012.

On April 12, 2012, Commissioner Mullen designated Joanne V. Yandow, Staff Attorey,
as the hearing officer in this matter to rule on all motions and recommend findings of fact
and conclusions of law upon completion of the hearing. The Commissioner’s delegation
superseded the previous delegation to Melanie A. Dillon, Staff Attorney, which was
revoked by this action.

On April 12, 2012, the Applicant submitted additional evidence and filed its responses to
questions related to the Applicant’s exceptions to the Proposed Final Decision. On April
26, 2012, OHCA closed the record in this matter. Hearing Officer Yandow considered
the entire record in rendering this Proposed Final Decision.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. (“Applicant™) is a wholly-
owned tax exempt subsidiary of Western Connecticut Health Network, Inc.
(“Network™). Ex. A, pp. 9,35, Ex. E, pp. 1-3; Ex. M, p. 2.

2. Danbury Hospital and New Milford Hospital are also wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Network. Ex. A, p. 14; ExE, pp. 1-3; Ex. M, p.2.
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3.

10.

11.

The Applicant operates two imaging centers and other health related services which
include employee/corporate health, rehabilitation/recovery services, and
administrative/financial services. These services are intended to complement
services offered at its affiliate Hospitals. Ex. A, pp. 9, 45.

The Applicant’s two freestanding outpatient imaging centers are as follows:

a. Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI”) is located at 21 Germantown Road in
Danbury and provides a 32-slice CT scanning service, a closed 1.5 tesla-
strength MRI scanning service, ultrasound and general radiological services.

b. Ridgefield Diagnostic Imaging (“RDI”) is located at 901 Ethan Allen
Highway in Ridgefield and provides a 32-slice CT scanning service, a closed
1.5 tesla-strength MRI scanning service, ultrasound, mammography, bone

density and general radiological services.
Ex A, p. 9.

The Applicant proposes to acquire a single-slice CT scanner and a 1.5 tesla-
strength MRI scanner, currently owned and operated by Newtown Diagnostic
Imaging, LLC (“NDI”). Ex. A, p. 9.

NDI is a freestanding imaging center located at 153 South Main Street in
Newtown, which currently provides CT scanning, MRI scanning, ultrasound, and
general radiological services. Ex. A, p. 9.

The Applicant proposes to purchase NDI for $1,200,000, which includes the
acquisition of the single-slice CT scanner and the 1.5 tesla-strength MRI scanner,
and assume the lease for the space NDI occupies. Ex. A, p. 9.

The primary service area for NDI includes the towns of Newtown/Sandy Hook,
Danbury, Bethel, and Southbury. The service area represents 75% of the total
patient volume at the Newtown location. Ex. A, p. 11.

In addition to the Applicant’s DDI and RDI operations, other Network affiliates
provide imaging services at the following locations:

a. Danbury Hospital located at 24 Hospital Avenue in Danbury;

b. New Milford Hospital located at 21 Elm Street in New Milford; and

c. Danbury Medical Arts Center located on Danbury Hospital’s main campus.
Ex. A, pp.9,14; Testimony of Sally Herlihy, Applicant’s Vice President of Planning, Public
Hearing, October 25, 2011.

There are two 32-slice CT scanners and two MRI scanners, a 1.5 tesla-strength and

a 3.0 tesla-strength, located at Danbury Hospital. Testimony of ToniAnn Marchione,
Applicant’s Director of Diagnostic Services, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

Danbury Medical Arts Center (“DMAC”) is a freestanding building on Danbury
Hospital’s campus providing outpatient services, including but not limited to CT
scanning and MRI scanning. Testimony of Ms. Marchione, Public Hearing, October 25, 2012.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

DMAC operates a 64-slice CT scanner, a 1.5 tesla-strength MRI scanner, PET-CT,
mammography, and plain x-ray. Testimony of Ms. Marchione, Public Hearing, October 25,
2011.

RDI and New Milford Hospital are not located in NDI’s service area and, therefore,
their historical and projected CT and MRI service utilization numbers are not part
of the analysis when determining the need for CT and MRI scanning services
within the NDI service area. Ex. A, p. 11.

NDT acquired its CT scanner and MRI scanner after the issuance of a CON
Determination Report under Docket Number: 03-30170-DTR on September 16,
2003. Since OICA determined that a CON was not required for the acquisition of
the equipment, NDI was not required fo demonstrate a clear public need for the
equipment and therefore, OHCA did not analyze whether the imaging equipment
was needed in NDI’s service area. CON Determination Report, Docket Number: 03-30170-
DTR.

Historical CT and MRI scanning service utilization for NDI is presented in the
following table for fiscal years (“FYs™) 2008 through 2011:

Table 1: Historical NDI Scanning Service Utilization by Scan Type by FY

Scan Type

FY 2008

FY 2009

FY 2010

FY 2011

CT Scans Provided

862

766

549

332

MRI Scans Provided

1,139

1,077

910

707

Ex. P, p. 3.

The Applicant asserts that NDI has experienced decreasing volumes over the years

due to insurance and staffing issues. Testimony of Ms. Herlihy; Testimony of Jeet S. Sandhu,
M.D., Chairman of the Radiology Department, Danbury Hospital, Public Hearing, October 25,
2011.

The Applicant claims that, should the CON application be approved, there will not
be any further staffing issues because NDI will have access to the Network™s
system-wide personnel and insurance agreements that cover additional types of
scans for which NDI is not currently reimbursed under its limited insurance
contracts. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

The Applicant asserts that with proper staffing and the resources available within
the Network operating to help keep costs down, there will be improved service at
the NDI location. Additionally, the Applicant contends that the proposed
acquisition of NDI will remove stress from Network scanners by absorbing some of

the patients who now travel to Danbury Hospital for timaging services. Testimony of
Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

'The Applicant claims that there will be no changes in the provision of diagnostic
imaging services at the Newtown location following the proposed acquisition of
NDI. Ex A, p. 11.
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20. The Applicant claims that it will replace NDT’s single-slice CT scanner with a 16-
slice CT scanner. The replacement scanner approximates the technology offered at
its other outpatient imaging locations. The existing single-slice CT scanner will be
disposed of with notification being made to OHCA when the scanner is

decommissioned. Ex. C, pp. 60-61.

21. The Applicant asserts that it does not have immediate plans to replace NDI’s
existing MRI scanner. Ex. C, pp. 60-61.

22.  The following table identifies the existing CT and MRI scanning providers other
than those operating under the auspices of the Applicant or other Network affiliates
in NDI's primary service area:

Table 2: Existing CT & MRI Providers in NDP’s Primary Service Area Other
Than the Scanners Operated by the Applicant and its Network Affiliates

Provider Name | Location Scanner Equipment Hours of Operation
Housatonic 67 Sandpit Road, | CT Scanner (16-slice) Mon. - Thur.: 8:00 a.m.
Valley Radiology | Danbury MRI Scanner (1.5 Tesla) | to 6:00 p.m.;
Associates Friday: 8:00a.m. to 5:00
p.m.
Saturday: 8:00 a.m. to
12:00 pm.
800 Main Street, CT Scanner (single-slice) | Mon. - Fri.: 8:00 am. to
Southbury MRI Scanner (1.0 Tesla) | 5:00 p.m.;
Saturday: 8:00 am. to
12:00 pm.
Northeast 73 Sandpit Road, | MRI Scanner (1.0 Tesla) | Mon., Wed., Fri.: 8:00
Radiology Danbury am. to 5:00 p.m.;
Assoclates Tues., Thurs.: 12:00 p.m.
to 8:00 p.m.
Diagnostic 385 Main Street, CT Scanner (16-slice) Mon. - Fri.: 7:00 am. to
Imaging of Southbury Open MRI Scanner (1.5 9:00 p.m.;
Southbury Tesla) Saturday: 8:30 a.m. to
12:30 p.m.

Ex. A, p. 24; OHCA Imaging Survey Responses.
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23, 'There are a total of eight CT scanners and nine MRI scanners currently in operation
within NDI’s primary service area. The following table illusirates the number of
respective CT and MRI scanners by provider:

Table 3: Existing Number of CT & MRI Scanners by Provider Within
NDI’s Primary Service Area

Provider Name: CT MRI
Newtown Diagnostic Imaging (“NDI”) 1 1
Western Connecticut Health Network (*Network™):
Applicant — Danbury Diagnostic Imaging (“DDI™) 1 1
Danbury Hospital (“DH™) 2 2
Danbury Medical Arts Center (“DMAC™) I 1
Sub-total: Network 4 4
Other Area Providers:
Housatonic Valley Radiology Associates 2 2
Northeast Radiology Associates 0 1
Diagnostic Imaging of Southbury 1 1
Sub-total: Other Area Providers 3 4
Total Number of Scanners in NDI’s Primary Service Area 8 9

Findings of Fact: 4, 7, 10, 11, 14 & 21.

24. The Applicant claims that additional scanning capacity is needed based on
utilization of their existing outpatient CT and MRI scanners nearing capacity. The
Applicant asserts that utilizing existing equipment to fill this need will resolve
access and capability issues without having to request imaging equipment within its
facilities. Ex. A, p. 10; Ex. M, p. 5; Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

25. The Applicant contends that the CT scanner and MRI scanner at DDI are operating
at.full capacity. Ex. M, p. 5.

26.  Jeet Sandhu, M.D., Chairman of Radiology at Danbury Hospital, testified that
Danbury Hospital’s scanners are at capacity. In determining that the scanners are at
capacity, Dr. Sandhu used information from OHCA’s draft imaging standards to
forecast the approximate number of scans that could be performed annually by a
CT or MRI scanner. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

27. The draft imaging standards have not been promulgated as regulations and,
therefore, they have not been utilized in considering this CON application.
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28.

29.

30.

31.

32

33.

34.

35.

At hearing, OHCA requested that the Applicant provide the CT and MRI scanner
calculations used to determine that RDI and DDI were operating at full capacity.’
Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

In response to OHCA’s request for calculations, the Applicant provided, in part, C'T
and MRI scanner information for RDI, DDI, and other Network scanners. Through
its late filed responses, the Applicant shows that the CT scanners at Danbury
Hospital are performing over 30,000 scans annually and that DDI and DMAC
performed 5,700 and 6,200 CT scans respectively in FY 2010. Ex. P, pp. 3, 4.

The Applicant asserts that additional CT scanner capacity is needed to handle some
of the outpatients who are currently imaged at Danbury Hospital. Ex. P, p. 4.

With respect to MRI volumes, the Applicant’s late filed response shows, in part, a
total of approximately 5,400 scans for Danbury Hospital’s two scanners, and DDI
and DMAC volumes at 3,629 and 3,068 MRI scans respectively for FY 2010. In
FY 2011, the Danbury Hospital MRI scanner total volume declined to 5,318 scans,
and DDI and DMAC volumes were 3,531 and 3,111, respectively. The Applicant
contends that while the Network’s MRI scanning is currently within capacity, the
Newtown location is needed for those patients already using NDI and to maintain
MRI accessibility in the Newtown area. Ex. P, pp. 3, 4.

In evidence admitted after the record was reopened, the Applicant claims that the
average time for a standard outpatient MRI exam to be completed in any of the
Network’s facilities is 45 minutes and a standard MRT scan at Danbury Hospital is
104 minutes. Ex. V, pp. 3-4.

The Applicant claims that the 104 minutes per MRI scan at Danbury Hospital is
based on the assumption that the MRI exams are more complex, and require greater
time to complete than the standard MRT exams that are performed on a standard
outpatient MRI scanner. Ex. V, pp. 3-4.

Danbury Hospital’s two (2) MRI scanners performed a total of 6,195, 5,864, 5,405,
and 5,318 scans in FYs 2008-2011, respectively. Ex. P, p. 3

The Applicant asserts that taking the same amount of total MRI exam minutes from
the hospital-based MRI exam volume, Danbury Hospital performed 5,318 MRI
exams, while an outpatient MRI facility could produce 6,959 standard MRI exams,
or 1,641 additional MRI scans. Ex. v, pp. 3-4.

! As noted in finding of fact # 13, RDI is out of the service area and, therefore, its volumes are not part of
the analysis when determining the need for scanning services within the NDI service area.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Based on the findings that Danbury Hospital performed approximately 6,195 MRI
scans on its two (2) MRI scanners at the hospital in 2008, and that Danbury
Hospital has experienced a steady decline in annual volume at its MRI scanners
since 2008, OHCA does not find that the two (2) MRI scanners operating at
Danbury Hospital are at capacity by performing 5,318 MRI scans annually. Ex. P, p.
3.

The Applicant also asserts that the proposal provides the ability to utilize the
Network’s centralized scheduling functions, thereby decompressing patient volume
across the sites of care and enhancing patient access for imaging services. Ex. A, p.
14; Ex. C, p. 61.

Specifically, the Applicant claims that DDI is not capable of absorbing additional
patients in the future, and that if some patients living east of Danbury Hospital
could utilize the NDI facility, it would assure prompt attention to scanning and
greater accessibility for patients that live in the area and relieve the pressure off
DDI and other sites. Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

The Applicant asserts that the proposal is part of the Network’s strategy to move its
outpatient and ancillary services, including imaging services, away from Danbury
Hospital and into the community, closer to its patients and its network of primary

care physicians. Testimony of Michael Daglio, Senior Vice President of Operations, Danbury
Hospital, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

The Applicant states that the opening of the DDI location in 2001 1s one of the first
examples of this strategy to move diagnostic imaging services out of Danbury
Hospital proper and into a more accessible outpatient location on Germantown
Road. The Applicant further states that as Danbury Hospital’s inpatient and
emergency department demands for imaging services continued to increase, the
comingling of these patients with outpatients became more difficult to manage
from a capacity point of view. Ex. P, p. 6.

The Applicant contends that it continues to pursue its distributed health care service
delivery strategy and that it will add primary care and subspecialty practices to
provide greater access to services in the communities they serve. Listed below are
some of the recent and near-future examples of this strategy:
a. A new Monroe practice location will commence operations during November
2011, which is anticipated to increase demand on NDI; and
b. Discussions are in process to further align the Applicant with area physicians
and add additional primary care and subspecialty physician presence in

Southbury, Newtown and Bethel.
Ex. P, p. 7.
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42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.
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The Applicant provided Network historical CT scanning service utilization by site
for FYs 2008 through 2011 in the following table:

Table 4: Network Historical CT Scanner Utilization by Site by FY

Site Number of Scanners FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 | FY 2011

DDI1 I scanner 5,153 5,694 5,732 5,579

DH 2 scanners 31,001 33,016 30,488 29,471

DMAC 1 scanner 5,107 6,230 6,154 6,468

Total CT Scans Provided 41,261 44,940 42,374 41,518
Ex.P,p.3

Danbury Hospital has two hospital-based CT scanners with a combined 29,471
scans for FY 2011 or approximately 14,805 scans per scanner in FY2011. Ex. P, p. 3.

The Applicant claims that the first CT scanner located at Danbury Hospital is
utilized primarily for its Emergency Department patients and, therefore, any
outpatients scheduled on it may have to wait for hours depending on any
emergencies on hand. Testimony of Mr. Daglio, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011; Ex. P, p. 4.

The Applicant claims that the second CT scanner at Danbury Hospital 1s utilized
predominantly for interventional procedures, such as biopsies, drainages, overflow
of emergency room patients, overflow of inpatients and serves as a backup scanner
which 1s a requirement to be an accredited Stroke Program. These procedures can
take 2 to 3 times as long as a diagnostic scan. Testimony of Dr. Sandhu, Public Hearing,
October 25, 2011; Ex. P, p. 4.

The outpatient CT scanners located at DMAC and DDI performed a total of 12,047
CT scans in FY 2011 or approximately 6,024 scans per scanner in FY 2011. Ex.P,
p. 3.

Although RDI’s numbers are not factored into the analysis of need for the proposal
as it is not located within the primary service area, the operation of RDI to the
Applicant’s operation is deemed to be relevant. While RDI appears to have some
available capacity, the Applicant does not expect patients currently utilizing
imaging services at NDI to travel to RDI in Ridgefield for their services. For
example, approximately 21% of DDI’s patient population originates from the towns
of Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook, whereas only 6% of RDI’s patient
population originates from Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook. Mr. Daglio, Public
Hearing Testimony, October 25, 2011.

Utilization of the CT scanner at NDI is low with only 332 scans in FY 2011;
however, the Danbury Hospital, DMAC and DDI scanners are the scanners most
likely to be utilized by residents of the primary service area of NDI and those
particular scanners all appear to be operating at or beyond capacity. Ex. P, p. 3.
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49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

According to the Applicant, patients residing east of Danbury Hospital would be
able to utilize the CT scanner at NDI, which would assure prompt attention to
scanning and greater accessibility for patients that live in the area. It would also

relieve pressure off DDI and other sites. Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing,
October 25, 2011.

Additionally, the utilization of the CT scanners at Danbury Hospital, DMAC and
DDI are sufficient to warrant the acquisition of an additional CT scanner. As the
Applicant testified at the hearing, acquisition of the NDI CT scanner will prevent
Danbury Hospital and DDI from seeking additional imaging equipment in the near
future. Testimony of Ms. Herlihy, Public Hearing, October 25, 2011.

The Applicant provided the following Network projections for CT scanning service
utilization over the next three fiscal years:

Table 5: Network Projected CT Scanner Utilization by Site by FY

Site  Number of Scanners FY 2612 FY 2013 FY 2014

DDI 1 scanner 5,794 5,968 6,147

DH 2 scanners 29,628 29,924 30,224

DMAC 1 scanner 6,417 6,481 6,546

NDI 1 scanner 668 803 954
Ex.P,p.3.

Projected volume increases for the NDI location are attributable to the following
factors:
a. Aging of the population;
b. Movement of some of the patients from DDI to NDI;
c. The expanded hours for existing NDI patients in the Newtown area who
need scanning either on weekday evening hours or on Saturdays;

d. Future potential upgrade of the CT scanner at NDL
Ex. C, p. 58.

The Applicant also anticipates that NDI will receive referrals from its new Monroe
practice and determined that a group practice of three physicians would refer
approximately 75 patients per month for imaging exams and that would equate fo
approximately 900 imaging exams performed annually. Ex. P,p.9.

The Applicant is projecting 3% annual growth for each of its imaging locations
including NDI based upon both historical utilization and an aging population in the
service area. Ex. A, p. 13; Ex. C, p. 58.

The Applicant’s historical utilization of CT scanners in the service area shows an
overall decline of 5.7% i FY 2010 and 2.0% in FY 2011. Consequently, OHCA
questions whether utilization of the CT scanners operated by the Network will
increase over the next three years, particularly since some of the volume at DDI
and Danbury Hospital will be shifted to NDI. Ex.P,p. 3.
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56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Despite concerns about historical and projected utilization of the CT scanner
focated at NDI and decreasing volumes on the CT scanners at the Network’s
existing site, the utilization of the Danbury Hospital, DMAC, and DDI CT scanners
are sufficient to warrant the acquisition of an additional CT scanner by the
Applicant. Ex.P,p. 3.

The Applicant provided the following Network historical MRI scanning service
utilization by site for FYs 2008 through 2011:

Table 6: Network Historical MRI Utilization by Site by FY

Site  Number of Scanners FY 2008 FY 20609 FY 2010 { FY 2011
DDI 1 scanner 3,532 3,663 3,620 3,531
DH 2 scanners 6,195 5,864 5,405 5,318
DPMAC 1 scanner 2,024 2,768 3,068 3,111
Total MRI Scans Provided 11,751 12,295 12,102 11,960
Ex. P, p.3

Out of the 5,318 total MRI scans at Danbury Hospital in FY 2011, only 1,295 scans
or 24% of the total scans performed were for inpatients. Despite slight increases in
inpatient MRI scans at Danbury Hospital in FY 2009 and FY 2010, the inpatient
scans returned to FY 2008 levels m FY 2011. Ex. P, p.3

The amount of MRI scans performed on the two Danbury Hospital MRI scanners
steadily decreased between FY 2008 and FY 2011 at an overall rate of 14.2%. Ex.
Pp. 3.

Additionally, the amount of MRI scans performed by NDI has also decreased from
1,139 scans in FY 2008 to 707 scans in FY 2011, which represents an overall
decrease of approximately 37.9% between FY 2008 and FY 2011. Ex. P, p. 3.

There are currently a total of nine MRI scanners operating in NDI’s primary service
area; one of which is operated by the Applicant and another three of which are
operated within the Network affiliates. Findings of Fact: 23.

The Applicant provided the following Network projections for MRI scanning
service utilization over the next three fiscal years:

Table 7: Network Projected MRI Scanning Service Utilization by Site by FY

Site Number of Scanners FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
DDI 1 scanner 3,573 3,680 3,791
DH 2 scanners 5,011 5,161 5,317
DMAC 1 scanner 3,273 3,372 3,473
NDI 1 scanner 934 1,068 1,205

Ex. P, p. 3.
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63.

64.

65.

There is insufficient evidence to demonstrate that the MRI scanners within the
service area do not have the capacity to accommodate the number of MRI scans
projected for NDI's scanner over the next three fiscal years. Ex. P, p.3; Ex. V, pp. 12
through 15.

Given the available MRI capacity at Danbury Hospital and the Network’s
outpatient MR scanning locations, plus the low MRI utilization at NDI, OHCA
does not find that there is a clear public need for the Applicant to acquire and
operate the MRI scanner located at NDI.  Ex. P, p. 3; Ex. V, pp. 12 through 15.

The Applicant projects the following incremental gains from operations by scanner
type for the NDI location:

Table 8a: Financial Projections Incremental to the CT Scanner Acquisition

Description FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
Incremental Revenue from Operations $290,000 $348.000 $414.000
Incremental Total Operating Expense $280,000 $319.000 $367,000

Incremental Gain from Operations $10,060 $29,000 $47,000

Projected CT Scan Volume 668 803 954

Ex. P, p. 13.
Table 8b: Financial Projections Incremenial to the MRI Scanner Acquisition

Description FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
Incremental Revenue from Operations $743.000 $850,000 $659,000
Incremental Total Operating Expense $712,000 $773,000 $843,000

Incremental Gain from Operations $31,000 $77,000 $116,000

Projected MRI Scan Volume 934 1,068 1,205

Ex. P, p. 13.

66. OHCA is currently in the process of establishing its policies and standards as
regulations, Therefore, OHCA has not made any findings as to this proposal’s
relationship to any regulations adopted by OHCA. (§ 192-639(a)(1) of the Statutes)

67. The Applicant’s current and projected patient population mix with the project is as
follows:

Table 9: Applicant’s Current & Projected Patient Population Mix

Description: FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014
Medicare 25.6% 26.0% 26.0% 26.0%
Medicaid 0.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
CHAMPUS & TriCare 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Total Government 26.1% 26.4% 26.4% 26.4%
Commercial 72.6% 72.1% 72.1% 72.1%
Uninsured 0.4% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Workers Comp 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Total Non-Government 73.9% 73.6% 73.6% 73.6%
Total Population Mix 100% 100% 100% 100%

Ex. A. p. 16.
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68.

69,

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

OHCA is currently in the process of developing a statewide facilities and services
plan. Therefore, OHCA has not made any findings as to this proposal’s
relationship to the plan. (§ 19a-639(a)(2) of the Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a CT scanner from NDI,
the Applicant established a clear public need for their proposal. (§ 19a-639(a)(3) of
the Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a MRI scanner from
NDI, the Applicant failed to establish a clear public need for their proposal. (§
19a-639(a)(3) of the Statutes).

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a CT scanner from NDI,
the Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated how its proposal would impact the
financial strength of the health care system in this state. (§ 19a-639(a)(4) of the
Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a MRI scanner from
NDI, the Applicant has not satisfactorily demonstrated how its proposal would
impact the financial strength of the health care system in this state. (§ 19a-
639(a)(4) of the Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a CT scanner from NDI,
the Applicant satisfactorily demonstrated how its proposal would improve quality,
accessibility and cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the region. (§ 19a-
639(a)(5) of the Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a MRI scanmer from
NDI, the Applicant did not satisfactorily demonstrated how its proposal would
improve quality, accessibility and cost effectiveness of health care delivery in the
region. {§ 19a-639(a)(5) of the Statutes)

The Applicant has satisfactorily shown its past and proposed provision of health
care services to the relevant populations and payer mix. (§ 19a-639(a)(6) of the
Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a CT scanner from NDI,
the Applicant has satisfactorily identified the population to be served by its
proposal and has satisfactorily demonstrated that the identified population has a
need for the proposed service. (§ 19a-639(a)(7) of the Statutes)

Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a MRI scanner from
NDI, the Applicant satisfactorily identified the population to be served by its
proposal but failed to satisfactorily demonstrate that said population has a need for
the proposed service. (§ 19a-639(a)(7) of the Statutes)
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78.  Sufficient information was provided to demonstrate utilization of existing health
care facilities and health care services in the service area. (§ 19a-639(a)(8) of the
Statutes) ' '

79. Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a CT scanner from NDI,
the Applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated that its proposal would not result in
an unnecessary duplication of existing CT services in the area. (§ 19a-639(a)(9) of
the Statutes)

80. Regarding the Applicant’s proposal to acquire and operate a MRI scanner from
NDI, the Applicant has not satisfactorily demonstrated that its proposal would not
result in an unnecessary duplication of existing MRI services in the area. (§ 19a-
639(2)(9) of the Statutes)

DISCUSSION

CON applications are decided on a case by case basis and do not lend themselves to
general applicability due to the uniqueness of the facts in each case. In rendering its
decision, OHCA considers the factors set forth in General Statutes §19a-639 (a) and the
Applicant bears the burden of proof in this matter by a preponderance of the evidence.
"Goldstar Medical Services, Inc., et al. v. Depariment of Social Services, 288 Conn. 790
(2008); Steadman v. SEC, 450 U.S. 91, 101 S5.Ct. 999, reh'g den., 451 U.8. 933 (1981);
Bender v. Clark, 744 F.2d 1424 (10th Cir. 1984); Sea Island Broadcasting Corp. v. FCC,
627 F.2d 240, 243 (D.C. Cir. 1980).

The Applicant, a wholly-owned tax exempt subsidiary of the Network, proposes to
acquire and operate a CT scanner and a MRI scanner, currently owned and operated by
Newtown Diagnostic Imaging in Newtown. FF1, 5. The Applicant provides freestanding
outpatient imaging services at Danbury Diagnostic Imaging and Ridgefield Diagnostic
Imaging® as well as other health related services. FF3, 4. The Network provides imaging
services at Danbury Hospital, New Milford Hospital®, and DMAC. FF9.

Danbury Hospital has two hospital-based CT scanners with a combined 29,471 scans for
FY 2011 or approximately 14,805 scans per scanner in FY 2011. FF43. The outpatient
CT scanners located at DMAC and DDI performed a total of 12,047 CT scans in FY
2011 or approximately 6,024 scans per scanner in FY 2011. ¥F46. Utilization of the CT
scanner at NDI is low with only 332 scans in FY 2011; however, the Danbury Hospital,
DMAC and DDI scanners are the scanners most likely to be utilized by residents of the
primary service arca of NDI and those particular scanners all appear to be operating at or
beyond capacity. FF48. Although RDI appears to have some available capacity, the
Applicant does not expect patients currently utilizing imaging services at NDI to travel to

% OHCA did not consider RDI volumes in reaching its decision since it is not within the NDI's primary

service area.
3 QHCA did not include the volume on the scanners located at NMH since it is not located in NDI's
primary service area.
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RDI in Ridgefield for their services. FF47. For example, approximately 21% of DDI’s
patient population originates from the towns of Newtown, Bethel and Sandy Hook,
whereas only 6% of RDI’s patient population originates from Newtown, Bethel and
Sandy Hook. FF47. Additionally, the current utilization of the CT scanners at Danbury
Hospital, DMAC and DDI is sufficient to warrant the acquisition of at least one
additional CT scanner. FF50. Patients that live east of Danbury Hospital and currently
utilize Danbury Hospital and DDI scanners would be able to utilize the CT scanner at
NDI, which would assure prompt attention to the scanning, provide greater accessibility
and relieve pressure off the CT scanners located at DDI and Danbury Hospital. FF49.
Furthermore, the acquisition of the NDI CT scanner will prevent Danbury Hospital and
DDI from seeking additional imaging equipment in the near future. FF50. Accordingly,
despite OHCA’s concern about historical and projected utilization of the CT scanner
located at NDI and decreasing volumes on the CT scanners at the Network’s existing
sites, OHCA finds that the utilization of the Danbury Hospital, DMAC, and DDI CT
scanners sufficiently demonstrate need to warrant the acquisition of an additional CT
scanner by the Applicant. FF50.

The two MRI scanners located at Danbury Hospital are underutilized. FFs 34, 36, 57-59.
The two hospital-based scanners performed a total of 5,318 scans in FY 2011 or
approximately, 2,659 scans per scanner. FF57. Out of the 5,318 scans in FY 2011, only
1,295 scans or 24% of the total scans performed were for inpatients. FF58. Despite slight
increases in inpatient MRI scans at Danbury Hospital in FY 2009 and 'Y 2010, the
inpatient scans returned to FY 2008 levels in FY 2011. FF58. The amount of MRI scans
performed on the two Danbury Hospital MRI scanners steadily decreased between FY
2008 and FY 2011 at an overall rate of 14.2%. FF59. Additionally, the amount of MRI
scans performed by NDI has also decreased from 1,139 scans in FY 2008 to 707 scans in
2011, which represents an overall decrease of approximately 37.9% between FY 2008
and FY 2011. FF60. There are a total of nine existing MRI scanners in NDI’s primary
service area; one of which is operated by the Applicant and another three of which are
operated within the Network. FF61. In light of historical utilization, the projected growth
in MRI scanning at the Network sites appears to be reasonable. However, since Danbury
Hospital performed approximately 6,195 MRI scans on its two (2) MRI scanners at the
hospital in 2008,and has experienced a steady decline in annual volume at the two (2)
Danbury Hospital MRI scanners since 2008, OHCA does not find that the two (2) MR1
scanners operating at Danbury Hospital are at capacity by performing 5,318 MRI scans
annually. FF36. Based upon the available MRI capacity at Danbury Hospital and low
MRI utilization at NDI, OHCA does not find that there is a clear public need for the
Applicant to acquire and operate an additional MRI scanner at NDI. FF64.

With respect to the financial feasibility of the proposal, the Applicant projected
incremental gains from operations for both the CT and MRI scanners. IF65. OHCA
finds that the acquisition of the CT scanner is financially feasible. However, while the
acquisition of the MRI scanner appears to be financially feasible, as noted above, the
Applicant has failed to establish, by a preponderance of the evidence, that there is a clear
public need for the acquisition of the MRI scanner at the NDI location.
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Order

Based upon the foregoing Findings and Discussion, the Certificate of Need application of
Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc., the Applicant, for the acquisition
and operation of a computed tomography scanner and magnetic resonance imaging
scanner from Newtown Diagnostic Imaging, LL.C, (“NDI”), in Newtown, Connecticut, is
hereby approved, in part, and denied, in part, subject to the following conditions:

1. The Applicant’s request to acquire a CT scanner from NDI is approved.
2. The Applicant’s request to acquire a MRI scanner from NDI is denied.

3. The Applicant shall submit to OHCA, in writing, the C'T scanner's initial date of
operation at the Newtown, Connecticut location. Such submission shall be filed with
OHCA within thirty (30) days of the initial date of operation.

4. The Applicant shall provide OHCA with the number of scans performed annually on
the CT scanner located at NDI within thirty days of the end of each fiscal year for the
next three years. If actual utilization is lower than projected in the CON application
after three years of operation, the Applicant shall schedule a meeting with OHCA to
discuss the potential relocation of the CT scanner.

5. Should the Applicant plan to operate the CT scanner identified in this proposal at a
location other than 153 South Main Street in Newtown, Connecticut, the Applicant
shall notify OHCA of the new location, no later than one month after the equipment's
relocation.

Should the Applicant fail to comply with any of the aforementioned conditions, OHCA
reserves the right to take additional action as authorized by law. All of the foregoing
constitutes the final order of the Office of Health Care Access in this matter.

Based upon the foregoing, I respectfully recommend that the application be approved, in
part, and denied, in part. [ respectfully recommend that the Deputy Commissioner
approve the request of the Applicant to acquire the CT scanner currently operated by
NDI and deny the request of the Applicant to acquire the MRI scanner currently operated
by NDL
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@} WESTERN CORMECTICUT HEALTH NEPWORE

DANBURY HOSPITAL

24 Hospite; Ave
Danbury, CT 08830
203.738.7000

: DanburyHosptialorg

From;  Sally Herliby
VP, Planning, WCHN

Te: Kimberly Martone

Fax: B60-418-7083 Nao.of Pages: 2

Fhune;  B63-418-7001 Date: Septernber 20, 2012

RE: Docket Number; 11-31703-CON Ce:

[0 Urgent > For Review O Pleass Comment [l Pleasa Reply (O Piease Recyele

Dear Kim,

Attached is our response to GHCA's Proposed Finat Decision issued Septernber 7, 2012 on Docket Number: 11-31703-CON,
Sincerely,

Sally Herlihy

CONFIDENTIALITY
T docuniént accompanying His trensmission ontains informetion from Danbury Hospital, which is confidential and/or legally privileged,
The informazion is intanded onfy for use by the individual ar entity named on e transmission sheet,

I you are not the inended recipient, you ate hereby notified that using, disclosing, copying, distribufing ar tzking any action i reliance 0a the
contents of the traasmitted information s strctly prohibitad and that the document shovld be immediately retormed Danbury Hospital.

Opt-Dut: *xxx
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|

WestemConnasticutHeatihMetwork og

03 { DanburyHospital.org
e NewMillcrdHospital.org

September 20, 2012

Kimberly R. Martone

Director of Operations

41C Capitol Ave., MS # 13HCA
P.O. Box 340308

Hastford, CT 06810

Re: Certificate of Nead Application, Docket No. 11-31703-CON
Dear Ms. Martone,

On Friday, September 7, 2012, I received a Proposed Final Decision in the above-captioned docket.
‘The decision allows Western Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. ("WCENA”) to purchase the CT
scanner and other lower level imaging equipment now owned and operated by Newtown Diagnostic Imaging,
LLC (“NDI"), but denies WCHNA the opportunity to purchase the MRI scanner also operated at NDL

Throughout the application process, WCHNA was very clear that it wanted to purchase the entire
radiology practice now owned by the radiologists in Newtown, and would have begun to operate the imaging
equipment as part of the Western Connecticut Health Network system through its affiliate, Western
Connecticut Health Network Affiliates, Inc. This acquisition wonld have brought a higher degree of quatity 1o
CT scanaing at the facility, and would have created a greater range of technicians available to operate the MRI
scanrier in Newtown, WCHNA also made it clear that without being able to purchase both pieces of
equipment, it was not economically fzasible to purchase and operate NDI.

In light of the OHCA Order, as written by the Hearing Officer in this docket, WCHNA hereby
withdraws its application to acquire the imaging equipment owned and aperated by NDIL The practice will
continue to operate as a full service imaging center owned and opsrated by the private radiclogy practice,

Respectfully submitted,

Sally F. Herlihy, FACHE
Vice President, Planning

Opt-Dut: *xxx



STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH
Office of Health Care Access

September 20, 2012 VIA Mail & EMAIL ONLY

Conrad Ehrlich, M.D.
Housatonic Valley
Radiological Associates

67 Sand Pit Road, Suite 105
Danbury, CT 06810

Re: Proposed Decision for CON 11-31703
Dear Dr. Ehslich:

On September 11, 2012, the Department of Public Health Office of Health Care Access
(“OHCA”) received your email regarding the proposed decision issued in CON 11-31703.

Please be advised that the hearing officer and members of OHCA are statutorily prohibited from
communicating with any person regarding any issue in a contested matter without notice and
opportunity for all parties to participate in the communication.

Sincerely,

Kimberly Martone
Director

C: Sally F. Herlihy, Vice President, Planning, Western Connecticut Health Network

An Equal Opportunity Employer
410 Capitol Ave., MS#13HCA, P.O.Box 340308, Hartford, CT 06134-0308
Telephone: (860) 418-7001 Toll-Free: 1-800-797-9688
Fax: (860) 418-7053




Huber, Jack

From: cehrlich15@gmait.com on behalf of Conrad Ehrlich <cpe15@aol.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 11, 2012 12:54 PM

To: Martone, Kim

Cc: Huber, Jack; Yandow, Joanne

Subject: Proposed final decision for CON- 11-31703

Kim,

| recently obtained a copy of the 9/7/12 proposed final decision for CON- 11-31703, acquisition of NDI by WCHN.
Regarding the Order on page 186, | am very uncertain as to the intended meaning and interrelationship of paragraphs four
and five, and | am concerned about how they may be inferpreted or misinterpreted by the Applicant. | asked Jack Huber
for clarification and he suggested that | contact you.

Paragraph four makes it quite clear that the Applicant shall, in the imperative sense, provide utilization data from the CT
scanner now located in Newtfown for three vears, and if after three years the utilization is lower than projected, the
Applicant shall schedule a meeting with OHCA to discuss potential relocation. That would seem to imply that the CT
scanner can't be moved out of or from its current iocation in Newtown for at least three years.

Contrary to paragraph four, paragraph five seems to say, or at least leaves open to misinterpretation, the possibility that
the Applicant is now free, after basing the submission of the CON entirely on the premise that acquisition and continued
operation of the CT scanner at its current location in Newtown is needed for a host of reasons, to immediately
relocate the scanner anywhere they want at anytime, including towns outside of Newtown for which no CON would
have ever stood a chance of being granted by OHCA because of a sufficient number of existing scanners. And, it only has
to let OHCA know afterwards. On the surface, these paragraphs seem mutually exclusive, unless paragraph five really
means that the unit can be moved, hut only within Newtown.

Undoubtedly, | am misunderstanding OHCA's meaning and intentions, but if that is the case, then
perhaps the Applicant may also interpret paragraph five differently than was intended by OHCA. As a
focal provider in both Danbury and Southbury, | am very concerned that the Applicant, after spending
a year insisting and representing to OHCA that the CT scanner was going to stay in Newtown because
of 1) the local need, 2) the need to decompress the volumes west of Newtown in Danbury, and 3) the
fact that it was not going to add to existing capacity because the scanner would not be moved from
Newtown, may take advantage of paragraph five in the Order and use it as a back door to acquire
and then immediately relocate the CT scanner to an adjacent town where none of the premises that
formed the basis for approving the CON apply, and where the Applicant knows OHCA would have
never granted them a CON because of existing units and capacity. To avoid any potential
misunderstanding, could you please clarify what OHCA is actually requiring of the Applicant as a
condition of being granted the CON; specifically with regard to not moving the CT scanner out of
Newtown as implied by paragraph four, and whether paragraph 5 means that the Applicant can only
relocate the scanner within the town of Newtown without OHCA's permission, and not anywhere at
anytime. Thank you.

Yours,

Conrad Ehriich
HVRA Danbury CT
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Onrder

Based vpon the foregoing Findings and Discossion, the Certificate of Reed application of
Westers Cosmection Heakl Metwork AfliHates, Inc., the Apphicsnt, for the acquisition
amd operation of a computed wmoegraphy scanaer sud magnetio resnnance raging
seanmet from Mesdovwn Diagaostic Inaging, LU, RO, ia Hewlown, Connectiout, 15
bereby approved, in part, and desded, In pert, gibject fo the followdng condiions:

1, The Applicant’s request & sequire 3 CT sesmner from WD is approved.
Z. The Applicant’s request 1o scquire a MET scanner fiom WD is denfed.

3. The Applicant shall submil to OHCA, in wriling, the CT scenner’s initial date of
operation & the MNawtoen, Connestiont location, Sach submissinn shall be fled with
OFTCA within thivky (30) days of the inigial date of eperation.

4, The Applicsnt shall provide OHUCA with the rmmber of svans perfommed asmaatly on
the O soammer locaied &8 WD within thirty dases of the end of each fisea] yvear for the
sex thest vears, B sotesl atiinstion 1s Toweer than peolected iz the CON application
after three years of opertion, the Applicant shall sehedude o meeting whl OFHCA 0
discnse the potential relocetion of the O scunrer.

5. Should the Applicant plen to operste the O scanner identified in thés proposal at a
fovation other than 153 South Main Sheet In Newtown, Connectiout, the Apphicant
shall mortfy 03ICA of the sew location, o Inter than cpe raonth after the aquinment’s
relocating.

Ehondd the Applicast fall to comply with eny of the aforenentioned conBitions, HICA
reserves the right to take additional action as anthorized by law, All of the Toregoing
eimatitotes the Bnal order of the Qffice of Healik £l21e Access in this matter.

Based upon the Toregoing, Frespectfiolly mepmmarend fhat the application be spproved, I
part, ard denied, in part. 1 respeotfully recoramend that the Deputy Conunissioner
spprove the et of the Apphieent b seyetee the O scamnty curreatly operssed by
WO naet deny the reguest of the Applizane fo sogudire Hhe MEL seanper currenty opemated
by B
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